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Fort Knox area, would the Hardin County Board of Education then
lose any money as a result of that statute, Mr. Lillywhite, this proposed
change?

Mrg. LirLywinTe. 1 would be glad to comment on that now if you
wish or if you want to wait untii these people are through I could get
on my regular testimony.

Chairman Perkixs. Go ahead and comment right now.

Mr. Rose. May we invite Mr. Lillywhite to join us? Mr. Chairman,
may I say for the record that the Office of Education in its adminis-
tration of 874 and 815 has ever been conscious of the value done by the
impact area legislation as we know it now and many years before that.

o we have no complaint what ever to make with the dedicated
help that the Office of Education has given to us especially from this
particular division.

For the record I might say that, and I am sure these members know
it but Mr. Lillywhite was very influential in the administration of the
legislation for impacted area schools prior to the enactment of 815
and 874 and of course went with the committee thronghout the Nation
that held on the site hearings determining the need for a permanent,
more adequate solution to this problem.

Chairman Perkixs. Do you remember the question, Mr. Lillywhite?
I am sorry for the interruption.

Mr. LitLywnrre. For the record. T am B. L. Lillywhite, Assistant
Commissioner of the U.S. Office of Education in charge of the Federal
impact area program.

The whole question that you raise, Mr. Perkins, is quite a complex
one. It is not extensive in the country. I will just answer vour
specific question first and then if you want to pursue it further then
OX. The amendment provides that if 2 years after it was passed—
last year—the school districts still refuse to or the States still
refuse to provide public education for children living on Federal
property, that property will not be Federal after that time for the
purposes of the two acts.

Now we come into this amendment with a number of Federal oper-
ations under section 6 already underway on Fort Knox and Fort
Campbell and five other minor places in Kentucky as well as a number
in other States in the Union—not a large number. There are about 25
major such as major operations in the country and then there are
about 25 small ones in one State.

If the attorney general of the State of Kentucky rules “yes” we will
provide State aid for the children living on Fort Knox and Fort
Campbell if and when the Federal operation is terminated, there
would be no penalty whatever now. I am certain that the termination
will not take place for a number of years.

These are big operations. Fort Knox has the largest number of
children on any base in the United States — 5,700 this year. You
can’t turn over that kind of an operation to Hardin County without an
awfully lot of planning and some pretty strong assurances that they
are going to continue to get support to do it.

Fort Campbell is almost as large. If the States, therefore, signify
they are willing to provide free public education for the children
and they can do it with the proviso that if and when the Federal
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operation is discontinued, the penalties will not be assessed against the
school districts.

You will remember also Mr. Perkins, the Quantico amendments.

Chairman Pergixs. I certainly do.

Mr. Linywurte. Now we cannot just discontinue a Federal oper-
ation until after the procedure set up in that bill is followed which
means that the commissioner and the head of the agency having
jurisdiction over the property both agree that a local school distriet
can educate the children satisfactorily and that the Federal operation
ought to be discontinued and turned over to them.

But we think generally if States are going to receive money, most
of them in the Union provide State aid and free public education
for all of the kids but there are a few who won’t.

We think it only fair that they be willing to provide State aid and
the local school districts accept responsibility for their education and
thisisall the amendments attempt to do.

I would sav one other thing. I thought I had a reasonably good
understanding with your assistant State superintendent, Mr. Melton,
I think, the last time on the telephone whereby he feels now that they
could make some kind of a certification as to what they could provide
under State aid if this Federal operation stopped and I told him I
wished he would send it up and maybe it would get by already but I
don’t know for sure.

Chairman Prrrrvs. T just do not feel until we get a little better
understanding down there that we ought to press too fast. I agree
with vou that a lot of this is completely sound in my judgment, but
don’t you think it would be all right to postpone the effective date for
another vear until June 30, 1970, and see if we cannot get a favorable
ruling down there.

Mr. Liruywirte. 1 would have to say this, Mr. Perkins, that we
have gone to an awful lot of cffort now since the amendment was
passed in working out with the various States arrangements so that
thev would be set up and would not have to suffer the penalties and
most of them all can doit.

Chairman Perxixs. Tagree with you, Mr. Lilly white, except I know
some school people and you know some and sometimes the people you
deal with do not do it as etfectively as vou should do it and since there
is some confusion, can you see any objection to postponing the date a
year, Mr. Rose?

Mr. Rose. I was going to say, Mr. Perkins, being a school superin-
tendent that tries to educate a rather difficult school system as far as
finances are concerned, we may get a little jumpy at the possibilities
of changes that, as I noticed mn Mr. Burkehead’s testimony from
Hardin County, would completely destroyv the school program.

We feel a responsibility to our schoolchildren that we just cannot
let that happen. Tt is not a matter of what happens to the school
administrators but being responsible for them as I say we are just a
little bit concerned about any change on the face of it that would seem
to be so drastic.

I am certain that Mr. Burkehead insofar as he could would encour-
age the State attorney of Kentucky to eliminate this seemingly unwill-
ingness on the part of the State to conform with what other States do
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but I would say again that while you said Hardin County couldn’t
assume their responsibility, then neither can they assume the respon-
sibility of what the attorney general is going to do or what the State
legislature is going to do.

May I say this: One of the serious things in Oklahoma that I have
had to combat is the fact that the generﬁ people in the State legis-
lature think that the Midwest City school district is a plush, well-
financed school system when in reality it is not.

Therefore, I can see where the State of Kentucky might think like
the State of Oklahoma. We do not need to be concerned about Mid-
west City because they have all of this Federal money but they don’t
hayve as much money to educate a child as the State of Kentucky does
or in the State of Oklahoma in the case of a Midwest City.

Mr. Linuywarre. Let me finish up by saying two things.

Chairman Prrrins. But you see no difficulty in postponing the
effective date?

Mr. Rose. No.sir;Idonot.

Mr. Licuywaite. If you decide to postpone it a year I don’t think
1t is going to be any great problems if you do, but I would hope you
would state in the report in connection with the deferral, if you do it,
that you intend to go through with this.

This gives States and school districts time to make the arrange-
ments so it does not cut the ground out from under us in trying to get
the Federal Government out of the business of running schools. We
don’t want to run schools.

Michigan had three of them and they have already transferred the
full responsibility to local school districts and they did that before this
amendment was ever set up.

Mr. Forp. I certainly do not want to put Mr. Rose and his people
on the spot with the chairman of the committee, but I don’t think you
gentlemen can come here and make a presentation about the tremen-
dous burden we put on your local school district by a Federal installa-
tion that adds kids to the Federal school system and say that is the
reason we ought to give yvou Federal funds over 87+ and 815 to offset
that burden and then sit there and agree that it is all vight for a State
to receive the money from the Federal Government, have a Federal
installation there but not accept those children or make any provision
for those children in the public school.

I was not aware until last year when we got into this that it was
possible to have a State provide not 81 of local or State money for the
education of federally connected children and yet claim them as a
Federal impact.

I suspect if that was very widely publicized across the country, the
next time you fellows come back before the Congress for 815 or 874
money you might have a little trouble. I promise you will, if the
provision added by this committee was cut off by the Appropriation
Committee by a little amendment that said no new impact area would
be taken into consideration.

I am talking about cities like New York, Chicago, Detroit, and a lot
of others that have many thousands of federally impacted children.

It pains me to take issue with anybody in Kentucky because I know
how sincerely the people wanted to help the chairman of this commit-
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tee earlier but I think the record shows he is having some problems
in helping these people.

Chairman Perrins. I agree with the gentleman from Michigan
that any Federal installation is an economic benefit to that local school
district. T feel that the State should recognize that fact, should make
recognition of it. I feel if all of us belabored under the impression
down there, and T understand the Attorney General has ruled other-
wise, that the Commonwealth of Kentucky has no right to participate
in the education of children strictly on Federal property, I think he
is altogether wrong.

I view it as a great economic benefit, and I think with some more
persuasion within a reasonable period of time we will get the legisla-
ture.

Mr. Foro. I think it would be very persuasive if those people had
the money cut off and had to go to him instead of coming here. Mr.
Chairman, there is nothing that puts pressure on like pinching some-
bodx's pocketbook.

Chairman Perrins. I agree with you, Mr. Ford, that that is true,
and I know all committees on this legislation have tried to be as reason-
able and sometimes perhaps have leaned over backwards in being
reasonable, but I certainly do not intend to ask for any other postpone-
ment beyond June 30, another year.

I agree with vou, we ought to write something in there and let’s
put them on notice and say this is the last time that we are going to
make this extension. I don’t know how many schools or States or
which are involved.

Do vou know, Mr. Lillywhite ?

Mr. Littywarre. Yes, Mr. Chairman, there are not more than half
a dozen.

Chairman Prrkins. T think Tennessee, maybe Georgia——

Mr. Forn. How much money are you paying out now ?

Mr. LitiywaiTe. Under 874 we are paying out for Federal opera-
tions $27 million in the budget for 1968 for 50,300 children expected
to be on Federal property.

This is because States are unable because of State law or the educa-
tion is unsuitable. Most of those States have already worked out the
arrangement so that the penalty would not apply and they would be
willing, when the Federal operations terminate, to provide the State
aid and the local funds to operate schools.

There are just two or three which are still problems.

Chairman Prrxixs. I think we have a lot of progress in this direc-
tion in the last 4 or 5 vears or 8 to 10 years in getting the Federal
Government. out of this business.

Mr. Meeps. T might suggest that the chairman do what T am doing
at this time. I don’t know how long vou will be able to hold out but
T have a number of school districts in my State which have for several
vears been taking funds in lieu of taxes and have been taking funds
and putting them into capital investment instead of per pupil
expenditure. When we changed the law last year to provide against
this T received letters from every one of them inveighing against the
provision or at least asking that we extend it 1 year. So far I have
not succumbed to this pressure but T don’t think these schools are en-
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titled to have their cake and eat it, too. I think thisis a good bill, the
purpose of it is proper but as school districts, such as some of my own
have done, very purposely taken funds which they should not have
taken. I don’t think they have any right to kick when they are cut
off.

Mr. Rose. Mr. Chairman, I would like to make one other statement.
It has been my observation over the years in trying to make what
seems to rather drastic local changes, if we schedule them out over a
period of years, say 3 or 4 years, the impact is less objectionable,

Frankly what T would say, rather than say extending it, the thing
we are talking about here is the State ought to pay for those children
the same amount that they pay for the other children.

So, if the first year they would be charged back with a part of the
Federal funds and next year a part of the Federal funds, the next
year a part of the Federal funds, then we would impress on the State
officials over which parole, Burkehead and Hardin and a few other
counties have no control whatever and something has to be done.

Either they finance the schools which they destroy, where they
destroy the budgets or they finance all children. They are given that
choice and that is the way I would approach this program. I don’t
think as Mr. Meeds said that they ought to have their cake and eat
it, too.

On the other hand, I cannot help but be sympathetic with individual
school districts. Let’s take four or five districts in Kentucky. They
cannot tell the legislature what to do and as long as there is no penalty
assessed, then there is no progress made.

I think that this committee can work out a program which would
encourage Kentucky and the other States Mr. Lillywhite mentioned
fall in line with the theory of this particular legislation. I think the
same thing is true, frankly, with the States that charge back a part
of their impact against the State agency.

As has been said here, the installations that we say cause district
impact are not a problem to the States where they exist. They are
an economic boon to the States where they exist.

I rather regret coming here to emphasize the need for impact area
legislation when I know that a great deal of it is going to reduce the
part of educational cost that the States are assuming.

I don’t know how you handle that problem but I think again it is
the two principles that I mentioned, and that is that the local district
should have an equal amount of funds to provide an educational pro-
gram with and they should also maintain a level of ethics equal to
other schools and the impact area program could never be sold to
this Congress on the basis of State’s economy. It just could not
be done.

Mr. Forp. You just touched on another aspect of the impact legisla-
tion that we considered last year for which we could not come up
with an answer,

We went to the west coast and again I was distressed to discover
that a school district in Mr. Meeds district—I believe it was out in
Olympia—received some money and then the State of Washington
took 1t back away from them by deducting it, in effect, from their
State aid.
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This is inconsistent with everything else we have done in legislation
where we try to help a school district and some other agency of gov-
ernment takes advantage of the benefit we give them to spread it
around to other people. I was informed when we were holding these
hearings last year there were some 14 or 15 States that comingle our
impact aid with general State aid in some fashion by charging it off
against the local district or putting it into the common pot as one of
the several devices that is used.

While we were faced with the first, immediate problem of getting
the legislation reenacted without too many changes we hoped the bill
would pass.

I would hope your people would give some serious thought to some
of the backlash we might face down the road if we don’t put our
house in order. We are talking about a principle here which is
equally important as the problem in Mr. Perkins State. When we
compare the amounts of money that are involved in solving the prob-
lem hich Mr. Perkins has expressed so clearly against the problem
we have with these States that are not using the money for the
impact. children. we are facing a number of votes out there on that
floor where one day the entire impact is going to be serious. I don’t
think it is too soon to sound that note of alarm.

Mr. LirrywairE. You will remember, Mr. Chairman, you did make
a start on this program which the board was talking about which said
if the State reduced its State aid in this current year per pupil below
what it was in the preceding year we will reduce correspondingly the
amount for every applicant each year.

Tt takes a year to get the data in. )

Chairman Perkixs. I agree with Mr. Ford’s reasoning and with
the statement that was made. As I understood Mr. Lillywhite awhile
ago, he stated if the State of Kentucky was participating in the
edueation of Federal children on Federal property, that the local
Federal agency would not lose any Federal funds—in other words,
receive as much Federal funds as they are receiving at the present time.

Is that vour statement, Mr. Lillywhite?

Mr. Lariywrare. Did T understand the question to be if they were
participating.

Chairman PerxINs. Yes.

Mr. LinLywarre. There would be no penalties attached in the law
if they took the responsibility for educating the children. It is only
«hen they refuse to recognize this is a part of the State and say we
wouldn't provide free public education for these children when the
penalties apply. )

You have to recognize in that amendment when you already have
an on-going Federal operation, even though a State takes action and
cavs ves. we will educate these children, they are not going to have to
do it until we can make arrangements to discontinue Federal operation
by the procedures set up under the bill. '

" Chairman Perxixs. It will be several years before Hardin County
can take over Fort Knox. o

Mr. Linoywite. Kentucky could take the initiative now and they
would still not suffer any penalty until we reach that time.

Chairman Persixs. There might be much controversy down there
whether the State could do these things. I think there is not much
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doubt about it and I think the attorney general should have ruled
otherwise.

I think all of us will agree extending the date will be reasonable
to put these States on notice once and for all they have to move in
this direction.

Mr. HacenEss. As the representative here from the State of Wash-
ington I would be very happy to get a copy of the transeript of Mr.
Ford’s remarks that I could take back to show some of our legislators
right now because we are having that problem.

Mr. Forp. I said it on television out there last year; maybe you
didn’t hear it.

Mr. Hageness. I would be glad to have it repeated. I do want to
make this statement however 1n a State that equalizes, as the State
of Washington, where there is a guaranteed figure statewide per
pupil, the State does have some right.

As I explained this morning, there are some things about impact
districts that the State and legislature as a whole do not understand
but I think they would understand a statement of this kind and it
would help us to clarify the picture.

We need to do something.

Mr. Forp. Mr. Chairman, could we go one further step. We did
examine the possibility of a formula. Take, for example, your State.
As I recall,it is 65/35 percent.

Mr. Hagexess. It is less than that now but it is around 60 percent.

Mr. Forp. One approach to this might be to build a formula into
this bill which equalizes the Federal aid with State aid given to the
local district, whether it be 65 percent or 60 percent or 55 percent.
If the State is giving you 65 percent of your local money then they
can take into consideration 65 percent of vour Federal fund in work-
ing out the utilization but not 100 percent of vour Federal funds
because they do not do it with the State money so why should they do
it with Federal money?

Mr. Meeps. I am not in entire agreement with the approach of the
State of Washington, but it is heavily financed by the State.

Under our State law, and correct me if I am wrong, 80 percent of
these impact funds will be counted in 1969.

Mr. HacenNess. In 1968 you are right, it will be 85 percent.

Mr. Meeps. We would appreciate that kind of amendment from
you, Mr. Ford, to take care of that problem prior to 1969. I could
hardly sponsor it.

Chairman PerxinNs. Let me say that the State of Washington and
the State of Michigan are really well represented here.

Mr. Hacexess. We appreciate it, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Perrins. Mr. Steiger.

Mr. Steiger. Mr. Chairman, thank you.

Mr. Rose, let me try to get clear, and I have gone through your
testimony and I listened to you this morning and in checking through
the bill and then rereading your testimony I will admit that I have
some problems deciding where you think we ought to amend as com-
pared to where the bill suggests we do amend.

You now agree that it would be possible to delay the date 1 year,
is that correct, for the impact area ?
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Mr. Rose. Yes, and I would like to say this, Mr. Steiger. Cer-
tainly 1 year after it has been going on 17 is not going to cause any
great cafastrophe if it can be rectified within another year then I
would say yes.

Mr. Siyoxs. I was just going to suggest that T once researched
this topic and I find the first court decision on this was in 1821 so I
don’t think it is really only 17 years old.

Mr. Rose. I referred as to the damage that it did to the impacted
area program. It has only been in existence as we now know _it,
I believe, for the 17 years and thus it has never come up before. Up
until the first of last year is the first I ever heard of it and thus tak-
ing ample time to remedy the situation would not be as I said—would
not cause catastrophic damage.

Mr. Steicer. You also, in your statement regarding Public Law
874, if I remember correctly, and I am trying to find it and I cannot,
but I think you say the concept of the last fiscal year should not be
continued.

Mr. Rose. No, the Commissioner testified with reference to the
disaster aid being limited to the level of the last full year of need
within the school district should be eliminated because we were
progressing.

T simply used his argument there to say that if it was sounded with
reference to section 3 because we have a 2-year lag there, and I think
to 2-year lag is the biggest problem in this whole program.

Mr. Steiger. I appreciate your clarifying that. One more clari-
fication from my standpoint since I have not had the benefit of the
chairman’s or Mr. Meeds’ and Mr. Ford’s expertise in this field before.

Can you give me some brief understanding of the discussion that
you carry on in your testimony about what I think you called the
grouping of similar schools within a State. Could you give me
some benefit of what you are talking about ?

Mr. Rose. Last year the House recommended that every school in
a State be placed within a group with no designation of how the groups
would be formed and that whatever the local contribution rate of that
group in which a group fell, that would be their rate. Previous to
that and for that matter as to the present, it is on a local contribution
rate of comparable schools.

That, of course, places the impact area in a group and one of the
faults of that is its low-contribution rate affects the aggregate. Then
that is what the school gets. That type of a program is more easily
administered because then you just fall in that group and there is no
argument as to whether the schools are comparable or whether they
are not.

That is determined through the State department of education the
same as the comparable school group which a given school would select.

I think there are some 17 or 18 States that use the group rating
now. I do not all together fall out with it. I think it has more sound-
ness than the 2-year lag does. I still say the same thing that I said
about introducing this other change that might be good, that it takes
a little time to do that, so if my suggestion is if they hold the group
rates, they remove the 2-year lag and go to 1 year and then they make
the provision saying the school gets no less rate than it got last year.
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In our ever-increasing local contribution rate, and I mentioned that
Oklahoma increased its tax levying possibilities by 40 percent a year
ago, that we will soon catch up with that without hurting the schools
financial approach.

Mr. Stercer. Would any of the others of you be willing—if we can
pass over impact area for a moment—would you be willing to give me
the benefit of your thinking about such questions as, for example,
whether we ought to transfer title III's responsibility from the Office
of Education to a State plan operation?

Mr. Rose. I don’t know whether I would be competent to specifically
comment on that but I think any educational program, if at all pos-
sible, should be administered through the designated agency within a
State for the administration of the State educational program.

I do not know about this one. Whether that would prevent the new
concept that we have and which has been paramount, frankly, in
getting legislation enacted whether that would eliminate the relation-
ship that we have tried to build up between public and private schools
or not.

I don’t know.

Mr. Tayror. May I respond to that a moment, Mr. Steiger?

Mr. StEIGER. Yes.

Mr. Tayror. Coming from Colorado, I understand under title III
we had the highest percent of programs funded as any in the Nation
and I believe thisis still right.

We found that many of our so-called good programs and programs
we thought were best were not accepted perhaps at the Federal level
because there was a lack of understanding as to what the needs might
be in the State.

Although I am not dissatisfied with the present way, I believe we
could strengthen the program by having the State departments, strong
State departments of education, have a greater say in it. They are the
peoi)le more closely associated with the problems.

Mr. Simmoxs. I think on this question we need a statement from
the Office of Education as to how much weight they do give to the
recommendations of the State departments of education in the various
States on the project submitted.

I can say, having been party to this for some time, that whether or
not a plan has been adopted by a State that the Office of Education to
my knowledge very seldom if ever has moved without a recommenda-
tion from the State educational agency in regard to that type of

roject.
P N][r. Steicer. It has moved in a very small number of cases.

Mr. Soarmoxs. Very small, and I suppose the question comes up
whether or not vou said they first had to pass that approval in the
State agency and whether or not that would indeed do more damage
than under the present arrangement.

Mr. Stricer. In your view it might tend to do more damage?

Mr. Snvoxs. I suppose the question could come up in my own
mind—and this 1s my own personal opinion rather than the group I
represent—I sometimes wonder if on this particular type of project
we are discussing whether or not the very separateness within a State
sometimes would not because of the organization of that State in

T5492—67—pt. 2——39
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terms of metropolitan versus urban communities, if it would not work
to the disadvantage of innovative progress for the types of boys and
girls that are supposed to be helped by the approach.

Mr. Rose. I would like to make another statement about title ITI.
The only experience that I have was that the State department ap-
prove the title IIT program for the school which I administer and the
U.S. Office disapprove it and the State department didn’t give us any
leadership or guidance in what was wrong with our project when we
submitted it but gave us tacit approval and this is a matter of record
with no criticism, we will sav of how we should have better opposed it.

We have reopposed it this year and we have not had an answer on
whether our project would acceptable or whether it would not be.

Mr. Merps. Would the gentleman from Wisconsin vield ?

Mr. Steieer. 1 certainly will,

Mr. Merps., Tt we went ahead under this title V in section 5(b) and
somehow changed this so that State educational agencies such as we
would define them in the bill rather than the Governor or someone
were to enter into a comprehensive plan for education in the State,
they would necessarily then have to work with local school districts
and large urban centers in drawing this plan up.

Would this not put them in a more knowledgeable position and
couldn’t we then look perhaps toward a little more control or a little
more sayv from the State departments of education than we might be
justified in looking to them for now in some instances. not all, in fact,
but very few.

Mr. Stararoxs, My reaction to that, Mr. Meeds, is this. T would
hope that vou always have some title in this very fine Elementary and
Secondary Aect that we are certainly enjoving in metropolitan areas
in Michigan. that vou always have a chance for innovation that does
not necessarily fit a State plan because, indeed. my experience during
the Jast 25 vears is it is sometimes the compromises that are worked
out in terms of developing a state-wide plan which do not always per-
mit. the kind of innovation that you people try to do in the Itlementary
and Secondary Edueation Aect.

The only thing T am suggesting is that first of all T don’t think this
<hould be in the hands of the Governor or anyone else. I think sec-
ondly there ought to be =ome kind of an opportunity even where you
have a well-organized State department that this 1s not just a nice
comfortable State pian and some school districts become innovated
thev will have some redress to the act that vou have written.

Chairman Prrxixs. Let me sav we have eight distinguished mem-
bers of this panel and we have Mr Lillywhite, and I would like to
know if the panel has any comments in connection with Commissioner
Howe's testimony when he referred to some prospective amendments
to section 14 of Public Law 815 and I certainly would like to have
Mr. Lillywhite document for the record just what those amendments
involve and how they change the present law.

Go ahead, Mr. Lillywhite on the amendments that are before the
committee.

Mr. Lituywiite. Do you want a deseription only of the amendments
to section 14 or do you want anything said about the other amendments
referred to in the Commissioner’s testimony.
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Chairman Perxins. You can run through all of these amendments.

Mr. Lictywarte. The first ones will be very brief. We got dis-
aster assistance given to the Oflice of Education under Public Law
§9-313. That is the repair and rebuilding of schools destroyed in
major disasters or damaged or destroyed in major disasters.

In November 1965 that had a life of 2 vears. We have had this
vearand a half operation under it.

Chairman Perxixs. Has it worked well ¢

Mr. Linywarre. It has. It took us a little while to get acquainted
with it and they made it retroactive to cover Hurricane Betsy when
commitments were made by the operating agency and it took a bit of
doing to get squared away 3 months after the damage occurred and
one authority made certain commitments to 23 or 30 school districts
down there as to what they would do.

Chairman Perkrxs. I remember the situation. We had it on the
floor then.

Mr. Linywmite. We are working that out but the disaster assist-
ance legislation has seemed to me to work with a remarkably small
cost. We have not had any major disasters like Betsy but there were
11last year and two this year.

The total cost so far to this Office is less than $500,000. The ques-
tion might be raised why Is it necessary to have such authority if the
amount is so small.

T think that the answer to that would be something like this, that
it is highly important to the few school districts that are involved.

Most States have good insurance programs. But the insurance does
not take care of all of it and there are certain types of things such as
water damage that cannot be insured against.

So, to have the authority there so that they know they can go ahead
and make the repairs so children can get back in school, and when the
building is destroyed have some authou‘rv to help thens set up a tem-
porary school so the children can go to school while they are rebuilding
the school, it sems to me is worth while having.

Now we found just two or three things in it that we have recom-
mended for technical changes. One of them is something like this.
Most of the repair damage to disasters is putting on a roof, roﬁnlshlncr
the floor, putting in Wlndows, buying new supplies and equlpment
and this 1s done normally bv a school district with its operating funds.
We have an ainendment in there that just adds, the S74 part of the
amendment “repair” so we can just do 1t normaly like the school dis-
tricts doit. Thatisa very small one.

Another one is we want to put a diminimus on the amount for assist-
ance.  When you make a field frip up to northern Minnesota on the
Red River Valley or in South Dakota or some other place where the
Red River overflowed we get an application in here for 830,

The law contains rmthomtv for us to grant assistance over a 3-year
period on a diminishing basis each vear if the cconomy of the com-
munity is destroyed to the extent w here they can provide assistance
but it saxs you ean operate schools at the Tevel the full year preceding
that or the disaster.

Costs, as you know, are going up and you don’t operate at the same
level so we are asking them to take out the “at the level.” The other
one is the extension of the law for a period of 5 vears,
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That is all there is on disasters.

There is only one minor amendment to 874 and that is a change in:
the definition of Federal property. We are supposed to make deduc-
tions for payments made with respect to Federal property including-
payments on property held in lease by private citizens.

We found payments made to a district in Oklahoma and one in
Arizona that were never reported to the Office. So we had paid the
district the full amount of the money.

Chairman Perkixs. Assuming that the leased property, several
thousand acres, was leased by the military installation for farming
purposes. Then would they not be considered federally connected
children?

Mr. LiiywraiTe. We are not talking about federally connected
children at all. We are talking only about deductions.

When we went to collect the deductions, the district would not pay.
We turned one over to the General Accounting Office and we took
the other one to the court and we lost in both cases. The court threw
it out for this reason. It is the technical wording of the definition
of Federal property.

Both of these were on land held in trust for individual Indians or
Indian tribes and not land owned by the United States, and the word-
ing of the law refers to land owned by the United States or leased
therefrom.

The lease is not therefrom. It is leased from the Indians on which
there is a restriction on alienation. This is all the change there. It
just clears up what the Congress intended to do.

The others are the amendments to section 14. When these laws
were first passed, Indian reservations were included the same as other
areas but thev didn’t have increases in school enrollment like those
characterized by a military installation so nobody was eligible for-
assistance, yet, there were still thousands of Indian children on
reservations that did not have schools to go to.

So in 1953 after the first 2 years you amended this law and put
in section 14 to provide a kind of a special arrangement adapted to-
those districts that have large Indian reservations. That program
has worked very well. You put a limitation on $20 million, then $40
million, then $60 million.

‘We spent $54.8 million. The school district constructed with money
1,789 classrooms to house about 49,000 children. That is about 50
percent of all of the Indian children in public schools.

But there are a few problems now that are emerging that are not
covered by this provision and the purpose of the amendment is to
make this a little bit more liberal to meet the problems that exist.

The Bureau of Indian Affairs appearing before the Senate Com-
mittee on Appropriations last year were urged to make a study of the
need for Federal funds for construction of school facilities in local
districts for Indian children living on reservations. If a need was
found to report by January 15 and provide language to meet that need.

The Bureau of Indian Affairs does not have any program or au-
thority to build school facilities or grant money to build school
facilities for school districts educating Indian children.

They build residential schools but not to grant money for construc-
tion of school. They have about $10 million a year under the
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-Johnson-O’Malley Act. So the Bureau of Indian A ffairs came to this
office and said you have the authority under section 14.

Now why don’t we work with you and revise this legislation to the
point where it makes this need. We find there is a need existing so
we agreed that we would work together to come up with some
amendments.

So I think the way the Senate Committee wanted it done this way
has special requests, a dozen or so a year to appropriate $1,500,000
to build a school in this area. They have no way of evaluating those
requests on a regular basis so they wanted some kind of regular
on-going program for us. We have developed amendments to section
14. They have been referred to the Bureau of Indian Affairs. The
Bureau has wholeheartedly endorsed them and sent that recommenda-
tion to the Bureau of the Budget.

As of this moment they have been cleared by parts of the clearance
apparatus in the Bureau of the Budget but not the final clearance.
We expect that it will be cleared so I am now authorized to describe
for you the amendments. I cannot say they have been cleared or
that they will be forthcoming. I think thaf they probably will be
but I don’t know.

That is the status of it. The amendments I will get to very simply.
Under the present section 14 we count in a local school district the
children living on reservations and if they have a substantial per-
centage of those children that are unhoused without school facilities
and they don’t have enough money in there total bonding capacity and
all other sources to build the facilities, then we can grant the money
to build the facilities for them. If they have part enough money,
we can grant only the difference.

I you go over here to section 5, the program these people have been
talking about and if a school district has an increase in children enough
to meet the eligibility requirement they get the grant of money no
matter how wealthy the children are. They get the rate specified in
the law per child. So, here you have some of the poorest most dis-
advantaged districts in the Nation being required to spend every dime
they have in their bonding capacity to provide the facilities before
they get the Federal money or only get the difference between the cost
and what their total resources are.

So the first part of the amendment goes strictly to the children on
Indian reservations and it provides generally like this: If they meet
the eligibility requirement, the substantial percentage, and they have
unhoused children, the Commission will grant the money.

The burden and need problem is taken out for the on-reservation
children. Most of them are poor districts. Most of the children in the
districts are among the most disadvantaged we have in the Nation.
This is an effort to get some school facilities to places where they just
do not have enough money to build schools.

Mr. Meeps. Statistics show the birth rate of these people is four
times the national average, am I correct.?

Mr. Lirtywrrre. They are increased.

Mr. Meeps. Four times the national average?

Mr. LnrywaiTe. Yes.

Now the second part of the amendment goes to the whole situation
in a school district in which there is an Indian reservation and looks
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at the entire problem because a lot of children migrate off the reserva-
tion and they are squatters and they cause these problems. Again we
put back the burden and effort problem the way we had it so if the
school district meets the burden and effort, then you count the total
problem in the school district toward the substantial percentage and
deal with it that way.

I just might say that when you face a small school district within
a very large area but not too many people and a large part of it is in
nontaxable Federal property and is peopled by a growing population
that does not pay taxes and there is very little taxable wealth outside
that reservation, those people are very reluctant to build housing for
the Indian children. They have a hard enough time to get the money
to build school facilities for children, so these amendments simply try
to meet that.

Chairman Perxixs. Thank vou very much, Mr. Lillywhite. We
appreciate your coming here and we appreciate the entire planning and
it has been so helpful to us all through the years.

Now, perhaps, if vou have the time, you can step aside and not leave
the room because I want the members to interrogate as long as they
want to interrogate after we hear about eight more witnesses.

We will come on around the school board people now.

Mr. Rose. Mr. Chairman, let me say this is the best opportunity
we have ever had to tell our story.

Chairman Perrins. Thank vou very much, Mr. Rose. We want to
see you back here many more times in the future.

Paul N. Carlin. diréctor of the Federal and Congressional Relations
in the National School Boards Association.

We have Dr. Harold V. Webb, executive director of the National
School Boards Association: and Dr. Joseph Ackerman, president of
the National School Boards Association, Elmhurst, T1l.; and Kenneth
W. Lund, senior vice president—he is not a witness. He just re-
mained.

Do you have any other members here ?

My, Ackemvax. Yes: Mr. Hugh Calking, a member of both the
Cleveland School Board and our legislative committee.

Chairman Perrixs. Who is the chairman of the panel ?

Mr. Carxrxs. Dr. Ackerman.

Chairman Prrrixs. Proceed. We will withhold questioning until
all of vou make yvour statements. We are most anxious to hear your
testimony.

STATEMENTS OF JOSEPH ACKERMAN, PRESIDENT, NATIONAL
SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION, AND HUGH CALKINS, LEGISLA-
TIVE COMMITTEE, NATIONAL SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION;
ACCOMPANIED BY PAUL N. CARLIN, DIRECTOR, FEDERAL AND
CONGRESSIONAL RELATIONS, AND HAROLD V. WEBB, EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR, NATIONAL SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION

Mr. Meeps. I have to leave. May I make a comment and ask one
very brief question?

Chairman Prrrrxs. Yes, indeed.

Mr. Meeps. Dr. Ackerman, and you people who prepared testimony,
may I say at this time that it is certainly some of the most enlighten-
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ing and precise testimony that has been presented to this committee,
precise recommendation of what to do. I am particularly impressed
with your work with regard to the expenditures of funds by National,
State, and local governments and with your precise suggestions as to
what we ought to do in the authorization and appropriation cases so
we get by this impasse which we know has been created in funding
of these programs.

Also, your request for full funding and all of your suggestions, may
Isay I agree heartily with them.

Having said that, now may I ask you one question.

Last year, or 1965, you people were before this committee and gave
some very good testimony with regard to this bill when it was initially
before us, and I recall some of that testimony and asked to get this
prepared testimony. .\t that time you said:

Among the elements of control, NSBA believes initiative programming by local
communities are the following: (1) the right to organize a school system in
terms of particular overall personnel; (2) the right to adapt facilities to local
needs: and (3) to regulate which funds available to the local distriet shall be
expewdled as best determined by the Board of Education and the citizens of the
local community.

These were the caveats that you laid down with your support for
this legislation.

Now may I just ask you if yvou think that vou have been able to
retain all of those things which were requested and this, pretty well,
from your standpoint.?

Mr. Ackeryan. Well, T would say I have certainly not heard a great
deal of criticism on the way it has operated uponto this particular
point. I think there are still some fears on the part of many school
board people and there is certainly a hope that this local control will
still be maintained.

Mr. Mreeps. Thank you very much.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Perxixs. Go ahead.

Mr. Acxrervan. I am Joe Ackerman, president of the National
School Boards Association and member of the Elmhurst (IMlinoiz)
Board of Education. I am accompanied by our executive director,
Dr. Harold V. Webb, and then also our divector of Federal and con-
gressional relations, Mr. Panl N. Carlin. and also Mr. Tugh Calkins,
who is a member of the Cleveland School Board. TTe serves on our
legislative committee.

The National School Boards Association is a nonprofit federation
of the State school board associations of the 50 States, the District of
Columbia, and the Virgin Islands. Our association, through its mem-
ber State school board associations represents more than 86,000 elected
and appointed Jocal school board members.  These citizen leaders serve
voluntarily on the governing hoards of their local school districts with-
out compensation. In many communities, this amounts to a part-time
assignment with virtually full-time responsibility.

The National School Boards Association is the only national orga-
nization representing local school boards and its primary objective is
the strengthening of public education through active citizen participa-
tion in the policymaking process of educating our children.
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1 appreciate this opportunity, Mr. Chairman, to appear before your
committee, on behalf of the National School Boards Association, to
discuss the Elementary and Secondary Education Amendments of
1967. For the convenlence of your committee, my remarks will be
directed toward those major policy areas which are embraced by the
two identical bills, H.R. 6230 by Congressman Perkins and H.R. 6236
by Congressman Brademas, that are officially before your committee
for the purpose of these hearings.

The annals of history will record the April 11, 1965, enactment of
Public Law 89-10, the Elementary and Secondary Education Amend-
ments of 1965, as one of the most significant educational landmarks of
our generation.

Webster defines landmark as “an event or development that marks
a turning point.” For local school boards, this “turning point” has
resulted in the availability of a substantially higher level of Federal
incentive funds and an activated public interest in both the total needs
of public education and the special requirements of economically
disadvantaged children.

A direct result of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of
1965 has been a significant shift in the pattern of financing our
Nation’s public schools. During the current fiscal year, for example,
the $28.3 billion in expenditures by our Nation’s 21,684 operating
public elementary and secondary school districts will come from the
following sources: Federal, 8.1 percent—vis-a-vis 4.6 percent 3 years
ago—State, 37.8 percent ; and local, 54.1 percent.

The turbulent nature of rapid change, with all of its frustrating
and exciting manifestations, has never been more clearly evident than
within today’s local school districts.

In an atfempt to provide your committee with a current “grass-
roots” appraisal of some of the major policy considerations implicit
in the Elementary and Secondary Education Amendments of 1967,
the National School Boards Association has recently distributed a
six-point questionnaire to its key leadership. With the committee’s
permission, this analysis will be forwarded for inclusion in the hear-
Ing record as an integral part of our association’s statement.

The National School Boards Association offers the following rec-
ommendations for further strengthening the purposes and objectives
of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965, as pro-
posed for amendment by H.R. 6230 and H.R. 6236:

FEDERAL APPROPRIATIONS TIMETABLE

A serious practical dilemma confronting local school districts is
caused by the incompatibility of the school year with the Federal
legislative calendar.

Tor example, the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare’s
appropriations bill was not approved last year until October 21, 1966,
and the ESEA Amendments of 1966 (Public Law 89-750), which
revised the distribution formula for title I, was not enacted into law
until November 3, 1966.

As a result of these two factors, it was not until February 23, 1967,
that the State Departments of Education were advised of their ESEA
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title I maximum basic grants for fiscal year 1967. Numerous school
districts still have not been apprised of their fiscal year 1967 alloca-
tions even though less than three and a half months remain in the
196667 school year.

The financial “pinch” came with the annual ratable adjustment
provision (sec. 208 of Public Law 89-10, as amended by sec. 114 of
Public Law 89-750), which this year reduced the national maximum
amount authorized by nearly one-fourth. The $1.8312 billion
maximum amount authorized was reduced to $1.053 billion.

After a further deduction for the outlying territories and State-
operated programs, the amount left for local educational agencies was
less than $1 billion ($989,935,591).

While the administration has recommended a 5-year extension of
three major education programs a year before they are scheduled to
expire, it was regrettable that a recommendation was not also made
at this time to extend the Elementary and Secondary Education Act
of 1965 beyond its June 30, 1968, expiration date. A congressional
extension of the ESEA program during the 1967 calendar year
would allow local school boards to plan ahead in an orderly manner
for assimilating any modifications in its program objectives or
authorization levels.

Since the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (Public
Law 89-10) is presently scheduled to expire on June 30, 1968:

We recommend that Public Law 89-10 be extended, during the cur-
rent calendar year, for a period of 5 years in order to encourage long-
range local planning and an orderly implementation of any modifi-
cation in its program objectives or authorization levels.

To ease the very real dilemma caused by the conflict between imple-
menting most educational programs during the school year and the
timing of Federal appropriations for these purposes :

We recommend that Congress modify its existing appropriation
procedures, insofar as it relates to the funding of programs for States
and local educational purposes, so that eligible participants can be
apprised during the early spring of each year, of the specific amounts
that they will receive during the coming school year.

STATE AND LOCAL SCHOOL BOARD PLANNING GRANTS

While local school boards have long recognized the critical need for
implementing systematic and comprehensive long-range planning pro-
grams, other priorities have often prevailed in the competition for
severely limited educational dollars.

Those forward-looking school boards which are making a real effort
to implement local planning programs find themselves doubly
thwarted.

First, when State educational agencies are called upon for technical
planning asssistance, it is seldom available because most of their per-
sonnel specialize in administrative, statistical and curriculum
supervision functions.

econd, State and Federal funds, to asssist in meeting the financial
costs associated with hiring or providing personnel to work on a local
long-range planning project, are presently available only under very
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Jimited circumstances. By way of comparison, there are more than
80 Federal planning grant programs available to other local and State
governmental entities.

Thoughtful school board members are also becoming increasingly
apprehensive that unless local school districts implement systematic
and comprehensive long-range planning programs, then this planning
and evaluation “vacuum” will be filled by noneducational and/or non-
local sources.

The National School Boards Association feels that the proposed
comprehensive educational planning amendment to title V of the
Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 offers a far-reach-
ing “opportunity” for strengthening and enhancing the ability of
local school districts to determine their own futures, provided that
these grants are administered through the State educational agencies.
We feel that such a modification would further strengthen the leader-
ship and service role which must increasingly be assumed by the
State departments.

We recommend that the leadership resources of the State educa-
tional agencies be further enhanced by amending the proposed 5-year
program of grants to State and Jocal education agencies by providing
that these comprehensive educational planning and evaulation grants
be administered through the State education agency.

NATIONAL TEACHER CORPS

The National School Boards Association endorses the major revi-
sions in the National Teacher Corps program, as provided for in H.R.
6230 and H.IR. 6236.

We are especially pleased with the amendment of the existing pro-
gram to reinforce the concept of loeal control by further clarifying
the local school board's absolute right to decide what Corps members
ave assigned to its schools.

The reduction of the teacher-intern compensation rate to $75 per
week plus $15 per dependent or the lowest rate for full-time teaching
in the school system, whichever is less, will remove an existing pay
disparity with fully qualified teachers already in the school system by
conforming the compensation rate for these teacher-interns with the
prevailing rate for graduate students or the local community’s salary
scale.

In addition, we fully support the requirement that all proposals be
approved by the State educational agency, including those training
programs which are to be offered by the participating institution or
university.

A further amendment to provide authority for contracts with local
school districts and universities over a 2-year period of service would
allow participating school districts to more effectively plan for utiliz-
ing the services of their “trained” teacher-interns during the corps-
man’s second year.

TWe recommend that the National Teacher Corps program be fur-
ther amended to provide authority for contracts with local school
districts and universities for a 2-year period of service, and that this
pilot program be continued as modified by the provisions of H.R. 6230

and IL.R. 6236.
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FULL FUNDING OF TITLE I—SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION

The estimated ESTA title I authorization for fiscal year 1963 was
$2.4 billion vis-a-vis the actual budgetary request of the administra-
tion for only one-half ($1.2 billion) of that amount. Though this
budget figure estimate represents a 13-percent increase, a 100-percent
gap still remains.

In addition, the National School Boards Association has noted that
while the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (Public
Law 89-10), the ESEA Amendments of 1966 (Public Law 89-750),
and the committee reports on these bills clearly enunciated the con-
gressional intent that title I funds be utilized, among other purposes,
for “the construction of school facilitics and plans made or to be
made for such programs, projects, and facilities,” the official policy
position of the U.S. Office of Education is that title I is not a con-
struction-type of a program.

For this reason, only $97 million (9.95 percent) of the estimated
expenditures under this program were authorized for school construe-
tion projects in fiscal year 1966. During the current fiscal year, 1967,
the amount allowed for public school construction was decreased to 881
million (7.95 percent).

By way of comparison, during the past year, public elementary and
secondary school districts spent 3.6 billion for capital outlay purposes
and completed some 72,600 classrooms. Nonetheless, this rate of con-
struction only took care of the existing increase rate, not the backlog.

Current estimates place the existing backlog need at some 350,000
new classrooms and sonie 230,000 renovated classrooms. The cost of
erasing this backlog, plus maintaining the present rate of school con-
struction, will approximate some $50 billion or $5 hillion per year for
10 years.

It is our opinion that the most pressing unmet educational need in
America today is for adequate financial resources to aid in the coopera-
tive financing of school construction, remodeling, and rennovation
projects.

We recommend that the estimated ESE.\ title T authorization for
fiscal year 1968 be fully funded and that a substantial portion of this
increase be made available for the construction, remodeling, and re-
novation of publie school buildings.

Chairman Perrins. Mr. Ackerman, yvou made a very good state-
ment. If there is no objection, I understand that Dr. Lund, senior
vice president of Scott, Foresman & Co., American Book Publishers
Council, and American Textbook Publishers Institute, has to catch a
plane at 5:45. Isthat correct?

Mr. Lunp. Yes, sir.

Chairman Perxins. Would you want to come up here and briefly
summarize your statement and insert it in the record?

Mr. Luxp. Iknow theyare in the same position.

Chairman Pergrys. All of you are in the same position ?

Mr. Loxp. I will join them, but I will wait.

Mr. AckerMaN. You have the remainder of the report.

Chairman PergIns. Just a moment.

How many other witnesses?
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Mrs. Ryan. National PTA.

Chairman Perrrxs. You don’t havetocatch a plane?

Mrs. Ryan. Ijustlostit.

Chairman Pergins. Iam sorry about that.

Who else, Dr. Ackerman, wants to make a statement in your groups?

Mr. Ackerman. Mr. Calkins has a short statement that he wishes
to make when I am through.

Chairman Pergivs. From Cleveland?

Mr. Caugins. That is correct.

Chairman Pergins. I am anxious to hear from you.

Go ahead and summarize your statement.

Mr. Ackermax. I would merely summarize the last point without
reading the total. There we were talking about the families that are
residing in federally supported public housing projects in the urban
centers particularly.

We recommend that the eligibility requirements of this federally
impacted areas program (Public Law 815 and Public Law 874) be
expanded to include the children of families residing within federally
sponsored public housing projects.

We thank you.

(The full statement follows:)

STATEMENT BY DR. JOSEPH ACKERMAN, PRESIDENT, NATIONAL SCHOOL BOARDS
ASSOCIATION

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee: I am Dr. Joseph Ackerman,
President of the National School Boards Association and a member of the Elm-
hurst, Illinois Board of Education. I am accompanied by our Association’s
Executive Director. Dr. Harold V. Webb, and our Director of Federal and Con-
gressional Relations, Mr. Paul N. Carlin.

The National School Boards Association is a non-profit federation of the state
school board associations of the fifty states, the District of Columbia. and the
Virgin Islands. Our Association, through its member state school board asso-
ciations represents more than 86,000 elected and appointed local school board
members. These citizen leaders serve voluntarily on the governing boards of
their local school districts without compensation. In many communities, this
amounts to a part-time assignment with virtually full-time responsibility.

The National School Boards Association is the only national organization
representing local school boards and its primary objective is the strengthening
of public education through active citizen participation in the policy making
process of educating our children.

I appreciate this opportunity Mr. Chairman, to appear before your Committee,
on behalf of the National School Boards Association to discuss the Elementary
and Secondary Education Amendments of 1967. For the convenience of your
Committee, my remarks will be directed toward those major policy areas which
are embraced by the two identical bills (H.R. 6230 by Congressman Perkins
and H.R. 6236 by Congressman Brademas) that are officially before your
Committee for the purpose of these hearings.

The annals of history will record the April 11, 1965 enactment of Public Law
89-10. the Elementary and Secondary Education Amendments of 1965. as one
of the most significant educational landmarks of our generation.

Webster defines landmark as “an event or development that marks a turning
point.” For local school boards. this “turning point” has resulted in the avail-
ability of a substantially higher level of Federal incentive funds and an activated
public interest in both the total needs of public education and the special require-
ments of economically disadvantaged children.

A direct result of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 has
been a significant shift in the pattern of financing our Nation's public schools.
During the current fiscal year. for example, the $28.3 billion in expenditures by
our Nation's 21.684 operating public elementary and secondary school districts




ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION AMENDMENTS 1443

will come from the following sources: Federal—8.1 percent (vix-a-vis 4.6 percent
three years ago) ; State—37.8 percent ; and local-—5+.1 percent.

The turbulent nature of rapid change. with all of its frustrating and exciting
manifestations, has never been more clearly evident than within today’s local
school districts.

In an attempt to provide your Comimittee with a current “grass roots” appraisal
of some of the major policy considerations implicit in the Elementary and Sec-
ondary Education Amendments of 1967, the National School Boards Association
has recently distributed a six-point questionnaire to itx key leadership. With
the Committee’s permission, this analysis will be forwarded for inclusion in the
hearing record as an integral part of our Association’s statement.

The National School Boards Association offerxs the following recommendations
for further strengthening the purposes and objectives of the Elementary and
Secondary Education Act of 1965. ax propoxed for amendment by H.R. 6230 and
H.R. 6236 :

FEDERAL APPROPRIATIONS TIMETABLE

A =serious practical dilemma confronting local school districts is caused by
the incompatibility of the school year with the Federal legislative calendar.

For example, the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare's appropria-
tions bill was not approved last year until October 21, 1966 and the ESEA
Amendments of 1966 (P.L. 89-750). which revised the distribution formula for
Title I. was not enacted into law until November 3. 1966.

As a result of these two factors, it was not until February 23, 1967 that the
State Departments of Education were advised of their ESEA Title I maximum
basic grants for fiscal year 1967. Numerous school distriets still have not been
apprised of their fiscal year 1967 allocations, even though less than three and
a half months remain in the 1966-67 school year.

The financial “pinch” came with the annual ratable adjustment provision
(Sec. 208 of PL 89-10, as amended by Sec. 114 of PL 89-750), which this year
reduced the national maximum amount authorized by nearly one-fourth. The
$£1.312 billion maximum amount authorized was reduced to $1.053 billion.

After a further deduction for the outlying territories and state-operated
programs, the amount left for local educational agencies was less than $1 billion
($989,935,591).

‘While the Administration has recommended a five-year extension of three
major education programs a year before they are scheduled to expire, it was
regrettable that a recommendation was not also made at this time to extend
the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 beyond its June 30. 1968
expiration date. A Congressional extension of the ESEA program, during the
1967 calendar year would allow local school boards to plan ahead in an orderly
manner for assimilating any modifications in its program objectives or
authorization levels.

Since the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (PL 89-10) is
presently scheduled to expire on June 30, 1968 :

We recommend that P.L. 89-10 be extended, during the current calendar year,
for a period of five years in order to encourage long-range local planning and
and orderly implementation of any modification in its program objectives or
authorization levels.

To ease the very real dilemma caused by the conflict between implementing
most educational programs during the school year and the timing of Federal
appropriations for these purposes:

We recommend that Congress modify its existing appropriation procedures,
insofar as it relates to the funding of programs for State and local educational
purposes, so that eligible participants can be apprised during the early spring
of each year, of the specific amounts that they will receive during the coming
school year.

STATE AND LOCAL SCHOOL BOARD PLANNING GRANTS

‘Wtlile local school boards have long recognized the critical need for implement-
ing systemnatic and comprehensive long-range planning programs, other priorities
have often prevailed in the competition for severely limited educational dollars.

Those forward-looking school boards which are making a real effort to
implement local planning programs find themselves doubly thwarted. First,
when State educational agencies are called upon for technical planning assist-
ance. it is seldom available because most of their personnel specialize in
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administrative, statistical and curriculum supervision functions. Second, State
and Federal funds, to assist in meeting the financial costs associated with hiring
or providing personnel to work on a local long-range planning project, are pres-
ently available only under very limited circumstances. By way of comparison,
there are more than 80 Federal planning grant programs available to other
local and State governmental entities.

Thoughtful school board members are also becoming increasingly apprehensive
that unless local school districts implement systematic and comprehensive
Jong-range planning programs, then this planning and evaluation “vacuum” will
be filled by non-educational and/or non-local sources.

The National School Boards Association feels that the proposed comprehensive
educational planning amendment to Title V of the Elementary and Secondary
Education Act of 1965 offers a far-reaching “opportunity” for strengthening and
enhancing the ability of local school districts to determine their own futures,
provided that these grants are administered through the state educational
agencies. We feel that such a modification would further strengthen the
leadership and service role which must increasingly be assumed by the State
departments.

We recommend that the leadership resources of the state educational agencies
be further enhanced by amending the proposed 5-year program of grants to
State and local education agencies by providing that these Comprehensive
Educational Planning and Evaluation grants be administered through the
state educational agency.

NATIONAL TEACHER CORPS

The National School Board Association endorses the major revisions in the
National Teacher Corps program, as provided for in H.R. 6230 and H.R. 6236.

We are especially pleased with the amendment of the existing program to
reinforce the concept of local control by further clarifying the local school
board’s absolute right to decide what Corps members are assigned to its schools.

The reduction of the teacher-intern compensation rate to $75 per week plus
815 per dependent or the lowest rate for full-time teaching in the school system,
whichever is less, will remove an existing pay disparity with fully qualified
teachers already in the school system by conforming the compensation rate for
these teacher-interns with the prevailing rate for graduate students or the
local community’s salary scale.

In addition. we fully support the requirement that all proposals be approved
by the state educational agency. including those training programs which are
to be offered by the participating institution or University.

A further amendment to provide authority for contracts with local school
districts and Universities over a two-year period of service would allow par-
ticipating school districts to more effectively plan for utilizing the services of
their “trained” teacher-interns during the Corpsman’s second year.

We recommend that the National Teacher Corps program be further amended
to provide authority for contracts with local school districts and Universities
for a two-vear period of service, and that this pilot program be continued as
modified by the provisions of H.R. 6230 and H.R. 6236.

FULL FUNDING OF TITLE I—SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION

The estimated ESEA Title I authorization for fiscal year 1968 was $2.4
billion visa-vis the actual budgetary request of the Administration for only
one-half (1.2 billion) of that amount. Though this budget figure estimate:
represents a 13 percent increase, a 100 percent gap still remains.

In addition, the National School Boards Association has noted that while
the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (PL 89-10), the ESEA
Amendments of 1966 (PL S9-750), and the Committee reports on these bills
clearly enunciated the Congressional intent that Title I funds he utilized,
ameng other purposes. for *‘the construction of school facilities and plans made
or to be made for such programs. projects. and facilities,” the official policy
policy position of the U.S. Office of Education is that Title I is not a construction-
type of a program.

For this reason. only $£97 million (9.95 percent) of the estimated expenditures
under this program were authorized for school construction projects in fiscal
vear 1966. During the current fiscal year (1967), the amount allowed for
public school construction was decreased to $81 million (7.95 percent).
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By way of comparison, during this past year. public elementary and sec-
ondary school districts spent $3.6 billion for capital outlay purposxes and com-
pleted some 72,600 classrooms. Nonetheless, this rate of coustruction only
took care of the existing increase rate, not the backlog.

Current estimates place the existing backlog need at some 350,000 new
classrooms and some 230,000 renovated classrooms. The cost of erasing this
backlog, plus maintaining the present rate of school construction, will approx-
imate some $£50 billion or $5 billion per year for 10 vears.

It isx our opiunion that the most pressing unmet educational need in America
today is for adequate financial resources to aid in the cooperative financing
school construction, remodeling, and renovation projects.

We recomment that the estimated ESEA Title I authorization for fiscal
year 1968 be fully funded and that substantial portion of this increase be
made available for the construction, remodeling, and renovation of public
school buildings.

PUBLIC HOUSING STUDENTS

Last September there were 607,000 families residing within Federally-spon-
sored public housing projects. While there are no current national statistics
available as to the number of children from these families who are currently en-
rolled in the public schools, we would estimate that the figure of one million
youngsters, which was previously indicated to your Committee, is probably a
conservative figure.

As the Committee is well aware, local government (including school districts)
derives approximately 86% of its local tax revenue from property tax sources,
Since Federally-sponsored public housing projects are exempt from local prop-
erty taxes, nearly all of the local costs of educating these more than one
million children are currently borue by their property-taxpaying neighbors.

At the present time a partial offset ix provided in the form of payments-in-
lieu of taxes which are paid by the public housing authority to the local pub-
lic taxing bodies as a contribution for the full range of local governmental
services which are provided for these 07,000 families.

This payment-in-lieu of taxes payment is limited by statute to 10% of the
shelter rent which is paid to the public housing authority.

During fiscal year 1964 this provision resulted in $18.6 million in payments.
By way of comparison, the cost of educating one million children exceeds $£300
million in local taxes,

This tax inequity is not restricted to only the major metropolitan jurisdie-
tions.  275.000 of these children reside within the 14 largest cities and the
remaining 725,000 live in smaller and rural communities.

We recommend that the eligibility requirements of the Federally Impacted
Areas Program (PL 815 and PL: 874) be expanded to include the children of
families residing within Federally-sponsored public housing projects.

I appreciate this opportunity to present these views on behalf of the National
School Boards Association. Thank you.

Chairman Perkixs. Go ahead.

Mr. Cavxins. My name is Hugh Calkins. I am a member of the
Cleveland Board of Education and a member of Dr. Ackerman’s
committee.

I would like to confine my testimony to the problem of Federal
funding of programs for disadvantaged children with particular
reference to the political problems of most of the big cities of this
country.

Chairman Perkins. With that idea in mind, do you feel that the
categorical approach that we now have under title I or a general
Federal aid approach will better serve these disadvantaged areas
at this time?

Mr. CavLkins. In the immediate future with the limitations which
exist on the Federal budget I am very sure that the categorical ap-
proach Is essential if we are going to improve the quality of education
in the inner-city.
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Chairman Prrxixs. And you are making that statement from
your experience upon the Cleveland public school board?

Mr. Cackixs. I am, sir, and what I would like to do is to explain
to you why I believe thisis so.

Chairman Pergivs. Go ahead.

Mr. Carxins. It is essentially a political reason. I must start with
the financial problem of the Cleveland schools. We are now spend-
ing approximately $530 per pupil per year for all purposes; operating
purposes, building purposes. This includes all of our Federal pro-
grams for inner-city children as well as the programs which we
conduct for the 154,000 children who go to our schools.

That figure is about 80 percent of the average expenditure for educa-
tion in suburban Cleveland. That means taking into account all of
the extra Federal help which we are now receiving. We are still only
spending on the average 80 percent of what the districts that surround
Cleveland are spending.

Now it is no wonder that there is a steady migration out of Cleveland
of middle-class families, both white and Negro, to the suburbs.

It is a fact that the tax rate in Cleveland, the total tax rate for all
purposes, is among the highest in the county in which we live. There
are a few suburban districts with a higher total rate, but most of the
suburban districts have a substantially lower total tax rate than we in
Cleveland do.

Nevertheless, they can provide education which on the average is 20
percent more costly and probably in many respects therefore better
than we are able to provide in the city of Cleveland. The reason for
this is that the costs of municipal government in the city of Cleveland
are much heavier than they are in suburbia.

In Ohio as a whole approximately 66 percent of all local taxes go
for schools, but in the big cities of Ohio less than 50 percent of the taxes
o for schools. There are many figures available to show that the cost
of police protection, fire protection, and all the other gvernment serv-
ices associated with big cities are much heavier than in areas of smaller
population.

This results in the basic fiscal problem of big cities, which is that,
although our tax effort is high. our tax yield for education is low.

Now the second important fact is that we are dependent entirely
upon the voters for our money. This is a characteristic of most major
cities in this country, not all. It is an important reason why New
York City has quite different problems than many of the other major
cities do, because New York is what is known as a fiscally dependent
school district; the schools get their money from the reguf;r city bud-
get, but in Cleveland and in Pittsburgh, and in Chicago, and in most
of the major cities of the country school money is voted every few
years by the voters.

I am happy to say that in Cleveland the voters are supporting educa-
tion. Last fall we asked the voters to approve a 120-percent increase,
more than doubling the size of the bonded indebtedness of the Cleve-
land school district, and they approved it by a 2-to-1 majority.

At the same election we asked them to increase by 20 percent the
taxes for the operating expenditures of the Cleveland schools, and they
approved that by the same 2-to-1 majority.
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Now the voters of Cleveland have an important characteristic of
which we must be aware. About 65 percent of the voters of Cleveland
are white, about 35 percent of the voters of Cleveland are Negro. This
is a markedly different ratio than the ratio of the children in the
Cleveland school system. About 53 percent of the children in the
Cleveland school system are Negro and about 47 percent are white.

Similar figures are applicable in all of the major cities of the United
States. A majority of the voters are white and a majority, or a grow-
ing number which soon will be a majority, of the children in the public
school system, which depend upon voter approval for its money are
Negro.

As you are all aware, there were serious riots in Cleveland last sum-
mer. These riots preceded the election at which we were, as success-
ful as we were, by not more than 2 or 3 months. There are likely to be
riots in Cleveland again this summer, perhaps next summer.  The
Cleveland Board of Education is therefore in the position of going
to the voters for the additional money we need in a context in which
most of the money is spent for the Negro children, some of whose fam-
ilies and some of the people in whose neighborhoods are the people
who are causing the disturbances in the streets, and I emphasize the
word “some,” because of course most of the Negro families in the City
of Cleveland are law-abiding citizens who are the ones most hurt
by rioting and disorder in the streets.

Now in this context I put to the committee the question : How should
compensatory education be financed in the big cities of the United
States? Is it reasonable to suppose that a school district, such as the
Cleveland school district, which needs to increase its operating ex-
penditures by 20 percent just to get up to the average in suburban
(leveland can also persuade the voters to provide the money that is
req\uired for compensatory education ?

Can we persuade a voting group, a majority of whom are white:
are concerned about the growth of the ghetto; are people who came
to this country and made their own way the hard way up the economic
ladder before the Federal Government thought it was a part of its
business to help people up the economic ladder—ecan we expect such
people to provide substantial amounts of money for compensatory
education for the children of Negro families, many of whom have
moved to Cleveland recently from the South, some of whom are caus-
ing the disorders in the streets?

I think the answer to that question is apparent in the voting results.

In Cleveland one of the reasons we are successful in persuading the
voters to support the schools is because we take the position that it is
our responsibility in Cleveland to provide quality education for every
child and we do not say to the voters, We want vou to provide a lot of
extra money which we are going to spend in Central and in Glenville
and the other troubled parts of Cleveland. In fact, we do spend some
extra money there because in providing quality education for every
child we recognize that there are greater educational needs in the
inner city and we provide them, but our basic theme is; we are provid-
ing basic quality education for every child and that is what we want
the citizens of Cleveland to support and that is what they do support
by a 2-to-1 vote.

T75-492-—67—pt. 2 10
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By contrast, I call to your attentlon the experience of Cincinnati.
Cincinnati has a board of education which has been more courageous
than e have had in Cleveland and has put the question: Shall there
be compensatory education, shall the voters of Cincinnati provide extra
money to spend on the inner city child ?

Cincinnati did provide that money, but as a result, in the November
election this fall and in a followup election held in December, the
voters of Cincinnati rejected a 4-mill operating levy in the Cincinnati
School District by the same 2-to-1 majority that the voters in Cleve-
land were approving the 4-mill operating levy which we presented to
the voters.

I suggest there is a lesson to be drawn from this experience, a rather
sad experience, if you will. but a true one. The fact of the matter
is that about all you can expect the big city school districts in this
country to do by local effort is to try to catch up to the suburbs, to
try to provide the same quality of education for every child as is avail-
able in the suburbs.  They can do a little more, they can provide some
monev for the extra costs of educating the inner city children, but if
we are serious in the United States about providing equal educational
opportunity for all. which means providing more expensive education
for inner city children than we do for the average child, the extra costs
must come, most of them, from either the State or the Federal Gov-
ernment—now the State government.

Thore are several States in this country I am glad to say which do
provide some money for the extra costs of disadvantaged children.
Connecticut is one, Pennsylvania is another. The (Giovernor of Ohio
is interested in the big city problems and I am hopeful that Ohio will
join the list this vear. The most we expect to get from Ohio is some
amonnt which will average ont to 230 or $75 or perhaps $100 for each
of the 70.000 disadvantaged children that we have in Cleveland. It
costs €600 to run a ITeadstart program the way we do it, it costs $1,200
to do it the way private organizations do it.

The amount of money that we will get from the State, while it will
be helpful. will not do more than add a little bit to what we already
have. We are now getting about $70 from the Federal GGovernment
for each disadvantaged child. The amounts that we need and the
amounts that we can profitably use are very much larger.

Tn 1966 the Cleveland Board of Education spent wisely and well
every dime of the approximately 6 million which we got for the edu-
cation of disadvantaged children through title I of the Elementary
and Secondary Education Act and through the Economic Opportunity
Aet.

In the current fiscal year we don’t know exactly how much money
e are going to get as vet. It will not be more than we received in
1966, it may be less. It results in a smaller rate of expenditure this
vear than we had last year for these programs because in 1966 we
yeceived the monev rather late in the year and therefore we spend it at
a monthly rate which is more rapid than we are spending this year.

Therefore, the fact is that in Cleveland we are now conducting com-
pensatory education programs at a lower scale then we were a year ago.

Tn 1968 if the budeet proposal which is before the Congress is ap-
proved and if the Perkins-Quie amendment becomes effective, the result
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will be that we will have to spend in Cleveland in 1968 substantially
less money, substantially less money than we have this year or last
year.

The reason is that if you take the same amount of money allocated
to the State of Ohio and then redistribute it among the school districts
of the State, in accordance with the Perkins-Quie formula, it will end
up in more money going to the rural areas in which there are a lot of
children whose fami];’ ncomes are less than 83,000 and less money
coming to the big cities where there is the concentration of children
who are on ADC.

I think the Perkins-Quie formula is a good formula, please do not
misunderstand me, but only in the context of a higher appropriation.
In the context of a constant appropriation, it is a decision that the
level of compensatory education in the inner city will be reduced.

Now, there are a number who are pessimistic about the effectiveness
of compensatory education. There are those who read the Coleman
report published by HEW this year as indicating that compensatory
education does not work. T urge the committee not to accept that view
of the Coleman report, it is not, incidentally, as T understand it, the
author’s view of the Coleman report.

All the Coleman report shows is that to date we do not have a
quality of education in the inner city that produces statistically meas-
urable results, but T have seen schools in the inner city in Cleveland
which I believe are better than the average school in suburban
Cleveland.

I am persuaded, and I have no statistic to back it up, but I am per-
suaded by observation of what we are doing in Cleveland schools that
the additional funds which we spend on remedial reading, that we
spend on additional visual aids in the city, that we will spend on
keeping the schools open in the afternoon and evenings, that we spend
on interracial camping experiences, that we spend on a whole range
of programs, are making a real difference for the quality of education
of the children in the inner city.

It is very easy for us to become discouraged about the effectiveness
of the poverty program, about the effectiveness of title I. These pro-
grams are only a year or two old, T think it is extraordinary how much
they have accomplished how soon.

I urge the committee if it can possibly do so within the limitations
imposed by the Vietnam war and by the pressures of the budget to try
to provide a steady increase year after year of Federal funds to im-
prove the quality of education in the inner city.

This is not an interference in local affairs, this is simply a recogni-
tion that the problem of lack of education and the problem of poverty
in the United States is a national concern. We are now engaged in
the reconstruction period from the Civil War, most of the families
who come to Cleveland. Most of the families who come to Cleveland,
and incidentally some of our less-educated families and those who
most qualify for and get the additional Federal help are not Negro,
they are the white families from Kentucky and Tennessee, it is the
generations of inadequate education that these children and their
families and their grandparents have received that create the problems
for the inner city.




145() ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION AMENDMENTS

Tt is not fair to expect the people of Cleveland to provide the extra
money to deal with the problem, it must come from the Federal
Government.

Thank you.

Chairman Pergins. Any further statements from any of you
gentlemen?

Mr. AcgermaN. No.

Chairman Pergins. Goahead, Mr. Lund.

STATEMENT OF KENNETH W. LUND, SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT,
SCOTT, FORESMAN & C0., AMERICAN BOOK PUBLISHERS COUN-
CIL, AND AMERICAN TEXTBOOK PUBLISHERS INSTITUTE

Mr. Luxp. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. That is a most eloquent
statement to follow.

My name is Kenneth W. Lund, senior vice president of Scott,
Foresman & Co., book publishers, of Glenview, Ill. I am appearing
today on behalf of the American Textbook Publishers Institute and
the American Book Publishers Council, the two major professional
associations of book publishers, the members of which produce more
than 95 percent of the books of all kinds published in the United States.

I have with me Mr. Robert W. Frase, director of the joint Washing-
ton office of the institute and the council.

I want to extend our thanks on behalf of our organization for a
chance to make a brief statement.

T will file a statement with the reporter here and this may expedite
matters a bit.

I of course want to add a wholehearted endorsement to the spirit,
the nature and the intent and implementation of the ESEA bill in the
past and the extension prospects in the future. The cause is urgent,
as has been eloquently said, and we merely add our voice to those of
others in this respect.

In that process you and we both are hunting for the most effective
use of the money, and to that extent we add our voice to the hope that
vou will give serious consideration to the many pleas for the extension
of time. Planning the acquisition of people, the allocation of facilities,
all take time and the extension, as has been mentioned, for 4 or 5 years
seems more than wise, urgent. really, in connection with this type of act.

We have two special comments we wish to make in connection with
the bill.

The first one is an endorsement of the general idea of entering into
services with the private sector as well as the public sector for educa-
tional research. We think there is a broad range of talent both in-
terested and capable of contributing to the urgent cause at hand, and
we urge that you lend your endorsement and see ultimately that this
becomes part of the act.

The second comment has to do with a special part and in that it
has not been referred to today during my hearing, I would like to read
that part of the statement.

I come now to a provision of the bill which frankly disturbs us—
this is the language on page 38, lines 15 through 19, which read as
follows:
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“* * * producing and distributing educational media for the use of handi-
capped persons, their parents, their actual or potential employers, and other per-
sons directly involved in work for the advancement of the handicapped * * *»

Commissioner Howe, in his prepared statement of March 2 on the
bill, explained and justified this provision in the following way:

The U.S. Office of Education may now support research regarding educational
media. This is generally restricted to research concerning the effectiveness of
existing media. With the exception of the specific authority under the Captioned
Films for the Deaf program there is no authorization to enter into contracts
for the development of new media. There is no authorization which would
permit specialized training programs to train specialists in the use of such
media nor is there any authorization which would permit involvement in the
production of such materials or media except for that under the Captioned Films
prograni. Although the Office of Education has no particular interest in the
production and distribution of educational materials there are some instances
where this can be important. For example, there is some value in the support
of sheltered workshops for adolescent-aged retarded or otherwise handicapped
youngsters. Such support would indirectly or direetly require support for pro-
duction of materials produced in the workshops.

The support for the development of instructional media is particularly im-
portant at this time. Development costs run high, vet the future of education
for the handicapped may well depend upon the availability of media not yet off
the drawing boards.

Although the granting of authority to the U.S. Office of Education
to get into the business of producing and distributing educational
materlals is limited in this provision of the bill to the production of
such materials for the handicapped, their parents, their employers
and other persons involved, this authority strikes us as being unwise
in itself and a bad precedent. Unlike the situation in some other
countries, the U.S. Federal Government has not been responsible for
the production and distribution of educational materials. This has
been left to private enterprise and to some extent to nonprofit organi-
zations and the result has been, T believe, better and more abundant
educational materials than exist in any other country.

As you well know, there have been many examples. This is a
Benjamin Franklin done in large type by a man, Keith Jennison, who
has really mobilized the private sector to accomplish this kind of thing.
We do not think we are far apart in this respect, and we believe that
there can be working appropriately prepared to enlist in this instance
the resources of the private sector.

May I just add one word in closing. I spent some 10 vears of my
life working in the Chicago public schools concerned with the pro-
grams for the handicapped. No comment here should interpret any
less concern than most of you have for effective programs in this field.
We are just anxious that you use the full resources of the education
community, including the private sector in this respeet. and we would
both endorse, support., and try to find ways of implementing and dis-
seminating this kind of research. ] o

It is only the question of entering directly into the publishing
business. _ )

Chairman Prrxins. Let me ask you one question. You people in
the National School Boards Association and other witnesses all endorse
the National Teachers Corps, the national recruiting and Office of
Education?t

Mr. Lowp. That is a question for you.
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Mr. AckerMaN. Well, the comment we made in the statement was
that we endorse the program as it is amended. 'We think it is one way.
We think that it has created an environment, we don't think it is the
only way, and we would like to see it kept on the pilot program.

Chairman Pergixs. How is it working in the city of Cleveland?

Mr. Cargins. It is working very well. We have a small program
X%{th about 25 Corps members being trained at the University of

ron.

Chairman Prrrvs. Twenty-five Corps members, teachers, besides
your interns?

Mr. Carrins. Twenty-five interns and only two or three teachers.
It is very small, but it is working very well and we are pleased with
1t.

Chairman Perrixs. Can vou evaluate the effectiveness thus far?

Mr. CaLrixs. Yes, second-best program for recruiting inner-city
teachers into inner-city schools.

Chairman Pergixs. Any other comments on it ¢

Mr. Loxp. The plan I think is wonderful. I do not have the direct
experience.

Chairman Prrirxs. What about vourself? Do you favor the inner
citv?

AMr. Wese. We feel it is one of the ways in which people can be
attracted into teaching in the inner city in the problem areas where
othersrise we might not be able to assign them for a variety of reasons.
The business of bringing people who volunteer or present themselves
for special training 1n this area—then we have some evidence.

Chairman Perkixs. Briefly tell us why you are able to recruit teach-
ers from the National Teachers Corps when you are not otherwise able
to recruit teachers for these disadvantaged areas. Some of the mem-
bers of the House would like to have a concrete statement from the
school board representatives.

Mr. Wens. This would be my opinion, and I also would like to give
Mr. Callins a chance to expound on this, too, from the viewpoint of
Cleveland.

T think there are a couple of factors. One is that the nature of the
Corps itself is such that there is a charisma. a sense of mission, that
can be generated with this kind of a program. When people are
recruited into the program, given special skill and knowledge as to
how best to teach in this area, then they have a sense of security and
succoess that enables them to stay with that kind of teaching.

The second part that I was going to make is that it vecruits from
people who have not originally planned to go into teaching and entered
it through another route.

Chairman Perxrxs. Go ahead.

Mr. Carxrvs. The quality of courses in education given at many
American colleges is so bad that many of the ablest students going to
college do not take them. Instead, they take history, government, eco-
nomics. mathematies, science, and a variety of other things that they
think are better taught, have more content and will do them more
cood in whatever occupation they wish to enter. If they then decide
to be teachers, they are confronted with certification requirements
which say they cannot teach and they are confronted with adminis-
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trators in school systems who essentially say, “We don’t care how
good a teacher you will be, you have got to have had the certification
requirements before we will let you into the classroom.”

What they need is some kind of a transition program that gets them
into the classroom with courses of sufficient quality that they don’t feel
repelled by the course that they have to take. ]

The Teacher Corps is one of the devices that will do that. Another
device that does it 1s the master in arts in teaching program. When
I said the Teacher Corps was our second best program, what T meant
was that our best was a master of arts in teaching program, but they
are both good programs, and they are both good for essentially the
same reason. They are a high quality, attractive means by which the
able college graduate who does not have his certification behind him
can get into the classroom and get his certification requirements and
become a teacher.

Chairman Perkixs. Thank you very much.

Mr. Lu~p. Thank you.

(Mr. Lund’s full statement follows:)

STATEMENT BY KENNETH W. LUND ON BEHALF OF THE AMERICAN TEXTBOOK
PUBLISHERS INSTITUTE AND THE AMERICAN BOOK PUBLISHERS COUNCIL

My name is Kenneth W. Lund, Senior Vice President of Scott, Foresman &
Company, book publishers, of Glenview, Illinois. I am appearing today on
behalf of the American Textbook Publishers Institute and the American Book
Publishers Council. the two major professional associations of book publishers,
the members of which produce more than 959 of the books of all kinds published
in the United States. I have with me Mr. Robert W. Frase. Director of the
Joint Washington Office of the Institute and the Council. The 125 members of
the American Textbook Publishers are publishers of elementary, secondary and
college textbooks, subscription reference books such as encyclopedias, educational
tests and maps. The 192 members of the American Book Publishers Council
publish all other types of books such as adult general (or trade) books, juvenile
books, scientific, medical and professional books, religious books, university
press hooks, book club books and paperback hooks of all descriptions. Many of
the major publishers are, of course, members of both associations. My own firm
is primarily a publisher of elementary. secondary and college textbooks, but more
recently we have alxo gotten into the field of children’s books and adult general
books.

We are delighted to have this opportunity of expressing our views on the bill
before you and hope these comments may he of Lelp to your Committee in
amending and revising the measure when you get into executive session. Our
remarks divide themselves into six specific topics, but before getting into this
detail let me say that we support the bill as a whole and its general purpose
of amending and extending existing legislation by extending authority for
allocation of funds to be used for education of Indian children and children in
overseas dependent schools of the Department of Defense. by extending and
amending the National Teacher Corps program, by providing assistance for
comprehensive educational planning, and by improving programs of education
for the handicapped; to improve programs of vocational education ; to improve
authority for assistance to schools in federally impacted areas and areas suffering
a major disaster.”

TIMELY EXTENSION OF EXISTING LEGISLATION

We were very glad to see in President Johnson’s health and education message
of February 28 the emphasis on a better educational timetable. This has two
aspects—early renewal of appropriation authorizations for education and library
programs, and early action on the annual appropriation bills for these programs.
The bill before you provides for some extensions of elementary. secondary and
vocational programs, but we were rather disappointed to find that some of the
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major programs for elementary and secondary education—namely, Titles I, II
and IIT of the Elementary and Necondary Education Act of 1965 which now
expire on June 30, 1968, are not proposed to he extended this year. We have
had o good deal of experience as publishers with these ESEA titles because
substuntial quantities of books and other instructional materials have been
purchased with these funds. We know from experience that there is a great
deal of waste and inefiiciency involved when these Federal funds do not become
available until well into the academic year which starts in September, rather
than when the normal educational planning. budgeting and ordering of supplies
is done in the spring. We would be concerned, therefore, that if extensions of
Titlex 1. IT and III of ESEA are postponed for Congressional consideration to
196%. the authorizations. and subsequently the appropriations which must be
based on them. would delay the availability of funds well beyond July 1, as was
the case in 1966. We would hope, therefore, that your Committee would seriously
consider the desirability of extending the authorizations of the ESEA titles in
the bill before you in 1967 rather than waiting until 1968.

EARLY ACTION ON APPROPRIATION BILLS

The President’s education message contained the following statement :

“I urge that the Congress enact education appropriations early enough to
allow the Nation's schools and colleges to plan cffectively. I have directed the
Secretary of Health, Education, and Welfare to work with the Congress toward
this end.”

This problem has become a matter of increasing concern to everyone involved
with education in the United States, including members of this Committee as
was brought out in the hearings last fall conducted by Mrs. Green on the opera-
tion of Office of Education programs. Ten if not scores of bills have been
introduced in the House of Representatives this year urging that the appropria-
tion bills for education programs be passed by May 1 of each year in order to
provide for orderly education planning and budgeting. We would not presume
to advise your Committee or the Congress as to how this problem can be met
as a matter of technical legislative procedure. We only want to add our voice
to the recommendation that it be solved in some way. There is problably no
other single legislative action which could be taken that would so much increase
the efficiency of the educattion and library legislation now on the statute books.

STATISTICAL ON EDUCATIONAL MATERIALS

It would be helpful to the book publishing industry—and in turn the separate
industry which actually manufacturers our books, the printers and binders—
to have reasonably good statistics from the U.S. Office of Education on what
kinds of published materials. and in what quantities, are being purchased under
the major Federal education and library programs. With a good historical base
on what has happened. it would then be possible for the U.S. Office to project
these figures into the future as part of the five year forecasts which are to
form an integral part of the new Programmed Budgeting System. Book pur-
chases under the new Federal education and library programs of the last few
vears are not a large factor in total book sales—possibly on the order of 5% of
the total in 1966; but they may be quite significant for certain specific types of
books and could in the short run result in a squeeze on stocks and manufactur-
ing capacity if there should not be sufficient time for advance planning. The
Book Manufacturers’ Institute. which is made up of the specialized printers
and binders of books. passed the following resolution at their annual meeting
last November. which was forwarded to Secretary Gardner and Commissioner
Howe:

“Lesolved : That the U.S. Department of Health. Education. and Welfare and
the U.X. Office of Education be urged to provide continuing information on the
use of baoks and other printed materials under the Federal education and library
programe. including past expenditures and estimates of future expenditures,
which will enable publishers and manufacturers of printed educational mate-
rinlx and their materials suppliers to plan hetter for adequate production and
dixtribution of the required educational materials;

AND. be it further resolved: That the Book Manufacturers’ Institute stand
ready to confer jointly with representatives of the publishers’ associations and
the Department of Health. Education. and Welfare to develop the details of the
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information required for appropriate private industry planning in order that the
most effective implementation of Federal educattion programs may be assured.”

We have had some subsequent discussions on this matter with officials at the
U.S. Office and we hope to be able to work out with them a statistical program
which will be beneficial to both the educational institutions which are consumers
of our product and to the producers and suppliers of these materials in the private
sector of the economy.

DELAYED PAYMENTS UNDER FEDERAL PROGRAMS

We should like to mention a problem which has arisen, not so much for
publishers but for specialized book wholesalers who supply schools and libraries,
of the great delay in many cases in payment for materials, particulalry school
library books, purchased under Federal programs. This situation is putting a
considerable financial strain on the smaller book wholesalers and if it continues
would impair their ability to perform efficiently their important function in the
distribution chain of getting books from the publishers to these institutional
consumers. Part of the problem is the lack of administrative personnel available
in local school districts to handle the details of the numerous new federally
funded programs and some relief can be expected as additional administrative
funds are made available either from Federal or local sources. The problem
arises in other cases because of the inexperience of some school districts in
ordering books for school libraries where no such libraries have heretofore
existed. We have been working with the professional association of school
business officials to suggest ways in which ordering and payment procedures
can be simplified and streamlined. We mention the problem here because it
may be of interest to the Committee and also because through the printed record
of these hearings, or some mention in the Committee report on the bill, the nature
and seriousness of the problem can be brought to the attention of the educational
community.

AUTHORIZATION OF CONTRACTS WITH PRIVATE PROFIT-MAKING ORGANIZATIONS

There are several provisions in the bill which would authorize contracts with
private profit-making agencies as opposed to the present general limitation on
the Office of Education to letting these contracts only to nonprofit agencies.
One of these provisions is on page 30 of the bill, lines 15 and 16. which would
permit the Commissioner to make contracts with “public and private agencies,
institutions or organizations” for special projects in the field of comprehensive
educational planning, especially on an interstate basis. Another is on page 34
of the bill, lines 22 and 23, which would permit the Commissioner to contract
with “public or private agencies or institutions™ for projects in the fields of re-
cruiting personnel for service to the handicapped and to improve the dissemina-
tion of information on educational opportunities for the handicapped. We
believe that these are important steps in the right direction and should be ex-
tended to all the grant and contract programs of the U.S. Office. This would im-
prove the quality of educational research and dissemination by making available
the skill and experience of private enterprise. including the publishing industry,
as well as nonprofit institutions.

AUTHORIZATION FOR THE PRODUCTION AND DISTRIBUTION OF EDUCATIONAL MEDTA

I come now to a provision of the bill which frankly disturbs us—this is the
language on page 38, lines 15 through 19, which reads as follows: “(2) producing
and distributing educational media for the use of handicapped persons. their
parents, their actual or potential employers, and other persons directly involved
in work for the advancement of the handicapped”. Commissioner Howe, in his
prepared statement of March 2 on the bill, explained and justified this provision
in the following way :

“The U.8. Office fo Education may now support research regarding educational
media. Thix is generally restricted to research concerning the effectiveness of
existing media. With the exception of the specific authority under the Captioned
Films for the Deaf program there is no authorization to enter into contracts for
the development of new media. There isx no authorization which would permit
specialized training programs to train specialists in the use of such media nor is
there any authorization which would permit involvement in the production of




1456 ELEMEXNTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION AMENDMENTS

such materials or media except for that under the Captioned Films programs.
Although the Office of Education has no particular interest in the production and
distribution of educational materials there are some instances where this can
be important. For example, there is some value in the support of sheltered
workshops for adolescent-aged retarded or otherwise handicapped youngsters.
Such support would indirectly or directly require support for production of mate-
rials produced in the workshops.

“The support for the development of instructional media is particularly im-
portant at this time. Development costs run high, yet the future of education
for the handicapped may well depend upon the availability of media not yet off’
the drawing boards.”

Although the granting of authority to the U.S. Office of Education to get into
the business of producing and distributing educational materials is limited to-
this provision of the bill to the production of such materials for the handicapped,
their parents, their employers and other persons involved, this authority strikes
us as being unwise in itself and a bad precedent. Unlike the situation in some
other countries, the U.S. Federal Government has not been responsible for the
production and distribution of educational materials. This has been left to
private enterprise and to some extent to nonprofit organizations and the results
has been, I believe, better and more abundant educational materials than exist
in any other country.

An example of what private enterprise can do—and is doing—in the specific
field of materials for the visually and otherwise handicapped is the production
of large type books. An enterprising and public-spirited man who has spent
his entire professional lifet in the hook publishing business, Mr. Keith Jennison,
some four years ago saw the need for production of books in large tvpe for the
visually handicapped and also persons handicapped in other ways. such as
phrsically and hraindamaged. He extablished a firm to produce such books and
has by this time published 100 titles. In 1966 100,000 copies of these books were
sold. Just recently Mr. Jennison signed a contract to produce texthooks in large
type for the State of California. Although originally designed to serve the
visually handicapped. large type books have proven valuable for persons handi-
capped in a variety of other ways.

We were not aware of this provision of the bill before it was introduced and
discussed by Commissioner Howe in his statement on the opening day of your
hearings, March 2. We hope that it will be possible to work out amending langu-
age which will meet any legitimate need for the encouragement of the production
of instructional materials for the handicapped without getting the Federal
Governiment into the publishing business.

In closing. let me repeat our general support of the bill and to express again
our gratitude to the Committee for this opportunity to present the views of
the book publishing industry.

Chairman Prrrrxs. Mrs. Ryan, do vou want to come around now
and make yvour statement.

Mr. Weee. Mr. Chairman, may we ask permission that Mr. Acker-
man’s complete statement be included in the record.

Chairman Perirxs. Yes. Without objection. the statement will be
inserted in the record and all other statements that you want to insert
in the record.

Now do we have another witness in the room other than Mrs.
Edward T. Ryan?

We regret that you missed that plane, Mrs. Ryan. Tt is just one of
those things on a busy day. I am sure that one of them will have an
extra place.

STATEMENT OF MRS. EDWARD F. RYAN, CHAIRMAN FOR LEGIS-
LATION, NATIONAL CONGRESS OF PARENTS AND TEACHERS

Mrs. Ryax. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee: We ap-
preciate verv much this opportunity, at any time in the day, to offer
our views in respect to these amendments to the Elementary and Sec-
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ondary Education Act. T am Mrs. Edward F. Ryan, of Manchester,
Mass., chairman for legislation of the National Congress of Parents
and Teachers, whose membership is approximately 11,750,000 parents
and teachers.

We wish to express our enthusiastic support of several proposals
of this bill. We in national PTA regard the disparities in our educa-
tional system as one of our major and most demanding problems, and
particularly the very inadequate education of millions of children in
inner cities and other depressed areas. We have seen that it is hard to

et a “handle” on improving the education of these children, partly

ecause of inadequate finances, partly because of their own inadequate
backgrounds. In all too many classrooms teachers and students have
a hard time finding common ground for learning, even to sutfering
from deep mutual distrust. Yet it is of the utmost importance that
these children be educated, for as this committee has shown there is
no other road to breaking the poverty cycle for millions of children
now growing up under great disadvantages.

It 1s our observation that the National Teacher Corps is a unique
instrument for developing the kind of opportunities these children
need, because the teaching preparation for these internes is developed
specifically for teaching disadvantaged children, with teaching assign-
ments closely related to their academic programs, and continuous con-
tact between the training institution and the supervising school staff.
We are advised by leaders in the profession that these programs are
filling a need not hitherto met, are truly innovative. The NEA’s Na-
tional Commission on Teacher Education and Professional Standards
is using 14 Teacher Corps programs as demonstration centers in vari-
ous parts of the country. There is an additional advantage to our
schools, as Dr. Webb just mentioned, in that the Corps members are
selected from those who have not previously prepared for teaching,
and are therefore a needed addition to the number of highly qualified
teachers.

We in PTA are particularly pleased with the emphasis in the Na-
tional Teacher Corps program upon the student teachers’ working
with the parents and communities of their children. In Lowell, Mass.,
for instance, where the teams are working in part with non-English-
speaking children, the program director points out that by going into
their homes the Corps members learn to understand the background
of the students and at the same time can alleviate the fears prevalent
among the parents, thus helping to break down the polarity between
home and school which is a major problem in disadvantaged areas.
The Corps members are also working with children individually and,
through the new techniques they are learning, carry over the in-
dividualizing programs into the classroom.

This is one of the most important parts of the whole program.

Of course they also do remedial work and carry on dramatic and
other activities which the teachers have not had time to do. But the
chief reason among many why the Lowell school administration is

rateful and enthusiastic for its Teacher Corps group comes from its
ﬁope to use them next year for in-service training for the regular
teaching staff.

In a series of month-long programs with corpsmen for 10 teachers
at a time, the administration hopes to enable the teachers to—and I
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quote the words of the assistant superintendent—‘learn to carry out
in practice what they have heard about in theory.” Thus the Corps
becomes not merely remedial in service but an agent of improvement
for the school system. This has been a year of “working out wrinkles,”
I was told, and that it would be “a shame if they could not continue
with their wonderful plans for next year.”

Many of our people have visited these programs around the country,
and are enthusiastic with what they have heard and seen. We would
say that we approve of the cooperative arrangements under which the
Teacher Corps is working: the training program worked out between
the local school system and the nearby university, approval of the pro-
gram by the State department, and school administration approval of
the Corps members. We note the recommendation of stipend on a
graduate-student level and would hope that, like the student stipend,
this payment would be tax-exempt; if not, that the amount would be
adjusted accordingly. We hope very much that this unique and im-
mensely valuable program will be extended and expanded, we would
hope on the two-vear contract level, with the full authorization
requested.

PTA members have long been concerned for the sadly inadequate
educational facilities for Indian children in many places. According
to the New York Times of April 16, 1966, 8,000 Indian children be-
tween 8 and 16 were not in school at all for lack of facilities. Ob-
viously the task of providing for these children is great and requires
more than these measures. Nevertheless, school libraries are the core
of any school, however poorly housed, and we earnestly support this
assistance. the extension of title IT to schools for Indian children and
overseas dependents schools,

In the overseas dependents schools, libraries are generally more or
less adequate in size. but have suffered in quality from the stringency
of the limitation upon expenditures. As a National PTA represent-
ative, T have visited large schools whose librarians have been con-
cerned by the paucity of books in certain important areas, such as
seience or literature. More than one school makes a practice of refer-
ring students to the adult base libraries: one high school near London
sent its students to English libraries for some needs—a more useful
practice for intercultural understanding than for everyday classwork.

Most schools are too isolated for such assistance, and the adult li-
braries are often poorly balanced in nontechnical areas. Thus the
schools need other sources of help, which is very often the PTA. In
one school I arrived as the librarian was unpacking $800 worth of
books for vounger children purchased by the PTA—and very grateful
che was. We feel, however, that if the PTA expends its energies in
this manner, it may well slight such more important work as parent
odueation, human relations, and closer cooperation between teachers
and parents—all basic to the welfare of both children and schools.

TWe warmly support the extension of title TI in both these areas.

TExtension of title IIT to Schools for Indian children and overseas
dependents schools:

Tn both these areas there are more programs and greater needs than
there are funds to meet, under title IIT. In respect to Indian children
we would suggest that exploration is very important to assure the kind
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of education that will meet the special needs of these children to be-
come self-supporting and self-respecting in the land of which they are
citizens, without losing their own cultural heritage.

In respect to the overseas dependents schools we should like to
describe a program which we regard as of very great importance, for
which there are no present funds but for which funds from this title
I11 seem most appropriate.

National PTA sends representatives every vear to its overseas
branch, the Furopean Congress of American’ Parents and Teachers,
who are given opportunities to visit the schools and military commu-
nities. Twice I have had this privilege, visiting schools in Germany,
Oslo, and London in October 1964, and several locations in Turkey
in November 1966. One of our concerns has been for the small as-
sistance available for children with mental health problems, a concern
which is amply shared by the Director of the European area schools
and many school personnel. Psychiatrists and others who have
studied the problem concur that 10 percent is a conservative estimate
for those children who have various mental health problems, and this
means, with about 100,000 in that area, we are talking about 10,000 in
the European area. This is the same proportion as would occur in any
American community, with the difference that in the overseas military
communities there are almost no resources for hel p-

As I am sure the committee is aware, a multiplicity of factors are
involved, including family pressures brought about by military ex-
igencies or inability to live satisfactorily in a strange country. If the
problem is severe enough, and causes a sufficient disturbance in the
military community, the family is sent home—with the consequences
to military career and family relations which you may imagine. If
not, in most places child, family, and classroom get along as best they
can for the balance of the duty tour, during which time small problems
can easily become serious.

The critical need is not so much for clinical services, for these are
quickly overwhelmed, but for professional assistance to teachers in un-
derstanding how to help their problem children, as well as to cope
with their own sometimes considerable difficulties. to parents in under-
standing their children and the building of family relationships, to
children in understanding themselves and in building confidence.
These services, so common 1n the States, scarcely exist overseas,

Small cooperative projects are under way in several locations De-
tween school people and the few military psychiatrists who happen to
have had experience with children or training with children. We
would bring to your attention, however, a most promising project in
Turkey, developed by the chief of psvchiatric services of TUSLOG
and the assistant superintendent for pupil personnel services for the
school district.

With the help of the chief of pediatrics in Ankara. a careful survey
was made to determine the number of children needing psychiatric
assistance, which also showed the inadequacy of available personnel to
provide the needed services. Small special classes were established
for emotionally disturbed and brain-damaged children, with a combi.
ation of professional and volunteer personnel. The collaborators then
turned to what is commonly known as the “community mental health
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approach,” involving the hospital commander and other medical per-
sonnel, guidance counselors, school administrators, chaplains, PTA
and other community leaders, and also the Ambassador, TUSLOG
commander, USIS, AID, and two Turkish physicians. Later the
collaborators visited other locations in Turkey to develop the same co-
operation between medical and school people, supported by the same
community approach.

T mieht interpolate T happened to be in \dana on the occasion and
shared in one of these meetings.

To carry out the plan, however, cerfain professional personnel are
essential, who are not now available, nor can be available within exist-
ing funds. It is proposed specifically that there be in Ankara, under
the joint guidance of the Chief of Psychiatric Services and the As-
sistant Superintendent for Pupil Personnel Services, a team consisting
of psychiatrist, psychologist, and social worker, to serve the Ankara
schools and community, and also three other teams of social worker
and psychologist in three other locations, working under the Ankara
eroup. The latter three teams would serve all other present locations
in the Middle East, and all would be school-oriented, trained with
children and families.

The plan is enthusiastically supported by all who have been involved,
by the Ambassador, by the military commander in Turkey, and by the
area director of the dependents schools. The problem is one of funds.
We would hope that title III funds could be used to develop this im-
portant, innovative program, which would serve not only to assist
the children and families of our military installations in Turkey, but
also as an exemplary program to train personnel for our other mili-
tary areas.

On these first three titles T would like to make one urgent request,
that the Committee consider very seriously the recommendation of ex-
tension this year rather than waiting for 1968.

T need not repeat the testimony you have heard previously today
about the importance to local school planning, but T assure you that
itisvery great.

In the amendments to title V of the Education Act, we are olad to
<ee the trust territories included, for many of our members are con-
cerned that the quality of education there be commensurate with that
which we wish to provide for American children, and we would hope
that the funds authorized would be proportionately increased to cover
this addition.

We would specifically approve the revision of the apportionment
formula in section 502 (a), and the addition of part B for comprehen-
sive educational planning and evaluation. We should prefer, and
would urge, however, that studies of urban educational problems be
condneted cooperatively under state authority, rather than separately.
We shonld further prefer and urge that metropolitan planning in
education in areas covering more than one state be carried out co-
operatively between states. with the assistance rather than the
anthorization of the T7.8. Commissioner of Education.

Amendments to title VI of the Education Act, and to the Vocational
Education Act of 1963 : We very warmly support the proposed amend-
ments to title VI of the Education Aect, for the assistance of handi-
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capped children, and hope that this title may this year be fully
funded. We are glad to see the proposal for developing innovative
vocational education programs, and hope that in its implementation
existing school structures will be broadened and enabled to include
such education in comprehensive programs.

Thank you very much for the opportunity to offer these views.

Chairman Perr1xs. Let me thank you, Mrs. Ryan, for your appear-
ance here today and that of the National Congress of Parents and
Teachers. Your statement has been most helpful.

Has your organization all through the years supported the National
Teacher Corps, I mean the last few years since the program has been
before the Congress ?

Mrs. Ryan. No. Our members have studied this very carefully
over the past year. I think last summer was our first statement in its
support. Since then we have asked our people to look at programs
around the country and our support has been strengthened con-
siderably.

Chairman Perkins. From the valuations that your organization
has been able to retain and from your people, do you feel that the
corps is doing a good job in the disadvantaged areas of the country
now?

Mrs. Ryan. Yes.

Chairman Prreixs. Those are reports that vou are receiving from
the worst neglected areas in the country where we do have the Teacher
Corps.

Mprs. Ryax. Our reports are all favorable. I do think, however,
that the people in Lowell put their finger on one of the most important
aspects of what the Teacher Corps is doing. As this Administrator
said, we have had too much instruction and not enough education.
The emphasis which the corps members are placing in this whole ap-
proach to working with these youngsters as individuals, “drawing
them out™ in it (as at least one translation of the word “education™),
I think is a trend which is coming in education, which we can perhaps
thank the disadvantaged youngsters for teaching us is something all
children need, and I hope and I believe that this approach is going to
spread throughout teacher education.

Chairman Perkins. Mr. Steiger?

Mr. Stercer. Mrs. Ryan, you made a very good statement this after-
noon. Thank you for your patience.

Mrs. Rya~. Thank you, sir.

Mr. STercer. May T ask two questions of you?

What kind of emphasis, if any, has the Congress of Parents and
Teachers placed prior to the Teacher Corps, for example, on improving
the education that is available to teachers?

You were here when the gentleman from Cleveland made a most
eloquent statement. One of the things that he said was that the
teacher education, I don’t remember his exact words, but it is woefully
inadequate or deplorable or something along those lines. Has this
been of concern to the PTA ¢

Mrs. Ryax. Iam not sure we have taken an active role in the change
in that respect. Our work is more with the relationship between
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teachers and parents and the welfare of children. I think our role
has been supportive in nature rather than offering innovations as an
or%'imization.

r. STercer. What kind of a reaction do you have either personally
or within your organization to the teacher assistance program?

Mrs. Ryan. We have tried to offer this assistance for the last several
years, quite a few years, and this is one innovation we have urged.
We have in various 1nstances helped school people choose, screen, train
PTA members for this purpose. A great many PTA members are
filling this role, many more 1n the last year or two than, say, 10 years
ago when we were first introducing or at least talking about the idea.

Mr. Steicer. You do feel, don’t you, that this would be of assistance
to try and individualize more the capability of the teacher?

Mrs. Ryax. Oh, yes; it is a very important assistance. I would
say now that it is generally accepted as part of the conventional wis-
dom but not for very long, maybe 2 years.

Mr. Steiger. Thank you.

Chairman Perxins. Mr. Ford?

Mr. Forp. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I am very happy to see this constituent of mine. You have been
helpful to the committee and members of the committee on several
occasions in the past. As you well know, the interest that your orga-
nization had in the overseas schools when others didn’t know they
existed played a large part in leading this committee 2 successive years
to visit every part of the world in which these schools are located.

Mrs. Rya~. We have been most grateful for your help.

Mr. Forp. We now have a combined report of two groups that went
out last year that will be ready very shortly. One of the points
in that report this year was the fact that we did discover the problem
that you have pinpointed with regard to children with special educa-
tion problems.

We were disappointed. but not necessarily surprised, to discover
that there is no uniformity among the three military services and
their treatment of dependents that have every kind of variation of
special problems. The Air Force has a rather firm policy with regard
to the additional assignment overseas of parents with children having
recognizable educational problems. The other two services tend to
disregard it entirely. _All three services do nothing after the child
gets overseas. mainly because they are hard pressed to do a job with
the ordinary programs.

The support you have drawn concerning the inadequacy of the
libraries and textbooks themselves has been very helpful. Mr. Vance
issued an executive order last year that by fiscal 1968 textbooks will be
up to date. We discovered this year that that order has already had
very remarkable results, but the one thing that is uniform throughout
the three services is that the libraries are uniformly poor.

TWe are hopeful that with the addition of the oversea schools to
title TT this vear. we can see a change take place, and when we go
hack on our next investigation that we will see the effects of your
efforts and the efforts of this committee.

Thank yvou very much for staying around and missing your plane.
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Mrs. Ryan. Well, thank you, sir. I am very glad to have done so.

Chairman Perrins. We appreciate your appearance here today,
Mrs. Ryan. You have been very helpful.

Mrs. Ryan. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Perkins. We appreciate the endorsement of the legisla-
tion of the National Congress of Parents and Teachers. Thank you
very much.

The committee will recess until 9:30 a.m. tomorrow morning.

‘We will wind up the hearings tomorrow.

(Whereupon, at 5:03 p.m., the committee recessed, to reconvene at

9:30 a.m., Saturday, March 18,1967.)
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SATURDAY, MARCH 18, 1967

HouUsk oF REPRESENTATIVES,
Coxirrere oN Eptcariox sxXp Lapor,
Washington, D.C.

The committee met at 9:30 a.n., pursuant to recess in room 2175,
Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Carl D. Perkins (chairman of
the committee) presiding.

Present: Representatives Perkins, Scheuer, Dellenback, and
Steiger.

Staft members present: Robert E. McCord, senior specialist; H. D.
Reed, Jr., general counsel; William D. Gaul, associate general coun-
sel; Benjamin F. Reeves, editor; Louise M. Dargans, research as-
sistant; and Charles W. Radcliffe, special education counsel for
minority.

Chairman Prrkixs. The committee will be in order. A quorum is
present. We have Mr. Russell Goble from the Martin County schools
of Kentucky. We would be delighted to hear from you at this time,
Mr. Goble, and we are interested in knowing how the Elementary
and Secondary Education Act is working out in your county.

STATEMENT OF RUSSELL GOBLE, MARTIN COUNTY SCHOOLS,
KENTUCKY

Mr. Gosre. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, I wish
to congratulate the committee for its efforts in making funds avail-
able through the Elementary and Secondary Education Act to local
school districts especially those districts with low per capital income,
a high rate of unemployment, and a large number of culturally and
economically deprived children.

The programs are being well coordinated by the U.S. Office of Edu-
cation, the State departments of education, and the local school dis-
tricts. The guidelines, as a whole, are flexible enough to permit the
Jocal school districts to provide many of the needed services and facili-
ties that they have been deprived of in the past due to a lack of funds.

Martin Connty has a low per capital income with little Jocal revenue
with which to provide an educational program that is comparable to
the programs in the districts having the taxable wealth.

Elementary and Secondary Education Act funds are helping to
bridge the gap and the impact of Federal aid, too, is producing desir-
able results.

1465
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Elementary and Secondary Education Act funds have made it pos-
sible for Martin County to initiate a remedial reading program in
which the services of teacher aids and remedial reading teachers have
been provided to implement the regular classroom activities,

Elementary school library services, lunches for indigent children,
and a summer program for high school students from the low-income
families with special emphasis on reading have been made possible.

Elementary Iihrary rooms and remedial reading laboratory rooms
have been established in Martin County’s seven consolidated element-
ary centers. Books, instructional supplies, and modern equipment
have been provided for the use of the librarians, remedial reading
teachers, and regular classroom teachers.

Some of the desirable results of the program are as follows:

1. Dropout rate has been reduced.

2. Overall increase in academic level of the students.

3. Higher percentage of attendance.

4. Improved attitude of low-income parents and children to-
ward school.

5. Increased participation on the part of parents in commu-
nity activities as well as educational activities.

6. Improvement in health and nutrition with elimination of
many physical handicaps such as eye defects, hearing defects,
and nutritional deficiencies. Dental problems have been reduced
by providing a mobile dental clinie for children from low-income
families.

7. Additional training for specialized personnel in supervision,
remedial reading, and library science.

Plans are underway for the development of an improved program
in mathematics, science. art, music, and physical fitness.

The programs provided by the Elementary and Secondary Educa-
tion Act should be continued because of the valuable services being
rendered to children from low-income families and increased poten-
tial for the construction of new buildings.

I recommend that provision be made in the law whereby the poorer
districts with heavier concentration of poverty could be permitted to
secure grants and low-interest long-term loans in order for them to
provide the buildings necessary to carry out a successful educational
program. Most of the school districts in Eastern Kentucky have
antiquated high schools with inadequate heating, lighting, labora-
tories, libraries, and other facilities necessary for a program to meet
the needs of the students. Without some form of construction aid
the school districts can not meet the increased building needs.

All Federal aid money should be channeled through State depart-
ments of education and prorated to the districts on the basis of need,
taking into consideration local effort, in accordance with a well-de-
veloped educational plan approved by the State department of edu-
cation and the U.S. Oflice of Education.

There is considerable confusion and discontent concerning the op-
eration of Headstart programs under the direction of the Office of
Economic Opportunity, and under the present setup OEO, through
community action, is dominating the Headstart programs on the basis
that Headstart is not an educational activity, that it is an antipoverty
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activity. They advocate total involvement of the children from the
low-income families and total involvement of the parents from the
low-income families to the exclusion of all other segments of society.
The programs now being approved under OEO quidelines for a year
around Headstart program in Martin County do not provide Head-
start training for more than 25 percent of the children eligible to par-
ticipate and do not provide employment for more than 5 percent of
the parents,

The remaining 95 percent of the parents are expected to participate
in the program on a voluntary basis. The summer Headstart pro-
gram would provide training for approximately 50 percent of the eli-
gible children in Martin County. It is a hypothetical assumption that
this plan is providing child development services for all of the chil-
dren or employment for all of the parents.

The arbitrary guidelines of the Office of Economic Opportunity are
in a constant process of change with considerable indecision in the
Office of Economic Opportunity about the application of the guide-
lines in the local districts. In addition to the guidelines certain special
grant conditions are imposed upon the boards of education that are
not provided in the guidelines and are not in accordance with the
guidelines.

The question should be resolved as to whether IHeadstart is an edu-
cational activity and should be carried out by the boards of educa-
tion working with community organizations or an antipovery pro-
gram and should be carried out by community action organizations
or other civic groups.

If the local boards of education are to assume fiscal responsibility
it is mandatory that they have fiscal control. It will never work suc-
cessfully to have two agencies attempting to operate the same program
with community action agencies selecting the personnel by which the
boards of education are to perform services in accordance with the
intents and purposes of Headstart programs.

Boards of education select personnel to perform certain services
on the basis of qualifications. Community action attempts to impose
on the boards of education the selection of personnel on the basis of
poverty without regard to qualifications, presumably because of the
fear that boards of education will use nepotism or politics.

At the same time the boards of education are held responsible for
the success or failure of the Headstart program. This can only result
in the children being deprived of the benefits for which Headstart was
originally organized.

The program should either be operated by the board of education
or should be completely taken out of the hands of the board of educa-
tion in eastern Kentucky. If it is the intent to perform services for
the parents of the low-income families, then a special training pro-
gram should be set up for them in which they are paid for =0 many
days of systematic instruction and work experience in connection with
the Headstart program.

In this way boards of education could employ competent people
who could perform the services in the Headstart program and at the
same time provide services for the parents.

While the intents and purposes of Office of Tconomic Opportunity
may be good and the OEQ legislation enacted by Congress 1s valuable
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legislation, it is unethical and not in keeping with sound educational
principles for the Office of Economic Opportunity to write the guide-
lines by which boards of education are to operate Headstart programs
without permitting the school people to be represented or their beliefs
considered in the formulation of the rules by which they operate.

Procedures should be evaluated objectively by boards of education
and they should have the right to make the necessary changes at the
local level.

The children of Appalachia need Headstart training and boards of
education, in general, will accept the responsibility for providing the
services: but they cannot afford to turn buildings and equipment over
to personnel elected by someone else and be responsible for perform-
ing the services in the Headstart program.

1. as a representative of the Martin County Board of Education,
wholeheartedly recommend that the Headstart funds be channeled
through the U.S. Office of Education to the various State departments
of education.

I further recommend that the State departments of education dis-
tribute those funds to those boards of education which operate Head-
start programs. I am certain that school people will be happy to
cooperate with community action and all other community organiza-
tions in operating Headstart programs.

T thank the members of the committee for permission to appear and
express my views.

Chairman Perxrvs. Let me congratulate you, Mr. Goble. T have
Inown of vour work a= supervisor in the Martin County school system
for some while and some time. You have made an outstanding con-
tribution to the school svstem and I personally want to congratulate
vou on vour evaluation of the vesults obtained from the present
programs in vour county under the Elementary and Secondary Educa-
tion Act where vou evaluate the work of title I by stating that the
dropout rate has been reduced and that there has been an overall
increase in the academic level of the students, a greater and better
percentage of attendance, and there has been much more interest from
the standpoint of the price as the result of the Elementary and Sec-
ondary Edueation Act.

You are getting increased participation and involvement from the
standpoint of price: and being able to put on so many special programs
such as remedial reading and library sciences and other enrichment
programs.

The evaluation of this piece of legislation as you have pointed out
to us from Martin County, Ky., makes me feel good. As we all know
Martin County is one of our low-income counties throughout the Na-
tion. It just goes to prove that the results obtained from the passage
of the legislation are commencing to pay off.

I want to thank you for that report this morning.

Mr. Gopre. Thank vou, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Scaever. I was very much interested in your testimony. I
notice that on page 3 vou say that only 25 percent of the children are
eligible to participate. Are you receiving the benefits of Headstart.?

Mr. GorrLe. We have approximately 450 students who are eligible
from age standpoint and income standpoint.
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Mr. Scaever. And need, I take it ?

Mr. GosrLe. Yes. We designed a program for 230. We have a
program approved for 130 at the present time. We have a grant
approved for 130 at the present time.

Mr. Scuever. How much more in the way of funding support would
you like to have for the children in your county ?

Mr. Gosre. I think our disagreement perhaps is not so much money.
We appreciate what we are getting. It is the way we are forced to
operate.

Mr. Screuer. I don’t want to get into that controversy this morn-
ing. T just want to get to the one question of the resources. Are you
satisfied with the level of help you are getting from the Federal
Government or do you think the children in your district would bene-
fit from getting a higher level of help?

Mr. Gopre. They would benefit from a higher level of help.

Mr. Scuruer. Of the percentage of children now being taken care
of, how many more would you like to get in ?

Mr. GosLe. One hundred more.

Mr. Screuer. Instead of 130, it would be 230, almost a doubling
of your program ¢

Mr. GoBLE. Yes.

Mr. Scurver. Would this be year around or just the summer
program ?

Mr. Goerr. That would get into our problem of operation but it is
year around.

Mr. Scurver. Do they have comprehensive health services and
nutrition ?

Mr. GosLE. Yes; but not nutrition.

Mr. Scuruer. But they do have comprehensive health services?

Mr. GoBre. I think so.

Mr. Scarver. Dental care?

Mr. GoBLE. Yes.

Mr. ScaevER. Do they have a school lunch during the school year
and the summer?

Mr. Gonre. They have no cooks in the summer.

Mr. ScHEUER. So there would be something to add there.

Your testimony was very provocative and stimulating and I thank
you very much.

Chairman Prre1ns. Thank you very much for your appearance here
today, Mr. Goble.

Do we have any other superintendent of schools in the room at the
present time ?

I'am going to call on the administration witnesses right at this time.
We would ltke to have you give us a report as to the operation of the
Elementary and Secondary Education Act. While they are in the
process of assembling I would like to ask unanimous consent that
inasmuch as this is the last day of the hearings to insert in the record
at this time excerpts from the National Educational Association
Research Report in 1966 concerning the demand for new teachers as
a study made concerning the teacher shortage which T feel would be
very helpful to have some evidence on the demand for new teachers,
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on the shortage, the reasons why so many teachers have left the dis-
advantaged areas.

I think this study is pertinent in this record. If there is no objec-
tion I will ask that the study be inserted in the record.

(The document referred to follows:)

{Excerpts from NEA Research Report 1966-R16, October 1966]
II. THE DEMAND FOR NEW TEACHERS

This section contains estimates of the demand for new teachers and the
demand for beginning teachers. The separate estimate of the demand for
beginning teachers is given to allow comparison with the supply of beginning
teachers reviewed in Section I of this report. Following a review of the
difference between the estimated demand for new and beginning teachers are
descriptions of three estimates of the demand for new teachers. Finally this
section reviews the characteristics of the demand for new teachers as shown
in the assignments given to these persons during the 1965-66 session in 29
states reporting this information.

DITFERENCE BETWEEN DEMAND FOR NEW AND DEMAND FOR BEGINNING TEACHERS

The difference between the estimated demand for new teachers and the esti-
mated demand for beginning teachers is based on an estimate of differences
in the types of vacancies created by teacher turnover. The estimated demand
for new teachers is directed to filling all of the positions vacated by the depar-
ture of approximately 8 percent of the teachers each year.

The estimated demand for beginning teachers is based on an assumption
that re-entering former teachers normally will fill between one-fourth and
one-half of the positions created by teacher turnover.

The U.S. Office of Education reported that the number of teachers who were
re-entering active service following a leave of absence or other interruption in
their teaching careers was almost half (48.0 percent) of the number of positions
vacated by teacher turnover.! The number of positions created by the 8.1
percent teacher turnover which were not filled by the number of persons
re-entering teaching amounted to 4.2 percent of the number of teachers employed
in the fall of 1959. Summarized in Table 9 are the withdral and re-entry rates
reported in the U.S. Office of Education Study.

TABLE O.—Estimated demand for beginning teachers, based on teacher turnover
rates in public schools, 1959-60

Percent of the fall 1959 staff

! |

Group Elementary | Secondary ‘I Total

I
Men ' Women| Total | Men |Women| Total

() 1‘ G) ) @®) ©) 10)

!
Men Women! Total

w e e @

Teachers separating and ;
not rransferring to new .

i ;
I I '
i 1
POSHHON - oo i 59! 84 811 65! 99| 81| 63, 88 8.1
Teachers re-entering______.. | 3.7 4.1 | 41 | 2.7 | 4.7 3.6 3.0 4.2 3.9
Difference (positions to be I | !
filled by beginning ; | ! |
teachers)_ ... 22 43, 40, 88 | 52| 45| 33| 46 4.2

Source: Based ou: Lindenfeld, Frank. Teacher Turnover in Public Elementary and Seeondary Schools,
1959-60. U.S. Departmeni of Health, Education, and Welfare; Office of Eduecation, Circular No. 678;
Washington, D.C.: Government Printing Office, 1963; p. 9.

1 Lindenfeld. Frank, Teacher Turnover in Public Elementary and Secondary Schools,
1959—60. €U.S. Department of Health. Education, and Welfare, Office of Education, Circu-
Jar No. 67S. Washington, D.C.: Government Printing Office, 1963, 28 p.
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TABLE 10.—Estimated percent of teaching positions being created by teacher
turnover in 1557-58 and in 1959-60

‘ Percent of the fall staff size

Group : !
! Elementary ‘[ Secondary Total
! I
‘ 1957-58 1 1959-60 1957-58 1959-60 1957-58 ‘ 1959-60
u) e e e ®) ® ‘ )
| ! i |
Teachers leaving the profession...._______ 1.2 | 8.1 i 10.4 | 8.0 10.9 8.1
Teachers re-entering active employment. _ 4.8 ! 4.0 4.1 3.6 4.5 3.9
Difference (vacancies created by turn- i | :
OVe) . oo m oo ! 6.4 £1 6.3 4.4 6.4 4.2
i \ i I
| | | l

Source: Based on: Lindenfeld, Frank. Teacher Turnover in Public Elementary and Secondary Schools,
1959-60. U.S. Department of Health, Education, and Welfare; Office of Education, Circular No. 678;
Washington, D.C.: Government Printing Office, 1963; p. 15. (1959-60 data adjusted to represent 48 states
and the District of Columbia for comparability with the 1957-58 survey data.)

It is now known to what extent the number of persons returning to teaching
during 1959-60 may have reflected the inmpact of a shortage of beginning teachers
in that year. A shortage could contribute to the retention or recall of margin-
ally qualified personnel.

An NEA Research Division survey of public-school teachers in 1955-56 found
that 9 percent of all public-school teachers in April 1956 were not teaching in
April 1955, and that approximately half of these (49 percent) were in college
in April 1955. As reported in Table 23, the supply of beginning teachers was
lower in 1955 and 1956 than has been observed in subsequent years.

In an earlier study on teacher turnover (1957-58), the U.S. Office of Educa-
tion reported that 10.9 percent of the teachers in the fall of 1957 left the pro-
fession and the number of re-entering teachers amounted to 4.5 percent of the
number of teachers employed in the fall of 1957. A review of the net loss as
a percent of the number of teachers in the fall at the beginning of the session
as observed in the two U.S. Office of Education studies is provided in Table 10.

The rate of re-entry was slightly greater among women than among men,
and was greater at the elementary level than at the secondary-school level, pos-
sibly the latter being attributable in large part to the sex-related difference.
The percents of the fall staff representing the re-entering teachers did not
vary as markedly between the two studies as did the percent of all teachers
leaving their position.

The differences in the rate of turnover and in the demand for beginning
teachers observed in these studies documents the possibility of rather wide vari-
ations over a period of years. The U.S. Office of Education studies show vari-
ation in these rates of teacher turnover among school districts grouped by
region. Studies of teacher turnover reported by several stutes suggest there
are wide differences among the states in the rate of teacher separations. These
variations suggest that the national estimates be treated in only general terms
with allowances being given to possible differences over a period of time and
for individual states or regions.

Two NEA Research Division surveys of teacher separations in 1963-64 and
in 1964-65 in school systems which enroll 25.000 or more pupils provide an in-
dication of conditions since 1960, The time period of the NIA surveys was
between July 1 and June 30 of the following year while the time period of the
U.S, Office of Education studies was hetween the opening of classes in the
fall and the opening of classes the following fall. The separation rates differ
from the turnover rates because of the inclusion of the teachers who transfer
to other school systems. Summarized below are the separation rates observed
among the larze school systems in the four studies. Imformation reported by
the NEA Research Division suggests that the <eparation rates during recent
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years may be about the same as reported for 1959-60 in the U.S. Office of Edu-

cation study.

[In percent]
Separation rate | Separation rate
in school sys- in all school
Year tems having systems
25,000 or more
enrolled

1957-58 (USOE) e 14.7 17.0
195960 (USOE) .. 12.5 13.4
1963-64 (NEA)_____ 1.4 |
1964-65 (NEA) e 1.4 |l

The following assumptions may provide an estimate of the demand for begin-
ning teachers to fill positions created by normal teacher turnover: (a) that about
8 percent of the classroom teachers at the beginning of a school session will leave
the teaching profession before the beginning of the following session, and (b)
that at least one-fourth and as many as one-half of the positions created by this
exodus (between 2 and 4 percent of the number of teachers employed in the fall)
will be filled by persons who have interrupted their careers. It is further as-
sumed that these variables will fluctuate with changes in the adequacy of the
supply of beginning teachers, the total demand for qualified teachers, composition
of the teaching staff, characteristics of the pool of former teachers, and the eco-
nomic conditions influencing turnover in the instruectional staff. The question-
able bases for these assumptions, the wide fluctuations in the conditions in-
fluencing their accuracy, and the need for additional data to support differences
applicable to each sex and subject grouping suggest that the resulting estimates
be treated only in very general terms.

The midpoint of the estimates that between 4 and 6 percent of the fall staff
of full-time teachers will leave and not be replaced by re-entering former teachers
is used as the base for estimating the demand for beginning teachers created by
teacher turnover. Conversely, estimating that the re-entry of former teachers
is equal to about 3 percent of the number of full-time teachers in the fall of 1965,
the estimated demand for beginning teachers may be derived by reducing the
estimated demand for new teachers by 28,756 at the elementary-school level and
by 22,231 at the secondary-school level.

CRITERIA FOR ESTIMATING DEMAND FOR NEW TEACHERS

Three equally useful estimates of the demand for new teachers are presented
in this report. The first shows the teacher demand related to a minimum stand-
ard, the second reviews the teacher demand related to current practices, and the
third is an adjustment to the second to account for the expected influence of the
Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965.

Components of the first estimate are the minimum standards of staffing char-
acteristics required for effective instruction in the public schools. This estimate
is based on an assumption that the demand for teachers must be related to
achieving at least the minimum level of quality in staffing for public edueca-
tion. The estimate based on this assumption is termed the Quality Criterion
Estimate (QCE).

The components of the second estimate are the trends in the improvement of
staffing characteristics of public schools in recent years being continued in the
1966-67 school session. This estimate is based on an assumption that the de-
mand for teachers in the fall of 1966 is the expected number of new teachers who
will actually be employed at the beginning of the 1966-67 school session as in-
dicated from past trends in staffing practices. This second estimate is termed the
Trend Criterion Estimate (TCE).

The third estimate is an adjustment to the Trend Criterion Estimate to account
for the growth in staff size which is expected to result from the Elementary and
Secondary Education Act of 1965. This third estimate is termed the Adjusted
Trend Criterion Estimate (ATCE).
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The numbers of new teachers required by each criterion for estimating the
-emand for new teachers in 196667 are presented and discussed in the following
sections.

The Quality Criterion Estimate

The Quality Criterion Estimate is based on the number of new teachers needed
to achieve immediately a standard for minimum quality in the staffing of public-
school classrooms. The following are discussed separately as components of this
estimate: (a) the number of new teachers needed to fill new positions being
created to accommodate enrollment changes; (b) the number of new teachers
needed to replace the teachers who are interrupting or terminating their careers;
(c) the number of teachers having substandard professional qualifications who
need to be upgraded or replaced; (d) the number of new teachers needed to re-
duce overcrowded classes to reasonable maximum sizes; and (e) the number
of new teachers needed to provide adequate staffing of new educational offerings,
added special instructional services, and reorganization for instruction.

The Quality Criterion Estimate of teacher demand should be useful to the
teaching profession, civic leaders, public officials, and research analysts in asses-
sing the manpower requirements for attaining minimum quality in public educa-
tion. This estimate shows the demand for teachers required by a minimum level
of quality in the staffing practices applied to all classrooms without consideration
ot the obstacles to attaining this standard immediately.

The Demand for New Tecachers, Based on the Quality Criterion Estimate—
Summarized in Table 11 are the estimated numbers of new teachers needed to
achieve the Quality Criterion in each of several components of teacher demand.
The estimated total demand for 364.500 new teachers is an increase of 138,500
positions (8.1 percent) over the number of full-time teachers employed in the
fall of 1965. The components of this estimate are described in the following
paragraphs.

Increased Enrollment—The estimates shown in the table are preliminary pro-
jections developed by the NEA Research Division by using enrollment and
staffing data of recent years. These preliminary estimates will be reviewed and
revised by officials in the individual states prior to publication by the Research
Division in December 1966. Additional discussion of these estimates is provided
in the discussion of the Trend Criterion Estimate.

Owing to the use of projections of staffing as related to enrollments in recent
years, this estimate may reflect a small part of the demand for new teachers
-estimated separately in some other components.

Teacher Turnover—The estimates are based on an assumption that 8 percent
of the full-time teachers in the fall of 1965 will interrupt or terminate their
careers before the opening of schools in the fall of 1966. The major studies
which have contributed to this estimate were reviewed in the discussion of the
differences in the demand for new and for beginning teachers. Since this turn-
over rate was observed during years in which general improvement of the educa-
tional qualifications of the staff were being realized, the estimated demand may
overlap somewhat the following component.

Replacement of Teachers Having Substandard Qualifications—These estimates
are based on an assumption that the minimum educational requirement for
qualified teachers is completion of the bachelor’s degree and the teachers having
less than a bachelor’s degree need to be upgraded or replaced. For many of
these teachers who lack only one or two years of college this replacement may be
on a short-term basis while they return to teacher preparation institutions to
complete their degree.

The estimate of the number of elementary-school teachers lacking the bache-
lor’s degree is a projection of data in the summary of the educational qualifica-
tions of elementary-school teachers listed in Table 30 of Section IV. The 32 re-
porting states employed approximately 57 percent of the total number of full-
time elementary-school teachers in the fall of 19652 The 52,160 elementary-
school teachers not having the bachelor’s degree represent 9.4 percent of all ele-
mentary-school teachers in the 32 reporting states. Applying this percentage
to the number of full-time elementary-school teachers in all states (958,541) pro-
vides an estimate that 90,103 elementary-school teachers had not completed the
bachelor’s degree during session 1965-66.

210.8. rtment of Health, Education, and Welfare, Office of Education. Fall 1965
B’tags%c?g)?aPublic Etemeﬂtan} and Secondary Day Schools: Puptls, Teachers, Instruction
Rooms, and Ezpenditures. Washington, D.C.: Government Printing Office, 1966. 31 p.
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The data in Table 27 of Section IV shows an estimate that 10.9 percent of all
elementary-school teachers in 1963-66 lacked the bachelor’s degree. Applying
this percentage to the total number of elementary-school teachers employed in
1965-66 provides an estimate that 104,481 elementary-school teachers lacked the
bachelor's degree. The estimate of 78,361 elementary-school teachers allows for
about 25 percent of the 104,500 elementary-school teachers lacking the bachelor’s
degree to have completed the degree requirements or to have resigned prior to
the 1966-67 session.

The estimate of demand at the secondary-school level is based on the esti-
mated percentage of secondary-school teachers who did not have the bachelor’s
degree in 1955-36, shown in Table 27 in Section IV. The estimate of 2.1 percent
applied to the 741.043 full-time secondary-school teachers employed in the fall
of 1963 indicates that 15,562 secondary-school teachers did not have the bache-
lor’s degree in 1965-66. The estimate that 11,672 of these need to be replaced
is based on an assumption that 25 percent of the 15,562 teachers lacking the
degree will have subsequently graduated or have resigned.

TABLE 11.—Extimated demand for new teachers, based on the quality criterion
B |
! Estimated demand for new teachers
Source of demand !
5 Elementary | Secondary Total
|
M ! @ @3) )
|
Staff requirement of increased enrollment._____________ ... { 21,709 24,709 46,418
Teacher turnover i 76, 683 59, 283 135, 966
Replacement of teachers having substandard qualifications ,i 78, 361 11,672 90, 033
Reduction of overcrowded classes -| 18, 734 8,352 27,086
Special instruetional services .. l 37,050 27,960 65, 000
07 S | 232, 537 131, 966 364, 503
i

General support for these estimates is provided by the reports from the states
to the U.S. Office of Education showing the number of full-time classroom teachers
who do not meet the state regular certification requirements for the positions
which they occupy. The total number of substandard teachers reported in the
fall 1965 survey was 81,74S teachers: 51,632 in elementary-schools and 30,116 in
secondary-schools, Owing to differences among the states in the minimum edu-
cational requirements for certification, some of which certify teachers with less
than a bachelor's degree. and differences in specific requirements beyond the at-
tainment of the bachelui's degree, the data from the U.S. Office of Education fall
survey are not entirely comparable with the estimates being used in this report.

Reduction of Overcrowded Classes—A national survey by the NEA Research
Division in 1965-66 provides a general estimate of the distribution of class size
and teacher load in public schools. These percentage distributions were applied
to the total number of full-time teachers in the fall of 1965 to obtain an estimate
of the number of persons who may have been assigned extremely large classes
during 1965-66.

The intervals in these distributions provide a base for these estimates of the
minimum numbers of additional teachers needed to reduce maximum size of
classes in elementary schools to no more than 34 pupils each and the maximum
average daily teacher load in secondary schools to no more than 199 pupils.

Data on the staffing practices for classes having shortened sessions or double-
shift sessions are not available. Therefore, this summary does not include an
estimate of additional demand for new teachers resulting from these classes.

Special Instructional Services—In this classification are the new teachers
needed to provide special instructional services, enlarge the scope of educational
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offerings, and provide special programs for pupils having special learning needs
(physically, mentally, emotionally handicapped. the culturally disadvantaged,
ete.). It is estimated that at least 65,000 additional teachers are needed for this
component of demand.

Support for this estimate is provided by the U.8. Office of Education projec-
tions which list 50,000 new teachers being needed for 1906-67 as an effect of the
Elementary and Second Iiducation Act of 1965.

Estimated Demand for Beginning Teachers Based on the Quulity Criterion—
Listed below are the estimated numbers of beginning teachers needed to achieve
the demand based on the Quality Criterion Estimate. This estimate is based on
an assumption that among the 8 percent of 1965-66 teaching positions vacated by
teacher turnover, 5 percent will need to be filled by beginning teachers.

Number of teachers

Elementary ‘ High school ’ Total
Demand for new teachers based on the quality criterion
estimate._ ____.__.______________.__ 232, 537 131, 966 364, 503
Expected reentry of former teachers._ 28, 756 22,231 50, 987
Demand for beginning teachers 203 781 109, 735 313 516

The Trend Criterion Estimate

The Trend Criterion provides an estimate of the number of new teachers who
will actually be employed by public school systems in the school year 1966—67 as
indicated by recent staffing practices. This estimate is projected from informa-
tion about the numbers of new teachers employed in recent years. The demand
for new teachers in this estimate reflects a continuation of current trends toward
improved staffing conditions rather than immediate achievement of the standards
of minimum quality in the staffing of clasrooms provided by the Quality Criterion
Estimate.

The projections based on the Trend Criterion should be especially useful to
college and university counselors of potential teachers, to individuals planning
careers in teaching, to former teachers considering re-entry into teaching, and
to educational leaders. This projection provides an estimate of the immediate
condition of teacher demand—the minimum number of employment opportunities
for beginning and re-entering teachers during the school year 1966-67.

The Demand for New Teachers, Based on the Trend Criterion Estimate—Esti-
mates of the number of teaching positions to be filled by the supply of new teach-
ers for the opening of a given school session may be based on trends observed in
two previous components: (a) positions created by the teachers who are termi-
nating or interrupting their careers in the public schools during or at the close
of the preceding school year; and (b) positions being created or eliminated as a
result of changes in enrollment, organization for instruction, and in the pupil-
teacher ratio. The estimates may involve either an assumption that the trends
will continue without major change or an assumption that marked change will
occur owing to changes in the conditions influencing these variables. The
estimated demand for new teachers based on the first of these assumptions (that
past trends will continue) is described below. The estimated effect of the second
assumption is discussed in the description of the Adjusted Trend Criterion Esti-
mate (ATCE).

Demand Created by Teacher Turnover (TCE)—Earlier reports in this series
have estimated that about 8 percent of the teachers leave the profession each
year. The U.S. Office of Education study, Teacher Turnover in Public Elemen-
tary and Secondary Schools, 1959-60, noted that the number of teachers leaving
the profession amounted to 8.1 percent of the number of teachers employed in
the fall of 1959 (see Table 9). These positions created by teacher turnover will
need to be filled by new (beginning and re-entering) teachers. Included in this
estimate is the typical proportion of teachers being encouraged to resign owing to
their substandard qualifications.
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TaBLE 12.—Total estimated demand for beginning teachers in 1966—67, by major
component, based on the trend criterion

Estimated demand for beginning teachers

. H Elementary Secondary ‘ Total
Source
. Low  High Low | High ' Low | High
W @ @ @ e e® | o

i .
Replacement of teachers leaving the pro- ’ ‘ | ‘
fession and not being replaced by re- |

enrering teachers ' __________ _______ 38, 342 57,512 ! 20,642 44,483 67, 984 ; 101, 975
New teaching positions being created 2.___ 21,709 . 21,709 % 24,709 | 24,709 | 346,418 : 346,418
Total deriand . .oooooooo oo 60, 051 79, 221 54,351 | 69,172 i 114,402 | 148,393
Midpoint 4 e 69, '636 61, 761 ‘ 131,397
|

1 Includes the estimated numbers of teachers heing encguraged to resign owing to substandard profes-
sional qualificatinns, based on trends of past several years.

 [iicludes the estimated numbers of teachers being employed to provide enlarged programs and serviees,
to reduce the number of uvercrowded clusses, to continue to improve the pupil-teacher ratio, based on trends.
of the past several years.

3 Total of the elementary and secondery estimates.

# Midpoint of low and high estiniates bused on reentry eqial to 4 and 2 percent, respectively, of the teachers
mplo yed in fall 1965.

Reports from the states in the fall of 1965 to the U.S. Office of Education show
there were 967,635 elementary-school teachers and 748,650 secondary-school
teachers in the public schools of the nation. These include 9,094 elementary- and
7,607 secondary-schoo! teachers who had part-time employment.

Thus, the number of new teachers needed to fill positions created by an 8-per--
cent turnover is estimated to comprise 76,683 elementary-school teachers and
59,283 secondary-school teachers (based on the number of full-time teachers re-
ported in the U.S. Office of Education survey: Fall 1965 Statistics of Public
Schools).

T'eachers Needed To Fill New Positions (TCE)—The demand for new teachers:
is influenced by the creation of new positions for increased enrollment, changes
in organizational placement of certain grades, and other organizational changes
influencing the pupil-teacher ratio (reduction of the number of large classes and.
provision of specialized educational services).

Growth of school enrollments and staff requirements may be estimated only
in general terms pending development of specific indicators of the influence of
federal programs related to public education. Projections of the total demand
for teachers based on the trends in staff growth during the past few years are
prepared during the summer by the NEA Research Division. These are sent to
the states for verification or change before becoming final estimates of staff size.

Preliminary estimates prepared by the NEA Research Division indicate there
will be 989.344 elementary-school teachers and 773.359 secondary-school teachers
in 1966-67. These are full-time teachers and equated full-time positions of part-
time teachers. The increased number of elementary-school teachers (21,709)
represents a 2.2-percent increase over the fall staff size in 1965. The increased
number of secondary-school teachers (24,709) represents an increase of 3.3 per-
cent over the number of secondary-school teachers reported in fall 1965.

The growth of the staff between fall 1964 and fall 1965 was 2.7 percent among
elementary-school teachers and 5.6 percent among secondary-school teachers, as:
reported in the U.S. Office of Education fall survey statistics.

The NEA Research Division’s preliminary projections of staff growth are
used in this report to estimate the demand for new teachers. These preliminary
estimates fall between the two U.S. Office of Education estimates, one of which
excludes the estimated effect of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act
of 19635.

Total Estimated Demand for New Teachers Based on the Trend Criterion—
Combination of the estimated number of vacant positions created by an 8-percent
turnover of full-time teachers employed last session with the projected growth
in staff size provides an estimate that 98,392 new elementary-school teachers:
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and 83,992 new secondary-school teachers will be needed for the 1966-67 session.
The estimated demand for new elementary-school teachers represents 53.9 per-
cent of the total estimated demand for new teachers.

Information in Table 16 of this report obtained from a varying number of
states in earlier studies shows the relative demand for new elementary- and
high-school teachers has been almost equalized in recent years. If these states
are representative of the national pattern, the difference in the demand for
new elementary- and new high-school teachers may be smaller than the 14,400
teachers estimated above.

Total Estimated Demand for Beginning Teachers, Based on the Trend Cri-
terion—Combination of the components of the demand for beginning full-time
public-school teachers discussed in the preceding parugraphs provides an esti-
mate of the total demand which is shown in Table 12. The range of these
estimates is about 19,000 teachers at the elementary-school level and about 15,000
teachers at the high-school level. The midpoints of these ranges are used in
subsequent comparisons of teacher supply and demand. These midpoints pro-
vide an estimated demand for 69,636 beginning teachers in elementary schools
and 61,761 beginning teachers in high schools.

An Alternate Estimate of the Demand for Beginning Teachers Based on the
Trend Criterion—An alternate procedure may be used to ohtain an estimate
of the demand for beginning teachers in 1966-67. This procedure produces
from the estimated number of beginning teachers employed in 1965-66. an
estimate of the number needed in 196667 to fill vacancies created by teacher
turnover.

Information obtained through a two-stage random sampling survey of all
public-school teachcers during the spring of 1966 provides an alternate estimate
of the number of beginning teachers which were employved in 1965-66. These
data were obtained for the NEA Research Division study. Status of the Amer-
ican Public-School Teacher, and are summarized in Table 13. The estimates
for 1965-66 are greater than the estimates obtained in a similar study con-
ducted in 1960-61. In that study the beginning teachers represented 8.0 percent
rather than 8.7 percent of all teachers.

TABLE 13.—An estimate of the percent of public school teachers whe were
beginning teachcers, spring 1966

Percent of teachers who were beginning teachers
Ratio of SE
Level Population estimate Number in to simple
Standard sample random
Estimate error sample SE
Low (—2SE) High
(+2SE)

) 2 3) O] (3) (6) (@)
Elementary_._____ 7.5 0.80 5.9 9.1 2,039 1,064
Secondary......__ 10.1 .98 8.1 12.1 1,879 1,044

Total_ .._... 8.7 .63 7.4 \ 8.7 3,919 ; 1, 064

Source: Estimate is derived by combining the information obtained from 2 samples drawn from the
same sampling frame. The increased number of individuals allows greater reliability in the estimate.
1 sample was drawn for a periodie national survey of teachers and the other for the NEA Rescarch Divi-
sion’s *‘Status of the Americun Public-School Teacher, 1965-66"" (a research study in process).

These 1965-66 percentage estimates were applied to the total number of full-
time teachers to obtain the estimated number of beginning teachers employed
in 1965-66. The range of 2 standard errors was used to establish a .95 per-
cent confidence interval for the estimate. The number of new positions created
for the 1965-66 session was subtracted from the total number of beginning
teachers to obtain an estimate of the number of beginning teachers needed to
fill positions vacated through staff turnover. The percent of the staff of full-
time teachers before enlargement, which is represented by the number of be-
ginning teachers needed to fill positions vacated through staff turnover, was
applied to the number of full-time teachers in 1965-66 to obtain an estimate of
the number of beginning teachers needed for this purpose in 1966-G7.
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The percents of full-time teachers in 1964-65 represented by the number of
beginning teachers needed in 1965-66 to replace separating teachers are within
the range of 3.3 to 6.8 percent in elementary and 3.0 to 7.2 percent at the high-
school level. The projected numbers of beginning teachers needed in 1966-67
based on these percents of the 1965-66 staff size and the projected staff enlarge-
ment are summarized in Table 14.

The numbers of beginning teachers at the midpoints of these estimates are
greater than the earlier estimates given in Table 12 by only 1,438 elementary-
school teachers (2.1 percent) and by only 741 high-school teachers (1.2 percent).
The demand for beginning elementary-school teachers in this estimate repre-
sents 53.2 percent of the total demand for beginning teachers. The overlapping
range of the estimates and the difference of 8,000 beginning teachers between the
two levels suggest that the demand for beginning teachers is not widely different
between the two levels.

TaBLE 14.—An alternate estimate of the number of beginning teachers to be em-
ployed in public schools in session 1966-67, based on the trend criterion

Estimated demand for beginning teachers
Source Elementary High school
Low l High Low High
1) @ (3) (€3] (5)
Replacement of teachers. ... ... ... 33, 548 1 65, 181 22,231 53, 355
New teaching positions... ... ... ... 21, 709 } 21, 709 24,709 24,709
N O 55,257 | 86,890 46,940 78, 064
Midpoint. .o 71, |074 62, |502

The Adjusted Trend Criterion Estimate

The trends in demand for qualified publie-school teachers for a given school
year may be changed as a result of changes in various factors such as the fol-
lowing:

Major modification in the school program and assignment load of teachers

Enrollment growth related to enlarged educational programs

Reduction in the ratio of pupils per teacher to provide special programs
being encouraged through federal and state legislation

Change in the rate by which persons having substandard certification are
being replaced

Elimination of large classes.

Some of these conditions have been influencing the demand for new teachers
during the past several years. The trends in staffing practices observed in the
past are included in the data used to derive the estimates of teacher demand
based on the Trend Criterion. For example, infcrmation in Section IV of this
report shows marked improvement in the educational qualifications of elemen-
tary-school teachers during the past 10 years.

Owing to the lack of precise data, it is difficult to estimate the specific effects
of new conditions influencing some of the components of teacher demand. For
example, present data do not allow identification of the number of teachers being
counted in regular staff turnover or attrition who have substandard certification
and are encouraged to resign largely because of this condition.

Total Demand for New and Beginning Teachers, Based on the ADJUSTED
TREND CRITERION ESTIMATE—A minimum estimate of change to be ex-
pected in the recent trends in the staffing of public schools is provided by the
U.S. Office of Education. Projections of Educational Statistics to 197475, 1965
edition, shows an estimate of 34,000 additional new teachers needed for 1965-66
and 50.000 additional new teachers needed for 1966-67 as a result of the Elemen-
tary and Secondary Education Act of 1965. This estimate projects that the
number of full-time and part-time teachers in public schools will rise in the fall
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of 1966 to 1,014,000 elementary-school teachers and 779,000 secondary-school
teachers. The increase of 46,000 elementary-school teachers and 30,000 second-
ary-school teachers represents 4.8 percent and 4.0 percent enlargement over the
number employed in the fall of 1965. Since the full effect of the Elementary
and Secondary Education Act of 1965 was not reflected in the staff size reported
in the fall of 1965, the Trend Criterion Estimate does not account for this new
factor influencing the demand for teachers.

Use of an estimate that 50,000 additional new teachers will be employed in
196667 and application of the U.S. Office of Education estimate that 60 percent
of these added teachers will be placed in elementary schools provides an esti-
mate that 30,000 new elementary-school teachers and 20,000 new secondary-
school teachers will be required in the fall of 1966. These are added to the
Trend Criterion Estimate to establish the Adjusted Trend Criterion Estimate
of demand for new teachers . The total staff estimated by this process comprises
1,019,344 elementary-school teachers and 793,359 high-school teachers. The Ad-
justed Trend Criterion Estimate of the total demand for teachers exceeds the
U.S. Office of Education estimates by 0.5 percent at the elementary-school level
and by 1.8 percent at the secondary-school level. The total demand for new
and beginning teachers based nn the Adjusted Trend Criterion Estimate is shown
below :

Number of teachers needed

Group
Elementary | Secondary Total
Beginning teachers 99, 636 81, 761 181, 397
New teachers 128, 392 103, 992 232, 304

Other Factors Influencing the Demand for New Teachers

The U.S. Office of Education has estimated that 14,040 new teachers will be
needed in the nonpublic schools in the fall of 1966. It has been estimated that
1,800 new teachers will be needed in the dependent schools overseas. Replace-
ment may be required for an estimated 300 experienced teachers and 1,200 begin-
ning teachers if the Teacher Corps is fully implemented. The normal flow of
experienced teachers to advanced training may be increased by the estimated
900 fellowships for experienced teachers at teacher-training institutions as pro-
vided by the Higher Education Act of 1965.

Additional vacancies are certain as experienced teachers accept specialized
positions being established through the impact of federal support to programs
related to public education or which require persons having the characteristics of
effective teachers. For example, the number of guidance counselors has almost
trebled to 35,000 persons during the seven years following passage of the Na-
tional Defense Education Act. The provision of funds to employ remedial in-
struction specialists, school social workers, research analysts, program coordi-
nators, state department of education staff members, and other positions outside
the classroom will attract an unknown number of teachers. The effect of these
programs upon the typical components of Teacher Supply and Demand has not
been documented.

The tide of increased enrollinents is being felt at the 2-year and 4-year col-
lege level and the number of public-school teachers moving to these levels may
increase markedly, thereby opening many positions for new teachers in the
elementary and secondary schools. It has been estimated that in the junior
colleges alone, 100,000 more teachers will be needed within the next 10 years.

Probably the general shortage in other occupations which attract young people
having at least the bachelor’s degree and the increased demands of the military
services are contributing also to an increase in the exodus of qualified teachers
and the loss of potential teachers.

It is difficult to estimate the extent these conditions are changing the entry »ate
of potential teachers and the turnover rate of experienced teachers. Tt seems ob-
vious, however, that the demand for teachers projected by each of the three sets
of criteria should be considered as minimum estimates.

T5-492—67—pt. 2——42
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Summary of the Estimates of Demand for New Teachers

Listed below are the total numbers of new teachers who will be needed in the
fall of 1966 as determined by the three criteria. An estimate of the demand
for beginning teachers may be obtained by subtracting the 28,756 elementary- and
22,231 secondary-school teachers expected to re-enter the profession (3 percent
of the number of full-time teachers employed in the fall of 1965).

Number of new teachers in demand for fall
1966
Base
Elementary } Secondary . Total
Trend criterion estimate__________ . - 98, 392 83,992 182, 384
Adjusted trend eriterion estim _ 128,392 103, 992 232,384
Quality criterion estimate 232,537 131, 966 364, 503

CHARACTERISTICS OF DEMAND FOR NEW TEACHERS AS S8UGGESTED BY
ASSIGNMENTS IN SELECTED STATES

During the past 18 surveys of teacher supply and demand varying numbers
of states have reported the number of new teachers employed and their assign-
ments. (These include experienced teachers returning to the classroom as well
as the beginning teachers.) A summary of the reports for 1965-66 from 29
states is provided in Table 15. The individual state summaries are given in the
Appendix, Table B.

A review of the characteristics of the teaching assignments of these new teach-
ers provides an estimate of the comparative demand between elementary- and
high-school levels and among the high-school subject areas. Also, the data iden-
tify the types of competence needed by new teachers as suggested by the com-
binations of subjects being assigned to new teachers in the high schools.

Each new teacher is entered in this table only once with the entry showing
the major and minor, if any, assignment. For example, the entry on line 1 and
column 2 shows that 371 new teachers have been given their complete assignment
in the teaching of high-school agriculture. The line shows that 9 new teachers
had a major assignment in agriculture accompanied by a minor assignment in
art, ete., and that 459 new teachers had either a major or complete assignment
in agriculture. Column 2 shows that 1 new teacher has been assigned a combina-
tion in which art is the major assignment with agriculture being the minor as-
signment, ete.

Relative Demand for New Elementary- and H igh-School Teachers

Shown in lines 21 and 22 in column 22 of Table 15 are the total numbers of
new teachers employed in 1965-66 who were given their complete or major as-
signment in either elementary or high-school levels. The total demand for new
elementary-school teachers was 835 greater than the total demand for new high-
school teachers in these 29 states. The new elementary-school teachers rep-
resented 50.5 percent of all new teachers.




ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION AMENDMENTS 1481

S 91qR) JO PUo IR 930U a8

................................................................... “‘..,....4... I T I R Attt [+ 1 AT H L0 8100 5 o A
|||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||| A [ i il Il Ittt Bt S TR107 [o0yas __.n:: ¢
4 [ < 3 921 L [ 19410)
¥ S ettt 0 1 ¢ 5] e e il ooody
0z 8 8¢ QeI €7 £0¢ Ay 81 LS SIIpus [B1oog
ToTTemTmees 123 B e A inteiebeieiieieiel bbbt L e Bt et S84 g
1 1 e e IR 1 € | S 1 ANSIuay )
1 ge I 9 1 41 L [ £iojorgg
€ §ol. I 81 e1 Ird [4 € 01 VIO8 [RIUdY)
Z 8T S T [ e oe 8 | R (udswom) uoneanpd [voIskiy g
4 9¢ [ (N Rl e 0 o [ 11 | 2 e (wour) uoneINpo [BdISAY,J
L6¥ ‘1 L | i T £ 8e ¥ 4 | oIsny
6 868 ‘6 g T S € 194 8¢ k44 g L S sonRuL Ity
|||||||||||| 1 b e A 1 14 03 H4 1 19 ,»r‘vu.vwwww‘<4.vy,yv»oo:.:uw%b:nz‘.—
............ 1 1 cz Rl I 1 12 z T T S UANO |
............ 0 TttTTTl JAi | 14 Tl e € 9 14 R P LR L S 1T Y )ee ¢
€ 8 6 1 1 6281 ¥ 3 L 2 S i (e SIWOUGOY VWO H
9 LI 1 22 bbb 9 1e2 'y 01g 9 [t | Y sodengurp usI0 |
184 9¢ 99 L6 a 90 €7 €39 83 . [ | S ysrduy
14 19 TTTTTTTmeTes 8 14 11 11 (]88 [0y A €
¥ L TTmTTTmmmem 17 £ 8 4 9 £E8 I
T TToTTmTme TTTETTTTIT N I [ 6 | #34
@ (1) (o1 ®) ® 03} ® @ (6] () @) Q0]
sajeuL PUADS iRt SOIUI0U0)9 | sdduniduw] ang
SN -31eIN Leiqiy [ wsiewanorp | [eLysupuy AuIof{ u31o10§ ysiduyg | rewwo)) nuy -[nougdy FRIR

99-9961 ‘saivig 6g ur pafiogdwa suoyIpay mau fo spuswubIss y— g qATdV ],




1482 ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION AMENDMENTS

‘JupmoA g pus

*301M3 PAIUNOO s} uosiod ON  'SIDYOBD) [00YDS AIBJUAUI[D MIU SMOUS gg U ‘UISUOOSTM ‘BIUTBITA 1SOM ‘SJUIBIIA ‘gBYa ], ‘99SSOUUA, ‘BJ0¥B(] YINOS ‘BUII0IBD YINOY

‘UUIN{OD aY) Uj JUSTIUSBISSE JOUJWI 91} PUB JUI[ O} UO PII{[B} ST JUIUILIAISSB JO{BUL OY,L, 108010 ‘BWOYRX( ‘BI0¥B(] YIION ‘BUlOIB) UIION ‘001X MIN ‘BNSBIYON ‘LINOSSIN
*$104089) [00UDS YB[Y MAU MOYS [ 0} T SAUIT  "GO-P96T U 1d3YMAUB [Ot9) JOU PIP 0UM G961 ddiSSISSI ‘PURIAIBI ‘QUIBJY ‘BUBSITIOT] ‘£YONU0Y ‘SBSUBY ‘BMO] ‘IBMUIL ‘BPUOL]

Joquieydag uj suopysod 3ujyora) pardjus oym suosad Jo Id(LUNU dY7 SMOYS d1Ge] SIUL ‘oreme[a(] ‘JNATIOAUUOY) ‘OPBIO[0)) ‘SESUBHIY ‘GLUB(BIY WO §320da1 uo PIsBEY— ALON
P T ] et e Rkl R AN IR B R e R b ied et --]00Yds AIBJUOWD[G "TT
S O P S O i e el ER il ettt “7 1890 [001[28 UBIH] 1
088 ‘2 95y T |52 99 61 81 61 |4 6 w |ttt Tttt “TTIY10 (0%
mnm. 19 8S1 [ S Rt [ 1 Z N - - -yoeads (61
988 ¥ [44! 8z [ g 1 e LL 29 7 SOIpTYS 18100 "yl
<97 et |t 9 RS 6S [~4 [} 22 R R oo “SOISAU LT
8% (1~ A £ £01 181 89 £8 4 T | T TTANSIWOY) 91
V8 o | 0% 68 8L 632 681 ST 1 R o omAdojonel L
€60 '8 e k4 99 6¥ ZL 107 981 14 6 TorTTTrmTmmoomTTEemI SOMUDINS [BIOUVE)
£99 1 08 g 001 I eI 12 ¥ 99z ‘1 /2 (UdTIO M) UOHIBINDI [BISAU] €1
8901 ¥ 1 $07 g S 6¢ 16 L 771K S R (U UONILINPI [UISAUJ !
8291 ¥I 01 0g B R 1 9 € 9 CrmmmoeTomommTmens L A0
K98 'F 184 9 6 9F1 69 44 REE 0z 8L o T T TTSANBURYIBIN 0l
Y g @ 11 T R 1 1 b EE Y oottt S KITI4] 6
£9 49 4 14 B il Rkl e [ R R T T T Tttt TTETTTTTT - Tumsyuunoes 'y
gpe 'l 9L o b 2 1 gt | ey | T o SIS [RLISIPUT L
MN@J {8 e i1 R ¢ |1 QL 62 s e - R T “USOIOU0Y0 QUL T | "9
968 u o8 01 6 F4 1 1 a4 ¥ 7 T - oo sadundue] UStlo) ¢
8€8 ..\. 6L1 863 7 1 0t i 4 LT L T o UstsuY
809 G o8 9 301 | g 9 12 68 o CoremmTee ST TTI0IWI0) g
L96 a1 . 12 o - T 1 K] L 4 ST T . R T A
65% a - e lg 6 wo b4 e “aImynaudy 1
(&2) (1z) (0¢) (GIY] |0 @n (€19 (0] D &n )
pasLorduia (usurom) (uaury
$191{0%9} B0 osoadg SITpNIs soishy g | Anstuoyp | £3o101g EbliGloN] uoyBINPY | uolrONPI PRI
AU —ﬂaep RpOS 18ldUY) —dvmw%ﬂrm ——s_wh Yl

PONUNIUO)—99-COGT ‘$IDIN 68 W Poflujdud 8L0yoDo) MOU fo spuowuliiss y— ¢l WV,




ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION AMENDMENTS 1483

The 29 states reporting assignment information for their new teachers are
distributed as follows by the grouped percents of all new teachers in 1965-66
who were assigned to elementary-school grades:

Number

Percent of new teachers assigned to elementary grades : of states
65-69 ___ — 1
60-64 ___ _— — -1
55-59 __ - 6
50-54 e 9
45-49 - 6
4044 4
S=39 2
Total —_— - — — 29

An estimate of trends in the relative demand for new teachers between the
elementary- and high-school levels is provided by information reported by the
varying number of states in the earlier studies of this series. Summarized in
Table 16 are the total numbers of new teachers and the percents of these
teachers being assigned to elementary schools in the reporting states since 1948-49.
Also shown are the total numbers of public-school teachers in the United
States during these same years with the percent of all teachers who are assigned
duties in the elementary schools.

The information listed in column 6 of Table 16 shows a gradual reduction
during the past 18 years in the proportion of all public-school teachers being
assigned to elementary schools. This change is shown, also, among the percents
of new teachers being assigned to elementary schools in the reporting states.
The impact of the market growth in elementary-school enrollments between
1952-53 and 1957-58 is reflected in the increased percents during these years
shown in column 3. The influence of the increased annual growth in secondary-
school enrollments upon the demand for new teachers probably has contributed
to the lower proportions of new teachers being assigned to elementary schools
in recent years.

The percents of all new teachers being assigned to elementary schools in the
reporting states are consistently lower than the percents of all teachers in the
nation being assigned to elementary schools. These differences range from
2.6 to 8.0 with a median of 5.7 percentage points. The differences tend to be:
slightly lower during the period of marked growth in elementary-school staff
than in the earlier or following years.

If conditions in the reporting states are representative of the nation, the
information in Table 16 suggests that the relatively greater annual demand for
new (re-entering and beginning) teachers in elementary schools than for high
schools has been decreasing, and that during the past session the demand for
ntew elementary-school teachers was not widely different from the demand for
new secondary-school teachers.

These data reflect demand for teachers as defined by the Trend Criterion—
the demand which has been observed in the employment of new teachers. The
demand for new teachers bhased on the Quality Criterion during these years
has consistently called for greater numbers of qualified new teachers being
assigned to elementary schools than have been available for such assignment.
Possibly, these proportions of new teachers being assigned to elementary schools
might have been greater if the supply of qualified new teachers were equally
adequate at both levels.

Information in Table 26 shows that the educational qualifications of elemen-
tary-school teachers have been gradually improving. Also, there is evidence
that staffing ratios are improving at the elementary-school level. These data
suggest that educational leaders have been following a middle road between
two courses of action: (a) creation of the additional positions needed but
staffing them with marginally qualified personnel, with the result that the
number of teachers employed increases and the educational qualifications of
the staff as a whole improve very slowly, remain constant or deteriorate; or
(b) improvement of the educational qualifications of a minimum-size staff,
with deferment of the creation of new positions to improve staffing ratios
until the minimum standard of educational qualifications is reached among
members of the existing staff.
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TABLE. 16.—Relative demand for new elementary and high school teachers im
various States and percent of all public school teachers in elementary schools,
gince 1948-49

7
| Reporting States All public schools
i
Session | ‘ o
| Number | Percentin Number of Percent in
of new . elementary Number of States teachers elementary
teachers ¢ schools schools
3) 4) (5) (6)
!
104849 . 57.2 1 1887,175 4.5
194€-50_ ; FS 137 N D £ S, 913, 671 64.5
1950-31_ ..} ! 7.7 | 23 plus Alaska and 1938, 268 64. 4
i ‘I)_istrict of Colum-
, D14,
1951-52 . ... 45,658 ¢ 5.9 | 26 plus Alaska and 962, 864 64. 4
District of Colum-
bia.
1952-53 - o 45.859 6.4 |26 _ ... . 1997, 501 64.0
1953-54 . ... 5%, 010 60.9 | 29 plus Alaska and 1, 032,138 63.7
District of Colub-
bia.
196455 ... ... 54,875 60.1 | 30 plus District of 21, 068, 000 64.7
Columbia.
195556 oo 58,257 60.6 | 30 plus District of 31, 141, 000 64.2
Columbia.
1955-57 oo 62, 099 59.9 | 29 plus District of 21,199, 000 62.6
Columbia, Hawaii,
and Puerto Rico.
195739 0 oo 62,579 6.6 | 32 plus Alaska and 21,259, 000 62.4
District of Colum-
bia.
1958-59 . . .. ... 59, 651 54,4 30 plus Alaska, Ha- 21, 306, 000 62.4
| waii, District of
Columbia, and
Puerto Rico.
1959-60. ... 57,810 33.6 27 plus District of 2 1, 355, 000 61.4
Columbia.
1960-61_ .. oao... 59,115 55.7 | 26 plus District of 21, 408, 000 60.9
Columbia.
1661-62_ oo . £4,753 £3.1 ] 29 plus District of 2 1, 461, 000 59.5
Columbia.
1062-63_ . .. 53,162 53.5 | 24 plus District of 2 1, 508, 000 58.8
{ Columbia.
1963-64. ... ... 43, GIT 51.0 ' 22 plus District of 21, 578, 000 57.5
' i Columbia.
196465 .. ... 5%, 048 53.0 + 27 plus District of 21,651, 000 57.1
. i Columbia.
1€ 0590 . 79,955 | 5.5 ’ 29 e 31,716, 285 56. 4

1 Estimated from U.3. O1fice of Education, biennial surveys of education.

2 U.S. Department of fle:lti, Education. and Welfare: Office of Education. Projections of educational
statistics to 1974-75, 1965 edition. Cireular No. 790. Washington, D.C.: Government Printing Office,
1965: p. 30.

3.3, Department of [Tealth, Education, and Welfare; Office of Education.  Fall 1965 statistics of publie
schools. Washington, D.C.: Government Printing Office, 1966.; pp. 8-9.

The decreasing proportion of all teachers being assigned to elementary schools
and the gradual growth in the supply of potential beginning teachers (Table 22)
suggest that continued improvement will be observed in 1966-67 in both the
staffing ratios and the educational qualifications of the elementary-school
instructional staff. However, the increased levels of financial support for the
creation of the additional positions needed at the elementary-school level may
intensify the observahle characteristics of teacher shortages by encouraging
greater use of the first of the two courses of action described above.

Relative Demand for New Teachers Among High-8Bchool Subjeots, Adjusted
Trend Criterion Estimate

The assignments given to new high-school teachers reported in Table 15 provide

a review of the relative demand (Trend Criterion) among these subject areas.

The high-school subjects ranked by the number of persons involved in the demand

for new teachers are listed in Table 17. Also shown are projections of this dis-

tribution to the estimates of total demand based on the Adjusted Trend Criterion
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TABLE 1T.—Distribution of new teachers among high school subjects in 29 States
extimated national adjusted trend criterion estimate of demand for new
teachers in high school subjects

' Estimated demand in 1966
Fercent of
High school subjects new teachers
employed in For begin- For new
1965-66 ning teachers ®
teachers *
) ) @) €3}
English ____________ ... . ... - 19.8 [ 16,189 20, 590
Mathematies . ________ __ - 12.3 | 10, 057 12,791
Total natural and physical sciences._ - (12.0), (9, 811) (12, 479)
Socialstudies._.... = .77 - 11.5 9, 403 11,959
General science (and unspecified sciences).__ R 7.7 6, 296 8, 007
Other (subjects not listed) .. __________ - 7.2 5,887 7,487
Commeree ... _______ """ - 6.3 5,151 6, 551
Foreign languages... ... . - 17T 4.8 3,925 4,992
Home economics ... . _____ 7T 4.6 3, 761 4,783
Music.__._.___. .. 4.1 3,352 4,264
Physical education. 4.0 3,270 4,160
Physical education. 40 3,270 4,160
Industrialarts_..._ .. _________ T 3.4 2,780 3, 536
Biology.. ... T 2.4 1 1,962 2, 496
8 2.4 | 1,962 2, 496
Library science.... [ TTTTTTTmmeen 1.3 1,063 1,352
Agriculture ... .. T TTTTTTTTTTC 1.2 981 1,248
Chemistry_____.______ Tt 1.2 1 981 1,248
Speech..__._________ T T I i 0.9 736 936
Physies . Tt ; 0.7 572 728
Journalism...-__ 2" ____ 17T L T \ 0.2 | 163 208
Total ... .. | 100.0 i 81, 761 103, 992

* Based on an estimated need for 81,761 beginning teachers heing distributed nationally among the high

school subjects in the same proportions as noted in the employment of new teachers in 29 States in 1965-66.

Based on an estimated need for 103,992 new teachers heing distributed among high school subjects
nationally in the saine proportions as noted in the cmployment of new teachers in 29 States in 1965-66.

as a means of estimating the 1966 demand for new teachers by subject areas for
the nation.

The Adjusted Trend Criterion estimate of demand includes the addition of
20,000 high-school teachers as an outcome of the Elementary and Secondary Edu-
cation Act of 1965. Since it is not likely that these 20.000 positions are distrib-
uted among the subject areas in the same pattern as would be observed in normal
staff enlargement and replacement, the estimates of demand should be inter-
preted only in general terms.

The estimated numbers of new teachers needed in these subject areas provide
a background from which the comparative numerical importance of subjects
having a low ratio of supply to demand may be properly interpreted in coun-
seling and curriculum planning. For example. a moderately low supply-demand
ratio in English has far wider numerical implications than a much lower ratio
in chemistry, speech, or physics.

Combination Assignments

In a given high school the number of class sections needed in each subject and
the number of sections which might be available if all teachers were assigned
classes only in the subjects in which they have greatest competence and interest
often do not occur in balance. In these situations some teachers are asked to
teach in one of the deficit subject areas as a minor portion of their full assign-
ments. These combination assignments are made usually for only one school
year, with both the characteristics of school offerings and staff competencies
changing each year.

However, the size of the typical high school and the structure of its subject
offerings often dictate combination assignments to teachers of subjeets which
have relatively few sections. For example. many schools may not have the exact
number of sections in physies to provide full-time assignment of the physics
teacher(s) in this subject. Where these combination patterns are ohserved
rather widely, the expectation of teachers being assigned these combinations has
implications to training programs for new teachers.



TABLE 18.— Percents of new teachers having their complete assignments in subject area, and major subject area combination assignments, reported

by 29 States

Combinations involving about 5 percent or more of the number of teachers having an assignment in the subject

The subject below is major

Number | Percent
of having 2
teachers | complete
having assign- The subject in col. 1 is major
Subject area anassign-f ment | ___ U
ment in | in the
the sub-| subject | Per- Subject Per- Subject
ject cont cent
(1) (2) @A) 4) (8) (6) ]
Agriculture_..... ... 493 75.3 | 5.5 | General science_... 4.9 | Industrintarts.___ _ .
Arto_.... ... 1,055 79.0 (- ol . e
Commerce. 2,728 76.7 |- . - . F
English._ ... 9,155 61.9 | 8.2 | Social studies. 5.1 | Foreign languages.._. |-
Foreign languages 2,527 55.0 | 12.3 | English___ e e
Home economics_ 1,928 255 U PR U -
Industrial arts_ 1, 450 .- R
ITome economics. 1,928 . - -
Journalism. . .__ .. R 195
Library science - 625
Mathematics_ . 5, 555
Musie_ ... ... 1,731
Health and physical edu- 2,206
cation, men.
Health and physical edu- 1,808 e
cation, women.
R 4,098 53.3 1 5.4 | Mathematies_._____.____/.._.._ I
_ 1, 415 X 3 General science. .. 8.3 | Chemistry. -
- 834 5.5 | Mathematics.
Physics.-...... . 633 . d
Social sciences- R 6,201 I -
790 English. Other_
3,668 | B7.0 || i e o

Subject

@

Per-
cont

10

Subject

()

Total
percent
being ac-
counted
for in
these
groups

(12)

Mathmatics___ .- ..

General science.
Other sciences . _

English_
d

R

~100 ~I~J00 =100 ~J ~I=~100
SRSV pSrron

o
SRR s b
NN 0= O =D NO N

112.3 percent physics, 10 percent general science, 7 percent biology.
t glology, 8.6 percent general science, 7.1 percent physics.

7 14.1 percen

19.3 percent chemistry, 6.3 percent general science.
416.3 percent chemistry, 7.7 percent general science, 6.2 percent biology.

SINAWANTWY NOILLVONdd XYVANODIS ANV A¥VINIIWNITI ORF1



ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION AMENDMENTS 1487

Table 18 provides a summary of the relative extent to which new teachers have
their full assignments in the subject area, and the combination assignments
noted for at least 5 percent of all persons having an assignment in a given subject
area. The percents of new teachers having their complete teaching assignment
in one of the listed subject areas range from 9.2 percent in physics to 86.5 percent
in musie. Subject areas in which new teachers are most likely to have their
complete assignment in the subject include music, home economics, art, industrial
arts, and commerce.

Subject areas in which teachers are least likely to be assigned full time in the
subject include physics, journalism, chemistry, and speech. For example, the
new physics teacher is likely to have a combination assignment which includes
either mathematics or one of the other sciences. Also, the physics combination
most frequently reported includes physics as a minor assignment with mathe-
matics being a major subject assignment. Accuracy of data about the specific
subjects within the sciences is reduced by the reporting of all sciences in the
general science category by some states.

TABLE 19.—Percent distributions of all secondary school teachers by subject
area, spring 1965, and of new high school teachers in selected years

Range in estimated Percent of new teachers having complete or
percent of all teachers, major assignment
1964-65
Subject
Low Per- High 1948~ 1952- 1956~ 1960~ 1964- 1965~
—1SEt| cent | +1SE 49 53 87 61 65 66
1) (2) 6] 4) %) (6) (7) (8) 9) 10

Agriculture. 1.4 1.9 2.9 2.9 2.0 1.2 1.0 1.2
Art.___ 2.6 3.2 2.3 1.9 2.4 2.1 2.3 2.4
Comme: 6.5 7.4 8.0 9.1 8.1 6.8 6.7 6.3
English 16.9 17.0 17.0 19. 4 21.1 19.8
English language arts_______ 18.5 18.4 18.1 20.8 21.9 20.9
Foreign language (total). ... 2.5 2.1 2.1 4.2 5.3 4.8
Home economics...._...__.. 7.7 9.0 7.3 5.5 4.7 4.6
Industrial arts. . 4.7 4.8 4.5 3.3 3.7 3.4
Journalism_.___ . 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.2
Library science. - . 1.3 1.6 1.3 1.5 1.5 1.3
Mathematics. - . 9.3 7.8 9.0 12.1 12.7 12.3
Musie. ... .. ___ 6.8 7.5 6.7 4.4 4.4 4.1

Physical and health educa-
tion._.____.___ .\ T.4| 84| 94 | .| .
Men_____ . 6.8 6.2 6.1 4.4 3.9 4.0
Women. . 3.6 3.9 4.0 3.8 4.0 4.0
Science (total). . 13.0 11.2 10.1 12.8 11.4 12.0
QGeneral science 3. 7.0 6.7 6.1 7.3 7.3 7.7
Biology___ .. __ 3.1 2,2 2.2 3.4 2.5 2.4
Chemistry.. 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.3 1.2 1.2
Physies.___________________} _______ 1.4 1.0 0.7 0.8 0.4 0.7
Social studies_ . 12.6 12.0 11.2 13.0 12.4 1.5
Speech___________________ .\ ___ .l 1.4 1.2 1.0 1.2 0.7 0.9
Other (specify)__ LT P, 1.6 7.1 4.1 4.1 7.2
Special education . _ - . . PO PR PO,
High school total____ . . 100.0 111.8 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Number of states reporting.| (%) (%) (¢} 21 i (% (W) 8) 29

1 Range of +:1SE allows a confidence interva! of about 68 percent.

2 Includes vocational teachers.

3 Includes all sciences where not subdivided.

4 Alaska and Hawaii also included, also 26 States and the District of Columbia,

5 Hawail and Puerto Rico also included, also 29 States and the District of Columbia.

¢ Nationwide sample,

726 States plus the District of Columbia.

827 States plus the District of Columbia.

Source: NEA Research Memo 1966-2. Estimated numbers of secondary school teachers in specifie
subject field. January 1966.

The summary in column 12 of Table 18, suggests that the major assignment
subjects in which new teachers having combination assignments are most likely
to have widely divergent combination assignments may include biology, general
science, social sciences, other subjects not listed, and physical education (men).
Also, the subject areas in which the teacher is most likely to have either his full
assignment or the widely observed combinations include chemistry, physics,
library science, musie, foreign languages, and agriculture.
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These assignment patterns were observed when there were shortages of new
teachers in mathematics, physical sciences, English, foreign languages, industrial
arts. and agriculture. These shortages may have required the combination
assignment of these subjects to a larger proportion of teachers than would be
observed at a time when supply and demand are in better balance.

Trends in Relative Demand Among High-School Subjects Based on the Trend
Criterion

Information from a sawpling survey of teachers conducted by the NEA Re-
search Division in 1965-66 provides an estimate, with sampling variability, of
the proportions of secondary-school teachers having their major assignment in
each subject area. The annual summaries of reports from a varying number of
states showing the number of new high-school teachers being employed in each
major subject area provide an annual estimate of the proportion of new high-
school teachers assigned to each subject area. The estimates based on these
state reports reflect the trend criterion since they include the number of positions
actually filled by new teachers rather than the number needing to be filled in
order to attain the minimum standards of quality in staffing characteristics.

A summary of the estimated distribution of all secondary-school teachers by
subject area in 1964—63 and of all new high-school teachers in the reporting
states in selected years is given in Table 19. Precise comparisons of the percent
distributions are not feasible owing to differences in the numbers of states
reporting and the difference in the practice of counting librarians as classroom
teachers. However, the general pattern of the distribution among high-school
subjects for all teachers in 1964-65 and among the new teachers that session
suggests that the relative demand for new teachers is almost in the same pro-
portion as the total number of teachers assigned among the several subject areas.

The percents of new teachers assigned to a subject area are within the range
of =2 standard errors of the estimated percent of all high-school teachers in the
same subject obtained from the sample survey. The percent of new teachers in
1961-65 exceeds one standard error from the estimated percent of all teachers
that year only in the foreign languages. music. and social studies.

Small changes in the relative demand for new teachers in high schools are
suggested by information from the reporting states since 1948-49. The propor-
tion of new high-school teachers has been decreasing somewhat in agriculture,
home economics. industrial arts, and music. Slight increases in the proportion
of new high-school teachers are noted in English, foreign languages, mathe-
matics, and subjects not listed in the survey form.

III. SuPPLY COMPARED WITH DEMAND FOR NEW TEACHERS

Estimates of the supply of teacher education graduates prepared to enter
teaching positions in 1966 and estimates of the number of teaching positions
to be filled by these graduates have been presented separately in Sections I and
II of this report. A comparison of the numbers of positions included in these
estimates provides a general indication of the adequacy of the present supply of
heginning teachers and identifies the fields of specialization in which the esti-
mated number of beginning teachers in supply and demand are out of balance.
Also provided in this section are estimates of the status of the current supply
of beginning teachers ax compared with conditions in earlier years.

SUPPLY OF GRADUATES COMPARED WITH DEMAND (TCE)

The nun:ber of new teachers emploved and the number of graduates of teacher
preperation pregrams in the reporting states provide an estimate of the status
of the supply compared with demand based on the Trend Criterion.

Information abont the number of new teachers in 1963 and their assignments
reported by 29 states was summarized in Table 15 in the preceding section. The
toral number of new teachers and the number of persons completing teacher
education programs in these sawme 20 states in 1963 are listed in Table 20 in the
same subject grouping. Caution should be used in analyzing the data contained
in Table 20 since the number of prospective teachers being educated in a given
state may not represent the actual supply of beginning teachers for the state
because of nonresident gradunates and migration of resident graduates. Also
limiting the accuracy of comparisons hased on these figures is the possibility that
experienced former teachers may be in great supply, or demand. in some sub-
jects than in others. This would modify the estimated relative demand for
beginning teachers to fill the positlons listed as being filled by new teachers.
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'TABLE 20.—Comparison of the total number of teacher education graduates with
the number of new teachers employed in 29 States, 1965-66
‘ |

Total num- | Potential

ber of i Number of ‘ supply as

Subject teacher | new teachers  Difference percent of

education employed demand

graduates
1) (2) 3) 4) (5)

Elementary__ 30, 596 40, 395 75.7
High school _ _ 51, 657 39, 560 130. 68
Agriculture - 0% 459 173.9
Arto_ . - 1,776 857 183.7
Commerce . 4,033 2,508 160. 8
English____ - - 8,213 7,838 104.8
Foreign languages._ - 2,372 1,896 125.1
Home economics. . - 3,146 1,823 172.6
Industrial arts_ - 1,589 1,345 118.1
Journalism.___ - 68 63 i 107.9
Library science - 320 526 | i 60.8
Mathematies. - 3.945 4,868 ! ! 810
Musie 3,038 1,623 186.6
Physical education—men. R 4,408 1, 563 282.0
Physical education—women________ - 2,148 1, 563 137. 4
Total natural and physical sciences._ - 4,275 4,724 90.5
General science. - ______._._____ - 1,309 3,033 43.2
Biology...___.__ - 2,317 945 245.2
Chemistry. - 503 481 104.6
Physics - 146 265 55.1
Social studies - 8,910 4,536 196. 4
Speech.____ - 1,537 373 412.1
- 1,631 2,880 37.5

TaBLE 21.—Teacher education graduates as percent of neiw teachers employed

in selected States, j-year intervals since 1948-49

Percent of new teachers represented by number of teacher
education graduates
Level and subject
1948-49 1952-53 1956-57 1960-61 1964-65 1965-66
[eY] @) 3 (€] ] (6) (7)
Elementary____.___________________________ 29.7 55.6 48.0 58.2 70.3 75.7
Highschool, total_________________________ 111.7 131.7 111. 4 119.1 131.3 130.6
Agricultare___________________________ 136.6 163. 8 163.9 184.3 176.8 173.9
S o AR - 117.1 264.5 139.5 154. 4 165. 4
Commerce._ - 103.0 147.1 134.2 158.5 168. 7
English.___________ 95.8 105.9 73.0 3.7 95.9
TForeign languages_ . 171.1 213.3 120.1 76.1 106. 6
Home economics . 114.6 137.9 3 141.7 170.6
Industrial arts __ 103. 9 166. 5 23.5 169. 0 121.3
Journalism____ . 103.3 82.1 78.4 59.2 93.8
Library science - 65.5 69. 6 35.0 27,9 39.1
Mathematies . - 73.6 108. 8 58.2 73.1 79.6
Musie. ... 105.9 164.9 127.2 174.5 1710
Physical education (men)_ 148.1 278.9 185.0 286. 0 283.0
Physical education (wornen). 138.6 169. 6 126.3 117.0 128.7 .4
Greneral science. 62.3 79. 4 54.8 67.8 50.7 3.2
Biology._.__ 114.8 270.9 199.3 143. 3 24A.2 .2
Chemistry 135.9 1 200. 0 107.8 107.3 112.2 .6
Physics._ ... 63.1 ] 120.1 80.2 79.3 119.0 .1
Social studies - 157.1 207.3 164.1 153.1 186.4 .4
Speech_.____ 126.2 ’ 313. 8 256.9 260.8 469. 5 412.1
Other 246.7 40.8 73.6 87.0 37.5
Number of States reporting_______________ 21 ! 126, 2321 326 327 20

1 Plus Alaska, Hawaii, and the District of Columbia.

2 Plus Alaska and the District of Columbia,
3 Plus the District of Columbia.
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The information in Table 20 shows that the areas in which the supply of
beginning teachers is least adequate include elementary-school teaching, high-
school subjects other than those surveyed, high-school mathmematies, high-
school sciences, library science, and high-school English. If the entire class
of teacher education graduates in these states entered teaching, the supply of
beginning teachers in these subjects would not exceed the demand for new teach-
ers by as many as 15 percent. Differences in the method for reporting persons
being trained in the natural and physical sciences field without specific subject
endorsements and in the reporting of persons assigned specific subjects within
this field make the summary of supply-demand relationships in the specific sub-
jects comprising the sciences very questionable.

Subjects in which the supply of teacher education graduates in these states
is more than twice as great as the number of positions being filled by new
teachers include physical education (men) and high-school speech.

TRENDS OF SUPPLY AND DEMAND (TCE) IN REPORTING STATES

Information in Table 21 provides an estimate of trends in supply and demand
conditions as observed in the reporting states since 194849 in four-year inter-
vals. The table shows that the supply of qualified beginning elementary-school
teachers has been rising toward, but has not reached, the level of demand (Trend
Criterion). Mathematics, which comprises 8 to 10 percent of the new high-
school teachers, also has consistently been in relatively low supply in these
selected vears. General science and physics, together involving about 8 per-
cent of new teachers, have been in relatively short supply (the proportion in
physics has wide variation owing to the small number of persons involved).
The margin of supply of chemistry teachers has been decreasing. English, in-
volving 18 to 20 percent of the new high-school teachers seems to be in better
relative supply now than in earlier years, but the margin of supply is not as
wide as in some other high-school subjects. Library science, involving 1 to 2
percent of the new high-school teachers, has been in relatively short supply
continuously through these years studied. Industrial arts, involving ‘between
3 and 5 percent of the new high-school teachers, has been in relatively lower
supply than has been observed in earlier years.

FIcUre IV
Teacher education graduates as percent of all teachers. annually since 1955-56,
by level
- Elementary L - Secondary
;’,4»: - ~
Percent of SO
8ll teachers - . 15.0
— 4. . . 4.
15 . 1.1 13.7 16.1 13.6 3

10

1955- 1956~ - 1958~ 1939- 1960~ 1961~ 1962- 1903~ 1954~ 1965-
56 57 58 39 60 ol 02 53 H4 e5 66




ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION AMENDMENTS 1491

SUPPLY OF BEGINNING TEACHERS COMPARED WITH TOTAL NUMBER
OF TEACHERS EMPLOYED

An estimate of the present status of teacher supply and demand may be pro-
vided by a comparison over several years between the number of prospective
teachers being graduated and the total number of teachers employed. Allow-
ance should be given to changes in the influence of annual growth of the teach-
ing staff and differences in the proportion of teachers leaving the profession.
Normally the proportion of the total number of teachers represented by the
number of graduates completing teacher education would not be expected to
vary widely if the new supply is keeping pace with a steady enlargement of the
demand for beginning teachers.

Shown in Table 22 are the percents of the total number of teachers repre-
sented by the number of teacher education graduates ready for entry each year
since 1955-56. During these years of marked growth in the size of the total
staff, the number of prospective teachers has represented a gradually increasing
proportion of the total staff size. A slight moderation in this proportion oc-
curred at the high-school level in 1961-62, a year having a marked increase in
the growth of the secondary-school staff.

SUPPLY OF NEW TEACHERS COMPARED WITH DEMAND (QCE)

Two estimates of the supply of new teachers compared with the estimated
demand for new teachers based on the Quality Criterion are shown on page 47:

TABLE 22.—Estimates of the total number of teachers and the number of teacher
education graduates ready for employment each year since 1955-56

Elementary Secondary
) Teacher education grad- Teacher education grad-
Session uates of previous yvear uates of previous year
Total . - Total o
teachers teachers 7
Number | Percent of Number | Percent of
total total
1) (2) 3) 4) (5) (6) @)

1955-56___ . _______ - 733, 000 37,712 5.1 408, 000 49, 697 12.2
1956-57__ 751, 000 40, 801 5.4 447, 000 56, 785 12.7
1957-58 __ 786, 000 44, 029 5.6 473, 000 65, 062 13.8
1958-59 815, 000 45,318 5.3 491, 000 69, 093 14.1
1959-60_________.______ 832, 000 47, 836 5.7 524, 000 71, 585 13.7
1960-61_ ... _________ - 858, 000 52, 630 6.1 550, 000 77,573 14.1
1961-62_ . _________ 869, 000 51, 866 6.0 592, 000 77.322 13.1
1962-63____________ . . ___ 886, 000 57, 854 6.5 621, 000 84,489 13.6
196364 . ______ 908, 000 61,979 6.8 669, 000 96, 378 14. 4
196465 . ____________ 940, 000 72, 581 .7 708, 000 101, 552 14.3
1965-66_.__ 968, 000 77,773 8.0 749, 000 112, 436 15.0
Estimate, 1 1, 019, 000 76, 304 7.5 793, 000 124, 615 15.7

INEA Research Division preliminary estimate plus 50,000 new teachers estimated to be added as an
eflect of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (adjusted trend criterion estimate).

Source of staff size: U.S. Department of Health, Education, and Welfare, Office of Education, ‘“Projections
of Educational Statistics to 1974-75.” Circular No. 790. Washington, D.C.: Government Printing Office,
1965. Table 21 corrected for 1965 data (fall staff size including number of part-time teachers).
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Supply aud demand for heginning feachers, by level and subjeet, adjusted frend criferion estimate
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Number of teachers

Elementary Secondary Total
Estimated demand fquality eriterion). ... ______ .. __ 232,537 | 131,065 364, 503
Estimated supply (past practice) ! 90,715 : 104,525 195, 240

Shortage A___________
Estimated supply (potential

Shortage B ___ . ...

! Reenitry of foriner te
into teaching by &1
by 66 percent oi t

2 Reentry of foriner
into teaching by 85 peve
75 pereent of teacher educaiion

whevs vquai to 3 percent of the nuiaber of full-time teachers in fall 1965. Entry
1L of teaener education graduarcs prepared for elementary selinol teaching and
dion gradustes

prepared for iigh seliool teaching.

cent of the number of full-time teuchers in fall 1965. Entry
et gradiietes preparsd for eleimentary sehieol teaching and by
aduates prepured Lr high sehool teaching,

The first estimate of the supply of new teachers (past practice) uses the same
assumptions about the levels of teacher re-entry and entry of reacher education
graduates into the profession as described in Section 1. This provides an esti-
mate of the number of new teachers who will be available for employment if
general conditions remain about the same as observed in recent years.

The second estimate (potential supply) is based on a hypothesis that if the
total QCE demand for new teachers were resulting in vacancies to be filled in the
fall of 1966, the levels of re-entry of former teachers and entry of teacher educa-
tion graduates may rise to higher levels than has been observed in recent years.
Evidence from the years of critical shortage of teachers suggests that these
changes in entry rates are not likely to ocecur.

The two estimates show a shortage of 140,000 to 170,000 teachers with the need
being critical at the elementary-school level. It is difficult to estimate the num-
bers of qualified teachers who may be available for entry in the event that
schools were financially able and had the facilities to employ the 364.500 persons
estimated in the demand for new teachers. Therefore, these shortage estimates
should be interpreted only in general terms.

SUPPLY COMPARED WITH DEMAND (ATCE) FOR BEGINNING TEACHERS

A very general estimate of the status of teacher supply and demand in 29 states
in 1965 is provided in Tables 20 and 21. The problem of nonresident enrollments
and migration has reduced the precision of estimates of the supply of beginning
teachers for this group of states. If it ix assumed that these 20 states are rep-
resentative of the nation in the pattern of demand for new teachers among the
subject fields, this pattern may be used with the national estimated demand for
beginning teachers to obtain a national estimate of demand which is comparable
with the national summary of the supply of beginning teachers by subject areas.

Listed in Table 23 are the estimated numbers of beginning teachers who will
be available for entry into classrooms this fall, and the estimated demand for
beginning teachers and new teachers based on the Adjusted Trend Criterion.
The estimates of demand are based on an assumption that the average rates of
teacher turnover and re-entry are equally applicable among the subject areas.
In subjects in which the rate of teacher separation is about average and the
re-entry rate is lower than average, the demand for beginning teachers, would
be greater than the level estimated. For example, the supply of qualified per-
sonnel in the pool of former teachers may not be as adequate in some subjects
as in others. In the subjects having a relatively limited supply of qualified
former teachers the demand for beginning teachers would be increased. While
precise data are not available, the limited information about sex-related differ-
ences in re-entry rates suggests that the demand for beginning teachers may be
nearer the demand for new teachers among the subject fields in which men con-
stitute the predominant proportion of the teaching staff than in those in which
married women constitute the predominant proportion. Therefore, while the
entries in column 3 of Table 23 show the midpoint of the range of estimated de-
mand for beginning teachers, the actual demand for beginning teachers in some
subjects may deviate toward the demand for new teachers shown in column 4.

Also, changes in the general status of employment opportunities for persouns
having the college degree may influence the turnover and re-entry rate observe(
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in earlier years. The increased availability of positions in other occupations
and the higher economic rewards of many of these positions may increase the
loss to the profession of teachers presently employed as well as former teachers
who would ordinarily be considering re-entry into the profession. This general
economic condition may increase the demand for beginning teachers toward the
levels estimated as the demand for both re-entering and beginning teachers,
listed in column 4 of Table 23.

The estimates of the demand for teachers are based on the Adjusted Trend
Criterion which includes the addition of 50,000 teachers expected to be employed
as a result of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965. The esti-
mated 20,000 new teachers to be added at the secondary-school level are not like-
1y to be distributed among the subjects in the same proportions as have been ob-
served in recent years in the assignments of new teachers. It may be more
likely that larger proportions of these new teachers will be assigned duties in the
English language arts. mathematics, “other” subjects, natural and physiecal
sciences, industrial arts, homemaking, and fine arts than would be observed if
the demand were created by normal staff enlargement and teacher turnover.
Therefore. the estimates of demand in these subjects (Table 23) may be lower
than the actual conditions while the estimates in other subjects may be higher
than actual conditions.

TABLE 23.—Comparison of the estimated supply of beginning teachers with the
adjusted trend criterion estimate of demand for beginning teachers and for
new teachers in 1966, by level and high school subject

Difference hetween supply and demand

Estimated ~ Estimated Estimated For beginning For new teachers
supply of | demand ;| demand teachers
Level and subject beginning * for begin- | for new
teachers ! ning teachers 3
teachers ? ! Supply Supply
: : i Number | asper- | Number . as per-
. | cent of cent of
: | demand , demand
) L@ - *) (6) @ ®
i
Elementary. ... 61,959 99, 636 128,392 | —37,677 62.2 | —66,433 48.3
High school (total). 82,204 481,761 4103, 992 +533 100.7 | —21,698 79.1
Agriculture_ .. ... 643 ! 981 1,248 —338 65.5 —605 51.5
Arto oo -~ - 3,424 1,962 2,496 41, 462 174.5 +-928 137.2
Commerce. - 4,735 5,151 6, 551 ~—416 91. 9 —1,816 72.3
English. ...~ - 14, 202 16, 189 20, 590 —1,987 87.7 —6, 388 69.0
Foreign language: - 4,894 3,925 4,992 ) +969 124.7 —98 98.0
Home economics. .. __! 3,812 3,761 4,783 ! +51 101. 4 —971 79.7
Industrial arts. - 2,927 2,780 3,536 | +147 105.3 —609 82.8
Journalism_._.. - 79 163 208 . —84 48.5 —129 38.0
Library science - 593 1,063 1,352 | —470 55.8 —759 43.9
Mathematics. - 7.129 10, 057 12,791 —2,928 70.9 -5, 662 55.7
Music - 4,534 3,352 4,264 -+1, 182 135.3 +270 106.3
Physical education,
P T | DU . 6, 187 3,270 4,160 . 42,917 189.2 | +2,027 148.7
Physical education, |
WOMeN. . oooe- ! 4,004 3,270 4,160 | +734 122. 4 —156 9.3
Physical and natural | !
sciences. .- - P 7.312 9,811 12, 479 —2, 499 4.5 —5,167 58.6
Social sciences. - 13,370 9, 403 11,959 +3, 967 142.2 +1, 411 111.8
Speech._._. - \ 2,283 736 936 +1, 547 310.2 +1, 347 243.9
Other_ ... _—--e-- ‘ 2,166 5,887 7,487 | —3,721 36.8 | —5,321 28.9

1 Based on an assumption that the proportions of 1965 teacher education graduates entering teaching
positions by Nov. 1, 1965, in the 29 reporting States will be observed nationally in 1966-67.

s Based on the increase in the total number of teachers to be employed in 196667, including the Elemen-
tary and Secondary Education Act of 1965, added to an expectation that beginning teachers will be needed
to fill vacancies created by the departure of 5 percent of the teachers employed in the fall of 1965 whose
positions are not taken by rerurning former teachers. Included in these estimates is a continuation of the
trends in reduetion of the number of teachers having substandard certification or overcrowded classes, and
general improvement of staffing ratios. .

3 Based on the increase in the total number of teachers to be employed in 1966-67 added to the number
of vacant positions created by the departure of 8 percent of the teachers in the fall of 1965. Included in
these estimates, also, is a continuation of the trends toward general improvement of staff qualifications and
working conditions as observed in recent years. ) )

« Estimated demand among high school subjects based on the percent distribution of new teachers
assigned to these subjects in the 29 States which reported this information for 1965-66.
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TABLE 24.—Summary of estimated supply compared with the adjusted trend
criterion estimate of demand for beginning teachers in 1966, clenientary school
and high school subject areas by rank

|
Estimated | Numerical difference ‘ Median
supply of | in estimated supply | percent of
beginning of beginning | teacher
teachers | teachers and . education
as percent |\ estimated demand | graduates
Level or subject area of for— | “entering General condition
estimated ! the
demand : | profession
for Beginning New during
beginning teachers | teachers ' the past
teachers i 5 vears
1
o) @ ® 1 ) ®) ®)
|
Elementary school ________________ 62.2 —37,677 f —66, 433 82.0 Critical shortage.
High school: I
English . - 87.7 —1,987 |  —6,388 70.9 : Shortage.
Mathem: . - 70.9 —2,928 ‘ —5. 662 74.0 Do.2
Other subjects 1. ... __________ 36.8 —3,721 —5,321 60. 2 Do.
Total natural and physical '
sciences. ... .. . ... 74.5 —2,499 -5, 617 67.1 Do.2
Commerce. . ... 91.9 —416 —1,816 62.6 . Low supply.
Home economies_ __.____.__..__ 101. 4 51 —971 65.2 ; Do.
Library science_.____..________ 55.8 —470 —759 74.5 ! Do.
Industrial arts......______..__ 105.3 147 —609 72.2 Do.2
Agriculture . ___._____ 65.5 —33% —605 54.1 | Near balance.?
Physical education (women) __ 122.4 734 —156 80.1 | Do.
Journalism.___________________ 48.5 —8&4 —129 47.7 Do
Foreign languages 124.7 969 —98 70.9 Do.
Music 135.3 1,182 270 20.1 Do.
Art_._ 174.5 1, 462 928 66.8 | Adequate supply.
Speech 310. 2 1, 547 1, 347 61.4 Do.®
Social studies 142.2 3,967 1,411 63.6 Do.
Physical education (ien) 189. 2 2,917 2,027 66. 3 i Do.?

1 Where specified, other subjects include special education, guidance and counseling, junior high school,
vocational subjects, distributive education, and psychology.

2 Supply may be less adequate than shown owing to the high proportion of men teachers.

3 Should be considered in combination with English.

The range of error in the assumptions leading to these estimates of supply and
demand for beginning teachers requires that the numerical data be interpreted
only in general terms. Therefore, the numerical differences provide only an
indication of the comparative impact of supply and demand conditions in the
various subject areas.

A summary of the ranked placement of the subject areas of teacher prepara-
tion in terms of the estimated condition of the supply and demand for beginning
teachers is given in Table 24. The rankings are based on the numerical dif-
ference between the estimated supply of beginning teachers and the estimated
demand for beginning teachers and for new (beginning and re-entering) teachers.
Also shown are two additional types of information which may be used to inter-
pret the relative rankings. The percent of demand for beginning teachers repre-
sented by the supply of beginning teachers shows the adequacy of the supply of
beginning teachers if the re-entry rate of qualified former teachers were equally
observed among the subject areas. The median proportion of qualified graduates
entering the profession during the past five years provides an indication of the
possible availability of qualified persons from earlier graduating classes. The
size of these pools of qualified beginning teachers may be least adequate in the
subject areas having the highest proportions of graduates entering the profession
immediately subsequent to their graduation. For example, since a relatively
high proportion (80.1 percent) of women graduates prepared to teach physical
education typically enter the profession immediately following their graduation,
little growth would be expected in the pool of potential beginning teachers from
recent graduating classes. At the other extreme, annual enlargement of a pool
of qualified potential beginning teachers is likely in journalism and in agricul-
ture where about half of the graduates typically enter the profession immediately
following graduation. )

The summary in Table 24 shows that based on the Adjusted Trend Criterion
Estimate of demand the shortage of new teachers is continuing at the elementary-
school level, in mathematies, in English, and in the total natural and phvsiq-;nl
sceinces. Also, there is a shortage of teachers in the subject areas whi('.h are
becoming more widespread as instructional assignments in the publie schools
(remedial subjects, special education, guidance and counseling, psychologists,

75-402—67—pt. 2——43
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distributive education, junior high-school subjects, etc.). Limited supply com-
pared with demand is continuing in industrial arts and is observed in commerce,
home economics, and library science. Ilocal shortages may be observed in agricul-
ture, women's physical education, foreign languages, and music, in which the

national supply is estimated to be almmost in balance with the demand. The

pattern of increased demand for teachers being created by the Elementary and
qecondarv Education Act of 1965 may make the actual demand for new teachers
greater than the estimated levels in several subject areas.

TaBLE 25.—Comparison of the estimated supply of new and beginning teachers
with three estimates of demand

New teachers (total beginning and Beginning teachers
reentering teachers)

Level and criterion for ! ; \

estimate i | Supply i | Supply
Supply Demand, Differ- . as per- | Supply ‘Demand  Differ- | as per-
ence cent of 3 ence - cent of
! 'demand . ‘demand
I
1) @ W@ €3] ()] (6) ) 9

1
i
Elementary school: ; '
\

Trend criterion...___.___ 90,715~ 98,392 7.67 2, 2 61,959

Adjusted trend criterion.] 90,715 © 128,392 ' —37 677 0.7 61,959 99 636 | —37,677 62.2

Quality criterion_________| 90,715 ' 232, 537 ' —141,822 39.0 61, 959 r’03 781 '—141,822 30. 4
High school: . i

Trend eriterion__________ . 83,992 ' 120, 533 124. 4 61,761 . +20, 533 133.3

Adjusted trend criterion_ 103,992 ¢ +533 ° 100.5 81,761 --533 100.7

Quality criterion________. 131,966 . —27,441 . 79.2 1 109,735 | —27, 441 75.0

69, 636 l —7,677 89.0

|

1

!

|

i

Total: ' | |
|

Trend criterion.__. In2, 384 . 107.0 | 144,253 . 131,397 = -+12, S.,G 109.8
Adjusted trend cr L2400 232, 3%4 ¢ 84,0 | 144,253 | 181,397 | —37,1 79.5
Quality criterfon___._____ 195,240 364, 503 4-109 263 | 53.6 0

| | 144,253 ’ 313, 516 1—169 263 46.
I

FiGtre VI

Estimates of supply of teacher education graduates expected to enter teaching
and demand for heginning teachers, 1966-67

Number of
teacher.,
(thousands) SECONDARY
229 -
1
i
200 T
189 -[~
160 4
120 +
120 4
o 4
30+
i
o
-1
i
y
- T
)1
Continue Adijust- Achieve
trends ment of minimum
in rccent tiends quality
vostair- vears for ESEA in staff-
ing char- ing char-
acteris- acteris-
tics tics
3 (&————— DEMAND — — )
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SUMMARY OF COMPARISONS BETWEEN ESTIMATES OF TEACHER SUPPLY
AND DEMAND

Table 25 summarizes the ¢omparisons between the estimated supply of new
teachers and the three estimates of demand for new teachers. The estimated
supply of new elementary-school teachers is lower than each of the three esti-
mates of demand. The estimated total supply of new high-school teachers is
about equal to the demand projected by Trend Criterion estimate and the
Adjusted Trend Criterion estimate, but ix inadequate to meet the require-
ments of the Quality Criterion estituate.  However, shortages are observed in
English, mathemntics, subjects not listed on the survey forms, and in the total
flelds of natural and physical sciences. Low supply is noted in commnercee,
home economics, library science. and industrial arts. Intensification of short-
ages in some of these fields and creation of shortages in the fine arts may
result from the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1967,

Chairman Perxrxs. Who is our next witness this morning ?

Mr. Tapasst. My name is Peter Libassi. T am Special Assistant
to the Secretary of ITEWW for Civil Rights.

Chairman Prrsizs. Who is in charge of the working down there /
Are vou working ou the guidelines?

Mr. Lasasst. Yes, siv: T am the Chie! Adviser 1o 1 Secretary of
the Department on overall policies including the school guidelines.

Chairman Perkixs. Introduce the other people at the table with
you.

Mr. Lipasst Onomy left ix M=, Ruby Martin who is the Special
Assistant for Education in the Office of the Secretary, Mr. Derrick
Bell who is the Deputy Special Assistant for Civil' Rights to the
Secretary. and Mr. Fdward Yonrman, the Assisti General Counsel
for Civil Rights in the Department.

Chairman Perxixs. As chairman of the committee I will recoghize
that the House Committee on the Judiciary has the primary respon-
sibility and jurisdiction in the area of ¢ivil rights but nevertheless
I am quite cognizant of the fact that so mauy Menthers in the ITouse
of Representatives are concerned about the administration of the pro-
gram in that area, just how the guidelines are working at the present
time, the number of school districts in certain Southern States that
have not taken advantage of the program under title I because of
the guidelines and at the same time 1 am quite cognizant of the court
decisions,

I would certainly like for the Office of Education to give us an anal-
ysis of the school districts that are not benefiting and whether the
States are in your judgment going along with the guidelines and if
not to what extent, and if they are failing to cooperate.

I would like to get this data in the record because I personally feel
that by and large the Office of Education has done an excellent job
in working with the States in connection with the administration of
title I and that the States have cooperated to a wonderful degree in
taking advantage of these programs.

I think we should get in the record the exact studies and just what
these guidelines are at the present time.
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STATEMENT OF F. PETER LIBASSI, SPECIAL ASSISTANT TO THE
SECRETARY OF HEW FOR CIVIL RIGHTS, ACCOMPANIED BY MRS.
RUBY MARTIN, SPECIAL ASSISTANT FOR EDUCATION; DERRICK
BELL, DEPUTY SPECIAL ASSISTANT FOR CIVIL RIGHTS; AND
EDWARD YOURMAN, GENERAL COUNSEL FOR CIVIL RIGHTS

Mr. Lisassr. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I appreciate this opportunity to be of any assistance to the com-
mittee and to discuss the administration of title VI of the Civil Rights
Act. As you indicated not only the Judiciary Committee but the
Rules Committee also held hearings on the operation of the school
guidelines.

The provision of the school desegregation policy which are of great-
est importance to the desegregation of schools are the requirements
that the freedom of choice plans operate fairly and effectively to
achieve desegregation and that faculties be assigned without regard
to race or color.

Chairman Perrixs. Will you in your testimony somewhere insert
an exact copy of the guidelines at the present time and make it a part
of your statement ?

Mr. LiBasst. Yes, sir.

(The document referred to follows:)

REVISED STATEMENT OF DOLICIES FOR SCHOOL DESEGREGATION PranNs UNDER
TiTLE VI oF THE CIviL RIGHTS ACT oF 1964

DECEMBER 1966
(As Amended for the School Year 1967-68)

SUBPART A—APPLICABILITY OF THIS STATEMENT OF POLICIES

§181.1 Title VI and the HEW Regulation

Section 601 of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 provides that:

“No person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national
origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be sub-
jected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal
financial assistance.”

As required by Section 602 of Title VI, the Department of Health, Education,
and Welfare has issued a Regulation to assure the elimination of discrimination
in Federal aid programs it administers. The HEW Regulation was published
as Part 80 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations (45 CFR Part 80).

§181.2 Compliance by School Systems Eliminating Dual School Structure

To be eligible for Federal aid, a school system must act to eliminate any
practices in violation of Title VI, including the continued maintenance of a
dual structure of separate schools for students of different races. The HEW
Regulation recognizes two methods of meeting this requirement :

(1) a desegregation order of a Federal court; or

(2) a voluntary desegregation plan.

§ 181.3 Purpose of This Statement of Policies

This Statement of Policies applies to public elementary and secondary school
systems undergoing desegregation to eliminate a dual school structure. It sets
forth the requirements which voluntary desegregation plans must meet for
the Commissioner to determine under the HEW Regulation that a plan is ade-
quate to accomplish the purposes of Title VI. This Statement supersedes the
“General Statement of Policiex Under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
Respecting Desegregation of Elementary and Secondary Schools,” issued in
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April 1965 and published as 45 CFR Part 181, and has been amended further
to make it applicable to the school year 1967-68.

§181.4 Initial Demonstration of Compliance

To be eligible for Federal aid, a school system must first assure the Com-
missioner that it will comply with Title VI and the HEW Regulation. It must
submit the form of assurance that meets its circumstances, under §§ 181.5,
181.6, or 181.7 below.

§181.5 Systems Without Dual School Structure

(a2) Submission of Form 441. A school system which does not maintain any
characteristic of a dual school structure may initially demonstrate compliance
by submitting HEW Form 441. This is an assurance of full and immediate com-
pliance with Title VI.

(b) Resubmission Not Required. A school system which has appropriately
submitted HEW Form 441 need not submit a new copy with subsequent requests
for Federal aid, but need only affirm when requested that the assistance sub-
mitted continues in effect.

(c¢) Supplementation of Assurance. The Commissioner may require supple-
mentation of HEW Form 441 when he has reasonable cause to believe that there
is a failure to comply with any provision of Title VI or the HEW Regulation.

§181.6 Systems Under Federal Court Order for Desegregation

(a) Submission of Order. A school system under a Federal court desegrega-
tion order which meets the requirements of the HEW Regulation may submit, as
evidence of compliance with Title VI. a copy of the court order. together with
an assurance that it will comply with the order, including any future modi-
fication.

(b) Resubmission Not Required. A school system under a court order ac-
cepted by the Commissioner need not submit another copy, but must submit any
modification not previously submitted.

(¢) Revision of Court Orders. A school system under a court order for
desegregation which is not in accord with current judicial standards is subject
to legal action by the Department of Justice, or by the parties to the original suit,
to modify the order to meet current standards.

§181.7 Systems With Voluntary Desegregation Plans

(a) Submission of Form }4I1-B. A school system with a voluntary desegrega-
tion plan must provide an assurance that it will abide by the applicable require-
ments for such plans contained in this Statement of Policies. Such assurance
may be given by submitting HEW Form 441-B to the Commissioner. Commit-
ments of funds for new activities are subject to deferral, as provided by law, for
school systems with voluntary desegregation plans which have failed to submit
HEW Form 441-B.

(b) Resubmission Not Required. A school system which has appropriately
submitted HEW Form 441-B need not submit a new copy with subsequent
requests for Federal aid, but need only affirm when requested that the assurance
submitted continues in effect.

(c) Changing Type of Plan. A school system may change from one type of
desegregation plan to another if such action would eliminate segregation and all
other forms of diserimination more expeditiously. A school system planning to
change the type of its plan must submit a new plan meeting the requirements of
this Statement of Policies. together with HEW Form 441-B. for a determination
by the Commissioner as to the adequacy of the plan to accomplish the purposes
of Title VI.

(d) Retaining Present Type of Plan. A school system with a desegregation plan
accepted by the Commissioner need not resubmit its plan if it intends to continue
under the same type of plan. If a plan accepted by the Commissioner fails to
meet any requirement under this Statement of Policies, the submission of HEW
Form 441-B will be deemed to amend the plan so that it will meet such require-
ment. Amendments to the plan are not to be submitted unless requested. How-
ever, certain supporting materials must be submitted, as provided in Subparts B,
C. and D below.

(e) Initial Submittal of Plans. If no desegregation plan has been submitted
or accepted for a school system, HEW Form 441-B and a plan meeting the re-
quirements of this Statement of Policies must be submitted.
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[§§ 181.8 through 181.10 reserved]

SUBPART B—BASIC REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL VOLUNTARY DESEGREGATION PLANS
§181.11 Various Types of Desegregation Plans

It is the responsibility of a school system to adopt and implement a desegrega-
tion plan which will eliminate the dual school system and all other forms of dis-
crimination as expeditiously as possible. No single type of plan is appropriate
for all school systems. In some cases, the most expeditious means of desegrega-
tion is to close the schools originally established for students of one race, par-
ticularly where they are small and inadequate, and to assign all the students and
teachers to desegregated schools. Another appropriate method is to reorganize
the grade structure of schools originally established for students of different
races so that these schools are fully utilized, on a desegregated basis, although
each school contains fewer grades. In some cases desegregation is accomplished
by the establishment of non-racial attendance zones. Under certain conditions,
a plan based on free choice of schools may be a way to undertake desegregation.
In certain cases the purposes of Title VI may be most expeditiously accomplished
by a plan applying two or more of the foregoing procedures to certain schools or
different grade levels. Based on consideration of all the circumstances of a par-
ticular school system, the Commissioner may determine that its desegregation
plan is not adequate to accomplish the purposes of Title VI, in which case he may
require the adoption of an alternative plan. In any case where the State educa-
tion agency is pursuing policies and programs for expediting the elimination of
the dual school structure, the Commissioner will consider this factor in deter-

mining whether a particular type of plan is adequate for any given school system
in such State.

§181.12 Student Assignment Practices

Title VI precludes a school system from any action or inaction designed to
perpetuate or promote segregation or any other form of discrimination, or to
limit desegregation or maintain what is essentially a dual school structure. Any
educational opportunity offered by a school system must be available to students
without regard to race, color, or national origin. In particular, any academic
tests or other procedures used in assigning students to schools, grades, class-
rooms, sectiens. coursex of stwdy or for any other purposes must be applied uni-
formly to all students without regard to race, color, or national origin. Cur-
riculum. credit and promotion procedures must not be applied in such a way
as to penalize or hamper students who transfer from one school to another
pursuant to a desegregation plan.

§181.13 Faculty and Staff

(a) Desegregation of Staff. The racial composition of the professional staff
of a school system. and of the schools in the system, must be considered in de-
termining whether students are subjected to discrimination in educational pro-
grams.  Each school system is responsible for correcting the effects of all past
discriminatory practices in the assignment of teachers and other professional
staff.

(hy New Assignments. Race. color, or national origin may not be a factor in
the hiring or assignment to schools or within schools of teachers and other pro-
fessional staff. including student teachers and staff serving two or more schools,
except to correct the effects of past discriminatory assignments.

(¢) Dismissals. Teachers and other professional staff may not be dismissed,
demoted. or passed over for retention, promotion. or rehiring, on the ground of
race, color. or national origin. TIn any instance where one or more teachers or
other professional staff members are to be displaced as a result of desegregation,
no staff vacaney in the school system may be filled through recruitment from
outside the system unless the schonl officials can show that no such displaced
staff member is qualified to fill the vacancy. If as a result of desegregation,
there is to be a reduction in the total professional staff of the school system, the
qualifications of all staff members in the system must he evaluated in selecting
the «taff members to be released.

“OY Paet tsxhimnpents, The nattern of assignment of teachers and other nro-
fesgiarnl ctaff ovarao +ho variens selools of a system mov not he sneh that
cehonls ape identitiahloe as intanded for <tindents of a partieniar race. color. or
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national origin, or such that teachers or other professional staff of a particular
race are concentrated in those schools where all, or the majority, of the students
are of that race. Each school system has a positive duty to make staff assign-
ments and reassignments necessary to eliminate past diseriminatory assignment
patterns. Staff desegregation for the 1967-68 school year must include signifi-
cant progress beyond what was accomplished for the 1966-67 school year in the
desegregation of teachers assigned to schools on a regular full-time basis. Pat-
terns of staff assignment to initiate staff desegregation might include, for exam-
ple: (1) Some desegregation of professional statf in each school in the system,
(2) the assignment of a significant portion of the professional statt of each race
to particular schools in the system where their race is a minority and where
special staff training programs are established to help with the process of staff
desegregation, (3) the assignment of a significant portion of the staff on a
desegregated basis to those schools in which the student body is desegregated,
(4) the reassignment of the staff of schools being c¢losed to other schools in the
system where their race is a minority, or (5) an alternative pattern of assign-
ment which will make comparable progress in bringing about staff desegregation
successfully.

§181.14 Services, Facilities, Activities, and Programs

(a) Gencral. Each school system is responsible for removing segregation
and any other form of discrimination affecting students in connection with all
services, facilities, activities and programs (including transportation, athleties,
and other extra-curricular activities) that may be conducted or spousored by
or affiliated with the schools of the system.

(b) Specific Situations.

(1) A student attending school for the first time on a desegregated basis may
not be subject to any disqualification or waiting period for participation in activi-
ties and programs, including athleties, which might otherwise apply because he
is a transfer student.

(2) If transportation services are furnished, sponsored or utilized by a school
system, dual or segregated transportation systems and any other form of dis-
crimination must be eliminated. Routing and scheduling of transportation must
be planned on the basis of such factors as economy and efliciency, and may not
operate to impede desegregation. Routes and schedules must be changed to the
extent necessary to comply with this provision.

3) All school-related use of athletie fields, meeting rooms, and all other school-
related services. facilities, activities, and programs. euch as commencement
exercises and parent-teacher meetings, which are open to persons other than
enrolled students, must be open to all such persons and must be conducted with-
out segregation or any other form of discrimination.

(4) All special educational programs, such as pre-school. summer school and
adult education. and any educational program newly instituted. must be conducted
without segregation or any other form of discrimination. Free choice desegrega-
tion procedures normally may not be applied to such programs,

§181.15 Unequal Educational Programs and Facilities

In addition to the changes made in student assignment practices under its
desegregation plan, each school system ix responsible for removing 211 other forms
of discrimination on the ground of race. ¢olor. or national origin. For example,
some school systems still maintain small, inadequate schools thiat were originally
established for students of a particular race and are still used primarily or
exclusively for the education of students of such race. If the facilities. teaching
materials. or educational program available to students in such a school are
inferior to those generally available in the schools of the system. the school
anthorities will normally be required immediately to assign such students to
other schools in order to discontinue the use of the inferior school.

§181.16 Attendance Outside School System of Residence

No arrangement may be made nor permission granted for students residing in
one school system to attend school in another school system in any case (1) where
the result would tend to limit desegregation or malntain what is essentially a
dnal =ehonl structure in either system. or (2) where such attendance is not
available ta all students without regar:d to race, celor, er national origin.
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§181.17 Official Support for Desegregation Plan

(a) Community Support. School officials must take steps to encourage com-
munity support and acceptance of their desegregation plan. They are responsible
for preparing students, teachers and all other personnel, and the community in
general, for the successful desegregation of the school system.

(b) Information to the Public. Full information concerning the desegregation
plan must be furnished freely to the public and to all television and radio stations
and all newspapers serving the community. Copies of all reports on student and
staff assignments required under §181.18 below must be available for public
inspection at the office of the Superintendent of the school system.

(¢) Protection of Person Affected. Each school system is responsible for the
effective implementation of its desegregation plan. Within their authority, school
officials are responsible for the protection of persons exercising rights under, or
otherwise affected by. the plan. They must take appropriate action with regard
to any student or staff member who interferes with the successful operation of
the plan, whether or not on school grounds. If officials of the school system are
not able to provide sufficient protection, they must seek whatever assistance is
necessary from other appropriate officials.

§181.18 Reports

(a) Amticipated Enrollment. By April 15 of each year, or by 15 days after
the close of the choice period in the case of plans based on free choice of schools,
each school system must report to the Commissioner the anticipated student en-
rollment, by race, color, or national origin, and by grade of each school, for the
following school year. Any subsequent substantial change in anticipated enroll-
ment affecting desegregation must be reported promptly to the Commissioner.

(b) Planned Staff Assignments. By April 15 of each year, each school sys-
tem must report to the Commissioner the planned assignments of professional
staff to each school for the following year. by race, color, or national origin
and by grade. or where appropriate. by subject taught or position held. Any
subsequent change in planned staff assignments affecting staff desegregation
must be reported promptly to the Commissioner.

(e) Actual Data. As soon as possible after the opening of its schools in the
fall, but in any case within 30 days thereafter. each school system must deter-
mine and promptly report to the Commissioner the actual data for the items
covered in the reports called for under (a) and (b) above.

(d) Attendance Outside System of Residence. The reports called for under
{a) and (c) above must include a statement covering (1) all students who reside
within the boundaries of the school system but attend school in another system,
and (2) all students who reside outside but attend a school within the system.
This statement must set forth. for each group of students included in (1) and
(2) above, the number of students, by race, color, or national origin, by grade,
by school and school system attended. and by school system of residence.

(e) Consolidation or Litigation. A school system which is to undergo con-
solidation with another system or any other change in its boundaries, or which
is involved in any litigation affecting desegregation, must promptly report the
relevant facts and circumstances to the Commissioner.

(f) Other Reports. The Commissioner may require a school system to sub-
mit other reports relating to its compliance with Title VL.

§181.19 Records

A school system must keep available for not less than three years all records
relating to personnel actions, transportation, including routes and schedules,
and student assignments and transfers, including all choice forms and transfer
applications submitted to the school system. The Commissioner may require
retention for a longer period in individual cases.

[§§ 181.20 through 181.30 reserved]

SUBPART C—ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR VOLUNTARY DESEGREGATION PLANS BASED
0N GEOGRAPIIIC ATTENDANCE ZONES
§181.31 General
A voluntary desegregation plan based in whole or in part on geographic attend-
ance zones must meet the requirements of this Subpart for all students whose
assignment to schools is determined by such zones. The general requirement
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for desegregation plans set forth elsewhere in this Statement of Policies are also
applicable.

§181.32 Attendance Zones

A single system of non-racial attendance zones must be established. A school
system may not use zone boundaries or feeder patterns designed to perpetuate or
promote segregation, or to limit desegregation or maintain what is essentially
a dual school structure. A school system planning (1) to desegregate certain
grades by means of geographic attendance zones and other grades by means of
free choice of schools, or (2) to include more than one school of the same level
in one or more attendance zones and to offer free choice of all schools within
such zones, must show that such an arrangement will most expeditiously elimi-
nate segregation and all other forms of discrimination. In any such case, the
procedures followed for the offer, exercise and administration of free choice of
schools must conform to the provisions of Subpart D below.

§181.33 Assignment to School in Zone of Residence

Regardless of any previous attendance at another school, each student must be-
assigned to the school serving his zone of residence, and may he transferred to
another school only in those cases which meet the following requirements :

(a) Trunsfer for Special Needs. A student who requires a course of study
not offered at the school serving his zone, or who is physically handicapped. may
be permitted, upon his written application, to transfer to another school which
is designed to fit, or offers courses for, his special needs.

(b) Minority Transfer Policy. A school system may (1) permit any student
to transfer from a school where students of his race are a majority to any other
school, within the system, where students of hix race are a minority, or (2)
assign students on such hasis.

(¢) Special Plan Provisions. A student who specifically qualifies to attend
another school pursuant to the provisions of a desegregation plan accepted by
the Commissioner may be permitted. upon his written application, to transfer to
such other school.

§181.34 Notice

(a) Individual Notice. On a convenient date between March 1 and April 30
in each year. each school system must distribute, by first class mail. a letter to the
parent, or other adult person acting as parent, of each student who is then en-
rolled. except high school senjors expected to graduate, giving the name and loca-
tion of the school to which the student has been assigned for the coming school
year pursuant to the desegregation plan, and information concerning the bus
service between his xchool and his neighborhood. All thexe letters must be mailed
on the same day. Iach letter must be accompanied by a notice. in a form pre-
scribed by the Commissioner, explaining the desegregation plan. The same letter
and notice must also be furnished, in person or by mail. to the parent of each
prospective student, including each student planning to enter the first grade or
kindergarten. as soon as the school system learns that he plans to enroll.

(b) Published Notice. The school system must arrange for the conspicuous
publication of an announcement, identical with the text of the notice provided for
under (a) above, in the newspaper most generally circulated in the community.
on or shortly before the date of mailing under (a) above. Publication as a legal
notice is not sufficient. Whenever any revision of attendance zones is proposed,
the school system must similarly arrange for the conspicuous publication of an
announcement at least 30 days before any change is to become effective, naming
each school to be affected and describing the proposed new zones. Copies of all
material published hereunder must also be given at that time to all television and
radio stations serving the community.

[§§ 181.36 through 181.40 reserved]

SUBPART D—ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR VOLUNTARY DESEGREGATION PLANS BASED
ON FREE CHOICE OF SCHOOLS

§181.41 General

A vountary desegregation plan based in whole or in part on free choice of
schools must meet the requirements of this Subpart for all students whose
assignment to schools is determined by free choice. The general requirements.
for desegregation plans set forth elsewhere in this Statement of Policies are
also applicable.
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§181.42 Who May Exercise Choice

A choice of schools may be exercised by a parent or other adult person serving
as the student’s parent. A student may exercise his own choice if he (1) is
exercising a choice for the ninth or a higher grade, or (2) has reached the age
of fifteen at the time of the exercise of choice. Such a choice by a student is
controlling unless a different choice is exercised for him by his parent, or other
adult person acting as his parent, during the period in which the student exer-
¢izes his choice. Each reference in this Subpart to a student exercising a choice
means the exercise of the choice by a parent or such other adult, or by the stu-
dent himself. as may be appropriate under this provision.

§181.43 Annual Mandatory Exercise of Choice

Bach student must be required to exercise a free choice of schools once
annually. A student may not be enrolled or assigned to a school without exer-
cising his choice, except as provided in § 181.45 below.

§ 181.44 Choice Period

A period of at least 30 days must be provided for exercising choice, to com-
mence no earlier than January 1 and to end no later than April 30, preceding
the school year for which choice is to be exercised. The Commissioner may
require an additional period or different dates for a particiular school system.
No preference in school assignment may be given on the basis of an early exer-
cise of choice during the choice period.

§181.45 Failure To Exercise Choice

A failure to exercise a choice within the choice period does not excuse a
student from exercising his choice, which may be done at any time before he
commences school for the year with respect to which the choice applies. How-
ever, any such late choice must be subordinated to the choices of students who
exercised choice during the choice period. If by a week after school opens there
is any student who has not vet exercised his choice of school, he must be assigned
to the school nearest his lome where space is available. Standards for deter-
mining available space must be applied uniformly throughout the system.

§181.45 Letters to Parents, Notices, and Choice Forms

(a) Mailings. On the first day of the choice period, each school system must
distribute, by first class mail. a letter. an explanatory notice, and a choice form,
to the parent or other adult person acting as parent of each student who is then
enrolled. except high school seniors expected to graduate, together with a re-
turn envelope addressed to the Superintendent. The texts for the letter, notice,
and choice form to be used must be in a form prescribed by the Commissioner.

(by Ertra Copies. Extra copies of the letter. the notice. and the choice form
must be freely available to parents, students, prospective students and the general
public. at each school in the system and at the office of the Superintendent.

() Maps Available to Public. A sireet or road map showing the boundaries
of. and the school serving. each attendance zone must be freely available for
public inspection at the office of the Superintendent. Each school in the system
musxt have freely available for public inspection a map showing the boundaries
of its attendance area.

§181.35 Reports

(a) Attendance Zones. The report submitted under § 181.18(a) by April
15 of each year must be accomplished by a map, which must show the name and
location of each school facility planned to be used during the coming school year,
the attendance zones for each school in effect during the current school year,
and any changes in the attendance zones planned for the coming school
vear. The map need not be of professional quality. A clipping of each news-
paper announcement and any map published under § 181.34 (b) or (c¢) ahove
must bhe =ent to the Commissioner within three days after publication and. in
the case of proposed revisions, must be accompanied by data showing the esti-
mated change in attendance. by race. eolor, or national origin and by grade,
and in the racial compoxition of the professional staff. at each school to be
affected.

by Attendance Outsidle Zone of Residence. Whenever a student is permitted
to aftend o schonl other than that serving his zone of residence, and whenever
a reavesr for eh atrendance is denied, the school system must retain records




ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION AMENDMEXNTS 1505

showing (1) the school and grade applied for, (2) the zone of the student’s
residence and his grade therein, (3) the race, color, or national origin of the
student, (4) the reason stated for the request. and (5) the reason the request
is granted or denied. Whenever the total number of transfers permitted from
any school exceeds two percent of the student enrollment at that school, the
relevant facts must be reported promptly to the Commissioner.

(¢) Content of Choice Form. Unless otherwise authorized or required by
the Commisxioner, each choice form, as prepared by the school system for dis-
tribution, (1) must set forth the name and location of, and the grade offered
at, each school, and (2) may inquire of the person exercising the choice only
the name, address, and age of the student, the school and grade currently or most
recently attended by the student, the school chosen, the signature of one par-
ent or other adult person serving as parent or, where appropriate under § 181.42
above, the signature of the student, and the identity of the person signing. If
necessary to provide information required by §§ 181.18 and 181.19 above, or for
other reports required by the Commissioner, the choice form may also ask the
race, color, or national origin of the student. No statement of reasons for a par-
ticular choice, or any other information, or any witness or other authentication,
may be required or requested. No other choice form, including any pupil place-
ment law form may be used by the school system in connection with the choice
of a school.

(d) Return of Choice Form. At the option of the person completing the choice
form. it may be returned by mail or by hand to any school in the school system
or to the office of the Superintendent.

(e) Choices Not on Official Form. Exercise of choice may also be made by
the submission in like manner of any other writing which sufficiently identifies
the student and indicates that he has made a choice of a school.

§ 181.47 Prospective Students

Each prospective student, including each student planning to enter the first
zrade or kindergarten, must be required to exercise a free choice of schools be-
fore enrollment. Each such student must be furnished a copy of the prescribed
letter, notice, and choice form, by mail or in person, on the date the choice period
opens or as soon thereafter as the school system learns that he plans to enroll.
Each must be given an opportunity to exercise his choice during the choice
period. A prospective student exercising his choice after the choice period must
be given at least one week to do so.

§181.38 Choice May Not Be Changed

Once a choice has been submitted, it may not be changed for the school year
to which it applies, whether during the choice period, after the choice period, or
during that school year, except on request (1) in cases meeting the conditions
set forth in § 151.50 below, (2) in case of a change of residence to a place where
another school serving the student’s grade level is closer than the school to
which he is assigned under these provisions, and (3) in case of a compelling
hardship. A student who cannot enter the school of his choice because the
grade he is to enter is not offered at that school must be promptly notified as
soon as this is known and must be given the same opportunity to choose another
school as is provided a prospective student under § 151,47 above.
§181.49 Assignment According to Choice

No choice may be denied in assigning students to schools for any reason other
than overcrowding. In cases where overcrowding would result at one or more
schools from the choices made, preference must be given on the basis of the
proximity of schools to the homex of students, without regard to race. e¢olor. or
national origin.  No preference may be given to students for prior attendance at
a xchool if such preference would deny other students their free ¢choice of schools
under the plan.  In cases where this provision would result in unusual difficulty
involving, for instance, students not heing able to finish their <enior year in a
particular school, or students being unable to attend =chool with other members
of the same family, or at a school having special courses required hy a student,
the relevant facts may be brought to the attentinn of the Commissioner for con-
sideration of alternative procedures. .Any student whose choice is denied under
these provisions must be notified in writing promptly and given his choice of
each school in the system serving Lis grade level where spree is available,
Standards for determining overcrowding and available space that are applied




1506 ELEMEXNTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION AMENDMENTS

uniformly throughout the system must be used if any choice is to be denied.
Each student and his parent, or other adult person acting as parent, must be
notified in writing of the name and location of the school to which the student
is assigned hereunder promptly upon completion of processing his first or any
second choice. A school system may, at its option, give preference to any stu-
dent whose choice is for a school at which students of his race are a minority.

§181.50 Transfers for Special Needs

Each student must attend the school to which he is assigned under the fore-
going provisions, except that any student who requires a course of study not
offered at that school, or who is physically handicapped, may be permitted, upon
his written application. to transfer to another school which is designed to fit,
or offers courses for, his speecial needs.

§181.51 .No Limitation of Choice; Transportation

No factor, such as a requirement for health or birth records, academic or phy-
sical examinations, the operation of the school transportation system, or any
other factor except overcrowding, may limit or affect the assignment of students
to schools on the basis of their choices. Where transportation is generally pro-
vided. buses must be routed to the maximum extent feasible so as to serve each
student choosing any school in the system. In any event, every student choos-
ing either the formerly white or the formerly Negro school (or other school es-
tablished for students of a particular race, color, or national origin) nearest his
residence must be transported to the school to which he is assigned under these
provisions, whether or not it ix his first choice. if that school is sufficiently dis-
tant from his home to make him eligible for transportation under generally ap-
plicable transportation rules.

§181.52 Officials Not To Influence Choice

No official. teacher. or employee of the school system may require or request
any student or prospective student to submit a choice form during the choice
period other than by the prescribed letter, notice, and choice form. After the
choice period. the school system must make all reasonable efforts to obtain a
completed choice form from any student who has not exercised a choice. How-
ever. at no time may any official, teacher, or employee of the school system,
either directly or indirectly. seek to influence any parent, student. or any
other person involved. in the exercise of a choice, or favor or penalize any
person because of a choice made. Information concerning choices made by
individual students or schools to which they are assigned may not be made public.

§181.53 Public Notice

On or shortly before the date the choice period opens, the school system must
arrange for the conspicuous publication of a notice describing the desegregation
plan in the newspaper most generally circulated in the community. The text
of the notice must be in a form prescribed by the Commissioner. Publication
as a legal notice is not sufficient. Copies of this notice must also be given at
that time to all radio and television stations serving the community. Any
other announcement published by the school system concerning enrollment,
such as might be made in connection with scheduling pre-enrollment procedures
for prospective first grade students. must (1) state clearly that under the
desegregation plan a choice of school is required for each student whose choice
has not vet been exercised, (2) describe and state where copies of the prescribed
letter, notice and choice form may be freely obtained in person, or by letter or
telephone request, and (3) state the period during which the choice may be
exercised.

§ 181.54 Requirements for Effectiveness of Free Choice Plans

A free choice plan tends to place the burden of desegregation on Negro or
other minority group students and their parents. Even when school authorities
undertake good faith efforts to assure its fair operation, the very nature of a
free choice plan and the effect of longstanding community attitudes often tend
to preclude or inhibit the exercise of a truly free choice by or for minority
group students.

For these reasons, the Commissioner will scrutinize with special care the
operation of voluntary plans of desegregation in school systems which have
adopted free choice plans.
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In determining whether a free choice plan is operating fairly and effectively,
80 as to materially further the orderly achievement of desegregation, the Com-
missioner will take into account such factors as community support for the
plan, the efforts of the school system to eliminate the identifiability of schools
on the basis of race, color, or national origin by virtue of the composition of staff
or other factors, and the progress actually made in eliminating past discrimina-
tion and segregation.

The single most substantial indication as to whether a free choice plan is
actually working to eliminate the dual school structure is the extent to which
Negro or other minority group students have in fact transferred from segregated
schools. Thus, when substantial desegregation actually occurs under a free
choice plan, there is strong evidence that the plan is operating effectively and
fairly, and is currently acceptable as a means of meeting legal requirements.
Conversely, where a free choice plan results in little or no actual desegregation,
or where, having already produced some degree of desegregation, it does not
result in substantial progress, there is reason to believe that the plan is not
operating effectively and may not be an appropriate or acceptable method of
meeting constitutional and statutory requirements.

As a general matter, for the 1967-68 school year the Commissioner will, in
the absence of other evidence to the contrary, assume that a free choice plan
is a viable and effective means of completing initial stages of desegregation in
school systems in which a substantial percentage of the students have in fact
been transferred from segregated schools. Where a small degree of desegrega-
tion has been achieved and, on the basis of the free choice registration held in
early 1967, it appears that there will not be a substantial increase in desegrega-
tion for the 1967-68 school year, the Commissioner will review the working of
the plan and will normally require school officials to take additional actions as
a prerequisite to continued use of a free choice plan, even as an interim device.

In districts with a sizable percentage of Negro or other minority group stu-
dents, the Commissioner will, in general, be guided by the following criteria in
scheduling free choice plans for review :

(1) If a significant percentage of the students, such as 8 percent or 9 percent,
transferred from segregated schools for the 1966-67 school year, total transfers
on the order of at least twice that percentage would normally be expected.

(2) If a smaller percentage of the students, such as 4 percent or 5 percent,
transferred from segregated schools for the 1966-67 school year, a substantial
increase in transfers would normally be expected, such as would bring the total
to at least triple the percentage for the 1966-67 school year.

(3) If a lower percentage of students transferred for the 1966-67 school year,
then the rate of increase in total transfers for the 1967-68 school year would
normally be expected to be proportionately greater than under (2) above.

Where there is substantial deviation from these expectations, and the Com-
missioner concludes, on the basis of the choices actually made and other avail-
able evidence, that the plan is not operating fairly, or is not effective to meet
constitutional and statutory requirements, he will require the school system to
take additional steps to further desegregation.

Such additional steps may include, for example, reopening of the choice period,
additional meetings with parents and civic groups, further arrangements with
State or local officials to limit opportunities for intimidation, and other further
community preparation. Where schools are still identifiable on the basis of
staff composition as intended for students of a particular race. color. or national
origin, such steps must in any such case include substantial further changes in
staffing patterns to eliminate such identifiability.

If the Commissioner concludes that such steps would be ineffective, or if they
fail to remedy the defects in the operation of any free choice plan. he may
require the school system to adopt a different type of desegregation plan.

§181.55 Reports

(a) Supporting Materials. FEach school system must submit to the Commis-
sioner a copy of the letter, notice, and choice form, all as prepared by the school
system for distribution, within three days after their first distribution, and must
submit a clipping of all newspaper announcements published in accordance with
§ 1R1.53 above within three days after publication.

(b) Data on Choices Not Being Honored. In any case including the case of
conflicting choices under § 181.42 above, where a student chooses a school where
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he would be in racial minority. and (1) he is to be assigned to a school where
he would be in a racial majority, or (2) the school system proposes not to proc-
ess his choice for any reason, the relevant facts must be reported promptly to
the Commixssioner.

(e¢) Transfers for Special Needs. Wherever a student is permitted, under
§§ 181.48 or 181.50 above. to attend a school other than the school to which he is
or would be assigned under the other applicable provisions hereof, and whenever
a request for such attendance is denied, the <chool system must retain records
showing (1) the xchool and grade applied for, (2) the school and grade to be
transferred from. (3) the race. coler. or national origin of the student, (4) the
reaxon stated for the request. and (3) the reason the request is granted or
denied. Whenever the total number of transfers permitted from any school
exceeds two percent of the student enrollment at that school, the relevant facts
must be reported promptly to the Commissioner.

[§§ 181.56 through 181.60 reserved]

SUBPART E—MISCELLANEOUS PROVIS IONS

§181.61 How To Submit Reports

I2ach report to the Commissioner required under this Statement of Policies
must be sent by first class mail addressed to the Equal Educational Opportunities
Program, U.S. Office of Education, Washington, D.C., 20202,

§181.62 Alternative Administrative Procedures

If an administrative procedure provided for under this Statement of Policies
is not administratively feasible in a particular situation, the Commissioner may
accept an alternative procedure if he determines that it will accomplish the rame
purpose.
§181.63 Revision of Statement of Policies

The Commissioner may modify this Statement of Policies as may be necessary
to nccomplish the purposes of Title VL.

§181.64 Copies of Documents for State Agencies

Toach school system submitting any plan form or report to the Commissioner
under this Statement of Policies must also submit a copy of such form or report
to the appropriate State education agency.

§181.65 Definitions

As uged in this part,

(a) The term “Commissioner” means the U.S. Commissioner of Education or
any official acting under assignment or delegation from him to carry out any
of his functions under this Statement of Policies.

(b) The term “discrimination” means diserimination on the ground of race,
color, or national origin.

(¢) The term “dual school structure” means a system of separate school facili-
ties for students based on race, color, or national origin.

(d) The term “HEW Form 441" means the printed document provided for the
use of certain school systems by the U.S. Department of Health, Education, and
Welfare, entitled “Assurance of Compliance with the Department of Health,
%Flcgtion, and Welfare Regulation under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of

i N

(e) The term “HEW Form 441-B" means the printed document provided for
the use of certain school systems by the U.S. Department of Health, Education,
and Welfare entitled “Assurance of Compliance with the Revised Statement of
Pf(]%(l;is for School Desegrezation Plans Under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964

(f) The term “HEW Regculation” means the Regulation issued pursuant to
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 by the T.S. Department of Health, Edu-
cation, and Welfare (Part 80, of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations).

(g) The term “parent” means an adunlt individual who exercises parental con-
trol over, or i« otherwise acting as parent of, a student or prospective student.

(h) The term “school official”* shall include, but is not limited to, any person
who serves on the coverning hoard of a school system, or attends meetings of
such hoard in an official capacity. and all administrative and supervisory person-
nel of a school system. )
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(i) The term “school system” means. as the context may require, either (1)
a legally constituted school authority (such as a local board of education) which
has administrative control of one or more elementary or secondary schools, (2)
the zeographic area over which any such school authority has administrative con-
trol for school purposes, or (3) the schools and facilities over which any such
school authority has administrative control.

(j) The term “Statement of Policies” means this Revised Statement of Pol-
icies for School Desegregation I’lans under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964.

(k) The term “Title VI” means Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
(P1. 88-352, 42 USC 20004 to 2000d—4).

[§§ 181.66 to 181.70 reserved}

Mr. Lisasst. On both of these issues the Department has been
advised by its General Counsel and by the Department of Justice
that the policies of the Office of Education are fully consistent with and
supported by title VT of the Civil Rights Act and the decisions of the
Federal court.

In essence the policies of the Department permit a district to initiate
the desegregation of its schools by offering the children a choice of
schools. The method of student assignment which has been traditional
In most parts of the country has been assigning children to neighbor-
hood schools on the basis of geographic attendance zones.

This method takes no account of the preference of the student and
may well result in his assignment to a school against his expressed
wish.  The assignment of students to a particular school on the basis
of the student’s choice has in the main been an innovation adopted
in connection with the desegregation of schools that have previously
been segregated on the basis of race.

It has been accepted as a permissible means of desegregation but
courts have made it clear that it can be used only if it is effective in
abolishing the racial dual school system.

Where community hostilities or other pressure preclude a truly free
choice, then some other method must be used in converting to a non-
racial system. In some it has been the system of this Department that
the free choice is permissible as a method of desegregation only if it is
effective in eliminating the dual system based on race.

If 1t is not effective than an alternative method of assigning children
to particular schools not based on the choice of the students or their
parents must be adopted.

With respect to faculty the Department of Justice has advised that
title VI not only permits the Department to require faculty desegrega-
1on but obliges the Department to do so as a condition for the continued
receipt of Federal funds.

The position of the Department is consistent with the rulings of the
Federal court including the Supreme Court. Furthermore, every
effort has been made to assure that these policies are administered
fairly and objectively.

ScKool districts are scheduled for review based on a district’s own
report of the extent of actual student and faculty desegregation.

In August of 1966 the Commissioner notified the State education
agencies that it would be the policy of the Office to review the districts
with the poorest performance first. Approximately 250 schools were—
school districts were in this category. At the same time the Commis-

<
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sioner stated that another 00 districts that had made progress would
be scheduled for review during the school year.

These 400 districts were urged to take steps on their own to improve
the extent of student and faculty desegregation.

The largest number of districts between 700 and 800 were notified
that their performance was adequate and no review of their plans
would be undertaken.

The committee should know that generally the 250 school districts
that were first reviewed, those with the poorest performance, had no
student desegregation or less than 2 percent of the Negro students in
formerly white schools and no faculty desegregation.

In addition many districts had denied choices of the Negro students
to attend the white schools, they had discouraged Negro students from
choosing a white school, parents had been intimidated, the school dis-
trict had failed to make efforts to prepare the community for desegre-
gation and had not followed the guideline vital to its success.

Recently the Department administrative hearings parents testified
of night riders shooting into their homes, that insurance on their
homes was canceled for no apparent reason after they enrolled in
white schools and their children as well as themselves had been har-
rassed and threatened. They spoke of losing their jobs, their credit,
and sometimes their homes when they chose a white school.

The transcript of these hearings gives a more vivid picture of com-
munity attitudes than anything 1 might say. During field review
where progress is not sufficient to carry out the efforts of title VI,
renewed efforts, voluntary efforts, implicit in this duty, in this respon-
sibility is a duty to make suggestions and recommendations to school
districts of steps that they might take in order to proceed with school
desegregation and the effort is made to tailor the suggestions and rec-
ommendations to meet the problems of each particular district.

For example, where a district must bus its white or Negro students
on the basis of their work to a neighboring school district to be edu-
cated, it would be recommended that this practice cease and all the
children be educated in their home district.

The courts have required districts to take such action even prior to
the Supreme Court’s decision of 1954. Where districts are still oper-
ating small and adequate segregated schools for Negroes, it has been
recommended that these schools be closed and that the students and
teachers be reassigned on a nonracial basis.

The courts have simply required the closing of small inadequate
Negro schools. We would not be carrying out the spirit of title VI if
we did not suggest to school districts what steps they could take to
meet their obligations. Districts are urged to come up with their own
plans if all recommendations appear inappropriate to them.

Over 600 desegregation plans have been reviewed for the current
school year. As of now approximately 100 of these plans have been
found ineffective to eliminate the dual school system. In approxi-
mately one-fourth of these districts there is absolutely no desegrega-
tion of any description. All students and faculty continue to attend
schools traditionally serving their race.

Recommendations of the staff were rejected by these districts which
also refused to sbumit alternative desegregation plans. The Depart-
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ment was left with no alternative but to offer these districts an oppor-
tunity for a hearing.

Chairman Perrins. As a whole do you have a breakdown of where
those districts are situated ?

Mr. Lapassr. Yes, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Perrins. Would you make that available for the record,

lease?

P (The document referred to follows:)

Statistical summary on title VI administrative enforcement actions by the
department for the 1966—67 school year (under the revised guidelines)

Total school districts in the nation___________ e 24, 539
School districts in 17 southern and border states__ - 4, 942
Schoul districts operating under voluntary desegregation plans____.___.__ 1, 813
School districts subject to enforcement actions as of Mareh 1967 _______ 173

DISTRICTS SUBJECT TO ENFORCEMENT CONSTITUTE

Total school distriets in the Nation (percent)_________ ________________ 0.7
School districts in southern and border states (percent) ________________ 3.5
School distriets operating under voluntary desegregation plans (per-
CeDT) e 9.5
TOTAL ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS FOR THE 1966~67 SCHOOL YEAR AND
BASIS FOR ENFORCEMENT ACTION
School districets failed to file the requisite assurance (441B) ____________ 55
School districts filed assurances invalid on its face____________________ 35
School distriects—Commissioner of Education had reasonable grounds to
believe the assurance was untrue or not being honored_____________ __ 83
Total tinal terminations 1965 thru 1967 (distriets) . __________________ 135

1The total number of final terminations is 52; however, fund eligibility has been
restored to approximately 17 districts by way of court ordered desegregation plans.

Mr. Lisassti. In many communities throughout the South school
officials and community leaders have made substantial progress toward
the elimination of dual school systems. Despite the difficulties con-
nected with the operation of free choice plans, there are instances
where they have worked effectively to desegregate schools.

The key to success is the willingness of local school officials and
opinion leaders to develop an atmosphere that will lead to significant
progress. In addition to the 700 or 800 districts that were advised
last fall that they had made satisfactory progress and were in com-
pliance with title VI, other districts whose performance was in-
adequate have negotiated additional desegregation steps which brought
them into compliance.

For instance, one Georgia district has operated two segregated
schools, one for Negro students, and Negro teachers, and the other for
white students with white teachers. However, this district has now
agreed to transfer the entire Negro eighth-grade class to the white
school in September of 1967 and to assign three full-time teachers
across racial lines.

As a result 10 percent of the Negro students in the district will be
attending desegregated schools next year. This case was recently the
zubject of a column by Mr. Eugene Patterson, the editor of the Atlantia
Constitution, and with the permission of the chairman I would like
to submit a copy of that column to be inserted in the record at this
point.

T-1402—67—pt. 2——44
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Chairman Perkr~s. Without objection it is so ordered.
{(The document referred to follows:)

[Atlanta Constitution, March 10, 1967]
ScHooLsS GET A YEAR'S GRACE

While remaining firm, the U.S. Office of Education is embarking on a more
conciliatory approach to encourage desegregation of lagging Georgia schools. For
one thing, letters to state departments of education are in the works, inviting the
states to assume more responsibilities in effecting the guidelines. Federal funds
will be offered to finance increased state activity.

Of more immediate significance. however, will be a notification that one Georgia
county is about to get from Washington. This decision, which has already been
made, will signal a major adjustment in fund cutoff policy by the Office of
Education.

The Georgia county in question still has segregated schools. New federal funds
have been withheld from it during the current school year, pending a permanent
fund cutoff hearing scheduled to be held shortly. Many Georgia counties are in
thix shape, so they will be interested to know what is about to happen.

In return for a firm commitment volunteered by the county school system that
it will undertake significant desegregation beginning next September, the Office
of Education is postponing the fund cutoff hearing until next September, and is
addirionally releasing to the schools all of the federal funds that have been with-
held from them this year.

In short. a school system that has been cited as not obeying the law up to now,
but which decides to comply during the next school year, may retrieve the current
vear's funds it has lost and delay its fund cutoff hearing by simply spelling out
its intentions for the future.

The inteutions will have to be spelled out ; the Office of Education is not accept-
ing vague promises. The county whose funds are about to be restored laid down
a detailed plan for student and faculty desegregation, affecting some 10 per cent
of its Negro students.

But the significance of the new federal decision lies in its show of conciliation.
Counties that have done nothing to comply with the guidelines heretofore are not
to be consigned rurhlessly to the outer darkness; if they want to come back into
the light they’ll be welcomed and helped to catch up with the other school sys-
tems, with their past lag written off.

The emphasis has thus been turned more decisively to encouraging compliance
rather than terminating funds. Those reluctant schools that choose to do that
which they have not yet done are offered financial forgiveness for their past
omisxions,

Justice department lawsuits impend for the outright defiant, of course, so that
ultimately they will be desegregated by court order if not by the Office of Educa-
tion's new encouragement.

But the new policy of conciliation in place of punishment offers a way out of
the woods for those Georgia school systems wishing to take it.

Mr. Linasst. Thus far 50 districts which were inadequate last year
or this vear and had to be cited for fund termination of hearings have
come into compliance. In other words, Mr. Chairman, where we had
notified these districts for hearing they have taken action even after
they were notified for hearing and after we terminated the hearing
process.

Many other districts which would be cited for hearings took addi-
tional corrective measurements and thus came into comphance and
voluntarily.  Every effort will be continued to be made to encourage
dizstriects to follow this course of action. Thus far there are only 3,)
school districts in the entive United States that have had final orders
terminating Federal funds issued against them.

TWhile we must face the fact that 88 percent of the Negro children
in 11 Southern States continue to attend schools whose students are
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all or nearly all Negro, it is nevertheless the fact that since the adop-
tion and implementation of title VI of the Civil Rights Act, the num-
ber of Negro students attending desegregated schools has increased
markedly.

In 1964, it was 2.25 percent of the Negro students in desegregated
schools. 1In 1965 it was 6 percent and in September 1966 it was 12
percent. The progress in the six border States is even more impres-
sive with the dual school system nearly abolished in some.

In addition, more than half of the districts of the South have made
at least a start in faculty desegregation. The object of the Depart-
ment’s civil rights activity is not the termination of Federal funds.
Our goal is to assure that no person in the United States on the grounds
of race, color or national origin be excluded from participation in or
be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving
Federal financial assistance,

Mr. Chairman, I have two documents which T would like to submit
for the committee’s information and for the record. One is a memo-
randum from the General Counsel on the legal basis of the revised
guidelines.

The second is a letter from the Attorney General stating the need
to require faculty desegregation.

Chairman Perkixs. Without objection all of those documents will
be inserted in the record at this point.

{The documents referred to follow :)

MEMORANDUM
NOVEMBER 29, 196G,
To: The Secretary.
From : Alanson W. Willcox, General Counsel.
Subject: Review of Legal Authority for the 1966 School Desegregation
Guidelines.

Pursuant to your recent request, I have reviewed the legal authority for the
Revised Statement of Policies for School Desegregation Plans (the “Guidelines™)
and my earlier advice to you concerning the legal authority for it.

I have completed this review, and I unhesitantly reafirm myv advice that the
1966 Guidelines are fully consistent with and supported by title VI of the (‘ivil
Rights Act of 1964 and the decisions of Federal courts.

In addition to the analysis of court decisions in my memerandum of March 7,
1966, to Commissioner Howe, the pertinent decisions are dixcusved in a statement
entitled “Authority for the 1966 School Desegregation Guidelines.” That state-
ment served as an attachment to a letter of May 24, 1966, from Commissioner
Howe to Senator Fulbright. More recently the Courts of Appeals for the Fourth
and Fifth Circuits have handed down decisions in Wheeler v. Durliam City Board
of LEducation (No. 10,460, C.A. 4th, July 5, 1966) and Davis v. Board of School
Commeissioners of Mobile County (No. 22759, C.A. 5th, August 16, 1966). These
reaffirm principles upon which the Guidelines are based, particularly the fact
that teacher desegregation is an essential part ot the desegregation plans. Fur-
ther, in the 3Mobile case, the Court pointed out as one of the principal legal defects
in the plan there under review ‘“the fact that even as to those grades which,
under the plan, have actually become ‘desegregated’ there is no true subs@mce
in the alleged desegregation. Less than two-tenths of one per cent of the Negro
children in the system are attending white schools.”

The Deputy Attorney General recently submitted to Congressman Tloward }V.
Smith, Chairman of the House Rules Committee, a letter requested by Im_n
recarding faculty desegregation. The Chairman .h'nd V:‘lik(‘(l whether this
Department has authority, under title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, .m
require a school district maintaining a dual school system to' desegregate its
faculty as a necessary part of desegregating its school =ystem. The Dopnrtnw}lt
of Justice responded with a letter dated October 4, 1966, and an attachment cit-
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ing wunerous judicial decisions in which the courts had required school districts,
as o part of =chool desegregation plans, to cease hiring and assiguing faculty on
the basix of race and in many cases to assign teachers for the express purpose
of overcoming the effects of past discrimination. The letter concluded with the
following sentence: “For the foregoing reasons we conclude that section 601
[of the Civil Rights Act of 1964] applies to the desegregation of faculty and staff
ot scheol systems that have been racially segregated, and that section 604 [of
the ¢ivil Rights Act of 1964] does not preclude such application.”

1t <liould be noted, on the other hand, that the Report of the Senate Committee
on Avpropriations (pp. 71 and 72, Report No. 1631, 89th Cong., 2d Sess.) ques-
rioned whether the (Guidelines are consistent with legislative intent on the ground
that they allegedly require assignment of pupils in order to overcome racial
imbalance. The Committee apparently felt that the definition of “desegregation”
in section 401 (b) of the Act, and the provision of section 107(a) which provides
that *nothing herein shall empower any court or official to require the transporta-
tion of students to overcome racial imbalance.” were intended to be applicable
to actions under title VI and that the Guidelines required action to overcome
such imbalance.

We are satisfied that the Guidelines do not require action “to overcome racial
imbalance.” It should be noted, however, that section 402 specifies that the
definitrions it contains are “[als used in this title” [IV], and also that title VI
doex not contain the defined word “desegregation” ov the word “lesegregate.”
1t is therefore difficult to conceive of a court holding that, as a legal matter, the
title IV definition is controlling in title VI. Moreover, the context of the quoted
language in section 407 (a) indicates that it concerns only desegregation actions
bronght by the Attorney (eneral, and not the refusal or termination of Federal
financial assistance under title VI. The Senate Appropriations Committee
Report. however, is based upon statements made by Senator Humphrey in
response to questions asked by Senator Byrd of West Virginia.

Some time ago my staff prepared a statement showing that an examination
of the colloquy in context demonstrates that Senator Humphrey was not re-
ferring to requirements applicable to school districts which have been main-
taining dual school structures, but only to what would be imposed in de facto
situations which courts have held not to violate the constitutional rights of stu-
dents. In fact, Senator Humphrey emphasized that the provision in question
simply embodied the substance of Bell v. School City of Gary, 324 F. 2d 209 (C.A.
7th,(1963), cert. den. 377 U.S. 924). (110 Cong. Rec. 12715-12717, June 4, 1964)

The Guidelines are consistent with Senator Humphrey’s explanation because
he made clear at that time that the amendment did not prevent action “for the
purpose of preventing denial of equal protection of the laws.” [i.e, a violation
of the children's rights under the Fourteenth Amendment]. (110 Cong. Rec.
12714, June 4, 1964)

The Guidelines do not require more for the continuance of Federal assistance
than a plan looking toward the elimination of the dual school system as required
by the Fourteenth Amendment. These requirements are discussed in my
memorandum of March 7, 1966, and the attachment to Commissioner Howe’s let-
ter of May 24, 1966, to Senator Fulbright.

The performance provisions of which the Senate Appropriation Committee

report ix critical do no more than follow constitutional requirements. They
provide that for the school year 1966—67 a school district may comply with title
VI through operation of a choice plan under which schools continue to be main-
tained for Negroes. But if in praetice such plans are not making progress to-
ward the elimination of the dual school system, the Commissioner may require
that the school officials take further action to make progress or may require
a different type of plan such as geographic zoning (45 C.F.R. 181.54). ‘Where a
school district assigns children to schools on the basis of non-gerrymandered
geographic zoning, the effectiveness test referred to above does not apply.
" Obviously, a school system which has adopted a free choice desegregation plan,
but which is making little or no progress in the elimination of its dual school
<ystem, is not satisfying its conxtitutional obligation. ax defined by the decisions
of the Federal courts, to desegregate its schools. Just as obviously, the Com-
missioner of Education would not be satisfying his obligation under title VI and
the Regulation if he were to determine that such a plan is adequate to carry
out the purposes of title VI ) »

The percentages stated in the Guidelines do not provide a rigid rule for the
degree of progress required of each school district. They do, however, provide
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a guide to the Office of Education in determining whether or not a free choice
plan should be scheduled for review and a guide to the school district as to
what, in general, might be considered reasonable progress. In this same sec-
tion, there is an indication of what might be done in the event there is a sub-
stantial deviation from these expectations.

Any school district which believes it is being asked to do more than the law
requires has full recourse to an administrative proceeding and a thirty-day uoti-
fication to Congessional committees before a termination of Federal assistance
(xec. 602, Civil Rights Act of 1964). Moreover, if it believes the termination to
exceed the Commissioner’s authority under the law, it is entitled to judicial
review as provided in section 603.

In short, the decisions of the Federal courts establish that local school officials
who have in the past maintained separate schools for Negro and white children
are under a constitutional compulsion to provide a single desegregated school
system for all children. At no time did the Congress intend in title IV or else-
where in the Civil Rights Act of 1964 that any school child receive less than his
full measure of constitutional protection. The responsibility which school of-
ficials who are desegregating their school systems voluntarily must assume in
order to qualify for Federal assistance may not, if the purposes of title VI are to
be carried out. be any less than the responsibilities imposed on school officials by
the courts in recent school desegregation decisions. The Guidelines were issued
to inform school officials of what those responsibilities are and are in accord
with those decisions. If school systems assuming a lesser degree of responsi-
bility were permitted to receive Federal assistance, the purposes of title VI
would be thwarted.

MarcH 2, 1967.
Hon. RusseLL B. Loxg,
Chairman, Finance Committee,
U.8. Senate, Washington, D.C.

DEAR SENATOR LoNg: During the course of Secretary Gardner’s testimony
before your Committee on February 23, 1967, you raised the question whether
the Supreme Court’s decision in the Broiwcn case requires the desegregation of
a public school faculty in which teachers have previously been assigned on a
racial basis as part of a dual racial public school system. You asked that this
Department furnish the Committee a4 memorandum discussing the case law in
this area. The case law, I believe, clearly imposes on public school authorities
the affirmative, constitutional duty to desegregate their faculties so that the
rights of pupils to the ‘‘equal protection of the laws” under the Fourteenth
Amendment will no longer be denied.

In 1954 the Supreme Court of the United States declared that the segregation
of public school students according to race violates the Fourteenth Amendment.
Brown v. Board of Education, 347 U.S. 483 (1954). A year later, the Court, in
determining how judicial relief could best be fashioned, mentioned the problem
of reallocating staff as one of the reasons for permitting the desegregation
process to proceed with “all deliberate speed.” Brown v. Board of Education,
349 U.S. 294, 301 (1955).

Two cases decided by the Supreme Court in late 1965 indicate that school
boards may no longer postpone the respounsibility owed their students of de-
segregating faculty. In Bradley v. School Board of Richmond, Virginia, 382
U.S. 103 (1965), the Court took the view that faculty segregation had a direct
impact on a desegregation plan, and that it was improper for the trial court to
approve a desegregation plan without inquiring into the matter of faculty seg-
regation. In reaching this conclusion the Court. in a unanimous opinion, com-
mented that ‘“there is no merit to the suggestion that the relation between
faculty allocation on an alleged racial basis and the adequacy of the desegrega-
tion plans is entirely speculative.” And in ruling that there should be no further
delay in a hearing on the question of faculty desegregation, the Court further
emphasized that “delays in desegregation of school systems are no longer tol-
erable.” 382 U.S. at 105.

In Rogers v. Paul, 382 U.S. 198 (1965), the Supreme Court extended the un-
delayed right to challenge teacher segregation to students who had not vet
themselves been affected by the School Board’s gradual desegregation plan.
The Court stated (382 U.S. at 200) :

“Two theories would give students not yet in desegregated grades sufficient
interest to challenge racial allocation of faculty: (1) that racial allocation of




1516 ELEMEXNTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION AMENDMENTS

faculty denies them equality of educational opportunity without regard to segre-
cation of pupils; and (2) that it renders inadequate an otherwise constitutional
pupil desegregation plan soon to be applied to their grades.”

Relaying on the Bradley case, the Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit, the
circuit covering the states of Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Louisiana, Mississippi
and Texas, ruled in January 1966, in a suit also brought by Negro students,
that it was “essential” that the plan of desegregation for Jackson, Mississippi
“provide an adequate start toward elimination of race as a basis for the employ-
ment and allocation of teachers, administrators, and other personnel,” Singleton
v. Jackson Municipal Reparate School District, 355 F. 2d 865, 870. And in a case
decided in August 1966, the same Court ruled that the plan of desegregation
for Mobile, Alubama “must be modified in order that there be an end to the
present policy of hiring and assigning teachers according to race by the time the
last of the schools are fully desegregated for the school year 1967-65.”" Davis
v. Board of School Commissioners of 3Mobile County, 364 F. 2d 896, 904.

The Courts of Appeal for the IFourth Circuit (Maryland, North Carolina,
South Carolina. Virginia and West Virginia), the Eighth Circuit (Arkansas,
Towa. Minnesota. Missouri. Nebrask:a, North Dakota and South Dakota) and
the Tenrh Cirenir (Colomido. Kansas, New Mexico, Oklahoma. Utah and Wyo-
ming) have similarly held. In a suit brought by pupils in Durham, North
Caroling, the Court stiited:

“We read the {Brudicy] decision as authority for the proposition that re-
moval of race considerations from faculty selection and allocation is, as a
matter of law. an inseparable and indispensable command within the abolition
of pupil segregation in public schools as pronounced in Brown v. DBoard of
Education, supra. 347, U.S. 453. Hence no proof of the relationship between
faculty allocation and pupil assignment was required here. The only factual
issue iz whether race was a factor entering into the employment and place-
ment of teachers.” TWheeler v. Durham City Board of Education, 363 F. 2d
738, 740 (C. A. 4, 1966,

The Court in Wheeler went on to require (at p. 741):

“Vacant teacher positions in rhe fature . . . should be opened to all appli-
cants, and each ftilled by the best gualitied applicants regardless of race. More-
over. the order =hould encourage transfers at the next session by present mem-
bers of the faculty to schools in which pupils are wholly or predominantly of a
race othier than such teacher’s. A number of the faculty members have ex-
pressed a willingness to do =0, Combined with the employment of new teachers
regardless of race. this procedure will, within a reasonable time, effect the
dexegregation of the faculty.”

Chambers v. IHHendersonville Board of Education, 364 . 2d 189 (C.A. 4. 1966),
involved the problem of Negro teachers who lost their jobs when an all Negro
school was abolished. The School Board treated them as new applicants. The
Court held that thiz was discriminatory and invalid under the Fourteenth
Amendment, stating (at p. 192) ¢

“First. the mundate of Brown v. Board of Education, 347 U.S. 483 (1954),
forbids the consideration of race in faculty selection just as it forbids it in
pupil placetment.  See Whecler v. Durlian City Board of Education, 346 F. 2d
TGS, 773 (4 Cir. 19357, Thus the reduction in the number of Negro pupils did
not justify a corresponding reduction in the number of Negro teachers.
Franklin v. Countu Board of Gilca County. 360 F. 2a 325 4 Cir. 1966). Sec-
ond the Negro school teachers were public employees who could not be dis-
criminated against on account of their race with respect to their retention
in the system. Johnson v. Branch, 361 F. 2d 177 (4 Cir. 1966), and cases therein
cited. . . .”

In 2 suit brought by pupils in El Dorado, Arkansas, the Eighth Circuit Court
of Appeals recognized “rhe validity of the plaintiff's complaint regarding the
[School] Board's failure to integrate the teaching staff. Such discrimination
is preseribed by Browns and also the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the regulation
promulgated therennder.” Nemp v. Beasley, 332 F. 24 14, 22 (1965). The
Conrt elaborated on this theme in Swmith v. Board of Education of Marrilton,
365 F. 24 770, 778 (1966) :

“Tt is our firm conclusion that the reach of the Brown decisions, although
they specifically concerned only pupil discrimination. clearly extends to the
proscription of the emploryment and assignment of public school teachers on a
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racial basis. Cf. United Public Workers v. Mitchell, 330 U.S. 75, 100 (1947) ;
Wieman v. Updcgraff, 341 U.S. 183, 191-192 (1952). See Colorado Anti-Dis-
crimination Comm’n v. Continental Air Lines, Inc., 372, U.S. 714, 721 (1963).
This is particularly evident from the Supreme Court’s positive indications that
non-discriminatory allocation of faculty is indispensable to the validity of a
desegregation plan. Bradley v. School Board of the City of Richmond, supra ;
Rogers v. Paul, supra. This court has already said, ‘Such discrimination [fail-
ure to integrate the teaching staff] is prescribed by Brown and also the Civil
Rights Act of 1964 and the regulations promulgated thereunder.” Kemp v.
Brown, supra, p. 22 of 352 F. 2d.

In a recent decision of the Eighth Circuit, Clark v. Board of Education of
Little Rock School District, No. 18, 368 (December 15, 1966), the Court required
of the Little Rock. Arkansas School Board (slip op., p. 15) a “positive pro-
gram aimed at ending in the near future the segregation of the teaching and
operating staff.” The Court stated (slip op., p. 13) :

“We agree that faculty segregation encourages pupil segregation and is detri-
mental to achieving a constitutionally required non-racially operated school
system. It is clear that the Board may not continue to operate a segrezated
teaching staff. Bradley v. School Board of City of Richmond, 382 U.S. 103
(1965). ... It is also clear that the time for delay is past. The desegrega-
tion of the teaching staff should have begun many years ago. At this point
the Board is going to have to take accelerated and positive action to end dis-
criminatory practices in staff assignment and recruitment.”

The Court then proceeded to outline the essential ingredients which such
“action” must include (pp. 13-14) :

“First, . . . future employment, assignment, transfer, and discharge of
teachers must be free from racial consideration. Two, should the desegrega-
tion process cause the closing of schools employing individuals predominately
of one race, the displaced personnel should, at the very minimum, be absorbed
into vacancies appearing in the system.  Smith v. Board of Education of Morril-
ton. School District, No. 32, supra. Third. whenever possible, requests of indi-
vidual staff members to transfer into minority situations should be honored by
the Board. Finally, we believe the Board make all additional positive commit-
ments necessary to bring about some measure of racial balance in the staffs of
the individual schools in the very near future. The age old distinction of
‘white schools’ and ‘Negro schools’ must be erased. The continuation of such
distinctions only perpetrates inequality of educational opportunity and places
in jeopardy the effective future operation of the entire ‘freedom of choice
type plan.”

In a suit brought by pupils in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, the Court of Appeals
for the Tenth Circuit recently affirmed a lower court order requiring that by
1970 “there should be the same percentage of non-white teachers in each school
as there now is in the system.” Board of Education of Okluhoma City Public
Schools, Independent District No. 89 v. Dowell, No. 8523 (January 23. 1967),
slip op., p. 22, affirming, 244 F. Supp. 971. 977-97S (W.D. Okla. 1963). The
District Court had stated (p. 978) that such a requirement provided “for sta-
bility in school faculties during the integration process, . . . keying the change
to personnel turnover figures indicating that approximately 15¢ of the total
faculty is replaced each year.” Although the evidence showed that there was
no ditference in the quality of performance between the white and non-white
personnel in the school system, the Court of Appeals held (p. 22) that where
“integration of personmnel exists only in schools having both white and non-white
pupils, with no non-white personnel employed in the central administration
section of the system,” there is “racial discrimination in the assignment of
teachers and other personnel.” Relying on the Supreme Court's decisions in
Bradley and Rogers, the Court stated (p. 22) that “[t]he [lower court] order
to desegregate faculty is certainly a necessity initial step in the effort to cure
the evil of racial segregation in the school system.”

Numerous district courts, in applying the law as elucidated by the Supreme
Court and the courts of appeal of their various circuits, have entered orders
in school desegregation cases requiring the desegregation of faculty and staff.
In entering such orders, a few of the district courts have also set forth their
reasons in memorandum opinions. One such opinion was issued by the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia in refusing to approve
a plan submitted by the School Board of Greensville County, Virginia, on the
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ground that the plan must. but failed, to include a provision for the employ-
ment and assignment of staff on a nonracial basis. Wright v. County Board
of Greensville County. Virginia, 252 F. Supp. 378 (E.D. Va. 1966). In hold-
ing that a faculty desegregation provision approved by the Commissioner of
Education was not sufficient, the court stated (at 384) :

“The primary respousibility for the selection of means to achieve employment
and assignment of staff on a nonracial basis rests with the school board. . . .
Several principles must be observed by the board. Token assignments will not
suffice. The elimination of a racial basis for the employment and assignment of
staff must be achieved at the earliest practicable date. The plan must contain
well defined procedures which will be put into effect on definite dates. The board
will be allowed ninety days to submit amendments to its plan dealing with staff
employment and assignment practices.”

The United States District Court for the Western District of Virginia. in pro-
viding for similar relief in the case of Brown v. County School Board of Frederick
County, 245 F. Supp. 549, 560 (1965), said :

“[T]he presence of all Negro teachers in a school attended solely by Negro
pupils in the past denotes that school a ‘colored school’ just as certainly as if the
words were printed across its entrance in six-inch letters.”

See also Kier v. County School Board of Auguste County, 249 F. Supp. 239, 247
(W.D. Va.1966).

The cases which I have reviewed establish, in my judgment, the constitutional
duty of school authorities to disestablish imposed racial segregation of facilities
and recognized that this obligation emanates from the principles enunciated in
the Brown decision.

Sincerely,
RAMSEY CLARK,
Deputy Attorney General.

Chairman Perkixs. In connection with the preparation of your
guidelines have you gone on the advice of the Attorney General and
discusszed the guidelines with the \ttorney General as required by sec-
tion 6 of the Civil Rights Act and the interpretation of that act?

Have you followed the advice of the Attorney General?

AMr. Tasasst. Yes, Mr. Chairman. The Attorney General’s Office
was very deeply involved in the drafting and preparation and discus-
sions connected with the development of the school guidelines.

I might also add that every enforcement procedure must be checked
with the Department of Justice before it is initiated. We do not move
to terminate Federal funds unless the Department of Justice concurs.

Chairman Perki~s. Isee.

You have never moved to terminate Federal funds on any enforce-
ment. proceeding before vou have checked it out with the Attorney
General?

Mr. Linasst. That is right, and in every case where we have recom-
mended it he has concurred in our recommendation.

Chairman Perxixs. I thank vou very much for a good statement.

Mr. Scheuer.

Mr. Scuevrr. T have no questions.

Chairman Perxixs, Mr. Steiger.

Mr. Steicer. T wish it had bheen possible to know that you were
@oing to appear this morning. I think that many more members of
the committee might have been interested in hearing your testimony
had it heen announced. T would appreciate, to be very honest with
vou, Mr. Chairman. and T am sorry I did not hear the full testimony
although T have gone back and read it since you got here, but I wonder
if it would be possible to have another appearance so more members

would have a chance to listen to this problem?
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Chairman Perxixs. It will not be possible to have another hearing
uniess you want it on Monday. If you want it Monday we can have
another appearance but we have to start marking the bill up on
Tuesday.

I thought it was generally understood that the administration
would be back here on the day that we wrapped up these hearings.
I would be delighted to let these witnesses come back here on Monday
if you want them back here on Monday but today was the day
announced to conclude the hearings and there is nothing here—I just
wish all of the members were here. I thought everybody knew that
the administration witnesses would be back here today.

Mr. Stecer. I am sorry, Mr. Chairman. I did not realize that.
On behalf of at least two of the members that I know of who ex-
pressed an interest in discussing the guidelines situation, may I ask if
witnesses would be willing to come back on Monday for that purpose?

I think it would be well.

Chairman Perrins. I will ask the gentlemen to come back on
Monday for that purpose.

Mr. Stercer. In your statement you make the point that the border
States had a more impressive record. Do you have that information
for the record?

Mr. Lipasst. Yes, we do have for the record a statistical analysis
of the performance of the individual States. I might by way of
summary say that in September of 1966, nearly 68 percent of all of
the Negro children were attending schools on a desegregated basis in
the six border States—nearly 65 percent were on a desegregated
basis in the border States. Those are schools districts—schools which
have at least one white school in the school district. Perhaps the
more accurate figure would be that nearly 45 percent of the Negro
children are in substantially desegregated schools, that is where there
are more than just a few white children in the school.

Mr. Strieer. Forty-five percent in the six border States?

Mr. Lipasst. That is right. in Delaware 85 percent, in Kentucky
89 percent, in Maryland it is 40 percent, in Missouri it is 27 percent,
Oklahoma is 40 percent and West Virginia is 83 percent of the Negro
students in those States are attending schools in substantially de-
segregated schools.

Mr. Stereer. Can you give me any indication, just hurriedly going
back through the paper here, you had 50 districts which made inade-
quate progress last year and had to be cited for fund termination
hearings which have since come into compliance.

Mr. Lasassi. That is right.

Mr. Stereer. How many for which vou had fund termination hear-
ings did not come into compliance ?

Mr. Limasst. At the present time we have 33 school districts
which have gone through the entire administrative process under
title VI and have been terminated for receiving any Federal funds.
That is 35 school districts out of about 5,000, I might add.

In addition, we have 177 school districts that are currently in ad-
ministrative hearing stages. Some of these districts we hope will
come into compliance during the course of the hearings or before or
after but at the present time there are 177 that have been notified
foru hearing.
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Mr. Stercer. Can vou give me any indication of the 35 school dis-
tricts: ave these all in the Deep South?

Mr. Lmassr. Yes, they are. There are two in Alabama, four in
Arkansas, five in Georgia, 16 in Louisiana, seven in Mississippi, one
in South Carolina.

Mr. Steicer. Of the 177 that you indicated have they been given
notice of hearings?

Mr. Lisassr. That is right.

Mr. STEIGER. Arve these also all southern districts?

Mr. Lipasst. Yes they are. May I list them for you?

Mr. Steiger. List?

Mr. Lipasst. Alabama, 51: Arkansas, seven; Florida, two; Georgia,
33 ; Louisiana, three ; Mississippi, 41; North Carolina, 11; South Caro-
lina, 16 ; Tennessee, three ; Texas, two; and Virginia, eight.

Mr. Stercer. Can vou give me any indication whether you are fol-
lowing the procedure required by last year’s amendment to ESEA for
a hearing within 60 days of notice that a school district is not in com-
pliance ?

Mr. Lizasst. Since the adoption of that amendment, we have noti-
fied all cases.

We have given all cases an opportunity for a hearing or we have
listed deferral against these districts and they are receiving their
Federal funds. In other words, the 177 districts that have been noti-
fied for a hearing have been notified in accordance with the Fountain
amendment. Their funds are being deferred and will be continued to
be deferred according to the provisions of that statute.

There are 12 of 177 where no funds are being deferred at all be-
cause the 60 days have elapsed and therefore deferral was lifted.
er. SteGER. The deferral was lifted and the funds were with-
drawn?

Mr. Lieisst. The funds were reinstated to those districts because
the 60 days had passed. There were 12 districts that are currently
under notification of hearing where that took place.

In addition. in some of the 177, the school districts themselves have
asked for adjournament of the hearing or continuation of the hear-
ing beyond the 60 days and as provided by the statute where it is mu-
tually agreed then deferral will continue but any district that wants a
hearing within the 60 days we must and have offered it to them.

Mr. Striger. Can you give me any indication as to what you are
doing in terms of examining and viewing those city school district
systems for de facto segregation rather than what might be called
actual segregation in the southern system?

Mr. Lisasst. Yes, the title VI applies to all 50 States and where-
ever we are able to establish that there was a policy and practice by
law of a northern school district segregating students title VI applies.

We have conducted investigations in some 30 cities in the North
where some complaints were lodged alleging discrimination and seg-
regation. Where we have been able to we have made recommendations
to these districts for corrective action they may wish to take.

Most of the districts have voluntarily taken this course of action.
We have not initiated any hearings in the North. We have found that
most of the districts—it has been our experience—I know of only one
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that has given us only recently some difficulties, but most of the dis-
tricts have been willing to provide us information and to take cor-
rective action to deal with their problem.

The problem of title VI as applying to the North is that the legisla-
tive history made it very clear that the Circuit court decision in the
case of Bell v. Gary. Ind., was the governing principle for title VI,
and that means that title VI applies only where there is an estab-
lished violation of constitutional rights.

That 1s the principle which guides the Department in administering
the program.

Mr. Stercer. What you are saying is that your own ability to en-
force title VI is dependent upon de jure patterns of segregation, that
1s, patterns imposed by action of law in a school svstem.

Mr. Lizasst. That 1s right.  The state of the law in this is to say
the least confusing. We have one cirenit court decision which says
there is no constitutional obligation on a school board to desegrate
its schools if the segregation were brought about by circumstances
beyond its control.

That is the Bell v. Gary, Ind., case. However, there is a district
court case, Springfield, Mass., which said that there is an obliga-
tion and on the school board to correct it, so we have a confused pic-
ture of the law.

Nevertheless, the legislative history clearly indicated that the Bell
versus Gary. Ind., case was to be the governing principle, and we have
followed that.

It is a very good idea to know the difference hetween de jure and de
facto segregution. I have a real question as to whether or not there
issuch a thing as de facto segregation.

Mr. Strieer. What you are saying from your standpoint vou enforce
title VI on the basis of the Bell v. (Zary, Ind., decision as your method
of interpreting de jure segregation /

Mr. Lipassr. That is right.

Mzr. Steierr. We could ask because T think it is an interesting ques-
tion, you say that you don’t know quite what de facto segregation is.
Do you define it ?

Mr. Lisassr. No, we don’t define it and the Supreme Court has not
defined it yet and therefore we are limited to the wording of the Bell
case which says there must be some intent or design to deprive the
children of their constitutional rights.

We do not define de facto segregation.  For instance in the (hicago
case, we said there are many serious problems of racial segregation in
the city of Chicago which may violate a title VI. The school board
was willing to take corrective action and deal with their problems.
Therefore we never do get to the issue of whether or not what exists
in that particular city was or was not a violation of title V1.

Mr. Stererr. What kind of basis do you have for trying to deter-
mine the intent or design ?

Mr. Lmasst. When a complaint is filed that alleges that a school
district is segregated and is violating title VI, the regulation requires
that we conduct an investigation. The investigation attempts to ascer-
tain what are the facts in the situation and how did the facts come
about, what. were the decisions of the board which brought about the
pattern of segregation.
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That is the basis on which we make the inquiry.

Mr. Stercer. When vou say what brings about the pattern of segre-
cation. on the basis of the complaint, let’s take Milwaukee, for exam-
ple, where because they use neighborhood schools they have had what
could be called, I suppose, a pattern of segregation. Is this what you
mean ?

My, Lipasst. No. if a school board gerrymanders attendance zones
to avoid integration in the schools, that would be a board decision in
violation of the Constitution, the New Rochelle case establishes that,
and therefore that would be a violation of title V1.

If the school board deliberately established a feeder pattern so cer-
tain elements—certain elementary schools fed only certain high schools
designed in such a way to preserve segregation, that would be a board
action to maintain a pattern of segregation in violation of the Con-
stitution.

We have possibilities of some school districts arranging transfer
rights so that certain children may transfer fo a white school if they
live in a transitional neighborhood. This would be considered a viola-
tion of title VI but it is much more difficult to establish this pattern
than it is in the South where there was a clear legally established
white school and legally established Negro school, so the pattern in
the South is much more obvious.

Mr. Stercer. Mayv I ask you just two more questions?  No. 1, as you
know the Civil Rights Commission has recommended that we by law
set a ficure of 50 percent whites and nonwhites in schools and that
achieved segregation.

From your own experience and backeround in this field, sir, is
this a good move to make? Ts this something we should do?

Mr. Lisassi. The problem really is one—the problem the Com-
mission was addressing itself to was the fact that Negro children
attending segregated schools do less adequately and enjoy less in the
way of educational opportunity than when Negro children are attend-
ing desegregated schools.

The Commission study found that when Negro children are attend-
ing predominantly white schools they do much better than when they
are in a school which has only a mmority of white students.

I don’t believe that the problem is one of a percentage point. the
problem is one that Negro children do well in schools which the com-
munity views as white schools. schools which do not have the status
and stigma of being an inferior Negro school. and at what point that
is arrived at varies.

Evidence seems to indicate that someplace in the neighborhood of
40 to 60 percent when a school district is 40 percent white, the Negro
children don't enjoy equal opportunity but as the number of white
students increases to 60 percent, they found the stigma and status of
the school changed. So T think this is where this question of the
50 percent comes in. I am not sure that they actually recommended
that but T think they are trying to get at the point of the status of
the =chool.

When the statns of the school changes, it is clear that the educa-
tional opportunity for the children changes. The other thing iz white
children were not adversely affected when Negro students attended
the school with them. That was their other major finding.
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Mr. Steicer. This concerns me because I wonder if when we get
into this question of how we try to achieve quality of education in a
deprived area school, in what you call inferior type of situation, is it
that we have to get the kids out of that school or do we need some-
thing more into the school ¢

Is this where we need the better teachers and more and more facili-
ties in order to broaden their horizons! Are we going to solve our
problem by taking them out of the school to get them to a more nearly
equal situation or can you achieve quality education in a predomi-
nantly white school situation?

Mr. Lisasst. I would not want to try to interpret the Commission's
statistical research, but I believe they are noting the fact that Negro
children in predominantly white schools, regardless of their home
background, regardless of the educational achievement of their par-
ents, when Negro children are in predominantly white schools their
educational achievement increases noticeably and measurably.

The Commission report also found of the compensatory education
programs thus far attempted, on the scale thus far attempted were
not adequate over the long run to achieve a permanent improvement
in the educational achievement of the children.

I do not believe they are suggesting that all remedial educational
programs are inadequate nor are they suggesting that all Negro chil-
dren would improve just by being 1n an integrated school so there
is clearly a need to maintain efforts to improve the quality of educa-
tion at the same time that we are attempting to increase the integrated
or desegregated opportunities for children.

Mr. SteiGer. Let me ask you just one more question. You have
indicated when you receive a complaint, let’s say from a northern
school system or from a northern big city, it is at that point that the
Commission and the Department will go in for an investigation to
determine the pattern of segregation.

What is the form of the complaint? Does the school board against
whom the complaint is made know of the complaint and know what
the complaint is?

How do you work this system?

Mr. Ligasst. The complaints are—that are certainly receiving the
most. of our time and attention are usually from responsible organi-
zations in the local community that document the pattern or extent
to which children are segregated and indicate the extent to which
decisions of the board may have influenced the segregation in the
system.

When we receive these complaints a copy of the complaint is pro-
vided to the school board.

Mr. Steieer. With the information as to the responsible group
that made the complaint.

Mr. Lipasst. Yes, to my knowledge when an organization files a
complaint thisis done. It is not the general rule to indicate the iden-
tity of the individuals as a general rule. and this is particularly in
handling southern complaints because of the intimidation of com-
plainants but we usually send the school districts a copy of the com-
plaint in advance and ask them to advise us to the extent that they
can by mail what they know about the complaint and the eivenm-
stances surrounding it.
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Mr. SteceEr. You made the statement that you usually provided it.
Do you always provide it or do you usually provide it?

Mrs. Marrix. We don't always provide a copy of the complaint but
the experience has been that a complainant in a northern school dis-
trict will generally try to deal with the school board first, sending a
copy of their complaint to the =chool board even before they send it to
us and they sort of ure u= ax a last rezort, realizing that we don’t have
too much muscle in the northern school district situation.

Mr. Stercer. I would only make the observation that I think it
would be appropriate for you to always provide the board with the
complaint. You may not necessarily wish to identify and I can
appreciate the situation in the southern school system in which you
might not want to identify the specific person involved but it would
only be appropriate from your standpoint as well as the board’s to
have an opportunity to review the complaint.

Mr. Lipasst. If it is not the complaint itself, it is the essence of
the complaint and the allegations are fully made to the school district.
We do not wander into a school district and engage in an investiga-
tion which does not disclose fully the problems which have been
brought to our attention and these are made fully available to the
school district.

T will see to it and make sure on Monday that that it is the case,
that there is no effort on our part.

Mr. Steteer. I think it would be well to do that.

Do veu always inform the school district prior to the coming into
the distriet for an investigation that you will be there?

My, Liasst, Yes, sir: that iz done.” In our southern field investiga-
tions we do not inform the school district that we are interviewing
parents or children but we do inform and advise the school district
that we are coming into the school district and wish to discuss the
case with them.

Mr. Steicrr. Can vou give me an opportunity to fill me in on why
vou may handle the South differently from the North in these kinds of
problem areas?

Mr. Lipassr. Most of our southern complaints come from small
rural districte. There is a serious problem of safety, physical safety
as well ns economic reprisals which is a constant danger that the peo-
ple are living under in these smaller more isolated distriets.

Mr. STEIGER. Is there a legal difference between what you do in the
North and in the South?

Mr. Lisassr. There is a difference in responsibility in terms of the
protection of the individual parents and children who may be raising
complaints. In the South we tell—we always tell the school district
exactly the nature of the complaint and we have fully disclosed the
problem which has been brought to onr attention and frequently we
must disclose the identity of the parent if it is a problem that a parent
alleges a child was improperly disciplined.

Of comrse we have 1o reveal the identity of the child to conduct the
investioation. But if it is a general complaint that children are gen-
erally harassed in the corridors of the school and teachers are not tak-
ing adequate steps to prevent the harassment of the schools, we
simply advise the superintendent we received this complaint, ask him
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to look into it and ask him what corrective steps he can take to make
sure the children are not harassed in the school.

In those cases it 1s not necessary to reveal the identity but where it
is necessary, we make it available.

Mr. Stricrr. What you arve saving is this is an administrative de-
cislon as to how you will handle it. It iz not covered by the statutory
language or the rules promulgated by the Department,

Mr. Lmsasst. Title VI regulation which was approved by the Presi-
dent, and T have some copies here, specifically provides that the iden-
tity of the complainant shall not be revealed.

In secrion 80.7(e) the identity of complainants shall be kept con-
fidential except to the extent necessary to carry out the purposes of
this part including the conduct of any investigation, hearing or judicial
proceeding arising thereunder.

Mr. Sreicer. That 1s in the administrative rules that the President
drew up fortitle VI?

Mr. Lapasst. Yes, sir; that is right,

Mr. See1cer. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Perkivs, Mr. Scheuer.

Mr. Scuecer. Can you tell us whether the courts have passed on
the constitutionality and the appropriateness of your guidelines?

Mr. Lisasst. The Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals, in a three-judge
court, recently issued an extensive ruling finding that the provisions
and requirements of the guidelines were proper, were constitutional
and were in accord with the law. The three-judge court thereupon
directed that a general decree be fashioned applicable to all of the
districts in the circuit which would establish a uniform plan for
desegregation of school districts under voluntary choice which is iden-
tical to the guidelines provisions adopted by ITEW,

Now on the 10th of this month, the full 12-judge court reheard argu-
ment on this case.  Decision has not been rendered as vet.

Mr. Srarcer. Is this the Judge Wisdom decision in New Orleans?

Mr. Lagasst. That is right. This is the most recent and the most
comprehensive. There have been other decisions of other courts
either specifically affirming the guidelines or adopting provisions or
saying that they are minimal so that the fifth cireuit decision, the re-
cent one is not the only one that has been rendered.

Mr. Scurvrr. In other words other courts have affirmed the valid-
ity of the guidelines?

Mr. Lisasst. Perhaps Mr. Bell, Mr. Chairman, might be able to
that statement.

Mr. Bern, I think the last three or four times in which the Fifth
Circuit Court of Appeals which handles the great bulk of the school
desegregation litigation has handed down decisions in the past few
vears, they have commented most favorably about the guidelines.
They have indicated that they would accord the guidelines a high
place as minimum standards in determining appropriate desegrega-
tion plans for school districts. i

It was their intention to then attach great weieht to the standards
established by the Office of Education asserting that absent legal ques-
tions the U8, Office of Education is hetter qualified than the courts
and is the more appropriate Federal body to weight these plans.
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They thought they were minimal. and they doubted that they would
ever he too high.  The Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit which
in terms of school desegregation involves Arkansas has made similar
stateients in the last two or three times in whieh it has ruled in school
desegregation cases, again indicating in modeling its decree or deter-
mining the type of decree the district court should formulate it should
give great welght to the Oftice of Education guidelines.

Most recently the Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit, al-
though talking most specifically about the hospital guidelines has also
indicated its approval of the kinds of standards for dessegregation
that the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare has
promulgated.

Mr. ScuEUER. I take it that the Federal courts have ruled on the
applicability of the Supreme Court decision in some so-called problem
States in the South like Louisiana, Georgia, South Carolina, Missis-
sippi. How would you compare the severity or the stringency of the
Federal court’s interpretation of the Supreme Court in the pattern of
compliance that they have established with the severity or stringency
of the guidelines?

Mr. BeLL. It is a hard question.

Mr. Scurver. Are the guidelines, in effect, more severe and more
stringent and rigid than the circuit court—the Supreme Court inter-
pretation and decision? Are they in fact more strict?

Mr. BerL. The guidelines and the earlier ones were based in the
main on a summary of all of the court decisions so from that stand-
point I would say they were no more strict.

What happened of course——

Mr. ScurvEr. In other words they have not gone beyond ?

Mr. BewL. I think they have not gone beyond, but in looking at our
charts revealing all of the school districts listed down and we will
have a column with all of the court order districts and we will find in
many of the Deep South States there is more progress being made in
the districts desegregating under HEW guideines than those operat-
ing under court order.

Mr. Scaeuer. How do you explain that?

Mr. Bern. We have been able to give a closer supervision of the
standards under the guidelines than have courts been generally
willing or able to provide in a judicial sense.

Judge Wisdom has said in his opinions and Judge Tuttle has said
on the bench and in his opinions and in speeches that the courts are
pretty poor places in which to administer a school system and they
would like to get out from under it and that they just can’t handle all
of the kinds of problems that come up.

They may issue a specific order, they have to issue a specific order,
and the school board attornevs sit down and say, “Well they said this
but they left the door open. ha, ha, ha.” and they go on their way while
they try the same thing with the HEW guidelines someone else sends
in a complaint or we can much more easily or readily say, “No that
avenue is not open either.”

So vou do tend to have more progress in a closer administration of
the progress than ig possible under the court orders.

Mr. Lisassie. I might add to that that the earlier court decisions
required far less than the HEW guidelines.
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The HEW guidelines are in step with the current most recent court
decision. They do not go beyond them. The significance of the fifth
circuit decree 1s in its most recent case is that it would, in effect, bring
up to date all of the court orders issued earlier in this process up to
the point that the court is now establishing for the districts.

Mr. ScuEUER. I just want to clarify in my own mind that the guide-
lines have not extended their mandate beyond the aveas and guide-
lines established by the Federal courts.

Mr. Linasst. The guidelines require no more than what the courts
have been requiring, particularly the circuit courts.

Chairman Perxixs. Before you leave this point I personally am
very much impressed with the way you are handling the guideline
problem which always causes considerable criticism, which in reality,
on occasion, could be discrimination in reverse.

I make that statement because as a young prosecuting attorney I
had an awfully lot of experience with misdemeanors and felonies not
complying with the law and so on. 'When we fail to give a local edu-
cational agency the basis of that complaint or fail to furnish them
with a copy of the exact complaint, we are really not complying with
the standards of justice that have been handed down to us through
centuries and centuries.

I don’t think we should have a different standard of justice through-
out the country. It should be uniform in the North as well as in the
South. I make this observation because I think none of us is infallible
and we will slip up occasionally but I think in the future where you
could furnish all local school districts the exact nature of the com-
plaint, then everybody will know that it is not unfounded and it is
not inspired for some selfish motive and it will work and redound to
the benefit of the Office of Education in administering the guidelines
in bringing about what you are seeking at the earliest possible date.

I just make that assertion because, as a prosecuting attorney, so
many people came to me and wanted to prosecute but did not want to
get out in the open, and I would just say, “Well, you have no case.”

I think the same holds true everywhere under our system of gov-
ernment. That would help you in a better, more helpful administra-
tion. I know the situation has been different in the North from the
South. I recognize all of those aspects of your problem, but I will
say by and large I think you have done an excellent job.

T do not mean to be critical but we can always improve a little more.

Mr. Lisasst. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Let me assure yvou that
the Secretary is very strict that this program must be operated as
fairly as it is humanly possible to administer a program and we are
extremely cautious in dealing with civil rights that we do not abuse
civil liberties and no funds to a school district are terminated except
on evidence presented before a hearing examiner publicly according
to the school district full opportinity to cross-examine witnesses and
full disclosure of all the information to a hearing examiner which
would be the basis for a decision to terminate funds.

Chairman Prrkins. I thought that was the poliey. There is no
termination until the local educational agency has the exact nature of
the charge and has the right to cross-examine witnesses, clearly wet
their point of view before the Office of Education. That statement
iz correct ?

T5-402-—AT-—pt. 2——43
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Mr. Lipasst. That is right.

Chairman Perxixs. Mr. Dellenback.

Mr. Derrexsack. 1 apologize for not having been here for your
full testimony. I read vour statement, Mr. Libassi. I am sorry I
nicsed the other additions that went on in my absence but there are
a couple of areas that I would like to have some further informa-
tion on.

As I read vour statement, I =ee that your title deals with special
assistants for civil rights, the question arises in my mind, how do you
attempt to measure at all, the effect on education of the moves you
take in the direction of desegregation !

Your statisties that vou cited at the end are statistics relative to
what/ What meazure do you have of the effect of these moves on
edueation?

Your comment is really running to a thing that any of us who have
worked in education in either our State or any other basis are con-
corned about =chool district consolidation arve well aware of. We
know where there is no problem of segregation at all that you do have
the separate educaional problem of consolidation and certainly ad-
vantages flow.

We ave aware of thiz.  But let’s talk about meshing in the improve-
ment of education with the enforcement of policies of integration.
You give us a statistic in the tail end of vour presentation. It deals
with the number of Negro students attending desegregated schools
lLias increased markedly and vou give the percentages.

This deals with seuregation and integration. What is the effect of
this action on the educational quality of the school aside from the
consolidation problems? Talke a small school as an example.

Mr. Lipassi. The only studies we have—and I must admit this is
an area of ocrowing research but the equal opportunities study of the
Office of LEducation and the recently released report of the Civil
Rights Commission—both of these studies verify the finding that the
educational achievement of Negro children increases measurably and
permanently when they are integrated in schools which are predomi-
nantly white.

Mr. DrLLENBACK. Who made this particular study ?

Mr Tipisst. The equal opportunity study was made by the Office
of Education.

Mr. Scugcer. That is the so-called Coleman report ?

M. Lisasst, That is right. And in addition the U.S. Commission
on Civil Rights recently released a report on racial isolation in public
schools and their study also verified the fact that in terms of verbal
skills the Neero children did far better when they moved to an in-
tegrated school.

"\1co the studies show that the longer a child attends an integrated
<chool the better are his grades and better is his educational achieve-
ment record. o that the evidence does indicate that when a child
moves into an integrated school which is predominantly white his
achievement increases.

The earlier he starts in an integrated school. the greater will be
his achievement and the longer he stays in an integrated school.

AMr. Dencexsack. Perhaps T should ask this question with my left
eve cocked toward my colleague from New York. IHas there been a
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dropoff in any way by those in the school before or has there been
an improvement with the new additions

Mr. Lisassi. Where Negro students ave introduced into predomi-
nantly white schools there 1s no measurable disadvantage to the white
children in the school.

The studies also indicate where a minority of the children are white,
they are not affected favorably by being in predominantly Negro
schools. In essence what the studies are showing is that where you
have a majority white school and you introduce a minority of Negro
children in the school, the Negro children do better and there is no dis-
advantage to the white children.

On the other hand, when you have an all Negro school which has the
stigma of inferior status in the community, Negro children do poorly
and if you have some white children in that school they will do poorly
also.

Mr. Deeexsack. What is this?

Mr. Lisasst. It is not clear.  There are some authorities who would
say that the experience of attending a school which the students know
or feel is inferior, that the teachers believe is inferior, that the school
administrators believe is inferior, and which the community looks
upon as inferior, where everyone’s expectation is that the performance
will be poor, the teachers and students tend to measure down to the
low achievement expected.

Mr. Seneter. You might refer to that as a self-fulfilling prophecy.

Mr. Linasst. Yes,

Mr. Berr. We have a growing debate—if you have a Negro school
and white school in which the quality of teachers and the size of the
building and so on are the same, in many of the school districts we are
dealing with that are giving us problems and where we are making
some progress, we don’t reach that kind of problem. Before I came
on hoard to help the Government I worked as an attorney with one of
the large civil rights organizations and tried to supervise roughly 200
school desegregation cases.

In the process I got to travel fairly widely. The kind of discussion
we are having here is not the problem. To see the equipment, the kids
piled on to the busses, the lack of adequate playground facilities, the
general poor quality of the teachers was to know without making care-
ful balancing and measuring that no really decent education could be
obtained in these schools.

When we get to the other kind of thing that the Civil Rights Com-
mission is weighing, it deals more with the kind of problem of what
can we do with the northern schools. Can we do something with the
ghetto schools? T think someone raised the question by input, Mr.
Steiger said, or do we have to take the kids out.?

That is another problem. In the South in the districts which we
are dealing with in the main, that is not the problem.

Mr. Deccexsack. In earlier testimony over the last several weeks—
I think some of the questioning was by the chairman—I thought a
sound point was made that at least caused me some concern.

Do we find ever in view of what is available under title T of “Educa-
tion, Elementary and Secondary,” where we are dealing with special

aids to the educationally disadvantaged that when we push desegrega-
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tion we find two forces which work against each other, that there might
be in a =chool some special help that is coming under title I, “IElemen-
tary and Secondary.” to improve the educational procedures perhaps
in an all Negro school and vou integrate some of these children in an
all white school which does not have these special programs and in
effect they lose in part although they perhaps by what you just said
may be gaining in part?

Have any studies been made of these cross-eftects?

Mr. Lisissi. Not to my knowledge. However, the Office of Educa-
tion is making it clear to the school districts that where a child moves
from a segregated school to a desegregated school that the title I pro-
gram and projects would be available to assist that child in the deseg-
regated school.

I am not too familiar with this. This is not my area of specialty
but let. me say some districts felt the only place they could provide
the title I program was in the all-Negro segregated school which
tended to retard the desegregation of the school.

The Office of Education has now made it clear that the title I project
may follow the child when he moves into a desegregated school and
I would be happy to submit for the record the memorandum of the
Commissioner of Education on this matter. I am not suggesting that
desegregation is the single only objective of Federal educational policy,
it is not. It is clear that the Federal policy is one of improving the
quality of education for every child as we mcrease the desegregation
experience for as many children as possible at the same time.

Mr. DeLrexBack. Personally. Mr. Chairman, I would welcome for
the record this memorandium.

Chairman Perxixs. Without objection 1t is so ordered.

{ The documents referred to appears on p. 1621.)

Mr. Derrexsack. In addition to that I can see certain problems
that would arise as a practical matter if you move a 10th of a school
out into another area.

If vou then try to move title I moneys along with them, you either
compound the segregation in the new school because you are now
going to take this new group and put them aside and give them spe-
cial treatment which means they are not really desegregated or else
vou take one-tenth of the moneys that are necessary and spread them
too thinly across evervbody’s new schools some of which do not need
it and it just does not do the job or you have some of this type of me-
chanical problem or you multiply the money by 10 so everybody gets
the special program and there is not that much money so I see prob-
lems along that line.

Mr. Lisasst. There ave and T did not mean to imply with a flip
answer that there was. An effort is being made not to discontinue
programs which children need as part of the desegregation. But I
must say that the experiences of the children in desegregated =chools,
{he children I have spoken to. their experience in desegregated schools
i= such a positive opportunity for expanding educational opportunity
that it is most impressive to see that both desegregation and improving
the qualities of education through funds ean improve equal educa-
tional opportunities for children.
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Mr. DELLENBACK. So there is no misunderstanding. let me say I am
greatly concerned with equal opportunities and I think it is tremen-
dously important.

I sit here today as a member of the Education Committee concerned
about the problem of education and being sure that what looks like
an advantageous step in one field does not prove to be disadvantageous
in the area which is of the primary concern of this committee : namely,
that the educational opportunities are advanced as rapidly and as
thoroughly as possible.

I do not know that this needs to go into the record because I sus-
pect Mr. Perkins and Mr. Scheuer are aware of these other studies on
the impact of these moves but if possible I would like to see some of
these studies.

I do not know if we have them in the committee’s file.

Mr. Lisasst. T would be glad to make them available to vou and
have staff available to discuss them.

Mr. Deccexpack. I would be interested in knowing what studies
have been made in this particular area on this particular point.

Following this, if T may, you have eliminated a second question I
jotted down as I was trying to think the problem through and that is
how do we coordinate the work of the Secretary for civil rights with
the work of the Commissioner for Education ?

Your answer as I read you is that you coordinate it by making the
commissioner for education responsible so that he does not have to
worry about what the secretary in civil rights is doing, and the respon-
sibility falls on Mr. Howe: is that right?

Mr. Lisasst. T am a poliey adviser to the Secretary. T attempt
to coordinate the activities of the agency. I handle the relationships
with the Justice Department. I consult with the Comimissioner on
policy but the decision on policy is the Commissioner of Education
In conjunction with the Secreary of the Department but the Commis-
sioner is the one who issues the guidelines, who decides what the guide-
lines will provide and what they will not provide.

It is the Commissioner who determines whether to terminate funds
to a particular school district, it is the Commissioner who decides
whether progress iz adequate or inadequate and it iz the Commissioner
who attempts to integrate these varionus programs.

Mr. DErrexpack. In this field of education to the extent that vou
are responsible even to assist, vou are acting as staif for the Commis-
sion in this regard. You assist the Commissioner in the establishinent
of the guidelines which are his responsibility and the enforcement of
these guidelines which are his responsibility in measuring the effect of
the anidelines in the application of these policies which are his respon-
sibilitv. Isthat right?

Mr. Lisasst. That is right.

Mr. Derrexeack. T don’t mean to take you over elementary lessons
which the other members of the committee may already be fully ap-
prised of and you may have even touched on it earlier today and if
vou did you may still realize this is very simple. hut can vou just with-
ot @oing into meticulous detail tell me about this mafter of the es-
tablishment of guideline here? Ts the basic establishment for the
cuidelines in effect the last paragraph of vour presentation to us, the
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establishment of this basic goal to assure that no person is excluded,
and so on and so forth?

What is the basic authority of establishment of these guidelines? I
am talking about the Civil Rights Act and not elementary and second-
ary education.

Mr. Lizasst. Under the Civil Rights Act we have adopted general
rules and regulations which must be approved by the President.

These are what are known as the title VI regulations. The title
VI regulations applies to all programs in the department and pro-
vides that each of the operating agencies will issue instructions, infor-
mational materials, guides which would be applicable to the particular
programs that they administer.

We found that when we simply announced the school distriets that
they should prepare desegregation plans that they were left at a great
loss as to what the desegregaion plans should include, what the re-
quirements ought to be, what the Office of Education would accept.
So the school officials themselves asked for some policy guidance as
to what the desegregation plan should include and what we would
accept as an appropriate desegregation plan so the first step of cuide-
lines were prepared at the request of school superintendents in an ef-
fort to enable them to prepare their plans.

At a recent meeting T asked the superintendents in one State if they
thought we ought to abolish the guidelines and just allow them to try
to work it out on their own and there was very strong feeling that they
needed some indication from us as to what was expected of them under
the regulation.

Mr. DrLrENBACK. Are these guidelines a single set of guidelines ap-
plicable to all schools in all areas or are there different ones for one
set of schools and a different set for another area?

Mr. Lmasst. The gnidelines are applicable to all of the districts
Theyv provide if a school distriet is operating a single non racial school
svstem, as most of the northern districts do, they should file a par-
ticular document. This i< provided for under the guidelines.

T might add. incidentally. that there is a growing number of school
districts in the Sonth that are also submitting a document that states
thev are now completely desegregated.

This is provided for under the guidelines.

The guidelines then provide if the district was operating a dual
school svstem and was constitutionally obligated to desegregate the
school svsteni. then it must submit a plan for desegregation and most
of the guidelines deal with the provisions for the plan.

The fact is in the 17 Southern States that were formerly searegated
bv law the bulk of the impact of the guidelines is applicable to the
Southern States.

Mr. DennExBack. Are thev published in the Federal Register?

Mr. Lipasst. Yes, they ave. and T have copies T would he glad to
make available to the committee.

Mr. DeLLENBACK. Are there methods for establishing these guide-
lines?

Mr. Lirasst. The cuidelines issued for September 1966 have been
reissued for September 1967 already without change. One of the basic
criticisms of our program in the past was that the guidelines were 1s-
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sued too late to be of any help to the districts co rather than wait
until March as we did last year we put the guidelines out in Decem-
ber of this year, fully 9 months in advance of the operating of the
school year and we put them out without change.

The major problem we again faced was ‘that the school districts
were dealing with a new “document which was complicated and
legalistic in lfmmn ge.

We find the school districts are working with the second document
the second year, they are familiar with it, they know where the
changes are and we are finding more recept1v1ty on the part of the
school district.

Chairman Pergixs. Do you have the same guidelines in 1967 as
there were in 1966 %

Mr. Lipasst. Yes, sir.  We expect the school districts in September
1967 to continue making progress toward the dual school system but
the procedures and the Tules by which they are to achieve that prog-
ress remain the same for September of 1967 as they were in Septem-
ber of 1966.

Mr. DeriexBack. The chairman asked you earlier in the enforce-
ment of guidelines if you gave qdequate notice that went through
proper procedures which I think is extremely important. This could
cover protests as to whether or not a school was in fact complying
with the guidelines.

Do you have available also some procedures whereby a school dis-
trict could protest the guidelines themselves as opposed to applica-
tion of the guidelines in various instances?

Would they have to go to the courts to do this?

Mr. Lipasst. They can do this through the administrative proc-
ess. What they can do and some have done this, thev refuse to sign
assurance tlntthev would comply with title VI and the frul(lehne-:

That raises the issue clearly without regard to the facts in the par-
ticular case. We alco present at our hearings not only the fact that
they have refused to sign but we also present the facts. The school
district can raise any issue it wants in the hearing about the legality
of the guidelines or the provisions even if they are (-omp]vmrr with
them.

Mr. Derrrxpack. Iave there been any such attacks on the guide-
lines themselves?

Mr. Lisasst. There have been no court rulings or decisions which
have indicated any illegality or impropriety of the cuidelines,

Now the cases are going through the administr: ative process now and
we expect within the next month or two that the first cases of terminat-
ing funds will be going to court and the school district will thereby
be seeking ]IldlClﬂl review of the administrative hearing process.

At that point we will begin to get more of the cases. “As was asked
earlier there are several court decisions which have indicated that the
guidelines are proper and in accord with court decisions but we have
never had a fund cutoff reviewed by a court yet.

Mr. Decexsack. The discussions are alw.u s better agreed to out of
court. I agree with his honor who said courts are no place to
administer schools.
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Has the Department at any time in listening to these protests
modified its euidelines on the basis of protest? /

Mr. Lipasst. Under the guidelines which I must say ave extremely
flexible, we have during the course of processing cases accepted plans
on review by higher officials in the Office of Education so that where
a school district would come up with a particular plan and a staff
person who felt the plans was not acceptable on review by other officials
in the Department or in the Office of Education we have accepted
them.

So there is a considerable flexibility in the administration of the
guidelines to allow for dealing with the problems of individual
situations.

Also school districts themselves, after we have notified them for a
hearing will come in and say well, now I think we can work out a
plan for desegregation would you accept this, and if it meets the gen-
eral requirements for substantial progress start movement, we accept
these plans and discontinue the hearings.

Mr. Derreveack. We have been talking about segregation among
Negro and Caucasian. For example, are there any truly Puerto Rican
schools and are there any other areas in the United States where we
have desegregation problems that deal with other than Negro-white?

Mr. Lisasst. Yes. there are very few in terms of numbers. There
are a few Indian schools which are operated by public school systems
which are involved in the process of desegregation. I don’t know of
any others. Maybe Mrs. Martin if you wish, could comment on this
further.

Mrs. Marriv. We have gotten complaints from the West involving
Indians, Mexican-Americans, but again it is the de facto type prob-
lem where the residential areas are Puerto Rican or Mexican Ameri-
can and the schools reflect the neighborhoods so we deal with those
problems as we would in Manhattan or a Milwaukee problem. It is
not a guideline problem.

Mr. Stecer. Would the gentleman yield for a moment ?

Mr. DrLLExsack. Yes; I vield.

Mr. Steicer. Maybe T missed it but did you specify the number
of school districts that have not been willing to sign a compliance ?

Mr. Lipasst. Yes: and this is as of March 14th and this is a con-
stantly changing problem in terms of numbers, but we have 96 districts
that have refused to sign a statement that they would comply with
the regulations or the guidelines. Some have submitted a statement
but then theyv have qualified it to the extent we will comply with only
part of the guidelines but not other parts.

Now this 96 is included in my overall figure of the district we have
notified for hearing.

Mr. Stercer. Ninety-six out of one hundred seventy-seven?

Mr. Lipassr. Tt is 96 out of the total number of cases that we
have had any dealings with including terminations. Some of these
have already been terminated—239. so it is 90 school districts out of
939 which is all of the cases that have either been terminated finally
or are in the process of hearing. or districts that refused to sign at
all.  So vou can see that is a very good part of the number of cases
that we are dealing with.
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Mr. StEIGER. Do you have any idea then at all or can you provide
for the committee the number of complaints that you have received?

Mr. Lisassi. Yes, we could provide that for the commitree. I am
sorry we do not have it but we would be glad to supply the number
of complaints we have.

Mr. Steicer. Can you break it down on a State-by-State basis?

My, Lisasst. Yes; we will be glad to do that.

Mr. Scunever. Would my colleague yield at this point for a
question ?

Mr. SteIGER. Yes; of course.

Mr. Scuever. Where there have been complaints, what number of
cases have been ended by a decision of the school board to comply?

Mr. Lisassi. When we initiate a review of school districts some-
times it is initiated on the basis of a complaint and more often it
is based on the data that a school district provides us. Let me say
we have initiated about 290 hearings and we only have 239 presently
in the works which would indicate that at the hearing stage we have
settled about 50 cases.

Now I do not have the number of districts that were found to
have made inadequate progress but then took additional steps but I
would say it is a sizable number, one to 150 school districts easily
have the process of negotiation prior to the hearing taken additional
steps to come into compliance.

Mr. Scnrver. I think it would be extremely helpful if you would
give this committee a picture of the positive accomplishment short of
the court order process that you have provided through effective
conciliation and the advisory process.

Apparently there are a number of hard core cases where after the
conciliation and the advisory and the investigation process there is a
formal statement of refusal to comply is made by the local school
board.

It would be interesting to see of all of the school districts where
there was a problem, at whatever stage it was raised. the number
which could solve their own problem managed to find the leadership
locally to solve their problem short of a flat refusal to comply.

Mr. Lipasst. I would like to try to provide it. T confess we have
been under such, since this committee does not rule on our appropria-
tions I suppose it is all right if I cry a little bit about our appropria-
tions without being improper. We only have 43 staff people working on
school desegregation and they have been mostly in the field and we
have not developed the kind of statistical reporting analysis that
would demonstrate this process of change but I would be very glad
to try to document the instances—first of all when a stafl person gets
out and says, look, this is just not enough progress and the superin-
tendent will say what do you think I need to do and he will suggest
additional transfer of faculty, rerunning, a second choice period,
transferring a class over, closing a small school.

Now the superintendent will say I can do that and the staff person
will say fine.  Well that will dispose of the matter. Those cases are
going on constantly.

In addition in Virginia for instance our staff person in Virginia
has done an excellent job at that level before we ever get to even a
formal letter.
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Mr. Scuever. It seems to me this is really of paramount impor-
tance. It seems to me your success can be measured not by the
nunber of schools vou meet in court but by the number of cases that
never get to court where through the leadership, the council, the
advice and the technical assistance you give to a school district, a
school district does want to solve their problem and a way of entering
the 20th century not being drageed m by the courts kicking and
screaming but entering of their own volition.

Perhaps to me that is a greater test of the effectiveness of your
work: and that evidence may provide the greatest and most dramatic
proof that vou should have additional counseling staft to provide this
leadership and the support in your agencies.

Mr. Deriexeack. 1 would join my colleague in this study. A good
lawyer ofttimes succeeds by keeping his client out of court, not
winning the case when he gets there: he may have done a superb
job in case after case after case which never appears on the court
record.

So that anything which could be done which would not place an
additional burden on vour staff and tie up your staff, I think, would
be helpful to us. Just dragging figures out of the blue and saying
this is what we accomplished or this is where we stand, and soon would
not be too helpful.

Mr. Scurrer. Before I joined this great body, I served as housing
chairman of the State commission on human rights and had a great
deal to do with the drafting of our nondiscrimination legislation and
1 had a great deal to do with enforcement. I know our real suc-
ceszes were cases nobody ever heard of.

These were cases wliere we sat down with a local community or a
local real estate developer and said look, we have a problem here, how
do we =olve it the easy way /

Tt is quite true that the conrts are not the most appropriate agencies
for olving social problems in a community. We always felt a great
feeling of pride when we settled cases quietly in conference rooms
without the unnecessary and unpleasant bitterness and frozen posi-
tions that are almost inevitable when cases come to the courts.

It Liardens positions. people get entrenched; they dig in and minds
close and there are possible avenues for narrowing the gap in the
traditional process. I can't overemphasize the importance of the rec-
ord of showing previous success you have had before these letters of
refusal to comply come in.

Mr. DecLENBACK. Not only do such statistics demonstrate what your
Department is doing but it seems to say something highly relevant
about the law itself.

It is talking about the way in which the statutes are working under
has accomplished and might not very well have been done at all if
the statute had not been passed.

Mr. ScHETER. It might also give us some very interesting informa-
tion about local leadership and the local will to improve social
situations. not only in cities in the North but in cities in the South. I
would like to know about communities that have solved their
problems.

Mr. Derrexsack. May I finish my last point ?
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Then dealing with this broad scale question of minorities, while the
heavy emphasis both in the public eye and in your actual operations
deals with Negroes, that we do have some situations where we are deal-
ing with Indians or Mexican-American mixtures. Do we have any in
the big ciry of New York where we ave dealing with the Puerto Ricans
where there is such a heavy concentration of Puerto Ricans that there
is a school which is predominantly Puerto Rican ?

Mr. Lisasst. T am sure there are schools which are predominantly
Negro and Puerto Rican—Mr. Scheuer probably could comment on
this better than I—where there is a question on that but let me assure
you we are as concerned about other national and racial minorities in
the administration of the program as we are about Negroes.

It is just the sheer size of the Negro minority and the extent of the
problem.

Mr. DeLeexsack. Arve there any others, to round out my education,
other than these we have touched on?

Mr. Scrrever. How about Japanese-Americans in San Francisco
and Denver?

Mr. Lipassie. T would be glad to check as to the extent of predom-
nantly oriental schools and I would be very glad to submit that to the
committee. I will check on that. I don’t really know.

Mr. Decrexeack. I am talking like a far westerner now who does
not known about this but are there any areas in this Nation where we
still have what might be called an ethnic problem such as with Ger-
man-Americans or Scandinavian-Americans in such places as Wiscon-
sin?

Do we have any other pure white problem where you have a heavy
ethnic concentration that ought to be involved ?

Mr. Lmsasst. This tends to be a diminishing issue. We have some
of these groups in larger cities and you will find a dominant Polish,
Italian ancestry to most of the families living there—Irish, we do
have some of these concentrations remaining but these are not issues
that seem to come up in the administration of the school systems them-
selves and do not seem to be items which affect equal educational
opportunities.

Mr. DeLLexBack. When we deal with race, color. or national origin,
we are not really dealing much with national origin ¢

Mr, Lmassr. That is right.

Chairman Perxixs. Let me thank all of you witnesses.

{The document referred to follows:)

STATEMENT OF F. PETER LIBASSI, SPECIAL ASSISTANT TO THE SECRETARY FOR
C1viL R1cuTs. DEPARTMENT oF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee: I appreciate this opportunity to
appear before this Committee to discuss the Department’s administration of Title
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and to answer any questions you may have. As
this Committee knows, the school desegregation policies of the Office of Education
have also been reviewed by the House Committees on Rules and on the Judiciary.

The two provisions of the school desegregation policies that are most critical
to effectuating desegregation are the requirement that freedom of choice plans
operate fairly and effectively to achieve desegregation and that faculties be as-
signed without regard to race.

On both of these issues, the Department has been advised by its General Coun-
sel and by the Department of Justice that the policies of the Office of Education
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are fully conxistent with and supported by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
and the decisions of Federal courts.

In essence the policies of the Department permit a district to initiate the de-
segregation of its schools by offering the children a choice of schools. The
method of student assignment which has been traditional in most parts of the
country has been by assigning children to neighborhood schools on the basis of
geographic attendance zones. This method takes no account of the preference
of the student and may well result in his assignment to a school against his
expressed wish.

The assignment of students to particular schools upon the basis of the stu-
dent’s choice has, in the main, been an innovation adopted in connection with
the desegregation of schools that have previously been segregated upon a basis
of race. It has been accepted as a permissible means of desegregation. but
courts have made it clear that it can be used only if it is effective in abolishing
the dual racial school system. Where community hostility or other pressures
preclude a truly free choice, then some other method must be used in converting
to a nonracial system.

In sum, it has been the position of this Department that the free choice system
is a permissible method of desegregation only if it is effective in eliminating the
dual system based on race. If it is not effective, then an alternative method of
assigning children to particular schools, not based upon the choice of students
or their parents, must be adopted.

With respect to faculty, the Department of Justice has advised that Title VI
not only permits the Department to require faculty desegregation, but obliges
the Department to do so as a condition for continued Federal financial assistance.

Furthermore, every effort has been made to assure that these policies are
administered fairly and objectively. School districts are scheduled for review
based on a district’s own report of the extent of actual or anticipated student
and faculty desegregation. In August 1966, the Commissioner notified the State
education agencies, as well as all local school districts, that it would be the
policy of the Office to review the districts with the poorest performance first;
approximately 250 school districts were in this category. At the same time,
the Commissioner stated that another 400 districts that had made some progress
would be scheduled for review during the school year. These 400 districts were
urged to take steps on their own to improve the extent of student and faculty
desegregation. The largest number of districts, between 700 and 800, were noti-
fied that their performance was adequate and no review of their plans would be
undertaken.

The Committee should know that generally the 250 school districts that were
the first reviewed. those with the poorest performance, had no student desegre-
gation or less than 2 percent of the Negro students in formerly white schools,
and no faculty desegregation. In addition, many districts had: (a) denied
choices by Negro students to attend white schools, (b) discouraged Negroes
from choosing a white school, (¢) intimidated both parents and students. (d)
failed to make efforts to prepare the community for desegregation, (e) had not
followed requirements of the Guidelines vital to its success—such as mailing the
choice forms home, publishing the plan in the paper. etc.

Recently, at Department administrative hearings, Negro parents testified of
nightriders shooting into their homes; that their insurance coverage on their
homes was cancelled for no apparent reason after they enrolled their children
in a white school ; that their children as well as themselves had been harassed
and threatened. They spoke of losing their jobs, their credit and sometimes
their homes when they chose a white school. The transcripts of these hearings
give a more vivid picture of community attitudes and pressures in these districts
than anything I might sar.

During the course of field reviews, where progress is not sufficient to carry
out the purposes of Title VI, renewed efforts are made to secure voluntary com-
pliance. The Office of Education is obligated by Title VI to make these efforts,
Implicit in this duty is a responsibility to make suggestions and recommendations
to school districts of steps that they may want to consider to meet their obliga-
tion to desegregate the schools, The effort is made to tailor the suggestions and
recommendations to meet the problems of each particular school district.

For example, where a district buses its white or Negro stndents. on the hagis
of their race. to a neighboring district to be educated. it would be recommended
that this practice cease and all the children be educated in their home district,
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The courts have required districts to take such action even prior tu the Supreme
Court decision in 1954.

Where districts are still operating small, inadequate, segregated schools for
Negroes, it has been recommended that these schools be closed and that the stu-
dents and teachers be assigned on a nonracial basis. The courts have similarly
required the closing of small, inadequate Negro schools.

We would not be carrying out the spirit of Title VI if we did not suggest to
school districts what steps they could take to meet their obligations. Districts
are urged to come up with their own plans if our recommendations appear in-
appropriate to them.

Over 600 desegregation plans have been reviewed for the current school year.
As of now, approximately 100 of these plans have been found ineffective to elimi-
nate the dual school system. In approximately one-fourth of these districts
there is absolutely no desegregation of any description. All students and faculty
continue to attend schools traditionally serving their race. Recommendations
of the staff were rejected by these districts, which also refused to submit alterna-
tive desegregation plans. The Department was left with no alternative but to
offer these districts an opportunity for hearing.

In many other communities throughout the South, school officials and local
community leaders have made substantial progress toward the elimination of
dual school systems.

Despite the difficulties connected with the operation of free choice plans, there
are instances where they have worked effectively to desegregate schools. The
key to success is the willingness of local shool officials and opinion leaders
to develop an atmosphere which will lead to significant progress toward estab-
liching a single school system for all children.

In addition to the seven or eight hundred districts that were advised last fall
that they had made satisfactory progress and were in compliance with Title VI,
other districts whose performance was inadequate have negotiated additional
desegregation steps which brought them into compliance.

For instance, one Georgia district has operated two segregated schools, one
for Negro students with Negro teachers, the other for white students with white
teachers., However, this district has now agreed to transfer the entire Negro
eighth grade class to the white school in September 1967 and to assign three
full-time teachers across racial lines for the 1967-68 season. As a result, 10
percent of the Negro students in the district will be attending desegregated
schnols next year.

This case was recently the subject of a news column in the Atlanta Constitu-
tion and. with the permission of the Chairman, I would like to submit a copy of
it te be incerted in the record at this point.

Thus far, 50 districts which had made inadequate progress last year or this
vear and had to be cited for fund termination hearings have since come into
compliance. Many other districts that would have been cited for hearings took
additional corrective measures and thus came into compliance voluntarily.
Every effort will continue to be made to encourage districts to follow this course
ot action.

While we must face the fact that 88 percent of the Negro children in 11 South-
ern States continue to attend schools whose student bodies are all. or nearly
all Negro, it is nevertheless the fact that since the adoption and implementation
of Tirle VT of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the number of Negro students attend-
ing desegregated schools has increased markedly. In 1964 it was 2.23 percent.
in 1965, 6 percent, and in September 1966, 12 percent. The progress in the six

Jorder States is even more impressive with the dual school system nearly
abolished in some. In addition, more than half of the districts of the South have
made at least a start in faculty desegregation.

The object of the Department’s civil rights activity is not the termination of
Federal funds. Our goal is to assure that no person in the United States be
excluded. on the ground of race. color. or national origin., from participation in
or be subjected to diserimination under any program or activity receiving Federal
financial assistance.

Chairman Perxixs. It has been called to my attention by the min-
ority that it was contemplated from the commencement of the hear-
mgs that we would conelude the hearings on this day.
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It is my understanding that the administration witnesses will be
back inasmuch as Mr. Gardner of North Carolina has expressed a
desire through minority counsel to question witnesses concerning the
guidelines. )

Therefore, T am going to ask you particular witnesses to come back
at 9:30 a.m. on Monday morning and under no circumstance will we
delay the markup of this bill commencing on Tuesday morning. I
have alwavs felt that any member who wanted to ask any witness a
question should have that opportunity.

Mr. Denpexsack. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Perkixs. For that reason I want to ask yvou to come back.
Let me thank vou all for a good appearance here this morning and
we appreciate vour appearance.

Chairman Perxivs. Our next witness is Superintendent Bueford
Risner, superintendent of Bath County schools, Owingsville, Ky.

I appreciate your coming here, Mr. Risner.

STATEMENT OF BUEFORD RISNER, SUPERINTENDENT OF BATH
COUNTY SCHOOLS, OWINGSVILLE, KY.

Mr. Rrsxer. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, may I
express my deep appreciation for the opportunity to appear before
you to express the views of the people in our rural eastern Kentucky
area on this very important legislation.

In my opinion the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of
1965 was one of the finest pieces of legislation that has ever been en-
acted. It has meant that many children in Bath County are a step
nearer equal educational opportunities than they were before.

The act had enabled our system to purchase some much needed in-
structional equipment and materials, library shelving, books, audio-
visual materials, et cetera. and has provided us with the services to
two remedial reading teachers, a guidance counselor, school health
services, with a registered nurse. and 19 teacher aids this year.

The many good things about the act would take too much of your
time for me to enumerate. I would like to confine my remarks to some
of the frustrations that I and many of my fellow educators have en-
countered relative to certain aspects of Federal aid to education and
some suggestions for improving the act.

1. The timing of Federal authorizations, appropriations, regula-
tions and allocations is not conducive to encouraging logical and nie-
thodical planning on the part of local and State school officials.

Federal aid to education could be much more effective if congres-
sional authorization patterns and school years could become more
compatible.

2. The bulk of Federal funds for education should come to the States
under a minimum foundation type of approach that is based on an
objective formula which would consider the financial ability of a State
to support education.

3. All of the Federal funds coming to a State for elementary and
secondary education should be routed through the State departments
of education. Inmy opimion there should be no exception to this ap-
proach. State departments of education are. and necessarily should
e, the most capabie ngeney to work the local school districts.
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4. The basic U.S. Office of Education should be the agency to han-
dle all funds to be allocated to the State departments of education and
they in turn route funds to the local school districts. This should in-
clude programs such as Headstart that is now handled by the Office
of Economic Opportunity. More consideration should be given to
the timing of planning and implementation procedures on the part of
local districts.  Too much time is lost by the time the local school dis-
trict is able to begin its program. Most of us are rushed for time and
asa result donot do as good 2 job as we would like if we had more time.

5. Very serious consideration should be given to an aid to construc-
tion bill for public elementary and secondary schools. A formula
based on need and ability to pay should be considered. In my own
school system. many things that I would like to do under the present
act is prohibitive because of lack of buildings or rooms with very little
hope of being able to do anything about it unless we do receive Federal
aid to construetion.

6. The U.S. Office of Education should not be reorganized on the
regionalization concept. Existing or proposed offices could better
serve the cause of education in the area of planning and consultative
services to the State departments of education. Much could be done
to help strengthen State departments of education. Then they could
more effectively carry out the program with the local districts in co-
operation with the U.S. Office of Education.

7. Federal guidelines and regulations should be developed through
more cooperative procedures with the States. There has been a tend-
ency by the U8, Office to establish the guidelines first and then involve
State personnel. At this point the States are advised of basic intent,
or clarifications, made of already existing guidelines.

Certainly in my opinion, Mr. Chairman, this is in reverse. We
should be brought in before the act and not after the guidelines have
been established.

I wish to express the concerns of many other educators that have
appeared before this distinguished body in relation to H.R. 6230:

1. Guidelines under which present law is operating should provide
more flexibility at the local level giving school authorities in the field
greater choice in being able to meet the most pressing needs of the local
school district.

2. The new low income factor of $3,000 rather than the previous
$2,000—we certainly want to go on record as very strongly encourag-
ing that this become a part of the new act or as it is amended—offers
opportunities to more of Kentucky and the Nation’s youth. Tt is our
hope that title I could be fully financed to the October authorization
level of the 89th Congress.

3. It is further hoped that much excessive paperwork relating to all
the acts could be condensed. This could be realized if data require-
ments of the U.S. Office, State Department, and local districts could
reach a commonality.

Many times we are duplicating much paperwork that is already con-
tained in a previous report.

4. A tremendous additional workload has been forced upon State
and local agencies by Public Law 89-10, making it impossible with
limited budgets and personnel to ever evaluate the effectiveness of the
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program. Adequate funds are needed for this important function but
those should, by all means, be channeled through the State depart-
ments of education.

5. Again I wish to express concern over the conflict between school
people, who as trained professionals have done an excellent job oper-
ating Headstart,and the Office of Economic Opportunity which seems
to fail to understand that readiness is truly a school function.

This program should be operated by the U.S. Office of Education
through the various State departments of education, where there is
always some degree of understanding of the problems, in even the
most remote sections of the State.

I think this is true even in remote sections of the State. Many
school boards are so disturbed by lack of understanding on the part of
OEO that some local boards of education and superintendents are
ready to give up the Headstart program.

This could only hurt the children who so desperately need this ex-
perience.

As an additional point here, T would like to state that even my own
local board of education is expressing great concern at this point as to
the continuation of the Headstart under the Office of Economic Op-
portunity. I could go on and elaborate a little further on this but I
think what I have is sufficient at this point.

6. Much concern is being expressed by education over the proposed
cut in NDEA, title ITI, funds which are earmarked for title V, ESEA.
It is further hoped that the fiscal year 1968 appropriation bill will be
10 less than the fiscal year 1967 funding level.

We feel title III of ESEA has been a very important part of our
school programs.

7. Much concern is being expressed by education over the new pro-
posal, part B of title V, relating to “Grants for Comprehensive Edu-
cation Planning and Evaluation” in that it does not meet the avowed
needs of State depatments of education.

‘As an aside to the issue, the $15 million request is exorbitant if con-
templated just for planning purposes. This proposed financing would
probably have more far-reaching effect in developing better educa-
tional programs in departments of education if it were added to part A,
same title, with a requirement that a ortion be utilized specifically for
additional planning and evaluative elements.

1 would like to add at this point, if we continue to plan and never
implement the things that we plan in our programs, then I can’t see
much value in planning if it ends at that point. Truly this is where
much of it is ending.

Tt is my sincere belief that if we are to implement new programs
in education that are desperately needed that additional classrooms

are going to be needed.

e must face this fact, I think, from the Federal, State, and local
standpoint. You cannot innovate or improve educational programs
if you don’t have someplace to house them.

Most distriets in our area have bonded to their limit and yet in
many cases we cannot take full advantage of the provision of ESEA
of 1065 hecause of our lack of rooms. Tt is my wish that a partner-

ship attack on the construction needs by local, State and Federal that
these needs could be met.
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Certainly the aid received has had a tremendous effect on our local
school system, and T am sure this has been true throughout the Nation.

In conclusion I wish to express the gratitude of the people I repre-
sent to this committee for the work vou have already done in behalf
of better education and for the privilege of appearing before you.

Thank you for the invitation to appear before the committee and
our esteemed chairman from Kentucky. T feel deeply honored that
I have been able to present my statements on education.

If the committee has any questions you would like to direct to me
I would be glad to answer them to the best of my ability. I would
just like to add one aside that is not in my text, that much concern
1s expressed over the many applications for grants, for studies which
range from school dropouts to you name it, much of the studies never
reach the proper authorities and by this I mean the legally constituted
bodies in the States from the State department of education down to
the local distriets.

Many of these studies are fine, they are very impressive, but they
end up on somebody’s shelf collecting dust and as a result nothing
ever comes of them.

Chairman Pergins. We were hoping that through titles IIT and IV
that we could get that expertise and the quality of the educational
programs in the classroom within a reasonable period of time and
eliminate that idea that all good things stay on the shelf and fail to
reach the classroom.

Mr. Risner. Mr. Chairman, I might add yesterday I talked to Mr.
Samuel Alexander, our deputy superintendent of construction, and I
have been extensively involved in region 7 of title ITI. T have served
on a number of committees. We are developing an instrument which
for many reasons we chose to call an evaluation of school systems in
the 18-county area of which I am sure you are familiar.

Chairman Perkins. Your county 1s participating in that title III
program ?

Mr. Risner. Yes, sir; in fact I have spent many, many hours work-
ing with this group. It is a fine group, to be sure, but Mr. Chairman,
the thing that most disturbs me is the fact that there is no liaison
between this group; namely, the East Kentucky Development Corp.
and the State department of education.

Chairman Perkins. Do you mean no liaison between your title TII
group and the State department of education?

Mr. RisNer. Yes, sir; that was stated to me yesterday by Mr.
Alexander himself,

(Discussion off the record.)

Chairman Prrrins. Let me say to you, Mr. Risner, I think you
are doing an outstanding job as county school superintendent of Bath
County, Ky. I have been watching you since you became a county
school superintendent and I am delighted to receive the evaluation
that you have placed on the Elementary and Secondary Edueation
Act and that you have been able to receive remedial instructional
materials, library books, audiovisual materials, remedial reading
teachers and special guidance counselors, and other special help that
you would not otherwise have received.

Undoubtedly the program has some drawbacks but from vour evalu-
ation of the program you can see tremendous results in your county,
can you?

75-492—67—pt. 2——46
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Mr. Risxer. Certainly ; yes, sir.

Chairman Perkixs. Thank you very much. Thank you very much
for your appearance here this morning.

Mr. Risver. I appreciate the opportunity to be before this body
to express my views, sir, and I thank you for your compliment as to
my work.

T will assure you that T will continue to try to improve the educa-
tional standards for the students in our county.

Chairman Perkrss. Let me state for the record I am delighted that
our next witnesses appear here at Congressman Scheuer’s request.
When Congressman Scheuer became a member of the general sub-
committee that had jurisdiction over the ESEA, he was most help-
ful in arriving at the legislation and his deep interest in all educa-
tional activities have come to the attention of this committee on the
day since he was assigned to this committee.

1 am proud to call upon Congressman Scheuer, who in my judgment
is one of the very outstanding Members of the Congress and a Mem-
ber who has his district at heart on all occasions, to introduce the
witnesses.

Congressman Scheuer.

AMr. Scaever. Mr. Chairman, I deeply appreciate those words. I
was very eager to serve on your subcommittee last year on the Ele-
mentary and Secondary Education. During the long month in which
T was able to be on the committee, I enjoyed attending the sessions
and enjoyed working under your leadership. It wasa great and most
instructive experience, and I am happy to serve under your leader-
ship now.

1 am glad to welcome to this hearing three outstanding people in
the field of education; first, Garda W. Bowman, of Bank Street
College and second, Mrs. Pam Levin and Mrs. Margaret Benjamin,
of the Citizens Committee for Children.

These two institutions are preeminent in New York for their deep
concern for disadvantaged children and secondly and just as impor-
tant for the high sense of professionalism and hardheaded scholarly
background as well as practical experience which is the foundation
for their work.

Both of these institutions and the individuals here made magnifi-
cent contributions to education in New York and I am very happy
to welcome them here today.

Dr. Bowman. would vou start off and give us a short word about
vour background and experience in this field and then give us your
testimony with the knowledge that your prepared testimony will be
made a part of the record.

1 assume there is no objection. and vou may speak and elaborate
as you see fit.

(The document referred to follows )

TESTIMONY BY GaArRDA W. BOWMAX, PRrROGRAM COORDINATOR, SPECIAL PROJECTS.
BANEK STREET COLLEGE OF EDUCATION

Tadies and Gentlemen: T am most grateful to Chairman Perkins for this oppor-
tunity to present some observations regarding the legislative implications of
the testimony of President John H. Niemeyer of Bank Street College of Educa-
tion and his colleagnes before this Committee on March 15, 1967.
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At that time, President Niemeyer, Dean Gordon Kolpt, and Mrs. Verona Wil-
liams, representing Bank Street College of Education, stressed tl}e need for
more systematic, coordinated planning and evaluation of the educational enter-
prise at all levels and in all its facets. They placed particular emphasis upon
the critical need for planning for the more effective training and utilization
of auxiliary personnel (nonprofessionals) in education.

President Niemeyer stated that auxiliary personnel had revealed a capacity
to make a positive contribution to the learning-teaching process in 15 demonstra-
tion programs coordinated by Bank Street College of Education for the Office
of Economic Opportunity in 1966. The findings of this nation-wide Study indi-
cate that such an outcome is facilitated when the planning includes (1) flexi-
bility and imagination in role development, (2) training of both professionals
and nonprofessionals, and (3) institutionalization of this program into the school
structure as a New Career, rather than as a temporary expedient.

Speaking as Coordinator of the Bauk Street College Study of Auxiliary School
Personnel, and after consultation with President Niemeyer and Dean Klopf, I
should like to make the following specitic recommendations for legislative action
which would, we believe. serve to enhance the effectiveness of auxiliary per-
sonnel in school systems, and thus have a significant impact upon the educa-
tional enterprise in its totality.

1. That there be an Amendment to Title 1 of the Elementary and Sec-
ondary Education Act requiring the submission of a plan for training aux-
iliary personnel and the professionals with whom they work by all school
systems which request funds under this title for the employment of aux-
iliary personnel.

2. That there be an Amendment to the Higher Education Act for the
granting of funds to selected colleges of teacher education to conduet
demonstration faculty workshops on the new and more complex role of
the teacher as ome who orchestrates all available resources (professional
and nonprefessional) to nieet the learning needs of pupils.

3. That the proposed Amendment of Title V of the Elementary and Seec-
ondary Education Act on Comprehensive Educational Planning (which has
been presented for the consideration of this Committee) be strengthened
by the inclusion of specific reference to the granting of funds for Regional
Planning Conferences on the Role Development, Training and Institutional-
ization of Auxiliary Personnel in American Education—-such conferences to
include school administrators, teacher educators, teachers, auxiliaries, and
parelits as well as representatives of professional organizations and com-
munity action agencies. These Regional Conferences would be more pro-
ductive if a “five-year program of continuous grants” were to be established,
as suggested in the proposed Amendment to Title V now under considera-
tion by your Committee.

4. That funds be made available for a White House Conference on “New
Careers in the Public Service”, with sections devoted to the training ana
utilization of auxiliary personnel in various areas of human service, in-
cluding education, health, welfare, corrections, safety and law enforcement.

In support of these recommendations, I append herewith some specific illus-
trations of the need for such action, drawn from the findings of the Bank Street
College Study of Auxiliary Personnel in Education. In conclusion, ladies and
gentlemen, I wish to express my own appreciation and that of my colleagues
for your concern regarding the need for comprehensive, systematic and con-
tinuing planning and evalution of education.

STATEMENT OF DR. GARDA W. BOWMAN, PROGRAM COORDINATOR,
SPECIAL PROJECTS, BANK STREET COLLEGE OF EDUCATION

Mrs. Bowman. Thank you, Congressman Scheuer. T am most
grateful to Chairman Perkins, to Congressman Scheuer and to the
other members of the committee for this opportunity to reinforce and
amplify the comments of my colleagues, President, John H. Neimeyer
and Dean Gordon Klopf who testified before this committee on
March 15.

Both colleagues stressed the need for planning and supporting the
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proposed amendment to title V to provide for comprehensive plan-
ning with emphasis upon the planning for effective utilization of
auxiliary personnel. 1 speak to that point particularly as coordi-
natory of a nationwide study which Bank Street College is conduct-
ing of 15 demonstration training programs for nonprofessionals in
school systems throughout the country.

My, Scuecer. Who is the sponsor of that?

Mrs. Bowaran. The funds are provided by the Office of Economic
Opportunity. We have just been refunded for another year and
are starting with seven additional projects one of which is in eastern
Kentucky, Mr. Perkins. Moorehead University is the local sponsor
and will develop preservice and inservice training in four counties
in eastern Kentucky.

I thought you might be interested to know that we are concerned
with yvour area and that we expect to get great results from our analy-
sis of the programs there.

I an not confining my remarks to the written testimony for two
reazons: One. I wanted to get a little more quickly to the gist of what
I hoped to say to vou and. two, because I would like to keep this testi-
mony open since, as I have been sitting here

Chairman Prrkrxs. Without objection all of your prepared state-
ment will be inserted in the record and you may proceed any way you
choose to.

Mrs. Bowyaxn. I would like to submit later some substituted mate-
rial.

Chairman Perkixs. Without objection, you may do so.

(The document referred to follows:)

TLLUSTRATIONS OF THE NEED FOR COMPREHENSIVE, SYSTEMATIC AND CONTINUING
PLANNING OF EDUCATION AT ALL LEVELS

On March 15, 1967, John H. Nijemeyer, President of Bank Street College of
Education, stated before the Committee on Education and Labor of the House
of Representatives in Washington, D.C. that:

‘Preliminary findings from the analysis of 15 demonstration training programs
for auxiliary school personnel reveal that such personnel demonstrate a capacity
to make a positive contribution to the learning-teaching process, when the fol-
lowing conditions prevail :

“1. When the roles for aides are developed in terms of the particular
strengths of each aide and the particular needs of the pupils of particular
classrooms, rather than the roles being defined in rigid categories which are
supposed to apply to all situations.

%2 YWhen intensive and continuing fraining is provided, both for the non-
professionals and for the professionals with whom they work.

~3. When the job of the auxiliary personnel is incorporated in the entire
school structure as « new and respected career, and not merely as a tempo-
rary expedient.

«4, When the school and the school systent look upon all members of staff,
from the building custodian to the top superintendent, as being part of an
educational team which is constantly influencing the lives of the young.”

The following material is illustrative of these four points. It is drawn from a
Study of Auxiliary Personnel in Fducation, conducted by Bank Street College
of Eduecation for the Office of Eeonomice Opportunity. )

1) Role Development : In one state where a dmnonstmhop program was con-
ducted. rigid categories were defined by state legislation which were to apply to
the utilization of nonprofessionals in all school situations. As a result, _non-
professionals were not allowed to monitor pupils on buses, :_md the bus dr1vex"s
had to take their attention from the road to maintain Q}liet in the bus. In this
same prograni, a third grade student was observed helping his classmates check
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the correctness of “yes™ and “no” answers to 4n objective test, using the teacher's
answer book. An aide, who was a high school graduate, stood by, not permitted
to perform this function.

In another program, where there was more flexibility about role and function,
some of the auxiliaries were used as monitors and some were not. In one case,
for example, a young Negro man had established such a ‘“buddy-buddy” rela-
tionship with the Negro boys in the class to which he had been assigned as an
auxiliary that his control of the group was weakened, but this same young man
proved to be a tremendous asset to the program when he visited the boys’ homes
in truancy cases. The teacher, diagnosing both the needs of the pupils and the
special contribution this particular auxiliary was then capable of making, de-
veloped his role imaginatively and with tangible pupil outcome.

2) Training: In New York City, a pilot training program for auxiliary school
personnel has been established in District 3. Mrs. Verona Williams who testified
before your Committee on March 15, serves as an auxiliary in that district, and
becauve of her understanding of and involvement in the goals of xchool provides
important linkage between school and community in the area. Mrs. Williams is
an unusually fine and intelligent person but she illustrates the kind of school-
community cooperation which is possible and which training may encourage.

In another district of the city, where such training is not yet available a super-
visor commented thus about the situation :

“There is a tremendous need for in service training of well-motivated aids so
that they ean profit from ‘process of observation and feedback’ and so that they
will understand the need to improve on the job. The biggest problem with the
employment of indigenous auxiliary personnel is that of human relations. The
following occur daily and become dynamite in any school :

a. Gossiping to the community

b. Overprotection of the aides’ own children

c. Tendency to be harsher than necessary to nonconforming children

d. Tendency to complain about children who have problems

e. Tendency to ignore time schedules and to expect special consideration
for their own problems

f. Development of friction between paid school aides and other parents”

3) Institutionalization: In some of the demonstration programs, a firm and
honest commitment by the local school system to employ the auxiliaries after
successful completion of the training program could not be implemented when
budgetary changes required a cut-back in the employment of auxiliaries. This
resulted in the ultimate frustration for a few of the trainees who had been
motivated to train for jobs which did not exist.

However, when the local school system had incorporated the use of nonprofes-
sionals as an integral part of the school structure. the result was not only stable
employment but the opportunity for upward mobility.

For example, in Puerto Rico, where there was strong commitment to this pro-
gram by the Department of Education, and where the University of Puerto Rico
was involved in the planning, not only was every auxiliary-trainee in the Sum-
mer Institute employed when the school year began but they are all now enrolled
in a work-study program at the University of Puerto Rico. leading to the pos-
sibility of promotion and eventually, it is hoped, to achieving professional status.

In Detroit, another school system which has incorporated this program as a
permanent part of the school structure, a career ladder has been established with
five job titles and job descriptions. and appropriate salaries. increments and
fringe benefits for each step on the ladder.

President Niemeyer’s final comment on the conditions which contribute to the
effective utilization of auxiliary personnel was concerned with a broad approach
to education—that is, perceiving all staff members. from the huilding custodian to
the top superintendent as being part of the educational team. Such an approach
cannot be described in quantitative terms. It reinforces the concept that like life
the organization of education includes a variety of roles, adult influences and
common experiences—all of which have an impact on the development of chil-
dren and youth. This concept seemed to permeate the 15 demonstration pro-
grams.

Mrs Bowarox T oam ooing to address myself to some leaislative
action in the field of auxiliarv personnel or nonnrofessional in edu-
cation for consideration by this august body. The demonstration of
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the 15 programs to which T referred revealed that nonprofessionals do
have a capacity to make a positive contribution to the learning-teach-
ing process when adequate training is provided, when there is a flexible
attitude toward the function that mav be performed by nonprofes-
sionals and when the utilization of nonprofessionals is incorporated
into the whole strncture as a permanent, stable career ladder rather
than asa temporary expedient.

TWe helieve that these goals ave important not onlv to the ntilization
of auxiliary personnel but to the whole educational enterprise. Bas-
ing our recommendations on the findings from this study, we have
five suceestions to make for specific legislative action which hopefully
vou will find worthy of your consideration.

The first is that when funds are made available under title T of
the ESEA to a loeal school system for the emplovment of auxiliary
personnel. there be a reauirement that an adequate plan for training
of these personnel as well as the professionals with whom they work
would have to be submitted and approved by the agency granting the
fund =o as to avoid the problem we see so frequentlv of auxiliaries
beine emploved without training for those who are about to use the
auxiliary personnel.

TWe have seen teachers sav to anxiliaries. “Sit over there and wait
until T have an errand for vou to do.” instead of utilizing what we
believe to be a tremendous potential for education, becanse the profes-
<ianals had not heen trained.  We have seen some anxiliaries them-
selves transoressine. trving to take over. eossiping ahout the school
to the commumity. ohjecting to the kind of discipline that the school
operates because thev were given no understanding of the goals of the
schonl hefore thev began to work.

Sa we feel that emplovment without fraining is a very dancerous
development. and we urge that a plan for training be required hefore
anv additional funds for employment are nrovided mnder title T.

The second specific recommendation relates to the possibility of
regional planning conferences regarding the nse of anxiliary person-
nel which might be made available under the amended title V' as
suggested to vou and which might be done an a continuing basis if
the recommendation that title V monev be provided on a 5-year basis
instead of vear by vear meets vour approval.

e heliove that if such regional planning conferences on the ntiliza-
tien and training of auxiliary personnel were establizhed. they shonld
inelnde administrators, teacher educators. teachers, auxiliaries. and
parents of representatives of professional organizations such as unions
and the NEA and indigenous personnel represented on community
action agencies.

e alwo believe as our third recommendation that there should be
funde for faculty workshops in selected colleges of teacher education.

This would probably not fall under the Elementary and Secondary
FEdueation Aet but more appropriately under the Higher Education
Act. but unless teachers understand their expanding role in a broader,
basie approach to education, we will not have effective utilization of
the people who help the teachers.
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Teachers in the past have thought of their role as confined to the
interaction with pupils alone rather than including the function of
orchestrating other people in the classroom and of utilizing all avail-
able services, human and technological, to meet the needs of the pupils
which they have identified.

So we urge that funds for the training of faculty in this broad ap-
proach to education be provided.

Fourth, we urge and reinforce the recommendation that I believe
has been made to this august body by other groups, that funds
be made available for a White House Conference on the Utilization
of Auxiliary Personnel, or, shall we say, human service aids in gen-
eral with a section on education as well as sections for welfare, health,
corrections, law enforcement, and the like.

The fifth and I believe perhaps the most important of our legisla-
tive recommendations deals with the approach that has already been
made in the Senate by Senator Nelson who has filed a bill, S. 721,
which was introduced on January 30, 1967, is entitled A Dbill to
encourage the development of teacher aid programs in the schools of
the Nation.”

We believe after careful analysis of this bill that it is an excellent
document. We hope that somebody on your committee will see fit
to introduce this bill into the House with perhaps two additions, or
two areas where the present bill might be strengthened.

In the section which lists the requirements for approval of project
applications for the training and employment of nonprofessionals or
teacher aids there is reference to the fact that this should be part of a
comprehensive program for improved utilization of educational per-
sonnel in schools where the teacher aids are to serve.

Now this may be interpreted to mean that this would be more than
just an opportunity for jobs at the entry level but that a comprehen-
sive program would entail a step-by-step career ladder with job titles,
job classifications, salary increment, and the opportunity for upward
mobility.

Mr. gCHEUER. That would include on-the-job training?

Mrs. Bowaax. Yes, a comprehensive program would include that.
However, in the bill, training is taken out and referred to in another
section. I hope that when and if you decide to introduce this bill into
the Honse you would strengthen section 3, item No. 2 in regard to a
comprehensive program so that it would include opportunity for up-
ward mobility.

The other section which it seems to us would benefit by some more
specific and strong language does relate to training

Chairman Perkins. I think your comments and recommendations
are excellent.

Mr. Scaruer. May I ask unanimous consent that the bill be incor-
porated in this record.

(The document referred to follows:)
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[S. 721, 90th Cong., 1st sess.]

A BILL To encourage the development §f {eacher aid programs in the schools of the
ation

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatires of the United
States of America in Congress assembled, That this Act may be cited as the-
«Teacher Aid Program Support Act of 19677

AUTHORIZATION OF APPROPRIATIONS

Sgc. 2. There are authorized to be appropriated $50,000,000 for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 1968, $100,000,000 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1969,
and $150.000,000 each for the fiscal year ending June 3, 1970, and for the two
succeeding fiscal years, to enable the Commissioner of Education to make grants
to local educational agencies and institutions of higher education to assist them
in earrying out projects for the development of teacher aid programs provided
for in applications approved under this Act.

APPROVAL OF PROJECT APPLICATIONS

SEc. 3. (a) The Commissioner may approve an application for a project un-
der this Act only if the application is submitted jointly by a local educational
agency aud an institution of higher education and if he determines that—

(1) the project is designed to provide a combined program of training
and experience to prepare persons to serve as teacher aids in preschool
and elementary and secondary education programs;

(2) the project is part of a comprehensive program for improved utiliza-
tion of educational personnel in schools where the teacher aids are to serve;

(3) the project is designed to provide more individualized attention for
students and to relieve teachers and other professional staff of functions
which can be performed competently by teacher aids under the supervision
of professional xtaff;

(4) the institution of higher education participating in the project will
undertake to provide preservice training programs to prepare persons to
become teacher aids and to provide, to the extent practicable, preservice:
programs bringing together teacher aids and the teachers and other edu-
cational personnel who will be supervising them :

(5) the institution of higher education and the local educational agency
participating in each project have satisfactory plans for maintaining co-
operative arrangements throughout the three-year duration of the project
sn order to relate ingervice and summer training programs to the work
experience of the teacher aids in the schools;

(6) the local educational agency participating in a project has, prior to the
filing of an application under this Act. submitted its plans to the State educa-
tional agency for review and has taken into account its recommendations
in developing the proposal for the project; and

(7) the project is of sufficient scope and quality to provide reasonable
assurance of making substantial improvements in the educational programs
of the schools participating in the project.

(b) A school which has participated for a total of three years in an approved
project receiving Federal payments under this Act shall not be eligible to par-
ticipate thereafter in any further project assisted under this Act.

FEDERAL PAYMENTS

Skc. 4. (a) The Commissioner shall (in advance or otherwise) pay to the local
educational agency and the institution of higher education jointly carrying out
each project approved under this Act such portion of the costs of the project as
each of the joint applicants incurs under the terms of the grant.

(b) For purposes of this section. the costs of the project covered by the Fed-
eral grant include all of the costs of training programs for teacher aids and for
teachers and other professional staff members supervising teachers aids, includ-
ing appropriate stipends; and the Federal grant shall cover not to exceed 75
per centum of the costs of the project attributable to compensation to be paid
to teacher aids while serving in the programs of the schools of the local educa-
tional agency participating in the project. Federal payments toward the costs
of the project may not cover any compensation for any teacher or professional
staff member employed by the local educational agency.




ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION AMENDMENTS 1551

APPORTIONMENT AMONG STATES

SEc. 5. From the sums appropriated to carry out this Act for each fiscal year,
the Commissioner shall apportion to each State an amount which bears the same
ratio to such sums as the number of children aged three to seventeen, inclusive,
in the State bears to the number of such children in all the States. To the extent
that it is determined by the Commissioner that the amount apportioned by any
State will not be required for grants in that State, such amount shall be avail-
able for grants in other States able to use additional grants pursuant to this
Act. Such amounts for any year shall be apportioned among such other States
on the same basis as the original apportionment for such year.

DEFINITIONS

SEc. 6. As used in this Act—

(a) The term “teacher aid” means assistant to teachers, library aids, school,
recreation aids and other ancillary educational personnel who are under the
supervision of professional members of the school staff, but the term does not
include persons who are primarily responsible for the instruction of pupils.

(b) The term ‘“local educational agency” means a public board of education
or other public authority legally constituted within a State for either adminis-
trative control or direction of, or to perform a service function for public ele-
mentary or secondary schools in a city, county, township, school district, or
other political subdivision of a State, or such combination of school districts or
counties as are recognized in a State as an administrative agency for its publie
elementary or secondary schools. Such term also includes any other publie
institution or agency having administrative control and direction of a public
elementary or secondary school.

(c) The term *“institution of higher education” means an educational insti-
tution in any State which (1) admits as regular students only persons having
a certificate of graduation from a school providing secondary education, or the
recognized equivalent of such certificate, (2) is legally authorized within such
State to provide a program of education beyond secondary education, (3) pro-
vides an educational program for which it awards a bachelor's degree or pro-
vides not less than a two-year program which is acceptable for full credit
toward such a degree, (4) is a public or other nonprofit institution, and (5) is
accredited by a nationally recognized accrediting agency or association approved
by the Commissioner for this purpose or, if not so accredited, (A) is an institution
with respect to which the Commissioner has determined that there is satis-
factory assurance, considering the resources available to the institution, the
period of time, if any, during which it has operated, the effort it is making to
meet accreditation standards, and the purpose for which this determination is
being made, that the institution will meet the accreditation standards of such
an agency or association within a reasonable time, or (B) is an institution
whose credits are accepted on transfer by not less than three institutions
which are so accredited, for credit on the same basis as if transferred from an
institution so accredited. If the Commissioner determines that a particular
category of such schools does not meet the requirements of clause (5) because
there is no nationally recognized accrediting agency or association qualified to
accredit schools in such ecategory, he shall, pending the establishment of such
an accrediting agency or association, appoint an advisory committee, composed
of persons specially qualified to evaluate training provided by schools in such
category, which shall (i) prescribe the standards of content, scope, and quality
which must be met in order to qualify schools in such category to participate
in teacher aid programs under this Act, and (ii) determine whether particular
schools not meeting the requirements of clause (5) meet those standards. For
purposes of this subsection, the Commissioner shall publish a list of nationally
recognized accrediting agencies or associations which he determines to be
reliable authority as to the guality of training offered.

(d) The term “State educational agency” means the State board of education
or other agency or officer primarily responsible for the State supervision of
public elementary and secondary schools, or, if there is no such officer or
agency, an officer or agency designated by the Governor or by State law.

(¢) The term “State” includes, in addition to the several States of the Union,
the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico. Wake Island, Guam, American Samoa,
the Virgin Islands, and the Trust Territory of the Pacific Islands.

FEDERAL CONTROL OF EDUCATION PROHIBITED

Sec. 7. Nothing contained in this Act shall be construed to authorize any depart-
ment, agency, officer, or employee of the United States to exercise any direc-
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tion, supervision, or control over the curriculum, program of instruction,
administration, or personnel of any educational institution or school system,
or over the selection of library resources, textbooks, or other printed or pub-
lished instructional materials by any educational institution or school system.

Mrs. Bowsray. Section 4 indicates that the institution of higher edu-
cation participating in the project will undertake to provide pre-
service training programs to prepare persons to become teacher aldes
and to provide preservice programs bringing together teacher aides
and the teachers and other educational personnel who will be super-
vising them.

I would like to see this strengthened because just bringing people
together does not necessarily mean that they will be given the kind of
orientation that is necessary in order to work together.

T believe that this could be strengthened by indicating that there
would be preservice training both of the auxilary personnel and
of the teachers with whom they are to work and other profes-
sionals in terms of the new roles and relationships that are required
of them.

I would also hope that this would continue under inservice train-
ing and be a continuous operation rather than limited to an orienta-
tion period only.

I want to put our strong support behind the bill which does provide
for a long-range program and does provide ample funds to demon-
strate and provide the services that are needed.

Mr. Scuecer. 1 am working with Senator Nelson’s office and I am
very much interested in your recommendations for improving and for
fortifying the bill: they will be included in the form in which it is
introduced in the House.

Mrs. Bowaax. Thank you very much.

In conclusion T would like to refer back to Mr. Risner’s comment
that often research simply gathers dust somewhere in a file. I am
happy to report that we were urged to prepare an interim report,
and distribute it throughout the country.

I show vou a copy of the report which we prepared which was sent
to superintendents of schools employing teacher aids under title I
programs, to deans of colleges of teacher education.

We distributed 25,000 copies of this report, but we have had requests
for +.000 more copies for distribution, and, in addition, approximately
1,000 people have asked for the supplementary materials which de-
scribe each of the 15 programs and provide some suggested models for
training and utilization of auxiliary personnel.

I have copies of these profiles plus a composite picture of all of the
programs we have been observing and analyzing.

Mr. Sciever. Mr. Chairman, 1 would like to ask unanimous consent
that those supplementary reports be placed in the record immediately
following the main report which was placed in the record the other
day.

Chairman Perkrxs. Without objection it is so ordered.

Mr. SterGER. May I ask Dr. Bowman whether or not for the commit-
tee any of those coples might be available?

Mrs. Bowarax. Let me say that we did send copies to this entire
committee of the first 10 profiles about a month ago, but it was before
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this hearing and it probably was snowed under by much of the mail
that you receive.
When Dr. Niemeyer and Dr. Klopf reported to us on March 15 that

you did not have this material, we sent you the five new profiles and
mdicated that if you wished to have the first 10 which had already
been sent to the members of the comuittee, we would be happy to
send a repeat order.
This went out on Thursday air mail special delivery to all of you.
Chairman Perkins. We will withhold any questions until all of
vou ladies have had a chance to make a general statement.

STATEMENT OF MRS. NATHAN W. LEVIN , CHAIRMAN OF THE EDU-

CATIONAL SERVICES SECTION OF THE CITIZENS COMMITTEE FOR
CHILDREN

STATEMENT OF MRS. NATHAN W. LEVIN, CHAIRMAN OF THE Evucationar
SERVICES SECTION, CITIZENS’ COMMITTEE FOR CHILDREN OF NEW YORK, INC.

Your Committee plays a decisive role in establishing the educational pattern
for present and future generations. Citizens’ Committee for Children, a com-
munity agency which has for twenty years worked for the improvement of New
York City’s educational system, is honored to appear before you. We hope that
you will exercise to the fullest the power that the Congress has invested in you
to assure that the resources of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act
of 1965 are used to provide the greatest benefit to those whom it was enacted
to help. We believe that amendments are needed if this goal is to be reached.

You have been examining how present appropriations have been used—whether
for “add on” programs or whether the emphasis has been put on programs to
create change in education. We share with you the opinion that the legislative
intent of the Congress was not that ESEA serve as general aid to pay for “more
of the same” by simply relieving states, counties, cities, towns and local school
boards of their financing problems. We realize, of course, that these local gov-
ernmental units are hard-pressed financially with a narrowing tax base, but
we also know that federal aid to education was not designed to solve this prob-
lem. We fear that this message has failed to reach lay boards of education
throughout the land. Our close observations of Title I programs in New York
City leave little doubt in our minds that almost all the money has been used for
general support of the school system.

In the two vears of Title I operation in New York City, approximately twenty
percent of the total has been allocated for the reorganization of grade levels
to a t-4—t systemn. This “reorganization™ hax heen mandated as a way to effect
racial balance in the schools by the New York State Department of Education
in 1964, before ESEA existed. But when ESEA money was made available,
%28 million went for this purpose—the largest segment ($17.6 million) for the
creation of Comprehensive High Schools, whose actual inception is not yet
scheduled. The funnelling of this money for routine school expenses seems to
us inappropriate and a deliberate misreading of the educational intent of Title
I that you wrote into the law.

That infusions of federal aid are needed may not be disputed, but it is a cruel
hoax upon the children of the poor that these funds are used to maintain and
strengthen the system that has failed to educate them. It is not the children
who need remediation, but the system. Our present course suggests that if the
prescription fails, we throw the patient out.

It is obvious that the only redress is legislative. Accordingly. we appear be-
fore you to express our hope that you will be hold enough to mandate needed
changes in the Act to communicate unmistakably that the legislative intent is
to break with old patterns wherever they no longer are useful.

We are aware that the local educational agencies raise the spectre of federal
domination and that this properly gives pause to some legislators. But urban
America, particularly the largest cities, eannot wait for concensus among edu-
cators as they veer from crisis to crisis, half-paralyzed by the fear that their
autonomy will be destroyed.

As we have observed ESEA in New York City, and particularly Title I, the
following legislative mandates seem necessary to us:
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1. We ask that you mandate that changes in budgeted program amounts
approved for funding by the Office of Education exceeding 10% of their orig-
inal budget be resubmitted through the same approval cycle. The appended
list of New York City’s Title I projects shows the comparison of the original
budget as passed in a public hearing and two subsequent modifications made
without public review. Projects were modified up to 4009 from the original
allocation. These comparisons were obtained only by extensive digging in
the records of the Board of Education, since no procedures for review of
modifications exist in the system. Such administrative changes, remote
from public scrutiny, we understand to be widespread throughout the
country.

2. We ask that you strengthen the role of community participation in
planning in order to provide at least some checkpoints on Title I allocations.
The present loose consultative relationships of the New York City Board of
Education and the Council Against Poverty are ludicrously insufficient to
relate planning for Title I to other educational projects and they make a
mockery of community involvement and comprehensive planning. They
invite deception on the part of the Board of Education and are, therefore,
potentially dangerous.

3. We ask that you make explicit the functional relationships between
the several Titles of the Act, particularly Titles I and I1I. It is our hope
that some of the innovative spirit of Title IIT might find its way more
easily into the school systems. through the cross-fertilization of shared
ideas from educators and the communities together.

4. We ask for amendments to render the required evaluations of Title 1
projects meaningful. The Act states that evaluations must be made, not
that they be utilized in future planning. In New York City this year, proj-
ects were recycled before last year's ovaluations were submitted. To be
made more useful, evaluations should have built into them alternatives and
the recommendations of the evaluator. What is now an expensive exercise
should be made a function to provide service to local school boards having
the responsibility for making policy based on experience. American busi-
ness would not survive if its consultants did not supply management with
alternatives after reviewing the efficacy of programs.

5. We ask that you mandate 15% of funds for innovative projects to be
set aside for retraining and orientation of new staff for the goals of the new
programs. We think it would be fruitful to explore training possibilities out-
side the schools. In-service training now often amounts simply to the trans-
mission of outmoded skills and the perpetuation of ineffective methods.

6. We ask that you reinforce other new legislation calling for the creation
of non-professional career development by amending the Acr to cover train-
ing and salaries for indigenous personnel. Under ESEA, they are presently
limited solely to custodial tasks—hall duty. cafeteria duty, yard dquty—with
the substitution of federal for local funding being the only change. We think
it essential to evolve new roles and new training vehicles to produce clear
pon-professinnal development lines for paid classroom auxiliaries. We need
also to provide education for the classroom teacher to understand and to
accept such help as an adjunct to his own professionalism.

Federal aid under ESEA amounts to over 7, of New York City’s school
expense budget, but its potential. intended by Congress to cause profound change
in the system has thus far not been realized. A great deal of federal money has
been poured into the system. Two years of experience have demonstrated that
money alone—without the creation of new approaches and new skills—will not
lead to better education for those children whose shocking educational neglect
led to the enactment of Title I.

We strongly believe that the training of adults, both as neighborhood classroom
aides and as teachers trained in the dvnamics of change will have the longest-
lasting effect upon our schools. The children of the year 2000 will thank you
for the quality upgrading of the system rhey will inherit.

We have given vou as succinetly as possible our suggested amendments to the
Tlementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965. We have other less critical
changes to recommend about the dar-to-day operation of ESEA in New York City
and the role of the State Iducation Departments which have failed to transmit
the directive for change. e reserve these. for further exploration and discus-
sion with you.

ISFEA has failed so far in the largest city in America, with the largest Title I
appropriation-—where one might expert leadership, boldness, and a great sense of
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urgency in view of its school problems reported daily in the press. Despite wide-
spread community insistence upon the development of a comprehensive plan for
the children in close to 900 public schools and 200 non-public schools participating
in Title I projects, the pleas fall on deaf ears. If the present drift continues with-
out legislative clarification, it will be difficult to determine the effect of appropri-
ations of billions of dollars beyond aid to perpetuate old patterns of failure.

LSEA allocations for 1966—-67

]

l Projected
| 196667

| expense
| budget

} (July 1, 1966)

Total. . ...

1
Prekindergarten. . ___ ! 2,447,028
Kindergarten________ 1. 039, 503

Early childhood coordination.__
After school study centers, elementary_._____
After school study centers, Junior high school.
After school study centers, coordination______ -
Summer elementary. . ________________
Sunumer junior high schools.__ _ ___
Summer socilly maladjusted. . . _
Comprehensive high schools, acalemi
Comprehensive high schools, vocational
Summer academic high schools. ______
Summer vocational high schools.
Summer teacher moms _ . ____ .
Neighborhood Youth Corps ... .. ..
Coordination, comprehensive high schools. _.
Middle schools

Coordination, junior high school, ESEA

- 31, 056

I'mproved services, elementary__________ . [ 4
Improved services. junior high sehools special service . 1,524, 804
Coordination, elementary, ESEA_ ___~ ) 20, 382 |

Expanded and improved instructions for socii';{ll)'*_ﬁiéladjusted
and emotionally disturbed children, schools.._______ ___ 2,345, 525
Expanded and improved services for socially maladjusted

child, supportive services_. 756, 968
Socially maladjusted, Lincoln . S, 411, 044
Expanded and improved services for socially maladjusted and

emotionally disturbed child, selected schools. ___._ . ___ 380, 603
Transitional schools, elementary_..____________ A 4, 576, 577
Transitional schools, junior high school . - 2,859, 649
Free choice open enroliinent, elementary_. . 3, 241, 291
Free choice open enrollment, junior high s R 1, 675, 161
More effective schools.________ ______ 7~ . . 6, 394, 020
Interscholastic athletie programs. 349, 462 |
Speech {uprovenient program __ 280, 298
College discovery program.__ __ J 589, 993
Supervision, child guidance.____________ N 0
Supervision, educational and voceational guidance | 0
Curriculum development, middle sehools_____________ .~ i 0
Curriculum development, teacher training, career guidance. . _ 0
Curriculum development, socially maladjusted. ._____.__ . _ 0
Coordination-curriculum development and teacher training,

socially maladjusted .. ___________________
Teacher training, middle schools_
Preservice training_ .. ___________
Preschool child development centers______ -
Educational TV and audiovisual teacher training____
Sl:immer in-service training for teaching disadvantaged
ren._ . ___ .
SUTEC (Queens College) . _
Coordination, nonpublic____
Art (nonpublie) after school _ _
Music (nonpublic) after school. ___._____
Health education (nonpublic) after school_
Library services (nonpublic) after school
Speech therapy (nonpublie).__________
Speech improvement (nonpublic)
Corrective reading (nonpublie) .
Evening guidance centers______
In-school guidance (nonpublic) _
Corrective mathematics (monpublic)___
Demonstration and teacher training-sp
(nonpublic)
Testing (nonpublic) ___
Trip program (nonpublic)._____ - .
Curriculum development, career guidance._.
Curriculum development and teacher training (600)

COCOOD CoCTSOODoOOoOoOD ccoCco

Modi
196667
budget
(Oct. 19,
1966)

bl

——1

157,112

686, 649
93, 555

387, 758
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=

LS IET

e
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»
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2,084
240, 507 |
667 |
1,177, 050
2,458, 711
916, %02
1,177, 620
23,175
21,970 |
54,320

0

Modifed
166667
budget
(Jan. 31,

1967)

2, 237

4, 416,385
0
61, 078

2,187,182
714, 267
0

421, 667
4,806, #59
2,767, 027
3,423, 846
1,960, 868
6,212, 981

354,317

355, 352
1, 104, 378

114, 300

55,310
211, 648
46, 366
47,342

2,011,945
443, 382
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Mrs. Levin. Mr. Chairman, Congressman Scheuer, and other mem-
bers of the committee, I should like to say on behalf of the citizens’
committee that we are honored to be here today and we appreciate and
welcome the opportunity to bring to your committee our observations
on the use of the funds provided by the Elementary and Secondary
Education Act in New York City.

We share with you the opinlon that these funds were not for the
purpose of general aid but rather to provide additional moneys which
are so essential if we are going to reach and provide effective educa-
tion for our culturally and educationally deprived children.

In the testimony which has been distributed to you, we make six
points as recommendations for legislative amendments to the Elemen-
tary and Secondary Education Act. I should like to amplify to some
extent,

No. 1. We ask that you mandate that change in budgeted program
amounts approved by the Office of Education that exceed 10 percent
of their original budget be resubmitted through the same approval
procedure.

I should like to refer to the appended sheets which will bear out and
demonstrate the reason for this suggested amendment. The first
column which shows a total of over $50 million represents the final al-
location projected in the expense budget as of July 1, 1966, as pre-
sented at a public hearing.

There were numerous subsequent hearings at which there were frag-
mentary considerations of proposals. There was never an opportunity
to get a picture of a comprehensive overall plan but, rather. it seemed
to us a patchwork of bits and pieces without design and without
pattern.

In December the budget request of the superintendent of schools
showed changes reflected as of October 19. These figures are rep-
resented in the second column.

As of January 31, 1967, by dint of extensive and intensive digging
on the part of onr staff. we were able to get from the office of business
affairs of the board of education the modified budget figures listed in
column 3. _ ) .

A cursory glance alone reveals something rather interesting. Pages
3 and 4 have in the first column a series of zeros indicating that there
had been ahsolutely no provision made at the outset for these pro-
orams. which were added on later without benefit of a comprehensive
listing. when it became known that more funds would be available.
Review indicates that some of the figures that appear in the final
column vepresent increases up to 400 percent. '

We have been following the prekindergarten programs in New
York Citv and have issued two reports on them dated June 1965 and
Octoher 1966 and, therefore. have a special interest in how funds are
expended for early childhood education. May T call your attention
to the prekindergarten expenditure. There has been an increase of 80
percent in the original allocation of July 1,1966. ) )

We are delighted to see increased funds channeled into prekinder-
earten education hecause, on the hasis of what we have seen. we be-
lieve in its potential wholeheartedly. If vou will look immediately
below under “Kindergarten.” vou will see that the original allocation
of 1.039.503 was oliminated as of January 51, 1967.
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It was reduced to a cipher. I should like to refer for a moment and
quote from the President’s special message to the Congress on health
and education in which under special programs for special needs
educating poor children, and I will excerpt :

Let us begin new efforts like the Headstart, Follow-Through program which
can carry forward into the early grades the gains made under Headstart.

There is no provision made for “Follow through” in this budg-
etary analysis. As a matter of fact, thence are 50,000 youngsters in
New York City who have gone through a prekindergarten program,
a Headstart program and are drop outs because there has been no
provision for a continuation into kindergarten for them.

Mr. Scurver. Do you have any figures on the percentage of chil-
dren in New York City or New York State who are eligible for
kindergarten—in a State where kindergarten is mandated to be avail-
able if a parent wished to place his child in kindergarten—but who
are not there even though their parents prefer that they be there?

Mrs. Levin. Idonothave it but I can find out.

Mr. Scuruer. Almost half of the children in my district are not in
kindergarten and I have had repeated reports from parents who have
taken their children to kindergarten and are told there are no facili-
ties available.

Under the State law there is a mandate for all children to be in first
grade and a mandate for all children to be in kindergarten if their
parents so desire. 'T'o me this is an outrageous situation.

Mrs. Levin. We concur absolutely.

A further analysis of these figures indicate that the upper grades
get a disproportinate flow of funds and prekindergarten and early
childhood education are left short changed.

No. 2. We ask that you strengthen the role of community partici-
pation to provide checkpoints on title I allocations.

When the veto was eliminated from the original act, the community
action agencies were left powerless.

In New York City, the Council Against Poverty, beginning August
8, 1966, asked specific questions of the board of education about
1966—67 proposals: they renewed their request for information on sub-
sequent dates in August, September, and October.

The information was still lacking on October 20 when evervbody
agreed that this should not happen, but, in point of fact. the programs
had already been put into effect as of the September opening of schools,
so it was all rather meaningless.

I should like to make a final point with regard to the reduced effec-
tiveness of the New York City community action agency with the re-
moval of the veto:

The Council Against Poverty’s Education Committee reviewed the
latest title I tentative projects just this past week. A letter dated
March 14 was addressed to the president of the board of education in
wheh the council went on record criticizing the lack of meaning in its
consultative role for programs had actually started prior to the re-
quested endosement of the Council Against Poverty. For example,
they were consulted in regard to a pilot education program for preg-
nant school-age girls. Endorsement was sought at the end of Feb-
ruary for this program which had been started in Jannary.
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Mr. Steicer. If T may. Mr. Chairman, would you clarify for the
record when vou are talking about March 9 and 10, is this 1967

Mrs, LeEvis. Yes, sir: T am talking about 1967, the current year.

1 should like to quote a paragraph from the March 14 letter of the
New York City Council Against Poverty to Mr. Garrison, president
of the board of education.

Although the education committee and the Council devoted considerable time
to these project reviews and have examined individual projects in the past,
they are of the opinion that the piecemeal approach to the use of Title I funds
which now total $75 million to $80 million is not realistic or temable. It is
impossible for the Council to view the true impact or lack of impact of the
Title I program when its only contact is through a many times hasty project
by project review. What in the Council’s view is needed for sound planning
is a broader look at stated goals, objectives, and priorities.

Chairman Perkixs. Thank you very much for a good statement.
May we hear from the next witness?

Mrs, Bexaasnx. Mrs. Levin has some more important points she
would like to add.

Mrs. LEviN. No. 3: We ask that you make possible the combination
of titles, particularly titles I and ITL. The number of proposals
cubmitted make it innovative and necessary to discard many which
are worthy of exploration. but for which funds are insufficient under
title 111.

The funds are more ample in title I. If it were possible to develop
a partnership of community personnel with educators in the sharing
of ideas and the sharing of funds. we think that this would open up
many new avenues for innovative experimentation.

No. 4. we ask for amendments to render the required evaluations of
title I projects meaningful. The act states that evaluations must be
made but not that they be utilized in future planning. Evaluations
that cost half a million dollars were submitted last September after
programs had already been recycled.

Tt seems essential that the goals of programs should be clearly de-
fined at the outset and that evaluations should include a summary of
findings with recommendations that have some meaning for followup.

This is a very expensive exercise and it should provide service to
local school boards which have the responsibility for making policy
based on the experience of the prograni.

No. 5: We ask that you mandate 15 percent of funds for innovative
projects to be set aside for the retraining of teachers. We have several
Jeading teacher educators on the membership of the Citizens Com-
mittee for Children and there was a consensus among them that the
teacher training institutions are not graduating teachers who are
equipped to do the kind of job that is necessary in urban schools.

This yvear the Nation is spending $100 million of title I funds for in-
service courses. which seem to be perpetuating the system’s errors in
a closed loop. We should like to recommend an internship outside of
the system (perhaps on the order of VISTA’s (training program) so
that an insight and understanding of the problems of this special group
can be developed in the teachers who will then be better prepared
to go into the classroom.

Finally, No. 6: We should like to underscore and endorse what
Dr. Bowman has said. We, too, ask that you reinforce other new
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legislation calling for the creation of nonprofessional career develop-
ment by amending the act to cover training and salaries for indigen-
ous personnel and to provide education for the classroom teacher to
understand and to accept such help as an adjunct to his own pro-
fessionalism.

It has been projected that, by 1975, one out of every four college
graduates will be required to staff our classrooms in accordance with
the method that we are currently pursuing. We obviously must find
a solution to meet this problem, and it would appear that we have a
very promising source among the indigenous personnel,

It is our strong feeling if the present drift continues without legis-
lative clarification it will be diflicult to determine the effectiveness of
the appropriation of billions of dollars.

Mr. Sterger. May I say— and I am sure Mr. Scheuer will say the
same thing—you, Dr. Bowman and Mrs. Levin, have been most articu-
late In terms of recommendations and you have clearly pinpointed the
needs that exist.

I am so much impressed that I will really pass my questions be-
cause your time is hmited as is ours except to say I would hope we
will be successful either in this legislation, H.R. 6230 or in subse-
quent legislation in providing a means for developing a program for
paraprofessionals in this country.

As I told Dr. Niemeyer when he was here, I would really like to
come and visit the Bank Street School.

Mrs. Bownaax. We hope you will.

My, Stereer. We would like to visit you; I think it would be most
revealing. I will pass my questions except to endorse what you have
said and your concepts and to say that I am sure the committee will
labor hard to try to develop the suggestions that you have made, Dr.
Bowman, as well as attempting to provide some of the implementation
for what the citizens committee for children of New York have made.

It is always gratifying when the witnesses will come forward with
some specific recommendations on how they think we can improve the
program and make it operate better so that we don't continue to
simply do what we have always done to continue that kind of pattern
which would be a very real mistake in time and money and certainly
in the lost children.

Mr. ScuEUvER. I very much enjoyed the testimony of you two ladies
and I think my colleagues here have shared their feeling of knowledge
and enrichment of the comprehension of the ways these ongoing pro-
grams are functioning in the field.

Dr. Bowman, may I ask you to give us some specifics as to the field
experience of subprofessionals? Under what conditions do they func-
tion effectively and under what conditions have they functioned not
so effectively, where, and in general can you dot a few i's and cross a
few t’s in these dozen or more cities.

Dr. Bowaan. Thank you both. First, one of the things that we
have found to be a very important component in any program for
utilizing nonprofessionals is to avoid rigid role definitions and role
differentiations.

We find that particularly in a new and evolving kind of program
like this it is most important to enable people to experiment and
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develop functions for auxiliaries in terms of specific needs of pupils
in each situation rather than following rules that are supposed to
be applicable to every situation.

To illustrate, in Illinois there is restrictive State legislation which
prohibits the utilization of nonprofessionals in a monitorial capacity.

When we observed a program in East St. Louis, Ill., we saw two
rather disturbing examples of the application of this rule. First
we found in one classroom a third-grade student helping to check yes
and no answers on an objective test prepared by the classmates.

This bright student used the teacher’s book; it went very well. The
student was being helpful. But the aid, a high school graduate, had
to stand by and was not permitted to perform a function which was
adequately performed by a third-grade student.

In another instance, we found complaints by busdrivers that because
aids were not allowed to serve in a monitorial capacity on the buses,
their attention was diverted from the road, the lives of the children
were endangered while the busdriver unaided by any nonprofessional
tried to quiet the children.

Now to go to the positive in this. In Washington, D.C., we ob-
served a program which was sponsored by Howard University in co-
operation with the model schools division of the District of Columbia
Public Schools where there was flexibility about the functions and
where teachers were allowed to select those functions which best
suited the needs of the pupils and the particular skills which the aid
could give.

I saw an example of one Negro male auxiliary who was not good at
the monitorial function and was not used in that because he had
established such a buddy-buddy rvelationship with the boys in his
class that his control was weakened. However, he was excellent in
going to the homes in cases of truancy and talking to the boys and
to their parents and saying to them, *You must come to school and
study harder. Believe me, I know.” T had that experience. And
Lere was a Negro voung man talking to Negro boys in such a way that
they would listen to him. So here was a caze where the teacher who
was a very observant person could diagnose the situation and use the
aid and there was enough flexibility as to make this role possible.

Another word in regard to training. The problem in New York
Citv i that the situation is so vast, providing adequate training is so
difficult that at the present time they are doing a demonstration pilot
project in district 3 in Lower Manhattan and Mrs. Verona Williams,
the lovely aide who came to you and who is a member of our advisory
commisston. works there and dees help to bridge the gap between
school and community by being involved in the school.

As a parent aide he understands the school and can interpret it to
the community but zhe also nunderstands the problems of the area
and can help to interprer the children to the middle class professionals
<o she serves as linkage between school and community but she dees
this after very intensive in-depth training in terms of the school’s
goals. She was not just plunged into this situation with no help.

Mer. Scaerer. How Jong was her training period ?

Mrs. Bownax. She trained for a summer institute and now she is
engaged in a followup inservice training for a term, so she has had
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an opportuity not only to be trained herself but an opportunity to
talk with the teachers to whom she is assigned and to review their
common experiences and plan together on the basis of the experience.

Now in another district of New York City where there is no train-
ing at the present time for aids, it is reported that there are evidences
of auxiliary personnel acting daily in a way that becomes dynamite to
the school because they just have not been given an understanding of
the school goals.

They gossip to the community about the schools. They over protect
their own children in the school. They don't stick to time schedules
according to the reports we have received, and I don’t want to say
this is true of all of the aides in the school nor is Mrs. Williams who
is really an unusual person really representative of all the aides
in distriet 3.

However, we do have far more problems reported in New York
City in those places where there are no training facilities. I referred
to the fact that it was so difficult to provide adequate training to all of
the schools in an immense city like New York, but I would like to refer
to a very imaginative device that Detroit has developed for a mobile
training team of five persons to go from school to school and work
with students and teachers in one school after another.

Mr. Scarver. Do you mean teacher aides?

Mrs. BownmawN. Yes; by students I meant in a sense the student
aides, the aides who were learning to help in the school situation.

The team of five consists of, first, a sociologist who helps the teach-
er understand the life conditions of the situation in which he is teach-
ing. There is a teacher-educator who helps the people with whom
he works to define educational goals and philosophy and to discuss
methods for implementing these goals.

There is a technical expert, one who is familiar with programed
instruction and the so-called hardware in the schools and can help
the aides to utilize these programs and provide the individualized help
to the pupils while they use a machine and work at their own level
of speed.

There is also a psychologist who conducts group counseling sessions
with teachers and aides together to get out into the open any of the
difficulties that thev face, any of the insecurities.

Some teachers feel that aides are a threat to them. Sometimes aides
are too intent upon their new role and tend to object to doing any
task that they consider too menial.

These are things that need to be talked out together. Certainly the
aide should not be given functions that should be assigned to the cus-
todian or to the pupils, but only through an opportunity to express
their so-called gripes and talk it through can this be resolved.

The fifth member of the team is an experienced and successful aide
who talks as one who has done this and who has faced the problems
and has some concrete suggestions about how they can be resolved.

Mr. Scaever. May I ask you one last question? What has been the
reaction of the teachers unions and the teachers themselves where
aides have been used? Tow have they reacted to the change in
their role?

Mrs. Bowaran. Let me tell you on our advisory committee is Charles
Cogan, the president of the United Federation of Teachers. He has
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come to meetings of our advisory commission, has ordered copies of
this interim report, and distributed it to his membership. He has
expressed approval of our basic goals. Albert Shanker in New York
has come to our conferences and we have been in touch with him.

Mr. Scuever. What is his position ?

Mrs. Bowyan. His position was favorable also. He is president of
the New York Federation of Teachers.

Mr. Scuever. I would like at this point to ask unanimous consent
that the record be kept open in the event either of these two gentlemen
would like to submit a statement.

Chairman Perxins. Without objection the record will be kept open
for that purpose and if there is no objection from the members the
record in general will be kept open until the middle of next week for
anvone who wants to place in the record any additional information
either by the majority or the minority.

You will both have that opportunity on these amendments or any
other relevant subject matter in the elementary and secondary educa-
tion amendments.

Mr. Scaerer. I would like to ask one final question of Mrs. Levin.
Can vou give us from your experience a brief statement as to how you
would like to see this committee and this Congress implement and
encourage the kind of change that you see as desirable m the use of
title I funds and change in the way of educational system function?

I know that is a broad subject.

Mrs. Levix. It is a rather broad subject and 1 thougit I covered it
in the six points I made. I would like to reiterate, however, that
greater sums of money are going to be needed to do the job.

It would be tragic if these funds were wasted because new methods
were not explored and developed to effect change.

From our own observation up to this point, the moneys in New
York City have been used substantially for a maintenance budget and
not to etlect change.

Mrs. Bowaax. I would like to add one more point in terms of the
question you asked me before. 1 mentioned role development and
training as to institutionalization we did find in northern Arizona
where Navajo Indians were training to be aids and in Florida where
migrant workers were trained to be aids, even though there was a firm
and we believe an honest commitment in advance to employ the aids, in
the end circumstances which were said to be beyond the control of the
superintendent of schools prevented this.

So a few of these aides were trained for jobs that did not exist.
However, to give the other example where there was adequate pre-
planning and funds were layed aside and kept for this purpose and
where there was an adequate cooperation between the institution of
higher learning and the school system—1I speak now of one case, Puerto
Rico—not only were all of the aides trained during a summer program
placed in the school systems in the fall but all are now enrolled on a
work-study basis at the University of Puerto Rico in a special program
that the university provided to try to assist aides to grow on the job.

Mrs. Bexgayrn. I would like to respond to your question about how
the Citizens Committee for Children feels that we might see changes
come about that would actually be innovative.
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Mr. Steicer. Would you identify yourself for us!?

Mrs. Bexgayiy. I am Mrs. Margaret Benjamin and I serve as
education staff for the Citizens Committee for Children.

Mor, Sterger. Thank you, Mrs. Benjamin.

Mrs. BEngamin. I would like to suggest we seek legislative redress
for the failure to have comprehensive planning in New York City.
This has been partly the result of the fallure of relationships between
the Poverty Council and the board of education.

Mzr. ScaEUER. Is the Poverty Council the official organization ?

Mrs. Bexgayin. Yes, it is the community action agency. I believe
that only if you gentlemen could mandate a comprehensive plan could
we expect any significant change.

The board of education should be obliged to provide a statement
with each program saying how it fits into a total design for the im-
provement of the education of disadvantaged children.

I believe this is a feasible requirement and without it we are all
going to continue to flounder.

Chairman Perrins. Mr. Dellenback, do you have questions?

Mr. Derrexpack. I also have appreciated the testimony so far.
May I ask a few questions of either Mrs. Benjamin or Mrs. Levin on
the Citizens Committee itself? I am intrigued by the existence of such
a committee, and I would like to know just a bit about it. I see that
you have been about 100 committee members on your stationery. You
have 36 members on the board of directors.

The Citizens’ Committee for Children of New York is an organiza-
tion of professional and lay experts in various fields of child care.
By combining their skills and working wherever possible in partner-
ship with public officials, other organizations and interested indi-
viduals, the committee seeks to initiate and strengthen services for
children who can neither organize nor speak for themselves.

Who belongs to this organization? How does one become a
meimnber?

Mr. Levix. The committee has been in existence for over 20 years.

Mr. Derrexsack. This does not confine its structure strictly to
education?

Mrs. Levin. No, sir. I am chairman of the educational services
section and Mrs. Benjamin is the research associate of the educational
services section.

There are other sections such as mental health, children’s rights,
health and welfare. The committee is made up of professional and
lay experts in those various areas of concern for children.

Mr. DeLLExBACK. I assume you are a nonprofit corporation?

Mrs. Levin. We are a nonprofit corporation.

Mr. DerLenBack. Who elects the members? Are vou self-per-
petuating ?

Mrs. Bexsaamy. New members are nominated by a neminating
committee and elected by the full membership. )

Mr. DeLLexnBacK. The board then chooses its own members but it
does not assert any public role over anyone who wants to become a
member?

Mrs. Bexgaarx. Members of the board also are elected by the
membership.
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Mr. DeLLeneack. Do committee members serve for indefinite
periods? )

Mrs. Levin. They serve for prescribed periods. They are elected
for 3 years.

Mr. DELLENBACK. Are you talking about committee members or
members of the board?

Murs. Levin. Members of the board of directors as well as commit-
tee members.

Mrs. Bexgamin. Unless they assume policymaking public office,
then they are asked to step down.

Mr. Derrexsack. Would you not consider judges public office ?

Mrs. Bengamin. If you forgive me I would like to check on that.

Mr. DeLLenBack. I do not mean to be overly detailed. I am just
interested in the idea of a nonofficial group doing what, I think, can
be a very healthy job of sitting and looking over the shoulder of an
official or a series of official groups. I don’t mean to be cross-examin-
ing you to find holes. I am looking for the genesis of this idea and
its implementation.

Mrs. Levin. I have rather taken its form for granted and I am
glad you asked this because I shall check this for myself.

Mr. Scuever. Can any citizen join the committee?

Mrs. Levin. No, it is by invitation.

Mr. DeLrexBack. The board is chosen by the committee and is
elected periodically?

Mrs. Levin. Board members serve for 3 years, one-third is elected
every year.

Mr. DELLenBack. I would appreciate that for background.

How often does the board meet?

Mrs. LeviN. Once a month.

Mr. DeLLeNBack. You have 36 members. What is your average
attendance ?

Mrs. Levin. It is very good.

Mrs. BEngamin. Twenty as a minimum.

Mr. DELLExBack. How many members of the board actually involve
themselves deeply in the study of the issues? You are on the educa-
tional subgrouping of the board. How many people on the board are
in this subgrouping ¢

Mrs. Levix. I would say from my own observation of the people on
the board that they all involve themselves deeply in their special area
of interest.

Mr. Derrexsack. What does that mean ?

Mrs. Levin. Well, I am interested in education and I spend many
hours every week visiting schools and reading educational material,
filling the holes in my background, consulting with Mrs. Benjamin.

Mr. DecLensack. Checking to see what the basic group is and how
it is composed, how many of the members of the board are on your
committee on education ?

Mus. Benoarin. A little more than five, just glancing at the listing.

Mr. Denexsack. Do these people spend as much time as you do,
Mrs. Levin? On this?

Mrs. Levin. No.

Mr. Deccexsack. Do vou spend a considerable amount of time on

this
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Mrs. LeviN. Yes.

Mr. DeLLensack. Do you have meetings of your group between
meetings of the board of directors?

Mrs. Levin. Yes, we do.

Mr. Stricer. May I ask the gentleman to yield for a moment?

Mr. DELLExBack. Yes, I would be glad to yield.

Mr. Stricer. In your testimony, Mrs. Levin, you did not touch on
what a number of the witness before the committee have asked and
have made reference to; namely, whether or not Project Headstart
ought to be transferred out of the Office of Economic Opportunity and
placed under the U.S. Office of Education.

Has the educational subcommittee for the Citizens Committee given
any thought to that or made any recommendations?

Mrs. Bexgamin. We have not reviewed it and we do not have a
Eolicy on it. We do view with some concern the absorption of pre-
<indergarten programs by the Board of Education in New York espe-
cially since the board of education has not been able to provide
kindergarten for every child. In essence we are providing education
for 4-year-olds at the expense of the 5-year-olds.

Mrs. Levix. And not providing education for the 5-year-olds.

Mrs. BExgamin. Moreover, we are concerned with the lack of con-
gruity in New York between prekindergarten programs and the Head-
start program, the obvious competition for children and the failure to
dovetail services, but we have not prepared a position for you today on
our opinion as to whether this program would more properly belong in
OEO or the Office of Education.

Mr. Drrrensack. The sort of presentation vou have made here—
is this the work of your subcommittee? Is this the oflicial action of
the board? Or is this the recommendation of the committee?

Mrs. Benoamin. The educational services section has been working
on title I intensively for more than a year and this actual testimony
is the result of a distillation of the ideas that have come before the
educational services section over that period of time.

Mr. DerLeNBack. Do vou have staff or is it all volunteer ?

Mrs. BExgaamin. T am the staff member forit.

Mr. DeLneNpack. Ave you on a full-time stafi'?

Mrs, Bexsamin. Time and a half.

Mr. Derrexsack. You have on a half-time basis and yon work time
and a half. This is typical of the situation. You then have one staff
person and a committee of five or six or seven who are the ones most
deeply involved in this?

Mrs. Leviv. Actually the membership of the educational services
section is larger than just five members. I Dbelieve Mrs. Benjamin
was referring to board members who serve on that section.

Mr. DerLENBACE. So there are members of the committee who are
not on the board ?

Mrs. Levin. That is right.

Mr. DecLensack. Have you found that the school authorities are
cooperative with you as you seek to get information ?

Mrs. Bexsamix. We have found that the lay board members of the
board of education have been cooperative and. at their prodding, the
staff of the board of education has been less resistant than one might
have expected.
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Mr. DecLexsack. I would assume that before you came before us
on this that you sought to discuss these matters with either the lay
board or the school r1uthor1t1es am I correct ?

Mrs. BEngayin. Decidedly.

Mr. Deprexsack. What reaction have you gotten from the school
authorities on this?

Mrs. BENsaMIN. You may recall that we have said in our testimony
that we concluded that the only recourse was legislative.

Mr. Decressack. I wish you would put it rlght here in the middle
of this discussion that you found on these suggestions it was necessary
to have some outside leverage to get the board to follow down to im-
plement these suggestions.

Mrs. BExsayin. Decidedly.

Mr. DeLrenpack. Were there other suggestions that you put to
them that they did not go along with you on?

Mrs. Bexrasy. There are other matters that T have dealt infor-
mally with members of the board about which T would like to sum-
marize for you in later communications if vou like.

Mr. Derrexpack. FHave they been receptive to these ideas?

Mrs. Bexgayn. Yes, but the way is not as clearly defined for their
operations as they or we would like. Theyv are dealing with a strong
bureaucracy. as vou have heard it deseribed, whose concern is the day-
to-cday operation of ESEA and not overall policy matters.

It is very difficult when vou have such a close view of the situation
within the board of education staff to step back and see what it is
ali about in the long run

Mr. Drrrexpack. T see here a potential advantage for a group like
the CCC. You do have a degree of objectivity or should have to bear
on this. Sometimes we get so close to things we don’t see the forest
for the trees.

How many members are there on the New York Board of Edu-
cation?

Mrs. Bexgayix. Nine lay members. One serves as chairman of
State and Federal aid committee on which another member also
serves.

Mr. DerLExBack. You have found as you discussed elementary and
secondary education problems with citizen members of the board,
lay members of the board that they have been receptive by and large
to your approaches and to the sugoestions you have made?

Mrs. BExgayin. Yes: but I believe we might say that they are
hamstrung by a lack of effective functioning between the staff level
and the lay board level of the board of education.

Mr. Derrexeack. Mr. Chairman, T am not just rambling on this
but partly what T am thinking of is what seems to be a major im-
portance. If we are concerned with the importance of being charged
with ednc*thon in eduecation, do we deal directly with State d?p‘ll‘t-
ments of education. the professionals in the field. This series of
comments is interesting to me if it is typical it says something that
the thrust of lerrlch’rmn that comes out on the Federal level.

We may find ourselves in the sitnation where education is so much
in the hands of the educators that they become an immovable bureauc-
racy that officialdom is at a loss to really to bend no matter what we
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do in the way of legislation and it is imperative that what we develop
is tailored to meet these points. This seems to me to be pertinent to
potential legislation.

Mr. Forn. I hope you are keeping in mind in vour discussion that
this school board 1s appointed by the mayor of the city of New York
and 1s not answerable to the people of New York directly. I think
you will find across the country there are significant differences as to
the independence or the responsiveness of boards.

Appointed boards tend to ditfer from the school boards which have
to be reelected with public approval of their actions.

Mr. DrLLenBack. This is an interesting observation. It was not a
factor of which I was aware. Is the superintendent of schools of
New York City elected or appointed ?

Mrs. Bengamin. He is an appointee of the board of education.

Mr. DevieNBack. I gather from your series of comments the mayor
elected by the citizens appoints the individual members of the board.
The board then chooses their superintendent and the superintendent
is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the school.

Mr. Scurver. I might say, under the law of the State of New York,
the board of education and the superintendent are responsible not. to
the mayor who appoints the members of the board but to the State
commissioner of education—so the mayor is in the somewhat anoma-
lous position of appointing the members of the board who appoint the
superintendent : but in actual point of fact he has very little direct
control over educational policies and programs.

Ultimately, the responsibility over New York City education is
vested in the State commissioner of education. Dr. Bowman, vou
probably know more about this than I do.

Mrs. Bowsman. That is quite true but I wanted to add one other
point which I think is cignificant here. Because of protests about
the quality of the board of education appointed by the mayor the
system was evolved a few vears ago whereby the mayvor asked for
recommendations for board membership from a panel of citizens and
agreed to take someone from that panel. ITowever. asked for a
number of recommendations so that he would have choice within the
group recommended.

This was an attempt, even within the procedures which have been
outlined, to get a little closer to the people.

Mr. Forp. I might make this facetious observation that some of the
former proponents of District home rule—and I classify myself on
this—might want to take on an amendment to the next home rule bill
so that you can have an elected school board in New York, too.

Mr. Deccexsack. How many years does a member of the school
board serve?

Mrs. Bexgayin. Seven years.

Mr. Derrexsack. Removable only for cause and not at the will of
the mayor?

Mrs. Bexgaamrx. Thisis right.

Mr. DeLrexeack. Does the State department of education have the
authority to remove any such member, since the board is responsible
to the State department ?

Mrs. Bowarax. I should know specifically but it 18 my impression
that the department of education may upon charges remove the board
and in fact at the time that I referred to when a panel was appointed
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to make recomniendations the State department of education had in
fact stepped in.

Mr. DecLenBack. I wish I could lean back and smugly say we have
no problems like this in the State or Oregon but unfortunately I can-
not.

Chairman Pergins. Mr. Ford.

Mr. Forp. We had some testimony that touched briefly on the pro-
gram that you mentioned, Dr. Bowman, in connection with the value
of the Teacher Corps. Spokesmen for the Detroit educational sys-
tem pointing out that the Teacher Corps provided a method for
getting an especially trained teacher into those schools dealing with
the recognizably culturally deprived children.

Do you see the kind of program you have been describing here with
the subprofessional as a program that would benefit from having in-
creased numbers of teachers trained through the device of the Teacher
Corps in the special problems of the culturally deprived children?

Mrs. Bowarax. Yes, indeed. In fact I believe all teachers in eduea-
tion, teachers in colleges and in inservice courses need to have more
understanding of the problems of disadvantaged children. One of
the studies conducted by the Bank Street College of Iiducation has
been in this very field—teacher education in a social context which
goes beyond the utilization of nonprofessionals but does in fact reach
out. to the entire school staff.

It is our feeling that a basic approach to education views every per-
son in the school building as having an impact upon the children. If
a janitor does his work well, he is a model to the children as opposed to
one who sloppily goes through a perfunctory piece of work.

The top superintendent needs to understand so that he can coordi-
nate and orchestrate others to serve the needs of disadvantaged chil-
dren. not in any sense to lump together all disadvantaged children
because there is as great a continunm among them as there is in any
other group of children.

They are not problem children but children with special problems.
The more that teachers, Teacher Corps, administrators and supervisors
and auxiliary personnel can understand the life conditions under
which some of their pupils are forced to live and the more that it is
possible to bring not onlv the teachers into the community but bring
the community info the classroom the more we will be able to eliminate
the danger that corrodes our system of school community alienation
and the more we can work roward a unified approach in terms of rec-
ognized educational goals.

Mr. Forp. Mrs. Levin, vou mentioned in your comments a parallel
between what vou were seeking here in the several programs and the
success of a relativelv new program called VISTA.

I took from your suggestion that VISTA appealed to you because
there is a sen<e of mission and dedication and, if you will, esprit de
corps that attaches to a VISTA volunteer when he goes into this
national progran.

Many of us who support and have supported the Teacher Corps
since its inception had m mind that the Teacher Corps would produce,
or would attract and develop people with the same kinds of dedica-
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tion and precommitment that the Peace Corps and VISTA have
developed and have recruited.

What I am asking both you and Dr. Bowman is to call upon your
accumulated experience in this area. I would like you to consider this
proposition. There are some Members of the Congress who have been
suggesting although there is no legislation of this kind yet introduced
that rather than pursuing further the avenues open by the Teacher
Corps as it is now constructed, we might better turn the money over
to the large city school districts earmarking it for teacher training.

With the large cities, you set up a program of teacher training be-
cause you know what is best needed in your area. Calling upon your
experience in the field to which you have directed your attention here
today, do you think that this approach would be likely to produce the
kind of teacher that you are going to need in these areas?

Mrs. Levin. On the basis of our own observations over an extended
period of visiting, we have seen inservice training, handled by the
establishment which has been unsuccesstul in reaching the children
of the ghetto. I believe that I have said that we see a perpetuation
of the same kind of failure in developing qualitied teachers unless
there is some outside facility suggested for training which will de-
velop in the future teachers an insight and understanding of the
ghetto child and how to reach him.

If it is more of the =ume, it = not going to achieve that end.

Mrs. Bowaan. I will heartily endorse what Mrs. Levin just said. I
would like to add to it a response to what I think I heard as another
aspect of your question and that is, in the choice between funds for
voluntary programs and for funds for employed professionals in the
school, should we give to the local community

Mr. Forp. Noj that is not the question. You are talking about the
subprofessionals who will work with what we identify, from whatever
source their education came, as competent teachers in the special
problems of disadvantaged children, recognizing that to use the sub-
professional there must De a competent teacher for them to work with.

We are taiking about whether we would be more likely to have a
supply of those competent teachers by the presently conceived
Teacher Corps or giving the school districts an equivalent amount of
money for the Teacher Corps and telling them to devise their own
program themselves.

Mrs. Bowarax. I think the Teacher Corps has contributed and can
contribute even more toward developing the kind of teacher who can
deal with the problem. I think the Teacher Corps is only one aspect.

This is not the panacea. This is a many faceted problem and needs
many approaches. I would like to see competing svstems of programs
at the State, Federal, and local level—competing in the sense of each
trying to outdo one another in a very effective program but cooperat-
ing in terms of the ultimate goals.

I think it would be too bad to eliminate some of the very innovative
thinking and activities at the Federal level which serve to catalyze the
local people to further efforts. However, I do think that without the
coordination at the local level and without effective use of the resources,
the training through the Teacher Corps, all of our efforts are futile
unless there is coordination.

Mr. DeLLexsack. Would the gentleman yield ?
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Mr. Forp. 1do,yes.

Mr. DELLENBACK. Recognizing as we all do some of the great ad-
vantages that have come from the Teacher Corps and you have touched
on this Dr. Bowman and recognizing, the immensity of the problem
as all of us have recognized and touched on, let me put the question
this way. Reaching then toward the goal of improving the capacity
of the teachers on the firing line to really do the job effectively, could
you not visualize, utilizing the same number of dollars that have gone
into the Teacher Corps being placed for use in the New York educa-
tional system in a way that would improve the results for which you
would reach, do you feel the Teacher Corps—if I may phrase it an-
other way, represents the ideal utilization of dollars to be used for
training teachers of the disadvantaged ?

Mrs. Bowmax. No; I don't think it is the only or even the ideal
way. I think it is one important way but I think there should be
many others.

Under the National Defense Education Act there have been insti-
tutes for teachers of disadvantaged children and youth which have
been very effective. We at Bank Street College of Education have
had teams from different school systems come for the last two summers
to work with us on how the administrators, the supervisors, the teach-
ers, the whole school system can deal with this question of the disad-
vantaged child, so I think we cannot pin all of our faith on one
program, splendid as I think the Teacher Corps is, so that rather than
thinking of the funds as very limited and asking they should be used
{or Teacher Corps or something else, I would rather see the funds for
Teacher Corps remaining intact and more funds made available for
many and varied programs because this is such a many-faceted
problem,

Mr. Derrexpack. That is neither the question T put nor Mr. Ford’s.

Mrs. Bowarax. No: but it gave me an opportunity to say something
about which I fvit very strongly.

Mr. DELLENBacK. Since the subject is open, do you have any com-
ment to make, Mrs. Benjamin?

Mrs. Bexgarix. I will limit myself to large city school systems.
If present methods were appropriate then I don’t believe that the
Congress would have had to pass the Elementary and Secendary Edu-
cation Act, and I think that you are working at your own cross pur-
poses if vou hope that the schools themselves will be able to generate
the innovative teaching ability to redemiate their own svstem. You
granted funds for them to break out of that mold.

Mr. DerpexBack. So the Teacher Corps then does represent the
best role that you can visualize for the utilization of limited dollars
for the training of teachers?

Mrs. Bengaumin. I believe that is your opinion.

Mr. Derrexpack. I don’t mean to express it as my opinion. I
was tryving to paraphrase what I thought you were sayving.

Mrs. Leviy. T think we would like to leave the door open for other
experimental programs=. There are other alternatives. such as an
internship made available to future teachers so they could have an
exposure working in the field to develop familiarity with the com-
munity and the children in the community and the problems they
have to work with. Tt seems to me that would lead in the direction
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toward developing teachers who would then be able to go into the
classroom and teach the children.

Mr. Deriensack. Then neither of you is saying that the Teacher
Corps is the ideal solution.

Mors. Bowaan. Itis one solution.

Mr. DELLENBACK. You are not saying it 1s the ideal solution.

Mrs. Bownan. It is one excellent solution and an excellent con-
tribution but to bring new teachers into the situation does not change
existing teachers.

One of the difficulties of bringing innovations into the school is
that those who evaluate the new teachers are those who have been
trained in traditional teaching behavior—the school administrators,
the teacher educators, and we have to get to the root and with statf
development programs in terms of an innovative approach to edu-
cation and a deeper understanding of the social context in which edu-
cation operates today.

Mr. Forp. Could I try to pursue you back in the direction toward
my question! Apparently there is more defensiveness on that side
of the table than I recognize.

Mr. DeLLenBack. I am not speaking for myself but I am speaking
for those who are absent from both sides of the desk who have ex-
pressed some concern.

Mr. Forp. To put it bluntly, we have before this committee some
questions relating to the very life of the Teacher Corps. The alter-
native being propoaed by people who certainly are not suggesting
that we not have this kind of trained teacher is a program of giving
money instead to the school districts across the country and saying
here 1s money for teacher training and you develop at the local level a
teacher tl(lllllll(" program.

We will devise a program to recruit a type of person and then
direct these people into a program in conjunction with a local school
district and some teacher education facility. All of the school super-
intendents who have preceded you here have been asked would you
rather we send teacher corpsmen to you or would you like to have
the money and you would do it as you will.

You can just guess what most of them would do. I am not trying
to suggest a Teacher Corps as an alternative to any of the people you
have been talking about. I am asking you as people who are con-
cerned specifically and have a considerable amount of expertise and
experience in the several approaches that are being made and have been
made over a period of time to the special problems of disadvantaged
children to evaluate these two ways of getting at the kind of person
that we are trying to train with the Teacher Corps, not this kind of
person as a substitute for anything else but how would we best train
a teacher and be sure we are going to get a high-quality teacher with
a commitment to teach disadvantaged children.

Wouldn't we be likely to get it through the National Teacher Corps
type of approach or would we be more 111\91\' to get it if we gave your
superintendent of New York 2 million dollars and said you devise the
program.

That is.the basic question.

Mrs. Bexganry. If T am not mistaken we have something like 200
Teacher Corps placements in New York. I have not seen any one
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of these people in operation. One of the reasons we are hesitating
m answering your question is that we don't want to speak about some-
thing with which we do not have firsthand experience.

If you were to pose only two alternatives which seems to be the di-
rection in which vou are insisting

AMr. Forp. We can only vote ves or no and we can’t vote on two alter-
natives, although 1t would be nice if there were not 434 other people
over here and T ould =it down to write the great bill.

The best way to get a great education bill would be if T could
write the bill myself and the rest of these people would not bother
me. Jim Scheuer might help me a little bit provided he did not make
any suggestions bevond grammatical corrections.

The real problem is we are down to the point with this legislation
where we have to take a look from the pragmatic point of view of
whether we are going to have a Teacher Corps or not or whether we
are going to approach the problems that the Teacher Corps ap-
proaches in some other direction.

Mrs. Bexgaax. The Congress has made a very limited commit-
ment to the Teacher Corps idea. It is difficult for us to support this
program in the absence of seeing its real activity.

The Citizens Committee for Children has really grave questions
about the continuation of inservice training in inadequate vehicles as
we helieve them to be presently in the New York City schools.

Mrs, Bowsrax, T will try to answer vour question directly. I think
the Teacher Corps should be continued. 1 say this as Garda Bowman,
not representing Bank Street College of Education.

We have no position on this, nor is this based upon intensive study
as other comments that I have made on nonprofessionals in education
were based.

However, if the decision now must be between either continuing
the Teacher Corps as it is or using this money in direct subsidy to the
States for teacher training programs, 1 would like to suggest that you
continue the Teacher Corps. However I feel that the Teacher Corps
alone is most inadequate and that we do need more continuing and
nmore thorough training not only of teachers but school administrators
and supervisors and professionals together within systems and within
regions so that they can share experience through institutes calling in
many communities through regional laboratories, through more re-
search and demonstration and through more involvement of the
community.

So my answer to your question is yes, keep the Teachers Corps but
build on that in the future when this is possible because there are many
more needs to be met in order to achieve full and truly effective teacher
eduecation programs in this country.

Mrs. Levin. I should like to emphasize one point that Dr. Bow-
man made and that is the involvement of the community. I think
it is very important for us to remember that there are people who can
speak in the community for the community needs and to interpret
them in a way that we don’t always understand from the outside.

Mr. Forp. I would just like to make one observation. You have
touched on this many times, and I don’t think we are confessing to
anvthing, that you Iive in one of the cities that does the poorest job
under the Economic Opportunity Act.
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My first experience with the Detroit program is that it has been
relatively trouble free. A thousand CAP programs across the country
have had enough publicity to slow down the rest of the problems in
New York, Boston, Los Angeles, and 1 can’t pick the fourth one
quickly, I hope in judging the cooperation between the educational
system and the community action program that you will look out to
the experience of some other large cities across the country, and I am
not even prepared to guess why it is working in Detroit and not in
Cleveland, New York, Los Angeles, and in other places.

I leave that to the people who know that area better but I hope in
considering the value of the respective programs that we are dealing
with at the Federal level you look to the experience of other cities other
than your own.

As an outsider—Mr. Scheuer can’t say this and he might take issue
with me—your record in New York is not distinguished in that regard.

Chairman Perkins. Thank you, Dr, Bowman, Mrs. Levin, and Mrs.
Benjamin. I thank all of you for appearing here on a Saturday
especially. You have presented some excellent testimony. I again
want to thank Congressman Scheuer for having the foresight and
vision for inviting you people from the great State of New York.

Mrs. Bowman. %Ve thank you for the opportunity.

Chairman Perkins. If there is no objection I would like to insert
in the record at this point a statement of Mr. Joseph D. Lohman, chair-
man, California Advisory Education Commission, 721 Capital Mall,
Sacramento, Calif., along with a letter I addressed to Congressman
Moss and an article in the Carnegie Quarterly.

(The documents referred to follow:)

MazcH 17, 1967.
Hon. JorN E. Moss,
U.S. House of Representatives,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR JoHN: I appreciate very much your communication of March 14 which
I received this morning. I am very grateful for your thoughtfulness in furnish-
ing me with a copy of the statement of Joseph D. Lohman, Chairman of the
California Advisory Compensatory Education Commission. The proposed fund-
ing of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as reflected in the adminis-
trative budget is. as Dr. Lohman points out, substantially below the authorizations
provided by Congress in extending the Act last year, PL-89-750.

I strongly favor a full funding of the Elementary and Secondary Education
Act, particularly in Title I, and I intend to make my views known to the House

Appropriation Committee at the appropriate time in connection with its consid-
eration of the appropriations for the Department of Health, Education, and
Welfare.
In the meantime, I shall be most pleased to make Dr. Lohman’s statement part
of our current hearings on the Elementary and Secondary Amendments of 1967.
Warm regards.

Sincerely, .
CARL D. PERKINS. Chairman.

STATEMENT OF JOSEPH D. LOEMAN, CHATRMAN, CALIFORNIA ADVISORY COMPENSA-
TORY EDUCATION COMMISSTON, SACRAMENTO. ("ALITF.

When Congress passed the 1966 amendments to ESEA Title I, it authorized
$1.45 billion, which would have meant about $110 million to California. But the
President only recommended, and Congress passed, an appropriation of $1.05
billion, or 80 percent of the authorization. And while Congress’ 1966 amend-
ments to the authorization bill provided that additional children receive ESEA
Titla T services. the appropriation bill did not include the $123 million authorized
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to fund programs for these children. As programs for the new children had to
be funded from the $1.05 billion requested by the President, the effect was to
reduce the ongoing programs to 70 percent of the authorized amount.

However, in California our appropriation for fiscal 1967 is only 67 percent of
our authorization. We are faced with providing programs for more children
than last year with less funds than we received last year. Last year’s appro-
priation amounted to $252 per eligible child. The fiscal 1967 authorization would
have provided $259 per eligible child. But our actual appropriation was dras-
tically reduced to $180 per eligible child. This means that California either will
not be able to include all of the children programmed in the authorization, con-
sidering the additional children Congress added, or the quality of the entire pro-
gram stands to be severely impaired by spreading the funds too thinly.

To add to the seriousness of the problem, it is our understanding that the
President’s fiscal 196S appropriation request for ESEA Title I is based on the
fiscal 1967 figures. This means that the deleterious effects of the cutback will
be projected into the future, despite the fact Congress’ authorization bill in-
creases the income eligibility formula to $3,000 instead of the current $2,000
figure. While the authorization for fiscal 1968 is $2.4 billion, the President has
requested an appropriation of $1.2 billion—exactly half of what is needed to
reach the number of children the Congress intended. Because California’s cost
of living is higher than that of many other states, the use of a $3,000 allocation
formula with no significant increase in appropriations means that California’s
share of the national appropriation will be substantially reduced compared to
that of other states. In other words, California is likely to receive even less per
eligible child than it did under the current year’s already-reduced appropriation.

More than 90 percent of California’s school districts have an entitlement under
ESEA Title I and are affected by Congressional action on this appropriation. In
the program’s first year, close to 300,000 California children in 1,044 school dis-
tricts benefited. But even last year’s appropriation was only enough to begin
the job since it provided a meaningful compensatory education program for less
than half of the California children in need of compensatory education. A 1964
survey by the Governor’s Advisory Committee on Compensatory Education found
that about 700.000 California children from poverty backgrounds were not suc-
ceeding in school and needed special help. Even more funds will be needed if,
indeed, we are to reach all of the children who need compensatory education.
We cannot serve more children in 1967 than were served in 1966 with a reduction
of funds without seriously diluting the program to the extent that it will not
make an appreciable impact on the children served nor contribute to raising their
achievement level.

{Carnegie Quarterly, Vol. XIV, No. 4, Fall 1966]
TrE RIicHE GET RICHER & THE POOR GET POORER . . . SCHOOLS

“The present allocation of fiscal resources works against education in the
central cities. The lesser resources applied to education in the cities apparently
hold down educational performance, particularly in the low income neighbor-
hoods. Additional resources, if massive enough. would probably improve educa-
tional achievement. The political possibility of finding such resources for central
city education is. at the best, uncertain.”

In those dispassionate sentences, Alan K. Campbell, professor of political
science and director of the metropolitan studies program at Syracuse University,
sums up some of the early findings of a series of Carnegie-supported studies of
large city school systems. Economists and political scientists are looking at the
policies which emerge from school politics and at the ways in which the decisions
which produce these policies are made—by whom, how, why, and in what environ-
ments.

P'rofessor Campbell gave some of the findings in a paper delivered last summer
at Sranford Unuiversity's Cubberley Conference (copies are not available, so
please do not request them; however, a list of books and journal articles which
are forthcoming from the study will be found at the close of this article). He
presented an array of facts. figures, and analyses which add up to a totally dis-
heartening picture of the present efforts and future prospects for financing educa-
tion in American cities. It is not merely that those that need it most—the city
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schools—are getting least. That was already known. though how badly their
situation has deteriorated just recently relative to the suburbs was not known. It
is the portents for the future that are alarming. For if the interested groups
in the cities, including the boards of education, perform in the future as they
have up to now, it appears unlikely that there will be effective voices demanding
the educational resources the cities so desperately require. One may ask: “Who
speaks for the city schools?”

As recently as 1957, annual educational expenditures per pupil in 335 of the
largest metropelitan areas were roughly equal in the cities and their suburbs.
By 1962, the suburbs were spending, on the average, %145 more per pupil than
the central cities. This differential is primarily a reflection of the fact that
during those years the disparity in wealth Dbetween cities and suburbs was
growing.

The shocker, however, is that state 2id to the schools, which one might think
would be designed to redress this imbalance somewhat, discriminates egainst the
cities. On the average, the suburbs receive $40 more in state aid per pupil than
the cities.

Some of the federal aid to education (which cane too late to be included in the
1962 statistics) is, of course, aimed directly at disadvantaged areas. But while
the federal programs are always referred to as “massive,” and while one and a
quarter bhillion doilars per yvear are a lot of dellars, when they are spread over
fifty states, for rural as well as city areas, the impact on any one city—or any
one school—is not massive at all.

Whatever the sources of the money, local. state. or federal. tire point is that
the nation is devoting many ore resources to eduncating suburban c¢hildren than
city children.  Or to put it another way, it is spending much more money to
educate the children of the well-off than the chiliren of the poor. And every
shred of available evidence poiuts to the concluxion that the educational needs
of poor children are far greater than those of affivent children. By any measure
one wants to use—pupil performance on tests, dropout rate, proportion of students
goine on to higher eduration—the output of the schools in the depressed areas
of the cities is very much poorer than that of the suburbs. There is little reason
to believe that even to equalize treatment would begin to close the gap. 7To
achieve the substance rather than merely the theoretical form of equal educa-
tional opportunity requires the application of unequal resources: more rather
than less to the students from poor homes.

That knowledge is, of course. what underlies tlie idea of compensatory educa-
tion being pushed by the federal goverument and to a much lesser extent by a
very few of the states. The trouble thus far with compensutory education, how-
ever, is not the idea but the few funds allocated to it. They are spread so far
and so thin that only barely perceptible improveinents, by aud large. can he made,
And barely perceptible improvements have barely perceptible effects on pupil
performance.

It does little good to reduce class size from, say, 31.6 to 30.8 (like the average
American family, the average American classroom seems alwayvs to contain a
number of whole children plus a fraction of a child). or to raise expenditures for
pupil supplies from $7.25 to $8.50. or to add one social worker to the staff of a
slum high school. The evidence already in on compensatory edncation tends to
prove this,

There is scattered evidence, however, from the few places where it has been
tried. that dramatic efforts—placing enormous concentration on the teaching of
reading, for example, in very small classes—have dramatic effects. Though this
evidence is not conclusive hecause there is not enough of it, it does snggest that
some of the seemingly intractable educational problems of the c¢ities’ schools
would yield before the infusion of massive resources.

The question is where to find them. or, more accurately, how to get them for
the city schools. TFor the money is not hidden, after all. A great deal of it is
spent in this country every day, for education and for housing, freeways, war,
national parks, liquor, cosmetics, advertising, and a lot of other things. Ttisa
question of the allocation of money, which means the establishing of priorities.
That is primarily a political process. and it is heavily influenced by the clarity,
vigor, and power with which spokesmen for various interests press their claims.

In education, the decision-making unit at the local level, and the principal
spokesman for the schools, is the board of education. Various members of the
Syracuse group are making case studies of the role of the school boards in
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several cities, with particular emphasis on Atlanta, Boston, Chicago, New York,
and San Francisco. In the cities studied—and though there may be some strik-
ing exceptions, the rule appears to hold for most cities—the boards of education
have proved to be more tax-conscious than expenditure-conscious. They have
tended to tailor demands to what they calculated the tax traffic would bear
rather than to hammer home the needs of the schools and the expenditure
levels that would be necessary to meet them.

Since taxpayers’ groups have many spokesmen and school children, especially
poor ones, have few, one might have expected the boards of education to have
attempted more in the way of cajoling, pleading, and demanding. This line of
reasoning, however, ignores the composition of most school boards. At any rate,
though boards of education might have accomplished much more if they had
tried harder in the days when the cities were affluent. the question is now almost
academic. Most of the big cities are strapped financially, and although some
could raise more locally if they would, it is clear that the kind of money that
is needed simply cannot be raised by the cities from local sources alone. Much
of it will have to come from increased state and federal aid.

Here the passive role of the school boards is much less easy to understand.
If they despair of the possibility of getting adequate tax money at home, it is
hard to fathom why they have not been leading the fight for external aid, but
they have not. So far, the Campbell group concludes, the boards of education
have played a relatively minor role, and ‘*‘there is no evidence in the studies
we have undertaken to indicate that this role is going to undergo any drastic
change.”

Even if it did, it is obvious that strong and active school boards alone could
not bring sufficient pressure to bear on behalf of increased aid to the cities.
But a coalition of school board members plus local business leaders, various
civie groups. school administrators. and teachers’ organizations might be able to.

*No such coalition now exists,” Campbell says, though there are signs in some
cities that business leaders are becoming increasingly concerned about the
quality of education. As their concern grows, perhaps they will serve as rallying
points for strong coalitions to speak for the cities’ schools.

(The following statement by Dean Daniel E. Griffiths was sub-
mitted for the record:)

STATEMENT BY DANIEL E. GRIFFITHTS, DEAN. SCHOOL OF EDUCATION,
NEW YORK UNIVERSITY, MARCH 21, 1967

EVALUATION OF THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION ACT (P.L. 89—10)

General

1. The Ac¢t has provided stimulus for educational change and development,
2. The most frequently voiced criticism is that proposals are acted upon and
allocations made too late for effective implementation of plans. Early commit-
ment by local districts is essential. Decisions come so late that providing for
complementary funds in local budgets and for staffing is extremely difficult.
Budgets need to be drawn and approved before precise project allocations are
made.  Further, late decisions make it necessary for local districts to gamble
on projects being approved and funded, and those that need the help the most
are often least able or willing to “gamble” or “invest” local funds. Uncertainty
about allocations has had a debilitating effect.
3. Districts need the help of design and evaluation specialists and other re-
source persons in the preparation of proposals.
4. Wealthy districts have an advantage over poor ones in securing grants for
several reasons:
(a) They are able and willing to gamble local funds prior to the actual
grant.
(b Their staffs are better able to prepare polished proposals—greater
educational sophistication and savvy.
(¢) They are willing and able to hire consultants to help prepare pro-
posals.
(d) Some estimate that it costs about $10,000 to prepare an outstanding
proposal with a proper professional tone.
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5. While it has been mandatory to build evaluation into proposals. the results
have been token and of little valve. Further, there has been no widespread dis-
cemination of results so that District A can take advantage of District B's ex-
periences.

6. There should be provisions for interstate and interdistrict transfer of funds
to take full advantage of unexpended monies. Further, adjustments from “line
to line” on individual budgets should be possible as experience yields wisdom.
Poor judgments on early estimates have hampered many projects.

7. Guidelines should be more general rather than categorical, to meet local
needs. The problems of the suburbs are not the saine as those of the inner city.
1t <hould be possible to tailor proposals to deal with the particular problems of
states. regions, or local communities.

Q. The role of universities in 89-10 projects should be broadened and spelled
out.

Title I—K&pecial programs for the deprived

1. Many districts do not have resources for planning—skills lacking.

9 Aid is too eategorical and guidelines too severe. This reduces flexibility
and limits creativity. Proposals must satisfy not only guidelines but transitory
notions of government personnel. Only certain lines of thinking are encouraged.

3. There has been some difficulty in identifying children to participate. Defi-
nitions of poverty and deprivation should be made more inclusive.

4. Adjustment of budget items should be possible as project is implemented.

5. Administrative expenses are not taken into account sufficiently. Every pro-
posal requires some local investment, and those districts most in need of assist-
ance are often least willing to make the necessary local commitment or take
a risk.

¢. There needs to be cognizance of the newest developments in providing for
the deprived. For instance, some wealthy districts are accepting students
bussed in from slum areas. Title I allocations need ro take this into account.

Title II—Librarics and materials

1. General response to Title 11 is excellent.

2. There is some question about legality of providing materials for private
sectarian schoolg. Some feel, however, that the fact that some public schools
have acted as fiscal agents for securing materials for private schoolg has fostered
loser relationships between the two.

3. There should be fewer categorical grants by subject area.

4. Sometimes local allocations for materials are cut back the year following
Title II grant.

Title III—Supplementary centers and exemplary programs

1. Title II has fostered some innovation. It has been of tremendous help to
New York City and other large cities, but of less help to smaller districts. It
makes possible programs on a trial basis which would otherwise never be tried.

2. The phase in-phase out feature of Title I1I proposals is excellent, provided
local districts are willing to take on full responsibility for successful proposals.

3. Encouragement of formal ties between schools and other local agencies is
good—provides legitimate pressure for cooperation.

1. Delay in approval of projects and allocation of funds has hampered Title
111 projects more than others. There has been difficulty with last-minute staffing
and coordination with other agencies. Long-range planning is especially im-
portant for Title 1I1.

5. There have been difficulties in reallocation of line item funds as unforeseen
needs arise and original estimates prove incorrect.

¢. Districts which already have resources for planning make the best pro-
posals, while others have the greatest needs. Districts must be provided with
resources for planning.

7. While Title IIT proposals go directly to the federal government, they are
usually approved by state departments of eduction. The states in this area
have used this power to encourage regionalization or “clustering” of districts.
A single district or agency (e.g. study council) is designated as applicant and
administrator of the ~package” proposal. While there have been some benefits
from this (e.g., cooperation, reduction of overlap. more efficient programs), some
creative ideas by individual districts have been lost. Local ('r‘entivity is forced
into the mold of the package. Regionalization or clustering is good for small
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districts and doesn’t affect very large districts, but it is hard on medium-sized
districts (e.g., Levittown) whose innovative proposals are often overlooked in
the insistence on a large, single, regional package.

8. Title III projects have not been carefully evaluated and their results dis-
seminated.

Title IV—Rcegional laboratorics

1. Regional labs have had little discernible effect on local districts but this
is probably due to the fact that they have not had enough time to prove
themselves.

2. Some geographic areas have been completely neglected by regional labs.
For instance, Connecticut applied for its own regional lab but was forced to join
the New England Regional Education Laboratory in Boston. (This outfit re-
cently combined with a =econd lab at M.I'T.)  All the activities of the New
England Lab are centered in the Boston area. Connecticut feels slighted, and
is becoming rebellious.

3. Programs for training researchers have been cut back. This is disastrous,
since the shortage of competent researchers is holding back progress on the
whole Act.

4. The Small Contract Program is underfinanced. Since this is where young
researchers get the money to get started, lack of funds is serious here.

5. Basic research is being neglected and action-oriented programs are being
funded. This is short-sighred.

Titie T—Strengthening State departments of education

1. State departments of education undoubtedly are being strengthened as staff
is increased and positions made.

2. Locul distriets have not yet felt the full impact of Title V, except that con-
sultative assistance from state education departments is somewhat more avail-
able.

Recommendations

1. The larzest overall weakness in the fuunctioning of the Act is the lack of
trained manpower. Even if all of the school districts in the country got all the
money they thought they needed, it could not be spent wisely and well because
the necessary pool of trained manpower does not exist.

Following are some suggested amendments to the Act:

(a) There should be a large amount of money designated for the training
of necessary personnel: teachers, administrators, researchers, evaluation
specialists, project designers, systems analysts, and the like. The teacher
shortage is not severe if we use older notions of need but if we want to
staff sufficiently to meet modern standards, the shortage is pronounced.
The manpower shortage throughout education is very serious, and is the first
priority item.

(b) Funds should be increased for in-service institutes to up-date teachers
in all fields.

(¢) Funds should be allocated to train sub-professionals for service in the
schools.

(d) Money should be appropriated to develop new leaders for American
education. This mouey should be spent for further research on characteris-
tics of good leaders, so that they cau be selected from the large number
aspiring to administrative postx. There should be funds to support intern-
ships for administrators, <o that no one will step into a leadership post with-
out on-the-job training. In addition, there should be money for in-service
workshops for administrators now on-the-job.

2. Now ix the time to conzider changing the basis for the distribution of funds
to school district= from categorical aid to a national foundation program. I am
in agreement with the attached document, The Role of the Federal Government
in the Years Ahead, by Howard Joues, Dean, School of Education, University
of Towa.

3. Title IV should be greatly expanded. In my opinion Title IV is now the
Achilles heel of the Act, since it should provide the knowledge base for education
to move ahead and it is not doing it. The Small Contract Program should be at
least doubled. The research training program should be rescued from extinction,
and needs a vast increase in funding. The basic research program needs tremen-
dous emphasis, and it is not now getting support from within the Office itself.
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4. The whole Act needs to be put on a husinesslike footing. Monies are now
appropriated late, programs are announved with proposals expected in three or
four weeks, and the Act is administercd as though it will disappear tonmorrow.
The Regional Labs, for instance, have been under the gun ever since they were
first founded. They receive short-term budgets, get constant reappraisals, and
are not encouraged to develop long-range planning, which is essential.

5. There is need for a national board to develop policies and to evaluate cur-
riculum and material trends. We must develop more of a national posture to-
wards education. and such a board might be the first step.

6. In general I support the recommendations of the National Advisory Com-
mittee on the Education of Disadvantaged Children.

Chairman Prrrins. The committee will recess until 9:30 a.m., Mon-
day. On Monday we will conclude the hearings.

(Whereupon, at 1:45 p.m., the committee recessed, to reconvene at
9:30 a.m., Monday, March 20, 1967.)
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AMENDMENTS OF 1967

MONDAY, MARCH 20, 1967

House oF REPRESENTATIVES.
CoMMITTEE ON EpUCATION AND LiABOR,
Washington, D.C.

The committee met at 9:30 a.m., pursuant to recess, in room 2173,
Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Carl D. Perkins (chairman of
the committee) presiding.

Present : Representatives Perkins, Carey, Meeds, Burton, Scherle,
and Steiger.

Staff members present : Robert 1. McCord, senior specialist: H. D.
Reed, Jr.. general counsel: William D. Gaul, associate general coun-
sel: Benjamin F. Reeves, editor; and Louise M. Dargans, research
assistant.

Chairman Perirxs. The committee will come to order. A quorum
is present. Do you have any questions, Mr. Steiger?

Mr. Striger. I do not have a date but Commissioner Howe wrote a
letter to the superintendent of schools in Chicago, Mr. Rieman, to
quote from the letter he said :

We ask that the board provide a progress report on the resolution of these
problems by April 11, 1967.

Have vou received from the schools in Chicago a progress report ?

STATEMENT OF PETER LIBASSI, SPECIAL ASSISTANT TO THE
SECRETARY OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE FOR CIVIL
RIGHTS

Mr. Linasst. We have not had the final progress report but T would
like to ask Mrs. Martin to report to you on the meetings we have had
with the Chicago people since that letter was written.

STATEMENT OF MRS. RUBY MARTIN, STAFF ASSISTANT, OFFICE
OF THE SECRETARY, HEW

Mre, Marriy. About a month ago we had a meeting with Mr. Red-
man and the top school officials from the Chicago school systen. They
indicated that they were interested in a title IV grant from the Oftice
of Education in addition to another kind of grant. which T cannot
recall. to do some planning to meet the problems that were raised by
our report.

We have had discussions with the school hoard since they were
down liere officially.  We have had discussions with the complainants,
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the people who were responsible for us getting into the Chicago
school iruation and T think we were all in agreement that we are go-
g to provide them with <ome kind of grant so they can do some plan-
ning aid talk to the complainants and decide exactly what kind of
planning they are going to then do to meet this problem.

So the report in effect is their visit down here with us to tell us
what they would do if we would provide them with some funds and
they would use zome of their own. .

Mr. SterGER. Issue 24 called integrated education prompted all this.
1t quotes at some length and I think completely as I understand
what they have here the complete report of your January 6, 1967,
Oflice of Education analysis of the Chicago public schools.

Mr. Lizassi. May I ask who puts out that publication? Unfortu-
nately it came on Saturday.

Mr. Stricer. It is published by Integrated Education Associates.
The board of directors is a very distinguished group including
Kenneth Clark. Charles Cogen. and (. W, Foster, Jr.

In the report that they quote in here, and I do not want to read
all of this but in the third section regarding boundaries and student
assignment policies it says:

In the basis of our analysis thus far, we share the conclusion reached by the
Board’s Advisory Panel on Integration of the Public Schools and other observers
that by far the greatest part of the segregation in Chicago’s public schools
results from residential segregation combined with the board’s neighborhood
school policy.

“We recommend that the board engage competent specialists to assist them
in preparing a plan appropriate to Chicago, drawing on the wide range of
administrative remedies which have been adopted by other school districts to
lessen segregated education and indeed, to reverse trends of increasing segre-
gation here where possible.

As the board is aware number of different steps are being proposed to deal
with this problem. But no particular action is alone sufficient for a metro-
politan center. A combination of actions over time is needed; commitment
in fact by school authorities to the goal of reducing segregation in education is
fundamental.

The U.S. Office of Education will provide all possible assistance and support
in this matter, but we reiterate our recommendation that specialist services
are necessary to work on this problem.

This is where you are now in trying to provide grant money to the
Chicago school system to hire specialists to prepare a plan.

Mr. Lisasst. That is right.

Mr. Stereer. If the problem results from residential segregation
combined with the board’s neighborhood school policy, what you are
really saying is that you are trying to find a way to break the neigh-
boorhood school policy.

Is that appropriate?

Mr. Lipassi. No, there was evidence that the research and part of
the report to the Chicago school authorities noted that while to a
substantial extent the segregation was due to residential housing con-
ditions, the report discussed other action of the board which could
not have been explained other than by the fact of race in the assign-
ment of children to schools.

I don’t know if that document quotes the full report but there was
some rather strong language used in the report to indicate while
residential housing was part of the problem it was not the total ex-
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planation for the racial concentration in the Chicago schools and
while there was not a proven, deliberate segregation by the =chool
officials, there was reasonable question on it.

The object here is to atford the school oficials as mueh assistance as
is possible in redesigning the attendance aveas. This may resuit in
simply enlarging attendance areas and not necessarily in the abolition
of the neighborhood school but enlarging tie neighborhood served by
particular schools.

The problem of feeder patterns may change. Children instead of
traveling 15 minutes to a junior high school may travel 20 minutres
to a different junior high school and. therefore. decrease the segrega-
tion of the school system, =o the abolition of the neighborhood school

is not the single means by which you can reduce racial concentrations.

Tn some cases it is necessary to do that but in others it is not,

Mr. Striger. One of the other points that is touched on in the
report is the question of faculty assignments patterns.

In hLere there are quoted four principles—tfour prineipal actions
which the Office of Education felt were needed to modify the faculty
agsignment pattern.

They make the point obviously that there is a very real problem
here in terms of the concentration of Negro teaching in Negro schools
and whites in white schools without much interchange.

One of the sections here indicates that the board should—

1. Assume much greater responsibility regarding teacher assign-
ment.

9. Increase the proportion of experienced teachers in disadvan-
taged schools. This could include limiting, more than is done under
current board policy, the transfer of experienced teachers to those
schools already having a high proportion of experienced teachers.

T wonder if vou want to just develop this a little bit. The point
here is again made. of course, that really 1t 1s the teacher policy or
the education association policy perhaps which says that a more ex-
perienced teacher has the ability to transfer to a more desirable school.

When vou get into this area you are really striking at what the
teacher can and eannot do a little bit. What T would really like to
Inow is what kind of work vour office has dene and the Office of
Education in working with either the Chicago Federation of Teach-
ers or the Chicago Education Association in attempting to try to re-
verse its transfer policy or urging them to not transfer out of the less
desirable schools into the more desirable schools.

Have you spent time with the teachers organizations on this
problem?

Afr. Lisasst. T amnot too familiar with that respect.

Mrs. MarTIN. One of the items in the planning grant was funds to
arrange for the Chicago school personnel people to sit down with the
Chicago teachers union to disenss their ideas, the teachers union ideas
about how they could help to encourage new teachers, experienced
teachers to go into the ghetto schools and how their suggestions as to
how the school system encouraged experienced teachers to move from
the better schools into the ghetto type schools.

I think a substantial amonnt of time and money will be spent in
this grant which is forthcoming with just meeting and discussing this
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problem with the teachers union, which of course is a very powerful
organization in Chicago.

Mr. Steicer. There is also the basic problem not only were there
more Negro teachers in the Negro schools but those teachers white and
Negro in the Negro schools were generally less qualified or less ex-
perienced by the board’s own standards than were the white and
Negro teachers in the more desirable schools. So it was not just a
problem of racial segregation of teachers as it was a problem of the ex-
perlence and competence and background of the teachers.

Is the policy in Chicago at this point, do you know, to allow rather
complete freedom of the teacher to transfer where he wants to go!

Mrs. MagrTiN. It is based on experience. A teacher with experience
has the right to a vacancy in a prestige-type school as opposed to some-
one newly coming into the school system.

It is really very complicated. Just take the examination itself, the
national teacher exam. If you place very high on that in Chicago
you have first chance at choosing which school you want to go to.

The people with the lowest score on the exam or the people who are
going into the worst type teaching situations, that is just a brandnew
teacher, so you can imagine what rights teachers already in the sys-
tem have.

If you have a year's experience you have rights over and beyond
people new coming in to get reassigned to a prestige-type school.

Mr. Stereer. Is the policy at this point of the Chicago school sys-
tem to make an arbitrary assignment of those who do not score as well
or who do not have the background and experience to assign them to
a Negro school?

Mrs. MarTin. That is usually all that is left. The people who
score highest have the first choice of where they want to go and they
usually go to the best teaching situations. which is usually the prestige
school or the predominantly white school.

As vou go down the list with the people with lower scores, their
selection is limited by what has already gone ahead of them so usually
the only thing left for them would be the school in the ghetto-type
school, the predominantly Negro, or all Negro school.

Mr. Steieer. In your judgment is there a method by which we can
attack this problem of faculty assignments? Do you foresee that it is
possible to overcome this?

Mrs. Marrix. Certainly the assignment of faculty or teachers is a
responsibility of the school board. The fact that there is a strong
teachers association in Chicago certainly complicates the problem.

In the South we have encouraged school districts to make racial
assignments—nonracial assienments and we have encouraged them to
have combat pay, for example. You might want to pay these teachers
%200 extra, or you might want to give them some additional credits,
whatever it is, some incentives for going into a different kind of situa-
tion.

If there was not a teachers union in Chicago, a strong one which we
do not have in the South generally—we don't have a strong teachers
union—if there was not one in Chicago then the school board could
do pretty much what it wanted to do in assigning teachers. The fact
that there is a teachers union complicates the problem hut the school
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board cannot abdicate its responsibility by assigning teachers to
schools by saying what we can do.

I believe they have a responsibility to work it out and let them
suggest to the school board the kind of incentives or encouragements
that teachers would have to have in order to go into a different kind
of teaching situation.

Mr. Stercer. While it is true that the school board cannot abdicate
its responsibility, neither can the teachers union abdicate its respon-
sibility.

You have a two-way street here.

Mrs. Makrin. They have to work together and a part of the plan-
ning grant that Chicago wants to get going is for the personnel peo-
ple from the school district to sit down with the union people to try
to work out some ideas and plans for encouraging good teachers, the
experienced teachers to go into the ghetto-type school.

Mr. Lisasst. I might add, if T may, the heart of the problem is how
do we communicate to the teachers that these schools are desirable
status schools where if they had the feeling with higher educational
standards, if they had the feeling that it was going to be major educa-
tional effort made in the school then they would become desirable ex-
periences.

But as long as they are overcrowded, the Inadequate educational
program, disciplinary problems, shortage of remedial aids for the
children, lack of equipment, you are really asking a teacher to take
on a situation where 1t is going to be almost impossible for a good
teacher to work creatively, so I think we both have to develop incen-
tives but we also have to get at the school itself and inviting educa-
tional challenge for the teacher rather than a nightmare of discipline.

Mr. Steicer. May I touch on the—on what the gentleman from
New York. Mr. Scheuer, mentioned to you and encourage vou to pro-
vide for the committee what you are doing in the quiet persuasion
process.

I think this is very important. He mentioned what the New York
human relations group is doing. In Wisconsin we have onr governors
on human rights operating on this same kind of a basis.

T think this would be beneficial and useful from our standpoint as
well as from yours, to have this kind of information. Also I asked
on Saturday whether or not you had any indication as to the number
of complaints that you have received. Do you have that information
this morning ?

Mr. Lasst. No. T am corry I do not have the number of com-
plaints we received but I did find out that we do visit all school super-
intendents in all cases of the nature of the complaints that have been
filed against them and we do contact them first when we go into a
community so that they are aware of the nature of the complaints that
have been filed both North and South.

You pressed the point that you felt it important that we communi-
cate with them and that is the policy and that is being followed by
(he staff. I don’t have the number of complaints by State today but
we will get that up and e will have it, T would hope, by tomorrow
or the—for the record.

Chairman Perkixs. Without objection the data will be inserted in
the record.
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('The documents referred to appear on page 1616.)

Mr. STEIGER. You say the nature of the complaint; is this the com-
plaint? Ts it an abstract of the complaint done by your office?

Mr. Lisasst. Where the complaining party has no objection, we
give the school superintendent the complaint itself where they are
willing to have their identity disclosed, or if they have made the fact
of their complaint public to the newspaper, we then give the superin-
tendent the full complaint.

We give them a very detailed summary of the complaint and all of
the relevant issues that ave raised in the complaint. It is not a gen-
eralized thing such as we know what the problems are here. We tell
them of the general allegations. If it relates to the individual then
we disclose the individual’s name and the facts surrounding the in-
dividual complaint.

Mr. Srrierr. Since I have not read the guidelines would it be pos-
sible for you to supply a copy of the guidelines for my use so I could
review them?

Chairman Pergrxs. Without objection copies of the guidelines will
be inserted in the record at this point.

Mr. Sterger. Thank vou. Mr. Chairman.

('The document referred to appears on page 1644.)

Mr. Strrerr. Would it be possible to provide a copy of Judge
Wisdom’s decizion? I domno: wish to insert it in the record, Mr. Chair-
man, it is too long.

Chairman Perkixs. Mr. Carey, do you have any questions of the
administration witnesses on the guidelines!?

Mr. Carry. No. sir.

Chairman Perxrys. Mr. Meeds.

Mr. Meeps. T have not had a chance to go through all of the testi-
mony, Mr. Chairman, so I have no questions at this time.

Chairman Pergixs. Mr. Scherle.

Mr. Scarrie. T am sorry T was not here on Saturday. This seems
to be very interesting testimony to me.

May I ask what is the real cause the system of dual education
has promoted all of thisin Chicago?

Mr. Lapasst. There are a variety of issues that have swept over the
major urban cities in our country, both North and South and West.

We have first of all the major population movements of nonwhites
into the urban centers themselves taking place, particularly after tha
First World War. but then a second wave of northern migration ot
Negroes durine the Second World War =0 that we have, first of all, a
major shift of the Negro population from the Southern 11 States to
the Northern States.

The second is we had the general deterioration of housing in the
urban areas and the movement of white families from the urban centers
to the suburban areas which not only was there an influx of Negroes
but there was an outward migration of whites from the urban areas.

So we had developing then a pattern of neighborhood transition
which resulted in school transition. Then in addition, the school
policies themselves in northern cities have tended to accentuate and
increase the segregation. For instance, some northern cities have
deliberately gerrymandered school districts in order to maintain a




ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION AMENDMENTS 1587

pattern of segregation where Negro children would be in one school
and white children would be in another.

Mr. Screrie. Is this more prevalent in the South?

Mr. Tasasst. The children were segregated move easily by saying
Negro children would go to certain schools and whites would go to
certain schools.

In the North most of the northern Jaws were repealed but we had
the pattern of the school boards drawing attendance lines in such a
way that the racial composition remained fairly constant.

Mr. ScuerLe. In my home State of Towa we have a migration of
people coming in and going all the time. This has not affected the
quality or the caliber or the curriculum.

Why would this make any difference ! This problem does not exist
in Des Moines or other cities in Towa. Why would there be in effect
an obsession in some cases, particularly where they ave talking about
the equalization of the transportation of pupils?

Mr. Lisasst. Part of it is the size. There are half a million school-
children in Chicago so just the volume of the children and the number
of schools and the number of teachers creates this problem which is
quite different.

Mr. Scireree. T agree numbers are important but by the same token
it is just as bad for 10 as it would be for 100, would it not

Mr. Lisasst, In the emaller communities anything less than a mil-
lion, and that is not a very small community, the cities in the middle-
size categories have been made to maintain a higher quality of school.

They have maintained more integration in the schools. Even though
the Negroes have moved into the comniunities they attend the same
schools and they are not there in the numbers which convert a school
from a predomiantly white school to a predominantly Negro school.

When that happens you get all of the factors. When the school
becomes a predominantly Negro school you get a transition that results
at that point which results in many of the problems.

Mr. Scrrrre. You do or you think you do?

Mr. Lipasst. The recent reports of the Civil Rights Commission
and the other research that is being done in the field seems to indicate
that when a schoo! becomes known in the community as the Negro
school, that certain factors then take place.

The quality of the teaching does deteriorate and the quality of the
learning deteriorates. Whether it happens at any magical number I
am not prepared to say.

My, Scurrie. What magic would there be involved in the transpor-
tation of pupils from one neighborhood passing half a dozen schools
and taking them to another?

Why do you think this will enhance the school curriculum or the
caliber of teachers?

Mr. Lipasst. In our poliey we do not advocate that children should
be transported.

Let me say that the evidence indicates though that where Negro chil-
dren are aitending schools which ave predominantly white, they do
have a much more improved educational experience. If von talke
Negro children and iranusport then to o white school where tliey are in
the minority, the evidence clear]y indicaies thut their educational
experience improves.
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Mr. Scuerre. In ITlinois do you have a bill which allows the trans-
portation of all children. parochial as well as public ‘

Mr. Lisasst. T am =orry I do not know the Illinois law on school
transportation.

Mr. Scaerte. What is vour honie state ?

Mr. Lipasst. T am with the Department of Health, Education, and
Welfare. I am a resident of the District although T formerly resided
in New York State.

I don’t know the busing laws in New York State. T might say 40
percent of the children in the United States are transported on school
buses to schools so that school busing is certainly not anything that has
come up as a result of the integration issue.

Forty percent of the children in the United States ride public school
buses and an untold number ride public transportation.

Mr. Scueree. In Towa we allow no parochial schoolchildren on
public school buses.  Whether thiz law will be changed I do not know.

Would you bring up to date why £30 million was withheld in Chicago
becausze they thonght there was a segregation in the public schools?

Mr. Lisasst. Back in 1965 which was prior to my joining the staff
of HEW. there were complaints that were received alleging school
segregation in the city of Chicago, and the Office of Fdueation
requested the =chool ofticials in the city to provide them with informa-
t1on on the operation of the schools and the racial composition of the
schools.

The school officials did not make that information available and
on the basis of the information that the Office of Educarion had and
on the basis of the school officials” refusal to provide additional infor-
mation, the Office of Education asked the State school superintendent
to defer making additional payments to the city.

My, Scirerrce. In other words as long as the money comes from the
Federal Government whether they say there are Strings or no strings
attached to it. the Federal Government will hold the reins of funding
over and above all State or local control: will they not /

Mr. Lisassi. The Constitution vequires that the Federal funds he
used only in =chools operating in compliance, and the Congress

Mr. Scierie. Why did they not wait for proof rather than Supposi-
tion?  Why do this at the expense of the children or the students /

Mr. Lmasst. My recollection ix that the deferral of funds was
rescinded when the school officials agreed to provide the information
that was requested and the deferral lasted for a very short period of
time.

Mr. Scurree. Inother words the Government convicts them hefore
trial at the expenses of the students?

Mr. Lisasst. The Government asked the schools to provide infor-
mation so we could make a judgment and they refused to provide us
with the informarion.

Mr. Scnerie. Do vou think this is fair?

Mr. Lisasst T think it is uncooperative of the school svstem,

Mr. Seneree. Youw mean it isunfair to the students ?

Mr. Lawasst. Yes: I think seeregation is unfair to the students and
I'think wirhholding Federal funds is unfair to the student=. T think
it1s shame when the school districts will not desegregnte and deprive
it==rudent= of funds,
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Mr. Scrierce. Thisis a rumor you have heard but no foundation?

Mr. LiBasst. No; there was considerable evidence of segregation in
Chicago.

Mr. Scuerce. What are you doing for the gifted child?

Mr. Linasst. There are other programs of the Oftice of Education
which I am not competent to testify to.

Mr. Scuerce. Aren’t you with the Office of Education?

Mr. Lipasst, T am the Special Assistant to the Secretary of Health,
Education, and Welfare for Civil Rights. I was asked to testify on
the Department’s handling of civil rights policies and the operation
of these policies particularly.

Mr. Screrie. Who handles your programs for the gifted children?

Mr. Tapassr. Let me see if 1 can ask someone from the Office of
Education?

Mr. Carey. Would my colleague yield ?

Mr. ScHERLE. Surely.

Mr. Carey. I would like to respond not on the basis of complete
information but briefly, there are no gifted children programs in the
Office of Education. There are programs for the handicapped chil-
dren, exceptional children in that terminology and recently the new
Bureau for the Handicapped was set up by a bill which passed this
committee last year to gather all of the special education programs
under one roof down there.

Many of our strong recommendations in this regard were that we
look into the different levels of achievement and find out what is being
done with Federal programs to sort out the children who have both
functions that prevent them from getting a full education and also
there are those who are not being served. i

Those you call gifted children were not served by the so-called equal
education programs. So this is a beginning field and we have not
caught up with it. The States as you realize have a number of pro-
orams in this field but there is no Federal program for gifted children
now on the books.

Mr. Scuerte. Thank you, Mr. Carey.

There is no one who is any more concerned about the disadvantaged
and the uneducated and the need for it. Because in my humble opin-
jon there is nothing that is more important than education.

I think it would be criminal for us as Congressmen or anyone in
the field of education not to give every opportunity to the children
today to compete in this competitive world, to give them the dignity,
the opportunity and the pride to compete so they can become self-
sustaining but T do think there are a lot of questions that should be
answered in the field of education as to whether or not they are all
being treated with the same help perhaps disadvantaged, handicapped,
and so on and so forth.

I have one last question. Going back to the transportation of pu-
pils. what would you do in the Washingron avea here to try to set up
a 50-percent attendance of children. considering the margins yvou have
at the present time?

Mr. Ligassr. T don't believe that it is possible in the city of Wash-
ington because of the organization of the District to achieve a 50 per-
cent or any other kind of percentage of attendance in the Distriet
achools.
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Mr. Sciprer. If this is an example of what vou are attempting to
do. does this not sort of knock your argument in the head a little bit?

Mr. Lisassi. The only thing the Department of Health, Educa-
tion. and Welfare is doing, where a school district or city operates
the =chool system in a way which increases or maintains segregation,
that would violate the Constitution. but where in a city such as the
District of Columbia 80 or 90 percent of the children are Negro there
isnot very much that a district can do.

Mr. Scurree. If you feel this is the answer to Chicage and other
places why would it not zerve the same purpose in Washington?

Mr. Lapasst. In the city of Chicago there were districts or resi-
dent zoues around schools which could have provided for more inte-
gration than there was,

My, Scirmece. Bur vou feel that full integration of the schools is
the answer to all of the problems in education /

Mr. Lisasst. I think that the object has to be the improvement of
the quality of edveation.

My, Scnenee. But you feel you would obtain this by full integra-
tion of =chools to the extent where you might even have to transport
these children our of their neighborhood, past schools they now
attend in an exchange to ereate a balance?

My, Lapassi Let me say I think every child’s constitutional right
to equal educational opportunity ought to be fully protected. We
have many. many instances of children being put on buses, trans-
ported past schools to attend segregated schools and this was the pat-
tern for vears where Negro children were put on buses and driven
right past white schools to attend all Negro schools and people thought
that wasa good way to have educational systeins,

Mr. Scuerne. You thought that was wrong and now you feel this
is right?

Mr. Lipasst. T feel local school officials should take whatever action
in their judgment increases the educational opportunity for all chil-
dren in that district and if in their judgment it means children should
be transported on a bus, if that is their judegment, then I think that
12 what should be done.

My Scomiie. s it vone jridgnient or the asswmption of this law,
thar 1 this is ddone vor coudd ereate equality vou are looking for in
vour Deparinient

Mr. Lisassr, That is not the policy of the Department. The only
policy of the Department is where a local school district wants to
transport_children because they feel the children would get a better
opportunity, then the Federal Government is not opposed to getting
funds to do that.

Mr. Scuerce. You will force them to do that if you feel they are
not gerting the kind of education because you provide the funds to
run that school.

Mr. Linassi. We have not in any case required that in any north-
ern school district

Mr. Scrierce. What do yvou call the $30 million in Chicago?

Mr. Lipassz. We did require or suggest to the school officials in
Chicago that thev should put—they should bus the children. We
were simply at that voint trving to get information. What we have
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required of Chicago is that they look at their zoning patterns, that
they look at the lines they have drawn for schools, that they look at
the feeder patterns, that they look at their faculty assignment proce-
dures and come up with a plan that will assure there is no discrimina-
tion.

Mr. Scuerre. In other words, you had to give the Okay with the
information that they afforded to you that what they did was right in
your mind to provide the kind of education that they should have in
a city probably about a thousand miles away from Washington.

M. Lipasst, There was no effort and is no etfort on our part to
try to run the city of Chicago public schools on the issue of race. It
is far too big a problem. What we have been trying to fund and
stimulate is for the local officials to work on their own plan and tell us
how they want to do it.

Mr. Scnerie, In the end result you will govern how they think
and how they should act.

Mr. Lipassr. Congress has told us that the Department must not
provide funds if children are being diseriminated against o we must
assure that children are not being discriminated against or being ex-
cluded from a program.

This is a direction from Congress.

Mr. Screree, But the school boards and the department of public
instruction shall not be the determining factor of whether they are or
not, you will?

Mr. Lipasst. Ultimately the courts.

Mr. Scrierie. You will.

Mr. Lisass. We initially and then the school authorities may ap-
peal that judgment to the courts, that isright.

Mr. ScaerLe. Thank you.

Chairman Perkins. Mr. Meeds.

Mr. Merps. I have now had an opportunity to go through your
testimony and I would like to compliment you on your prepared
testimony and also on your efforts to answer some very difficult ques-
tions.

May I ask just generally your feeling about the transfer or the pro-
posed transfer by some people of the Headstart program to the De-
partment of Health, Education, and Welfare? Ilave you people con-
sidered this in the field of civil rightsatall?

Mr. Lipasst. We have been concerned that all of the preschool and
special suminer programs particularly which were administered by the
Office of Fconomic Opportunity adopt and implement a civil rights
policy which was consistent with what the Office of Education was
requiring.

As long as the programs are in the Office of Economic Opportunity,
they will be and we will be following the same policy with respect to
similar programs.

The transition either way will not result in the civil rights policies
that govern those programs. We do require complete and immediate
desegregation of summer programs and =pecial preschool programs.

Mr. Mreps. I notice in your testimony on page @ vou point out that
88 percent of the Negro children in 11 Southern Stares continue to at-
tend =chools where student bodies are ail or nearly all Negro.

-
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Do you feel with the euidelines you presently have that if the
Hearstart program were shifted to the Office of Education, that you
would be able to implement your program fast enough and that we
would not have the situation existing in Headstart programs’?

Mr. Limasst. T owish T could tell vou I was absolutely consistent
that would happen. We have sent out =everal letters from the Com-
missioner of Education to the chief, State school officers and if the
committee wishes I would be glad to submit those for the record which
would indicate the efforts we have made to be sure these Headstart
programs remained fully desegregated.

I can assure you we will insist on the same level of desegregation
that OEO has required in any transition of those programs into the
Office of Education.

Mr. Mereps. As a matter of fact, it is quite possible, is it not, that it
would take several years even if your very excellent guidelines and the
implementation of these to assure any ‘substantial desegregation in
Headstart programs were this program shifted over to the Office of
Education?

Mr. Lasst. We will not fund segregated, preschool programs.
That is, if a school district, and on inspection we find this and we ask
for a statistical report, if we found school districts operating segre-

ated Headstart programs in the Office of Education we would not
%und those programs and in fact the school districts would jeopard-
ize all Federal funds if they did.

We allow for a gradual desegregation of the school system but when
it comes to the Headstart programs these must be operated initially
and completely on a desegregated basis. There is no freedom of choice
basis in Headstart programs.

M. Merps. Let me compliment you on that policy.

Mr. Carey. T am very much inferested in this critical discussion on
the possibility of desegregation of Headstart facilities if the Depart-
ment takes on a larger role in the administration of Headstart pro-
grams.

I say you insist that Headstart programs be fully initiated. Where
have you achieved this?

Mr. Lmasst. The Office of Education in the Headstart programns
has required that the programs be staffed and operated in such a way
as to provide for the maximum desegregation.

Mr. Carey. T am well aware with what they are doing and T am
fully in accord with what they are doing but you say that in the
Department of Health, Fducation, and Welfare program that the
Headstart program be desegregated from the start.

Now you name me one school district where there is a desegregated
pattern for Headstart where you have been successful in desegregating
from the beginning ?

Mr. Lmasst. T do not have it with me but T would be glad to pro-
vide the committee the percentage of segregation in Headstart pro-
grams and the desegregation in other classes so we can see these as
well in comparison.

Mr. Carey. You say you will furnish information on the extent of
desegregation of Headstart programs. On your testimony a few
moments ago vou cculd not have any desegregation of Headstart pro-
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grams because as a matter of policy they must start with integrated
programs.

Mr. Lisassi. I guess I am missing the term when we talk about
Headstart programs. I am referring basically to special programs
which would be funded under title I by the Oftice of Jducation and
the State departments.

TWe have not run any State department prograimns and I did not
mean to use that term.

Mr. Cagry. T wanted the record to be clear that the Department of
Health. Education, and Welfare has had no experience, has had no
previous opportunity to institute Ieadstart programs and therefore
could give us no record on what success you might have in getting
integrated Headstart programs in those districts where segregation
is a problem.

This is true, is it not.?

Mr. Linasst It is true in the sense vou used the word Headstart
program but the Office of Education has funded preschool programs
under title I.

e, Carrey. In that connection, will you furnish the committee with
complete data on preschool programs which vou have successfully
integrated from the very first day of attendance of these children
in school districts where the district does not meet the guideline of
all desegregation?

Mr. Linasst. We will provide information on the extent of deseg-
regation of preschool programs funded under title T in school districts
{hat are in the process of achieving full desegregation and have as yet
done that. We will furnish that information for the committee.

Mr. Cagey. T hope you will make this information quite precise
because it will be vital to those of us who are looking for successful
Headstart programs, and to programs where less than success is a
pattern.

( The document referred to appears on page 1621 )

M. Linassr. You are touching on a very cerucial problem because
we found there was some evidence of school districts shifting from
the Headstart program under OEO to using title I funds from OEO
in order to run segregated preschool programs and we were very
concerned about that and that stimulated a joint effort on our part
with OEO.

My, Carey. I thank you for getting to what then is the next and
key point of my questioning here. To restate that, you have found
in experience that there have been patterns and trainees of school
districts moving over to preschool away from Headstart in order to
effectuate or maintain patterns of segregation?

Mr. Tipasst. Yes, sir: and whenever those cases came to our
attention we made very clear that we would not allow title I to be
ahused as a maintenance of segregation in order to avoid the policies
of OEO.

Mr. Carey. If my colleague would vield further I only wish this
room were filled now with all of those State superintendents and State
administrators who come here from the Northern States and give us
their lipservice on integration and then ask in toto for Headstart
programs over to the Office of Fducation and skip this problem en-
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tirely as if it were not happening. I wish they filled this room today
so they could respond to this comment.

Mr. Merps. T would like to pursue this a little further.

One of tlie methods which has been found effective under the Office
of Iconomic Opportunity when segregation is not proceeding fast
enough or is not achieved in areas where the Office of Economic
Opportunity has had Headstart programs was to carry these on in
private institutions or through parochial institutions and schools.

Do you understand that you would be able to do that with the law
as presently written?

Mr. Lizasst. I am not sure on that question. I am not capable of
answering that.

Mr. Meeps. I tell you, you could not.

So at least as the law is presently written, this is one of the methods
of achieving desegregation used by the Office of Economic Oppor-
tunity which would not be favorable to you; is that right?

Mr. Lipassr. That is right.

Mr. Meeps. T think that is all.

Mr. Carey. The gentleman from California, Mr. Burton.

Mr. Berrox. How many people do you have working in your par-
ticular arvea?

Mr. Lipasst. In the Otlice of Education trying to handle all of the
school problems in the South, we have 43 professional staff people
attempting to work with the 5,000 school districts in the South.

At the last count we had about eight that were trying to work on all
of the school problems of the North and that is the extent of the pro-
fessional staff.

Mr. Beurrox. What kind of staff background—staff backup do you
have?

My, Lanassr. There will be stenographic and clerical, but that is
the entire administrative executive program planning, research, that
is the full professional staff.

Mr. Burrox. So there are 43 professional staff people working
in how many Southern States?

Mr. Lipassio Inthe 17 Southern States.

Mr. Brrrox. And there are five?

My, Lisasst. T believe there are eight that are at this time work-
ing on the problem of northern schools.

Mr. Berron. When was your part of the HEW set up ?

Mro Lapassi, The Oflice of Jodueation began working on school
desegregation in July of 1964. It had no appropriation for the pro-
gvam that vear and the staff was reassigned to the job. It was not
until the following year that they got their first appropriation, in
Julv of 1065,

I would be ¢lad to provide for the committee the amount of funds
available for the administration of title VI in the schools of the
conntry, and I would also be glad to provide the exact figures on
professional and clerical staff that are employed. DBut it is not ade-
auate to provide the assistance to school districts that they need in
oider to plan for orderly desegregation. It is very thin.

AMr. Brrrox. Could vou provide us with the annual dollar amounts
and per=onnel, professional staff, for each of the last 3 fiscal years.
which i the period of time that you have been discussing?
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Mr. Lisasst. Yes; T will do that and T will indicate what we arve
asking in the next fiscal year.

Mr. Brrrox. Does HEW's request for the next fiscal year contain
a precise amount for your own part of the shop ¢

My, Lipasst. Yes; we have a centralized account for civil rights
and we can identify the exact amounts of money that we are request-
ing from Congress for civil rights and what portion of that will
be assigned to the Office of Iiducation to carry out civil rights
activities.

Mr. Burtox. Iow much was appropriated this past year, do you
remember?

Mr. Ligasst. For the Department as a whole it was 43,385,000 for
the entire Department including the Publ ic ITealth Service, Welfare
Administration, and the vocational rehabilitation agencies, and so on.

Mr. Burrton. How much will have been spent at the end of this
year?

“"NMr. Liasst, All of that will have been spent plus more in the
sense that the beginning of the last fiscal year we were not under a
centralized account and exceeded the $3,385,000.

We exceeded it by at least $1 million; so it was roughly $4,385,000
that was spent.

Mr. Brrrox. During this period of the past year centralized ac-
counts were set up?

Mr. Lisasst. That is right.

Mr. Brrrox. How much is being requested in the centralized ac-
counts?

Mr. Lpasst. Approximately $5.400,000 is being requested for 1968.

Mr. Burtox. Was that being requested from you to HEW, HEW
to the Bureau of the Budget, or the administration to the Congress?

Mr. Lipasst. It was the administration to the Congress. That
was the total amount. We have 278 positions in the entire Depart-
ment on civil rights, professional and clerical, 278 positions, profes-
sional and clerical, and we are asking for a total of 409, which, just to
do a little arithmetic here—109 and 278, 131 additional positions.

That includes the General Counsel’s staff, the regional office staff,
and all of the elements in the Department.

Mr. Brrron. How much of appropriation request for next year re-
flects new staff positions and how much of it reflects a redefinition of
responsibility for reallocation of existing staff positions to this effort?

Mr. Ligasst. T am sorry; T am not quite sure I get the point of the
question.

Mr. Borrox. Will these be entirely new positions or will these be
positions that have long since been filled and tucked away in HEW
but now will be credited to the civil rights efforts?

Mr. Lisasst. No: we are very careful not to exceed since the cen-
tralized account was established in the last appropriation act; we have
been very careful not to exceed that appropriation.

We do not have 278 people on board at the present time working in
this, and we are staffing up to that point, but there are not other people
tucked away kind of performing this out of other funds.
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There 1= no contribution since the appropriations act was signed by
the President: there is no contribution from any other program to
fund the Department's civil rights activity.

Mr. Brrrox. Am I correct in assuning a good part of vour work
is providing the technical know-how to school districts that seek to
comply ¢

I that a fair portion of your responsibility or is by far the over-
whelming portion of your work that of enforcement ?

Mr. Lisassi. You are right. Most of the staff is devoted to the
review of the performance of school districts, hospitals, and so forth,
and providing technical assistance, advice, and counsel as to how
the recipient of Federal funds can desegregate the facility and comply
with the title V1. '

The General Counsel Office is the enforcement unit in HEW and
that is authorized at 39 positions out of the 278. So the funds termina-
tion part of the program is much smaller.

The staff that is engaged in providing a technical assistance, if the
school district refuses the techmnical assistance, then the case has to
proceed to the fund cutoff and the same staff would be asked to testify
at a hearing to provide information on their refusal to desegregate.

I don’t want to draw a neat. clear line that just the 39 people in
the general counsel’s office have anything to do with fund determina-
tions.

The rest of the staff is doing all of the voluntary compliance which
if successful avoids the cutoff but if it is not successful then the case
moves to the general counsel’s office for the actual hearing to terminate
the funds.

Mr. Bell just said even the general counsel’s office engages in negotia-
tions and severance cases if possible even after they have been cited for
a hearing.

Mr. Brrrox. What are the prospects in the next decade to eliminate
segregation in the grade schools and junior high schools of this coun-
try in the large cities?

Is it rather dismal at best?  Are we not really confronted with the
fact that if we do all of this we can with the available tools we will
just show a little retrogression /

Mr. Lapassr. Let me say that we could do a great deal in 10 vears
to reduce racial segregation in the public schools in the United States.

We could do a great. great deal. There is no doubt in my mind
there is ample room in both the Norrh and the South for the reduction
of racial concentrations in public schools.

Tt does take awhile and it does take commitment and it also takes
money.  With those T helieve we could. There are obvious situations
such as large. large metropolitan areas where there are extensive
racial concentrations in the cities as a whole.

T'understand there ave about five cities now where school populations
are more than 50 percent nonwhite. Tn those cities it will be neces-
sary for the cities in the surrounding communities to develop =ome kind
of new educational svstem which will bhoth mprove the quality of
education and also afford a greater opportunity for a desegregated
edication.

Mr. Brrrox. You have not answered my question at all. In your
very large cities where vou have ever increasing numbers of school-
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age children living in monolithic ghettos, is the prospect bright or dim
that the best efforts at the State, Federal, or local level will merely
reduce the rate of segregation in the schools?

Mr. Lisasst. I guess I have to say I come down on a pessimistic
note. My staff advises me my optimism is without foundation and I
am surrounded by pessimists, but I do feel despite the fact that there
is increasing Negro population in the cities that it we wanted to we
could establish and improve the educational systems of our cities which
to a level where white families would be willing to remain in cities,
where white families would be attracted to cities and schools in which
city and suburban school districts would cooperate in operating and
maintaining educational facilities which would provide high quality.

Now I must say that this takes a depth of understanding of the
problem and it takes a willingness to face the racial issue in our
country and it takes effort and the pessimists on the stafl to say it 1Is
not likely too that America is going to mobilize that kind of commit-
ment to equal educational opportunity.

I would still like to think that the country does want to solve this
problem.

Mr. Carey. Would my colleague yield?

Mr. Burrox. I yield.

Mr. Carey. I thank you for yielding so I can pursue this point.
Then Lawrence Crimmins, the distinguished historian in education at
Columbia stated that in the large city schools the parents of the fortu-
nate, those who have the means to do so were displaying or demonstrat-

ing a time-honored right of American people who were dissatisfied
with anything. They were indulging in withdrawal as a form of pro-
test from the major public school systems of the city of New York and
other cities.

We all read that the city of New York now joins those cities with
more than 50 percent nonwhite enrollment in its public schools. This
is far more serious than it appears because we say we have reached
the millenium we have one white child and one nonwhite child going
together to school.

This is not so. It appears so on the surface. Insome school districts
we have gone to 80 to 90 percent nonwhite in some there 1s 90 percent
all white, and there has been a continued exodus from the city so the
percentage now drops to 50-50.

Your optimism is laudable and it is wonderful we have you thinking
that way. Iam interested in this from the viewpoint of our experience
and I think the experience that has been characteristic of the South
would be the experience that would be characteristic of the North in
this regard.

For instance since the Civil Rights Act of 1964, your statement at
page — vou indicate that the number of Negro students attending
desegregated schools has increased markedly.

In 1964, it was 2.25 percent: in 1965, 6 percent: and in September
1966, 12 percent. These would be impressive figures if we knew one
thing. How does the overall school attendance in these areas of white
students compare with the number of white births and how does the
number of Negro students compare with Negro births 6 years prior to
these times?
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In other words, in the interim classes are the whites staying in the
schools as Negroes come in or do these increased percentages indicate
more Negroes attending schools where there are fewer whites, as we
know it to obtain in the northern cities?

Now would you demonstrate that pattern or simply indicate the
lack of such a pattern?

Mr. Linisst. We can provide the statistics which will show the
numbers of white children who were in the schools and are in the
schools by State, but I must admit that the very few numbers of Negro
children going to desegregated schools which I referred to in the testi-
mony Is certainly outweighed by the increasing racial segregation of
Negro children throughout the country as a whole.

We are not making progress. We are losing ground in extending
desegregated education for Negro children. There is very definitely
an exodus of white children to parochial schools in the cities and to
the suburbs.  Frequently the movement out is

Mr. Carey. May I at this point object? T have heard the state-
ment before there is an exodus into the parochial schools in the cities
and suburbs. How do yvou account for the fact that the statistics
this year indicate that for the first time since 1964 the number of
children attending at least one denominational Catholic parochial
school declined for the first time in that period ?

Where do you get the figures to support your statement when
records indicate the attendance has dropped for the first time
since 19467

Mr. Lisasst. The Civil Rights Commission report noted that the
numbers of children, white children in the cities—that the racial com-
position of the parochial schools in the cities is disproportionately
white where as the public schools, the student composition is dispro-
portionately Negro.

Mr. Carev. Again where do you get your figures? The studies
I have been able to obtain and which I have been reading very care-
tully indicate in the parochial school system of the city of New York
the number of Negro children and minority children have markedly
increased.

Mr. Lipasst. I do not mean to suggest that Negroes are not at-
tending parochial schools.

Mr. Carey. More Negroes are attending parochial schools than
ever before.

Mr. Lipasst. The key reason gets to the very heart of your ques-
tion. The key reason why Negro parents are sending their children
to parochial schools is the same reason white families are doing that—
for sending their children to the parochials—and that is, the quality of
edncation in the parochial schools is superior.

Mr. Carev. Why don't we say the unsayable thing here? How are
we going to achieve desegregation unless we give true freedom of
choice to the parents to go out and seek quality of education where-
ever he can find it 2

Take the Negro family where we have a family unit that really
wants—and I think every family unit really wants—the best opportu-
nities for its children. It looks like the school system has forced par-
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ents to send their children to other schools because freedom of choice
is available so the family says the only quality nearby is one of the
nondenominational private schools or parochial schools. .

Again with limited tuition and available space use, what true free-
dom of choice does a family have unless you give it the means to
attend school ?

Mr. Limasst. T have a freedom of choice to attend my schools.
Most Negro families do have that choice.

Mr. Cagey. You cannot mobilize the community to improve the
quality of the schools. )

Mr. Limsasst. I could not agree with you more. I think the Federal
Government should be able to provide financial assistance to schools or
others to lelp disadvantaged children receive a quality education.
The reason for my optimism there are school districts and school
superintendents that are planning for the expanding of the opportunity
of Negro children and providing the transportation to do it and are
using Federal funds.

Mr. Cagey. Isn’t it true historically as our funds have grown up
educational opportunities have followed the pocketbook to a great
degree and in effect we do have subsidized private education for all
but the disadvantaged children?

By that I mean in the secretary’s book, excellence, or self-renewal,
one of his volumes, both of which I think are highly important writ-
ings in this whole problem of quality education and he makes a ref-
erence to the Scarsdale, N.Y., school system which is theoretically an
open enrollment public school system, but as a matter of actuality asa
matter of practical consideration if you don’t have the money to pay
the high school tax and the high cost of property in the Scarsdale area
you cannot attend that school system.

Yot the economic barrier is there and yet it receives just as much
money for support as the disndvantaged school district in central
Harlem so the Scarsdale children have all this and heaven too.

They have very clear demarcation of barriers through property tax
and control of the school system which prevents disadvantaged families
from moving into those schools.

This is the so-called anomaly in educational systems. If a non-
denominational private school offering quality education would open
up in the middle of Harlem and I know six schools that are not
eligible for $1, isn’t it a paradox, and the other one is starting and the
one is completely supported and the otheris not.

Mr. Lipasst. I think the denial of education by geography, the in-
come of your parents, the ability or capacity to move into a particular
neighborhood is hardly one we should be proud of. I don’t think our
educational system is fulfilling its function of affording all children a
full life.

When we restrict Negro families to particular neighborhoods or
cities and deny them the opportunity to move into the suburbs, we
have very unequal educational opportunity in the country.

Mr. Carey. Isn't it also true the appalling and frightening aspect
of this is that not only this pattern develops but also the prospect is not
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that larger inputs of money will have to be made available to correct
and restore equality of education.

The prospect at this time is it is going to get worse. As those who
can atford to move out, and as the percentage of Negro children in-
creases In a given school district, the quality denominator moves down
because the association of the children with greater learning oppor-
funities is lost, the children who are in there are faced with a more ob-
lique prospect that the ghettoization is going to continue and the sense
of achievement and hope for progress in their lives is very badly
mitigated and in a sense the school becomes worse and worse and each
day despite the installation of money to try to do more, with new
buildings, new books, audiovisual materials, what we can really only
do by the completed education experience.

Isn’t it true these schools are going to get worse in the cities and
the exodus is going to grow more rapidly and more drastically? Isn't
this the true picture?

Mr. Lisasst. There is a growing body of evidence that supports
the proposition that merely improving the physical environment of
the school does not improve the quality of education, that the key
factors which affect education are the socioeconomic and educational
status of the child himself and of his classmates and they are segre-
gated schools regardless of their size, the physical environment, the
equipment, the money that is being poured into it will not provide
and do not make up for the disadvantage of being in a socioeconomic
cally segregated school.

Of course race then adds to it. While the money is essential we
cannot ignore the fact that the money cannot overcome segregation.

My, Brrrox. T would like to ask the Chair a question if T may be-
cause I find this discussion very enlightening. Would the elimination
of financing in this tend to negatively or favorably affect what I fear
1s the trend in terms of the urban ghetto schools?

Is it a valid concern that motivated parents when they are no longer
confronted with the financial obstacle are going to take their children
out of the public schools, leaving more of the children of the unmo-
tivated families?

Will that accelerate what may well be virtually an irreversible trend
in terms of the ghetto schools? 'T am not sure what the response to that
is. AsTunderstand that which has been discussed is that some parents
and kids should not be disadvantaged merely because they come from
an economic setting that does not permit them all the options which
we think are important in a democratic society.

Viewing society as a whole, what happens to those kids in the fam-
tlies where they don't have a parent or parents that have sufficient
motivation to exercise these options or ideas, and what if everybody
does, what happensz to the public school svstem ?

Mr. Cagey. If we can have a colloquy here T am pleased to respond
in that regard.  What happens to General Motors when Chrysler puts
out a new mode] ?

What happens to Cadillac when the Mustangs started to steal the
automobile sales? The answer is competition improves the product
for borh sides. Thar has been the American theory and the Amer-
ican practice throughout our history.
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If persons start rejecting something based upon the fact that it does
not afford quality, then the competing systems have to accelerate and
improve their offerings in order to again maintain their position.

1 am not one who thinks that the public school system is in such
desperate shape that it can’t continue to attract on the basis of quality
students in competition with other sysems.

To take your theory and your hypothesis, let us suppose we have a
classroom of 30 children in which, well, everything is in a classroom
with equality and the 10 most motivated parents decide to remove 10
of the children and put them in a competing system.

Well, two things can happen. One the children left behind will
continue to experience lack of quality or it is Just possible that seeing
the 10 children are leaving, the teacher, the superintendent, and the
principal will work together to install and to assist in every degree
possible in giving a better education to the 20 who arve left.

That is the way the competitive system has worked in my experi-
ence. When you lose a customer you start improving your quality.
At the same time I would not look at this as a one way street.

If there is a superior education In a competing system I would
expect in return for the recognition that the parent has a right to
hope for that and get the same quality and the same parameters
would be introduced into the public system and there would be a
cross over in both ways.

What T am referring to here again is not a subsidy where every
parent reagrdless of means has the opportunity to move in and have
his children subsidized in any school of his choice.

T am suggesting only in this regard where we have disadvantaged
parents who are a_burden in the sense that they do not have the means
to do any of the things necessary to maintain a family unit, and that
is get a better home, get adequate housing, adequate transportation
to jobs. adequate benefits, socioeconomic benefits, and most important
education that we recognize that education is the No. 1 route of the
dilemma.

In this regard the tuition or the assistance payment would go to the
family so that it would come into the quality school program not as
much—not as an admitte from the poorfarm, one who is coming in
with the stigma of a disadvantaged child.

The family would bring with it an input into the quality of that
system which would be a gain and the children would be accepted on
the basis as all other children in the system so there would be no
disparity.

Again I would go back to my same point. Competition would be
certainly better than what we have now which would be merely a
myriad in which poorer quality would be replaced by poorer quality as
the middle denominator moves down. At tﬁis sign ofp hope, no sign of
rescue for these children should be abandoned.

1 would point to the distinguished panel that is gathered by the task
force on education and by all of the people in the chamber of com-
merce. I certainly want to associate my overall socioeconomic views
with this.
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They came up with this idea of what is needed to arrest this declin-
ing in the system and that is a heavy dose of the elixer of competition.
It seems everyone would benefit given the alternative.

Mr. Brrrown. I concur with most of the facts stated by our distin-
guished chairman. I am not certain the solutions he has suggested
would work. I have been pleased with the Elementary and Secondary
Edvcation Aet. It has overconte a lot of false barriers. It has im-
proved the education of our Nation's youth.

I would like some demonstration project if it is not already in the
works, =0 that we can =ee, given the understanding that a demonstra-
tion project is subject to overriding factors if this works.

I am quite convinced that this business of permitting people to opt
out permits of a possibility of adverse selection, this is a common
usage In the insurance business. It is one of the reasons wh
soclal insurance doesn’t permit opting. You are not permitted adyi
verse selection because adverse selection per se both helps and hinders,
dependent on which side of this line you happen to be on.

I just don’t know what the answer is for our Nation’s education.
I think the competitive factors are very useful. We learned this some.
time ago in the higher edueation field.” T am not sure what we should
do in the elementary field but I think demonstration projects would
improve our understanding.

Have we had any such demonstrations?

Mr. Carey. To the best of my knowledge there have never been any.

Mr. Brrrox. I think it would be a worthwhile thing to do.

Mr. Carey. It would have to be set up on a sound educational basis.
I would agree with my colleague that it would have to be done on &
research and limited scale first. Taking the technicality of the objec-
tion and the real objection that the motivated people move out and
leave the least motivated behind.

Here again there is a way to control this and that would be to answer
to a fair criticism that has been leveled at the public system. It has
been suggested, and I think with some foundation, this nonpublic
system by need of funding itself takes only the elite and it umps
the slow learner on the public system. There is not any question but
that this has taken place. It was an accusation fairly directed at the
public service and I think the public service to its credit did recognize
1t had this deficiency and tried to do more to maintain the slow learn-
ing pupil in the system regardless of his capacity for achievement.

I would see if this is going to be a true demonstration program in
which there would be some democracy of selection, not just those that
left the motivation would move out to the exceptional programs.

There would have to be some average method of selecting. Tt isthe
slow learner who would have an opportunity to opt for the different
system because the quality education has demonstrated you can't let
the deficiencies of the public system go on to better uniis.

I would rather see the child who is almost at the point of becoming
a potential dropout be given the benefit of opting out of the system
to see if the other system could help that particular child so it would
have to be some methodical method of giving selection first to the slow
learner. That would really set up true competition.
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Mr. Burron. If I may just conclude this colloquy with an observa-
tion that I am sure both my colleague and I recognize, that we are
attempting to deal with one of the very important aspects of being
poor in this country in a very selective and partial manner. I am
sure my colleague and I would prefer that we find some solution for
income maintenance for the poor generally so we would not be subject
to dealing with one of the symptoms of poverty in this particular
manner, although all too often we have to deal with it in the particular
hecause you can't find, national general solution to the problem of
personal or family poverty.

I would prefer we come to grips with this matter across the board.
I suspect it will be years before we can do this in any meaningful
way <o we are probably stuck with the fact that we will have to look
for some piece-by-piece solutions to the problems that poor people
are confronted within this particular one field of education.

Mr. Carey. I would like the witness to make any final statements
at this time.

Mr. Lipssst. I would just want to add there is very substantial
evidence now that when Negro children are assigned to schools in
which they are in the minority, whether it is a private school or a
public school, that their educational achievement improves immeas-
urably and that it is a significant contributing factor to equal educa-
tional opportunity and also, as Mrs. Martin keeps reminding me,
white children do not suffer educationally when a minority of Negro
children are moved into the district.

There is no measurable or appreciable diminution of their educa-
tional achievement when they are in the majority and here there is
a minority of Negro students in the school.

Mr. Carey. I wish the distinguished witnesses here this morning
would be just as expeditious as possible in rendering to the committee
the statement of facts and the statistics that we requested, which I
think are most important to us in our deliberations on this bill and on
the economic education.

The Economic Opportunity Act when it comes up for discussion,
because I think it is more important in all our discussions on the de-
liberations, that we look at the significance it is going to have in the
field of equal educational opportunities and that we do nothing to
impair the very modest progress we have been able to make and again
make ever greater progress in this regard.

You can help us a great deal if you can get for us the matters we
have addressed to you so we can enter them at the appropriate place
in the record and we can use them in dealing with this legislation.

Mr. Burton. Do I take it that the Chair and I are in agreement be-
cause Headstart under the war on poverty is providing us with one
mechanism—the additional mechanism just how we might better im-
prove educational quality for all of the Nation’s youngsters and it
would be premature to eliminate this mechanism from the variety of
tools that we are seeking to the end that the educational quality of our
voungsters is improved.

That to transfer Headstart over directly to an Office of Education
function through State agencies and with all of the alterations that
might or might not entail might be quite ill advised at this time.
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Mr. Carey. T don’t agree with my colleague but I would point out
those school systems which are truly interested now in educating the
disadvantaged child, these districts have every opportunity that they
can now possibly desire in terms of instituting integrated preschool
programs under title L of ESEA.

The only answer to application of the programs in areas where the
school district does not intend to provide this kind of quality of in-
tegrated education from the first day a child has learning experience,
the only answer to that presently would be OEO Headstart programs
which is the option outside the public school district program.

I hope we would not shut off that avenue of option. That is the
importance of our discussion.

(hairman Perkixs. This concludes the hearings. The record will
remain open through next week for the insertion of any pertinent data
requested in the record.

(Whereupon, at 11:40 a.m., the committee adjourned subject to call
of the Chair.)

(T'SO memo appears on p. 4£36.)

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE,
OFFICE OF EDUCATION,
Washington, D.C.. March 15, 1967.
Hon. Jor~ BRADEMAS,
House of Representatives,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR MRr. BRADEMAS: The November 9. 1966 memorandum was written at the-
request of Dr. Edgar Fuller just prior to a meeting of Chief State School Officers
to encourage State departments of education to take an active supervisory role
in stimulating the development of imaginative Title III project applications.
This development role by State departments of education has been advocated hy
the Office of Education since the inception of Title ITI as a major area for State
contribution in the operation of the program as a Federal-State-local partnership.

State departments of education have reacted in a number of ways to Title ITI
of ESEA during the first year of operation. Some have accepted leadership re-
sponsibility and have used ESEA Title V funds and State funds for employing
one or more full-time coordinators for Title III. Over two-thirds of the States,
however. have assigned a person to work only part-time with Title III. and have
not exercised much of a leadership role.

In general, better proposals are submitted from districts within States where
the State departments of education have played an active role in the develop-
ment of project applications. This has led the Office of Education to encourage
all States to take an active role in developing imaginative project applications
desizned to solve the major education problems of areas within the State. The
importance of developing projects to meet local and area needs in terms of Na-
tional concerns cannot be overstressed. The memorandum of November 9 merely
suggested several alternatives for State strategies as vital to a more effective
National effort. but did not infer that all State agencies independently would be
able to fulfill the National aims of ESEA Title III without direct Federal admin-
istrative participation.

The State and Federal educational agencies each have unique but interdepend-
ent roles in the successful implementation of Title IT1. Strengthening the capa-
hilities of one agency should not imply the elimination of the other. Office of
Faueation administration. State department of education development. and local
district operation of ESEA Title III projects involve new working relationships.
At present. these relationships appear to be viable and hold promise for huilding
upon the strengths of each of the components of this unique partnership.

Sincerely yours.
NorAN KsTES.
Associate Commissioner for Elementary and Secondary Education.
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(The following material was submitted by M. Libassi:)

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE,
Washington, D.C.
Hon. CARL PERKIXS,
Chairman, House Education and Labor Committee, House of Representatives,
Washington, D.C'.

DeArR Mr. CEAIRMAN : When representatives of the Department appeared be-
fore your Committee on March 18th and 20th, there were several requests from
members of the Committee for additional information.

Enclosed you will find a brown folder which is a “kit” of the principal docu-
ments relating to the enforcement of Title VI with respect to school desegrega-
tion. Included in the kit is the testimony by Commissioner Howe before other
Congressional Commiittees, pertinent court decisions, memoranda prepared by
Commissioner Howe to Chief State School Officers on this issue, and HEW and
Department of Justice legal memoranda and pronouncements on the legality of
the guideline requirements for school desegregation.

Also included are specific items requested by the Committee:

1. List of complaints from September 1st through March 22nd, as requested
by Congressman Steiger.

2. The request for information on the extent of desegregation for pre-
school programs funded under Title I as compared to Headstart programs
funded by the Office of Economic Opportunity. As vou know, the Office of
Education must rely on State Education Agencies for information on Title
I programs and these latter agencies do not keep the kind of records that
would provide us with the information requested by the Committee. How-
ever, I have included a memo from Mr. Louis J. McGuinness to Miss Carol
Herzman, both of the Office of Education Title I ESEA Section which does
list, by State, the number of preschool programs conducted with Title I
funds; howerver, no indication of the extent of desegregation is available.
We have asked the Office of Economic Opportunity for a list of Headstart
programs and an indication of the extent to which these programs are de-
segregated, if that information is available.

3. The Committee asked for studies on the impact of desegregation on
education generally. As we indicated when we were hefore the Committee,
few studies have been made in this area. I am, however, passing on to the
Committee the recent Commission on Civil Rights report on Racial Isolation
and the Title IV report on Equality of Educational Opportunity, prepared by
the Office of Education, which might be helpful.

4. Information on the amount of funds available for the administration
of Title VI for school desegregation: and. the number of professional staff
members assigned in this area. Memo covering thix item ix included.

5. Statisties showing the number of white children in the public schools by
State. The Statistieal Summary for 1966-6G7 prepared by the Southern
Education Reporting Service is the best source for thix information. a copy
is ineluded.

The Committee expressed interest in hearing about school districts that have
taken steps to comply with the desegregation requirements of Title VI. T have
enclosed some brief summaries of districts that have moved effectively in this
area. You will note that they are labeled “success stories™.

If there are other items of specific information that will be helpful to the
Committee, we will be happy to make every effort to obtain it.

Sincerely,

. PETER LiBAssI,
Special Assistant to the Seerctary for Civil Rights.

ESTIMATED PERCENTAGE OF NONWHITES (OR NEGROES) AND WHITES (OR OTTIERS)
FINROLLED IN PUBLIC SCHOOLS, BY KINDERGARTEN, ELEMENTARY. AND RECONDARY
L.EVEL. 1§ 21 LARGE CITIES : 1960 AND CURRENTLY

The estimates in the table attached are selected to display the comparison be-
tween the 1960 and the current situation in large cities with respect to the pro-
portion of the nonwhite and white pupils enrolled in public schools. Data are
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confined to public schools because it is a fixed policy of the largest group of the
nonpublic =xchools not to identify pupils by color or race with the result that
statisties are not available. The data presented have been chosen because they
serve to outline the comparison between the 1960 and the current situation.

These estimates are the responsibility of the Office of Education. They do not
represent actual counts or hard data from a mailed questionnaire survey, but
they are calculated from data and are much better than outright guesses. The
1960 data were taken from U.S. Census reports and represent nonwhites and
whites in every case. The current estimates are based on statistical information
secured at different times, but in no case are the data older than 1963.

The current data variously represent nonwhites and whites, or Negroes and
others. The comparizons between 1960 and the current situation are between the
breakdown enrrently available, whatever it is. and nonwhites-whites (which is the
only breakdown available from the 1960 Census). Whenever possible separate
estrimares have been made for the kindergarten. elementary (grades 1-8), and
secondary (grades 9-12) levels, the breakdown which is available from the 1960
Census,

The group variously named Mexican Americans, Spanish Americans, Latin
Americans. or Puerto Ricans is included with the white group because of Census
practice and regardless of the fact that they are frequently a severely disad-
vantaged group.

Enrollment in voecational schools is incorporated at the appropriate grade.
Enrollment in special schools is incorporated at the appropriate grade when it
was known to the investigator ; otherwise it was disregarded.

In zeneral. the principal problem, and the most likely source of error in the
estimates, was that of taking the distribution by color in grades 7, 8, and 9 in
junior high xchools and allocating it to grades 1-8 and 9-12, which is the 1960
Census pattern.

The fieure in column 6 is the nonwhite gain in percentage points. The figure
in eolumn 7 represents the same nonwhite gain expressed as a percentage of the
1960 base figure. which is itself a percentage. The comparison of the current
sitnnrien with the 1960 situation is a mixture of two principal elements. One
ix the over-all gain in population in large cities, which in turn is reflected in
school enrollment. The other is the relative gain of nonwhites as an element in
the population compared to the whites. By reducing the basic enrollment data
for the two groups to percentages, or proportions of the whole, the influence of
over-all gain in big city population is eliminated. The figure in column 7, then,
represents the relative gain of nonwhites relative to whites and apart from the
over-all gain of both groups.

The average, or mean. of the nonwhite gains expressed as percentages of the
1960 base percentages is 27.3 at the kindergarten level, 27.9 at the elementary
level. and 29.0 at the secondary level. These are means of percentages and in
order to be interpreted meaningfully each percentage must be accorded a separate
sratns o< a statistie by the reader. They indicate that the gain in the proportion
of nonwhites in the 21 large cities is slightly more than one-quarter of the
original 1960 proportion, considering each city as a unit of interest equal to that
of any other city.

If another six years produces a like gain, the gain over the twelve years will
he over 50¢7. A gain of 509, applied to an original proportion as low as one-third
would project a c¢ity more than half nonwhite as respects school enrollment.

A word of caution : It is difficult to compare these percentages with each other
and bear in mind all of the considerations that affect the comparison. The fact
that the secondary level gain is larger than the elementary level gain does not,
for example, mean that the difference in absolute number of nonwhites in sec-
ondary schools now as against 1960 is greater than the difference in absolute
number of nonwhites in elementary schools now as against 1960.
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Estimated percentage of nonwhites (or Negroes) and whites (or others) enrolled
in public schools, by Lindergarten, clementary, and secondary level, in 21 large
cities. 1960 and currently

7
1960 \ Currently . Nonwhite gain
! |
City o ) . | . In Asa
Nonwhite White Nonwhite ‘ White | percentage | percent
(Negro) (other) ' points increase
| ! from 1960
(1 ) l‘ 3 \ 4) i (%) . ) 5 ¢}
1 ! i
Baltimore:
Kindergarten
Elementa R
Seeondary oo aeeeeeeooo o
Total ..o coommeeaa
Boston:
Kindergarten_ .. _-.....--
Elementary -
Secondary .- ooo-oeoo--
Total. o oociieean
Butalo: | 7 i :
Kindergarten. ... _.---- 28 T2 36 1 61 8 29
Elementary 28 1 72 35 | 65 7 25
Seeondary . oo oocecaooooa- 16 | 81 23 7T 7 14
Total 25 75 32 | 68 “ 7 28
Chicago: : T
Kindergarten 40 60 36 | 44 16 40
Elementary..- 44 56 36 | 44 12 97
Recondary 29 71 421 58 13 45
Total o aaea- 40 60 48 12 30
Cincinnati* :
K.ndergarten. .. _...--- 30 70 42 58 | 19 40
Elementary - 34 66 41 59 7 51
Secondary . 31 69 36 64 5 16
Total. ooemceaconees 33 67 40 60 . 7 o1
Cieveland: - T
Kindergarten. 42 58 54 46 12 29
Elementary 47 53 53 47 6 13
Secondary 36 64 38 62 ! 2 5
Total . oocoicmceammmme e 45 55 50 50 5 11
Dallas: o
Kindergarten. . oo..------ (O] o O] (1) L o) )
Elementary - 22 78 25 75 3 14
Secondary . -----eeeooo---- 18 82 21 79 | b 17
Total oocmeoomom - 21 79 24 76 ‘l 3 14
Detroit: ~ }7 o
Kindergarten. .....------ 44 56 57 43 13 30
Elementary 46 54 57 43 | 11 24
Secondary .- 35 65 49 51 14 40
Total. ooocomcmemmmmmaan 43 | 57 55 45 12 28
Houston: ‘ -
Kindergarten. .o.c-co---- 24 7 32 68 8 33
Elementary - 27 7 37 63 | 10 37
Secondary..------ - 24 76 25 75 !‘ 1 4
Total - ecocammmanmmmnn- 2 | 74 34 66 | g a1
Los Angeles: | N i
Kindergarten 21 | 79 23 77 9 10
Elementary - 21 79 23 7 2 10
Secondary 19 81 15 85 | —4 —21
T T —— 21 79 | 2 | 79 0 0

75-492—67—pt. 2——50
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Estimated percentage of nonwhites (or Negroes) and whites (or others) enrolled
in public schools, by kindergarten, elementary, and secondary level, in 21 large
citics, 1960 and currently—Continued

| 1960 i Currently i Nonwhite gain
i ; ‘
. |
City r . : Asa
Nonwhite ! White i Nonwhite White penentage percent
i i (Negro) (other) points increase
|
| i ; from 1960
) TS 3 @ @) i ® @
Milwaukee: | :
Kindergarten. .. 18 82 26 ] 74 8 44
Elementary. 18 82 25 75 7 39
11 89 | 18 | 82 7 64
16 84 | 23 | 77 | 7 4
New Orleans: ‘
Kindergarien - 55 45 59 41 4 7
Elementary 5N 42 66 34 8 14
Secondary 47 53 ‘ 53 47 6 13
Total oo i 53 45 | 63 | 37 8 15
New York: i ;
Kindergarten____________. ! 22 78 | 27 73 5 23
Elementary. 24 6 ’ 32 68 8 33
Secondary. - 17 83 21 ; 79 4 24
Total. ... 22 8| 27 73 5
— — |
Philadelphia: ! ;
Kindergurten_.._________. 40 60 ; 44 . 56 4 10
Elementary.. a0 50 60 : 40 10 20
Secondary - 39 61 50 | 50 11 28
Totul. ... .. 47 53 56 | 44 9 19
Pittsburgh: N
Kindergarten_ ... .. __. ) or ! 3 39 61 12 44
Elementary .. s 36 64 39 61 3 8
Secondary_____ ... 235 ) 31 69 6 24
Totalo .. 32 68 37 63 5 16
St. Louis: ! !
Kindergarten._.__..__.__. 47 | 331 57 43 10 21
Elementary. . . 51 | 49 64 36 13 25
Secondary_ ... 43 ¢ 57 50 50 7 16
Total_. ... 49 51 60 40 11 29
San Antonio: . l
Kindergurten. ... ... .. ) ) ! O] ) ) o
Elementar . Y 92 14 86 6 75
Secondary s 92 11 89 38
Totaloo_o ... S 92 13 87 5 63
San Dicgo: ‘ i
Kindergarten. . ........... i 11 89 14 86 3 27
Elementary. .. ......._. J 10 90 14 86 4 40
Secondary_ ... ... 9 91 11 89 2 22
Total. .. 10 90 13 87 3 30
San Francisco:
Kindergarten 32 68 41 59 9 28
Elementary.__ i 36 64 45 55 9 25
Seconduary ... ... 25 75 43 57 18 72
Totalo.... 33 o7 43 | 57 10 30
Seattle: - i
Kindergurten_ ... ___ . 13 K7 17 ‘ 83 31
Elementary._... o f
Seeondary o oL
Total., ... o

Washington, D.C.:

Kindercarten. ___.
Elementary .
Secoudury oo R

Totalo ... ...

1 Not available.
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Estimated fall enrollment in 5th grade compared with high school graduates 8
years later: United States, 1948-56 to 1964-72

[In millions of pupils]

| i

! . i Droupouts,?

| 5th grade to
5th grade High school | high school

enrollment ! | School year ;| graduates graduation

(column 2
minus

column 4)

\

1 1 2 4 : 4 5
1
|

Fall of— :
4 1995-56 |
1956-57 |
1957-58
; 1958-59 |
1959-60 |
1960-61 |
| 1961-62
) 1962-63 |
I 1963-64
i 1964-65 |
196566 |
1966-67
. 1967-68
i 1968-69
1969-70
1970-71
i 1971-72

[l S e el aaa
LSO T Db
e

=, e, b4
COCCOOHORRRO~OOD

[P

)

OO0 0L LI IS IS SIS KU IO 1S
COLCINO D -IWDO D DL ~TU i

HTE®AISO S W

2.
2

2.
2,
2

3.
3.

©

l

I Compulsory attendance iaws keep virtually all children in school at least until the Sth grade.

2 These Office of Education estimates do not allow for persons who receive high school equivalency certif-
icates nor for persons who leave the regular school system hefore graduation 10 enter trade, business, and
vocational schools and who may consider themseives to be high school graduates. The estimated number
of persons in these cutegories is approximately 200,000 a vear.

3 Estimated.

4 Projected by Oftlice of Education,

Note.—Includes public and nonpublic schools in the 50 States and Distriet of Columbia.

“SUCCESS STORIES” (BRIEF SUMMARIES OF DISTRICTS THAT HAVE MOVED EFFECTIVELY
IN THE AREA OF SCHOOL DESEGREGATION)

Districts Making Progress After Visit

Buckingham County.—This district had 19 pupil desegregation indicated in
its April 1966 estimates with a faculty index of .14. Both pupil and faculty
statistics were far less than the equivalent of 1 faculty member per school which
our guides suggested and the pupil desegregation guides set forth in the guide-
lines. Thereafter, the district reopened a choice period, moving from 16 children
to 154 children, that is, from 19 to 10.6% desegregation. It also achieved a
1.19 faculty index.

City of Martinsville—The April 1966 statistics revealed that this district
anticipated that only 47 children would attend desegregated schools or 28%
pupil desegregation. There was to be .62 faculty desegregation. As a result of
our visit, a reopened choice period, community meetings participated in by both
the School Superintendent and the Chairman of the School Board. the number
of children attending desegregated schools increased to T3 or 4.49% pupil de-
segregation as well as to 1.55 faculty desegregation.

Chesapeake Public Schools—The district anticipated 5.5¢ desegregation or
416 children desegregated and it went to 7.3¢ or 519 children tlesegregated
and moved from .31 faculty to .96 faculty desegregation in 35 schools after our
visit.

Clarke County—had an April 1966 estimate of 639 pupil desegregation and
as a result of our visit was able to complete the desegregation process including
full desegregation of its faculty. N. B.—Harry Flood Byrd. St's home. The
district is now being processed for HEW 441 status.

Louisa County—was at 7.3% desegregation according to April 1966 statistics
with .16 index in faculty. As a result of our visit they went to 11.9¢ pupil
desegregation, that is. from 114 to 206 pupils and to .50 faculty desegregation.
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ARKANSAS

The Searcy Independent School District, approximately 50 miles North of
Little Rock, has achieved complete desegregatoin. The school system has ab-
sorbed all its 168 Negro students into schools attended by 2,000 white students.
In the 19635-66 school year, Searcy had less than a third of its Negro students
in school on a desegregated basis. In the 1964-65 school year, Searcy was fully
segregated. Swuperintendent, James W. ARhlf.

The Jonesboro Independent School District has desegregated 64 percent of
the Negro students in the current school year, up from 6.7 percent the previous
year, involving some massive changes in historical enrollment patterns. Super-
intendent, C. H. Geis.

GEORGIA

On August 29, 1966, the Baker County School Distriet was notified that a
Federal hearing examiner had recommended termination of its Federal assistance
because of racial discrimination. The school administration then moved to admit
59 Negro students into predominantly white schools, immediately creating serious
tension in the white and Negro communities.

The Atlanta Daily World published a news article on October 6, 1966, which
stated that Negro parents were threatening to boycott all Baker County Schools
«if nothing is done to halt harassment and inequities directed at Negro students.”

The article said the sheriff had dene nothing about white youth who pointed
pistols at Negro students. Qeveral Negro students said they had been attacked
at school. and subjected to insults by teachers, principals, and bus drivers.

On November 1. the Baker County Board of Education passed a forcefully-
worded resolution which was distributed to all students, teachers, and school
staff, and which brought an end to much of the mistreatment. Three weeks
later the Federal assistance was restored for Baker County. The positive
and well-publicized commitment of the school board to desegregation is credited
by EEOP staff for the relative success accomplished in Baker in the face of
firce community opposition. Superintendent, H. E. Hall.

In Floyd County, Ga., the school district abandoned a freedom of choice
plan in favor of geographic zoning. and full desegregated its student body. This
vear, the Floyd County schools have 618 Negro students in formerly all white
schools, ending a harsh discriminatory system that had involved transportation
of almost all of the Negro children in the county system to Negro schools in
Rome, Ga. In addition, Floyd County made a better beginning in faculty de-
segregation than many other Georgia districts. Superintendent, H. A. Lindsey.

FLORIDA

Okeechobee County is a rural area which had operated a dual school system
prior to the 1965-1966 school year. The usual dire predictions of racial violence
preceded efforts of the school district to desegregate successfully under a freedom
of choice plan. At the beginning of the 196566 school year, all but about eight
Negro high school students elected to enter the white high school. As a result,
the former Negro high school was closed and all students assigned to other
schools. Okeechobee is perhaps most noteworthy because freedom of choice
worked. After it desegregated, the community went about its business in relative
peace. The school system this year is almost fully desegregated. Superintendent,
Carl T. Durrence.

Osceola County. Fla.. moved from 21.3 percent desegregation of its Negro stu-
dents in 1965—-66 to 60 percent in the current school year. About 640 of the 4300
students in Osceola are Negro. Superintendent, William B. Stephens.

Hanatee County, Fla., provides an excellent example of success under capable
school leadership. Manatee has enrolled 580 of its 3800 Negro students in school
with white children (approximately 15 percent). Partly respongsible for Mana-
tee's progress is a newsletter issued by the school superintendent, which said:

“We believe we are dealing with more than the force of the Federal govern-
ment. We are facing the consciences of a public which increasingly believes that
the racial injustices of the past century must at long last be corrected. The pres-
«ures of the times—not the rioting on the streets. but the convictions of decent and
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thoughtful people across the country—demand that we no longer maintain a first
and second class of citizenship.”

The newsletter, issued February 1, 1967, is signed by J. Hartley Blackburn,
Manatee superintendent. (See copy of front page, attached). In addition to
student desegregation, Manatee has assigned 25 fulltime teachers “across racial
lines.”

NORTH CAROLINA

Moore County, N.C., attributes part of its success in desegregation to a project
funded by Title IV of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, preparing school personnel
for problems growing out of desegregation. The school system has desegregated
62.5 percent of its Negro students. Thirteen of its 15 schools are desegregated,
and 16 Negro teachers are in schools attended predominantly by white students.
Superintendent, R. E. Lee.

Cabarrus County, N.C., with a total of 9,200 students, has assigned all its 1100
Negro students to school on a desegregated basis by switching from freedom of
choice plan to geographic attendance areas. Cabarrus, which had achieved 18.5
percent desegregation of its schools under freedom of choice in 1965-66, no longer
has an all-Negro school. In addition, desegregated faculty and bus transporta-
tion. The county formerly bussed Negro to a city school while white students
attended school in their neighborhood. Superintendent, J. 1f. Robinson.

TEXAS

Sherman Independent School District, said to be the locale of the last Negro
lynching in Texas 30 years ago, is in the Eastern part of the State with the same
population makeup that is found in Northern Louisiana. The school district
has 710 Negro students, 5,918 white students. It has enrolled 549 Negro students
in schools on a desegregated basis. In addition, considerable progress is being
accomplished in other Last Texas areas—DParis and Tyler among them. Super-
intendent, Byron Daris. Excellent source and contact to open doors in the area
is (. P. (Cap) Landolt, former Sherman school superintendent who is now a
regional compliance officer for HEqual Educational Opportunities Program.
Landolt is in the Dallas regional office.

VIRGINIA

Amherst County exemplifies a rural county’s dual-personality approach to end-
ing the dual school system. The school district has approximately 5100 students,
of which about one-third are Negro. Some 10 percent of the Negro students are
now in formerly white schools, largely because of leadership of the school
superintendent, Tyler Fulcher. While the school district is making progress in
desegregation, it is also the locale of a newly-established private school which
serves as an escape hatch for white students running from segregation. (See
clipping of ncws story by Peter A. Janssen of Nciwrhouse Ncwspapers).

EXAMPLES OF PROGRESS IN SCHOOL DESEGREGATION

While most Federal efforts to accomplish school desegregation in the Southern
States still meet with grudging acceptance or outright resistance, there have
been numerous instances of realistic progress.

Here are sonie examples:

BORDER STATES

Delaware and Kenutcky, two of the 17 States that once operated separate
white and Negro schools as a matter of public policy, are nearing complete com-
pliance with U.8. Office of Education Guidelines by the fall of 1966.

A cooperative stance by State authorities in Kentucky will substantially
eliminate the dual school system there in all but six school districts this fall.
The remaining six districts have made good progress and are firmly committed
to desegregation next year, with completion of school construction projects.
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A school distriet in Paducah, which still had sixty percent of its Negro stu-
dents in segregated schools last year, will have no schools identifiable by race
this fall.

All students in rural Trigg County will attend desegregated schools this fall.
Last year more than sixty percent of the county’s Negro students were in
segregated schools. One fourth of the Trigg County population is Negro.

Some faculty desegregation has taken place in all Kentucky districts, although
more remains to be done in this area. The State has undertaken a number of
projects at least partially financed by Federal funds to prepare its schools,
teachers, and pupils for an effective desegregated education program.

Tennessee

A year-at-a-time desegregation plan in Kingsport, Tennessee, 11 years in the
planning stage, was discarded before it was initiated this year. Instead, the
school system built and desegregated a new high school. In addition, two junior
high schools and an elementary school were desegregated. Seventeen of the 19
Negro teachers are assigned to biracial schools.

The staff found that although the Weakley schools had adopted a freedom
of choice plan for student attendance, only one Negro child out of 400 had se-
lected a white school. Investigation indicated that Negro parents had been
discouraged by the superintendent of the Negro schools. who believed his job
to be in jeopardy.

The Office of Education recommended closing of the Negro elementary schools,
all of which were small and inadequate. The suggestion was accepted by school
administrators and Weakley =chools will be fully desegregated in September.

The elementary schools in Weakley County, Tennessee, in the vicinity of KKK
activity. will be totally desegregated this fall, partly as a result of a compliance
review by the Office of Education staff members.

THE SOUTH

Noticeable gains have also been achieved in desegregation efforts in the Deep
South.

Arkansas

The Plum Bayou school district (160 white and 230 Negro students) adopted
a free choice enrollment plan that will place half of the Negro students in
formerly white schools this fall.

The Beedeville school district, preparing to close its Negro school next year,
will enroll three-fourths of its Negro students in formerly white schools this
fall. The district has 600 students, with almost a 50-50 ratio of white and Negro
students.

In the Lewisville school district. a free choice enrollment plan this year resulted
in only four of 424 Negro students choosing to attend white schools. Checking
into complaints that Negro parents were afraid of reprisals if they placed their
children in white schools, Office of Education staff members assisted the school
administration in working out a plan which will result in approximately 15 per-
cent of the Negro students heing desegregated. At least one Negro teacher will
be assigned to each whire school, Tewisville is only 20 miles from the Louisiana
border where schoonl districts show little progress.

Florida

A pumber of Florida counties are progressing satisfactorily in efforts to
comply with the Guidelines. In Dade County. 15.000 Negro students will attend
classes with white students. Monroe County is desegregating all its schools.
Gilehrist and Hardee Counties will enroll almost half of their Negro students in
formerly white xchools rhis year. Sixteen percent of the Negro students in
Marion and Martin Counties will attend desegregated schools.

Florida is the only state in the Deep South to our knowledge in which the
Srate superintendent has stated in public that the dual school systems must be
eliminated.
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South Carolina

One school district in Chesterfield, South Carolina, has fully desegregated;
another will enroll 22 percent of its Negro students in predominantly white
schools. A district in Anderson County, despite great political pressure, is
planning to assign two Negro teachers to each white school and two white teach-
ers to each Negro school.

Manatee County (Florida)

White students, 12,200; Negro students, 3800

Manatee County has been cited by EEOP compliance staff and by the NAACP
leader in Florida as a good example of progress, although statistically it has
achieved only 15 percent desegregation—380 Negro students in school with
whites.

Manatee's distinguishing feature is a superintendent who makes speeches lo-
cally and nationally for desegregation, relating it to improved education. The
superintendent is a supporter of Title VI and beneficiary of Title IV. In fact,
his district gets about $2 million a year in Federal funds for a variety of edu-
cation programs.

As a reward for his early progress under the guidelines, the superintendent
lost three Democratic school board members in the recent election, large on the
race issue, and his most recent effort to plan for further desegregation next year
was rebuffed by the board. At issue: proposed closing of a Negro elementary
school. Rubonia, and reassignment of the 70 students to predominantly white
schools. At a meeting of the board, the plan was rejected by the Negro faculty
and parents. as well as by some outspoken white citizens and the new board
members. Manatee County’s days as an example of progress are numbered, al-
though it would still be worthwhile to get the superintendent on film with his
views. An elected official himself, the superintendent—J. Hartley Blackburn—
fully expects to be defeated when he faces the voters again in about 22 months.
He has been in office 22 yvears.

The school which is the center of the current flap in Manatee is a run-down
frame building in a little shanty town several miles from the bigger and better
downtown schools (in Bradenton). The principal is a Negro woman who has
opposed faculty desegregation in her school on the rather tenuous grounds that
“We aren’t good enough yet. Give us a year.” The school system has 25 teach-
ers in desegregated situations.

With all its apparent drawbacks, Manatee County is worth a visit for a chance
to get the superintendent on film, for his advocacy of desegregation in the face
of tierce local opposition, including front-page editorials blasting all the major
decisions that he has made.

Some Negro guidance counselors in the Manatee school system, operating as
part of a Title IV project. could talk authoritatively about what happens to
Negro children going into a desegregated situation for the first time.

Jonesboro, Arkansas (Craighead County)

White students. 4522 ; Negro students, 529.

Jonesboro School District has admitted two-thirds of its Negro student enroll-
ment to formerly white schools, moving from 6 percent a year ago to about 63
percent this year.

The school system has an all-Negro school, grades 1-8, which it expects to
close in the coming school year to complete desegregation. ILike most other
school districts in this part of the country, Jonesboro is struggling over a plan
to salvage the Negro school facility which apparently is a good building. The
probable solution will be to turn it into a vocational school for white and Negro
students, and give it a new name. Present name, Booker T. Washington.

Superintendent C. H. Geis and his board chairman. James Lalley. feel they
have had excellent community support for their administrative deciscions. The
board chairman is a young (mid-thirties) executive for a local General Electric
plant, which he says is also desegregating. The school system has thrée teachers
“across racial lines,” one for each school. and apparently plans no major change
in its policy regarding faculty.
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Jonesboro is a rather unexciting example of progress. The school district is
in the Northeastern part of the State and well ahead of the State average in
desegregation. The officials are willing but not eager to take part in a docu-
mentary. In the presence of his board chairman, the superintendent contributed
little of interest during the interview. He provided no leads on community or
faculty people who might be helpful in putting together a documentary picture.
The key figure in Jonesboro is the board chairman, Lalley, who could be quite
helpful with a little encouragement from a TV network or the State education
agency.

Searcy School District, Arkansas (White County)

White students, 2,351 ; Negro students, 168.

Searcy School District adopted a freedom of choice plan for the 196566
school year, ceased providing education for some 40 to 50 Negro children from
neighboring districts, and proceeded to desegregate its own.

What formerly served as a Negro school for all grades from 1-12 has been
converted into a desegregated elementary school with more white students than
Negroes. With only a small percentage of Negro students, Searcy does not con-
sider desegregation a major problem nor has it been one. The community has
quietly accepted the changes proposed by the school administration. One factor
in the community support was the favorable attitude of the Searcy Daily Citi-
zen, which has backed the school board in its decisions. The editor, Perrin
Jones, is said to be progressive in his attitude toward desegregation and influ-
ential in State education policy.

School Superintendent James W. Ahlf says that all actions leading to de-
segregation were carefully and thoroughly explained to community leaders,
including the P-TA, Chamber of Commerce, and other civie organizations.

Searcy is about 50 miles North of Little Rock, the biggest trade center for
miles around.

The school district has at least one Negro teacher in all its schools. Its only
difficulty in the beginning was that it dropped half-a-dozen Negro teachers whose
salaries had been paid by neighboring districts who sent their Negro children
to Searcy. For this, the school district was investigated by the FBI but noth-
ing came of it. Ahlf is aware of his vulnerability on faculty desegregation but
pelieves the issue is dead. His district has moved from 441-B to 441 status
this year.

Guy Perkins School District, Arkansas (Faulkner County)

White students, 167 ; Negro students, 117.

The residents of this small rural school district voted. in effect, to desegre-
gate. The vote came about because Superintendent 1. H. Fielder proposed to
close the Negro elementary school and absorb all the students in the compre-
hensive school system that has already desegregated at the high school level.
A new wing was needed on the white elementary school. The residents voted
for the increased tax knowing that the purpose was to achieve complete de-
segregation. The vote: 93 to 26.

Superintendent Fielder has arranged for testing of all his students by a near-
by college and expects to know within a few days where each stands. He is
certain that the Negro children are behind white children of the same age
at least two or three years and hopes to use the specific test information to gear
his curriculum to the change.

The superintendent is a dairyman who presides over his red-dust domain in
a khaki shirt and trousers.

Among the possibilities for camera coverage is a breakfast program con-
ducted for about 60 Negro elementary students under Title I, ESEA.

The superintendent says all the children in his district are from poor fam-
ilies. He is quite willing, in fact anxious, to participate in the proposed TV
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documentary. One reason: the white children and parents in his district have
been the target of jibes from neighboring communities because of their progress
in desegregation and he obviously would like to see the school districts that are
making progress get some recognition for it.

It would be difficult to find a better example of rural South than the Guy
Perkins district. The superintendent is confident that his white and Negro
teachers could handle themselves on national television.

Okeechobee County, Florida

White students, 2,100 ; Negro students, 300.

Superintendent Carl Durrance says Okeechobee County has 41 percent of its
Negro children in school with white children. The school district plans to
assign white and Negro children to all its five school buildings next year, but
will not achieve 100 percent desegregation. A group of grades will be assigned
to each of the schools, including what is now the Negro elementary school.
The Negro high school was closed last year. However, Okeechobee is consider-
ing allowing Negro children in the neighborhood of the present Negro elementary
school a free choice for grades one, two, and three. Consequently some chil-
dren in these grades will still be in school with students only of their own race,
although white children at another grade level will be attending the same school
on a desegregated basis. This dual use of what is presently the Negro ele-
mentary school will prevent 100 percent desegregation by class, and is typical
of the flaws in most of the plans examined as possible “success stories.” Even
s0. Okeechobee is ahead of other school districts in Florida on a percentage
basis, has exceeded guidelines minimum requirements, and has effected some
dexegregation with little or no difficulty.

Okeechobee is using a Title IV consultant on desegregation, from the Florida
Atlantic University. It has met minimum standards on faculty desegregaton,
about one teacher per school.

Twenty years ago, Okeechobee was still arguing over whether to educate its
Seminole children—and some from neighboring counties—but now the com-
munity has accepted the Negro students without a rufile.

School School

Total school districts districts

districts School reporting reporting

having en- districts summer summer

State rollment of | responding programs programs

1,200 or more to survey serving serving
students prekinder- | kindergarten

garten children

children

Alabama. .. 113 91 7 14
Arkansas. - .ocoooimmommoaa- 90 88 55 10
Florida. - ..o 62 49 4 8
Georgia._ oo 175 174 12 40
Kentucky . oo 150 150 3 25
Louisiana. ... ... 67 7 4 9
Mississippie -cccocmemooooooC 136 126 4 10
North Carolina_ . ________._.__ 165 164 12 53
South Carolina_____.___________.._ 103 101 8 21
Tennessee _ _ o —oooaoaooo 123 97 8 15
Texas. .. 313 307 38 130
Virginia. ... ... 122 114 12 39
West Virginia__._._.._.___ 54 54 3 7
TOtAl - ee e e 1,673 1,582 170 381




List or Comprraints From SEpr. 1 THRouGH MAR.

Total Alabama Alaska Arizona
COMPLAINTS
R eceived . - . 41 79 1
A waiting investigation R . . RN R U
Being investipated . 120 R . .
Itavest cdand found invalid 30 1 1
lround valif _ - S - 189 62 _ .
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Arkansas

Nore. Total of 6 complaints for other than public elementary and secondary schools. Complaints

indicated by asterisk.

California

Coloraio Connee- Delaware

tirut

e

(S

Dristrict of
Columbia

Total Florida Georgia Hawaii Idaho Ilinois Indiana Towa Kansas Kentucky
COMPLAINTS
Received. _ .. . S - R 15 42 3 N - 10
Awaiting investigation . _ . B 2 *10 2 .
Being investigated . . o o 3 10 ) O P 9
Investigated and found invalid. _. . ___._______ 3 7 P T ) IO
Found valid_____ .. S 7 15 . - T B 1
* 1 college complaint—(Georgia Tech.
Total Louisiana Maine Maryland Massa- Michigan | Minnesota | Mississippi] Missouri | Moutana
chusetts
COMPLAINTS

Received. - *51 1 1
Awaiting investig: 1 )
Being investigated.....__ 2 | 1
Investigated and found invalid. 0

Found valid

*Loujsiana—Private school complaint; Mississippi—Complaint under review in Catholic school.
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Total Virginia Washington West Virginia
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Being investigated .. _ _ .
Investigated and found invalid_ -
Foundvalid.___ . .. ..
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MEeEMORANDA FroM CoMMISSIONER HOWE TO CHIEF STATE SCHOOL OFFICERS

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE,
OFFICE OF EDUCATION,
Washington, D.C., April 15, 1966.

MEMORANDUM

To: Chief State School Officers.
From: Harold Howe II, U.S. Commissioner of Education.
Subject: Title VI Guidelines.

Several chief State school officers have inquired about the approval of Ele-
mentary and Secondary Education Act Title I projects for school districts which
have not submitted 4+41-B compliance forms by April 15.

This letter is your authorization to continue approvals under Title I until
May 6, at which time any commitment of new Federal funds will be subject to
deferral.  We shall take a similar position in regard to various programs
for }\lvhich we approve funds in this Office. We will be in further communication
with you.

This extension has been arranged to give school districts time to complete
their compliance arrangements. I hope that it is helpful.

Within the next few days we shall be notifying school districts in your State
which have not filed the appropriate documents for compliance about the forms
and information which are still necessary. In the meantime, I hope that you
will encourage superintendents to proceed with compliance procedures as rapidly
as possible.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE,
OFFICE OF EDUCATION,
Washington, D.C., May 5. 1966.

BUREAU OF ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION

To: Title I Coordinators, ESEA.

From: John F. Hughes, Director, Division of Program Operations.

Subject: Compliance with the Civil Rights Act with Respect to the Projects to
be filed for Fiscal Year 1967 under Title I.

As stated in the Revised Statement of Policies for School Desegration Plans
under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, local educational agencies whose
voluntary desegregation plans have been accepted by the Commissioner may
continue their status as applicants in compliance by filing Form HEW 441-B.

Grants based on project applications filed for 1967 may be approved for all
applicants who have established compliance as soon as funds are available.
Any subsequent action that the Commissioner may take, prior to the effective
date of a final order, will not affect the continuation of a previously approved
project. However, any review or investigation disclosing that the applicant
may not be in compliance could, of course. result in a notification by the U.S.
Commissioner of Education to defer any new commitments of funds which would
otherwise be approved for an applicant under Title I.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE,
OFFICE OF EDUCATION,
Washington, D.C., July 1, 1966.

MEMORANDUNM

To: Chief State School Officers.

From: Harold Howe II. U.S. Commissioner of Education.

Subject : Responsibilities of State Education Agencies in Assuring Compliance
for State Approved Projects.

Recently a number of State departments of education have raised questions
concerning their responsibility for assuring compliance with the nondiscrimina-
tion requirements of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Several State systems have
objected that their agencies are not enforcement agencies and have no responsi-
bility to assure that federally assisted programs funded through their agency
are in compliance with the Act.
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I feel that it is most important that State agencies be reminded of their
responsibilities in this area. The intent of Congress in enacting Title VI was
that no further Federal assistance should be provided for programs in which
there is discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin. Since, in
many Federal education programs, the Congress has also prescribed that much
of the educational leadership and administrative responsibility for the program
shall be borne by the State departments of education. it is evident that State
educational agencies have an important responsibility for carrying out the non-
discrimination policies now written into all of these programs.

Each State educational agency has filed with the Office of Education a State-
ment of Compliance giving its assurance that it will fulfill these responsibilities
as a condition for the receipt of Federal financial assistance through the Office
of Education and outlining the methods of administration to be used by the
State department of education in carrying them out. Each agency has set out,
among other things, the methods it will use to “Review periodically the practices
of the State agency, school districts, and other agencies participating in these
programs, to ascertain and assure that these practices are in conformity with
the Regulation and the Statement of Compliance.” The instructions accom-
panying the Statement of Compliance forms, issued December 1964, stated that
“While it is recognized that some discriminatory practices may occur in school
districts and other agencies which are not within the control of the State agency,
the methods of administration must describe the efforts that the State agency
will make to effect compliance (such as advice and consultation), and must pro-
vide that where such efforts fail, the U.S8. Commissioner of Education will be
so advised.” Such methods must also provide for the evaluation of compliance,
for taking timely action to correct discriminatory practices found to exist., and
for keeping the Office of Education informed regarding the disposition of com-
plaints.

Failure of the States to carry out these responsibilities violates the intention
of Congress to maintain the decentralization of educational responsibility in the
States and local school districts. It invites Federal action where it may not
be needed. It furthermore constitutes a violation of Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act which could jeopardize the continued participation of the entire State in
federally assisted programs.

The recent examples which have given rise to these questions of State
responsibility have come up under the summer programs financed through Title
I of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act. My memorandum of April
25 called attention to the importance of State educational agencies reviewing
summer projects to make sure that they would be operated on a nondiscrimina-
tory basis. Some State departments of education have informed local school
districts of the April 25 memorandum and have undertaken to review all projects
to assure compliance. Others have not done so. We are now receiving com-
plaints of segregated summer programs conducted in violation of Title VI. There
is particular concern about those school districts which have purposely switched
the funding of their summer preschool programs from the Office of Economie
Opportunity to the Elementary and Secondary Act in the hope of avoiding the
nondiscrimination requirement.

We are now planning visits to some of these programs to review these charges.
member to work with our staff in remedying any noncompliance. If we cannot
I hope that if any such visit is required in your State you will assign a staff
count upon State agency responsibility in this matter we will have to review
the status of compliance of the State educational agency with its Statement of
Compliance.

I am sorry to say that we have heard of some instances in which local school
districts have canceled their summer programs rather than comply with the
nondiscrimination requirements. I hope that the strongest leadership can be
exercised from the State level to prevent local school districts from taking such
action. Already we have received strong pleas from local groups for the Federal
Government to finance directly programs to help disadvantaged youngsters where
local school authorities have abdicated their responsibility for using the avail-
able funds for the purpose intended by the Congress. I am sure you feel that
direct Federal funding or operation of such programs is not desired by most
people, but you should recognize that failure of local school districts to take
responsible action will certainly increase the pressure for such an alternative.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE,
OFFICE OF EDUCATION,
Washington, D.C., February 1967.

MEMORANDUM FOR SCHOOL DISTRICTS OPERATING UNDER FREE CHOICE
DESEGREGATION PLANS

We believe it will help school districts this year if they are more fully in-
formed of the procedures the Office of Education will use in reviewing the opera-
tion of “free choice” desegregation plans.

GENERAL PROCEDURE

Each school district with a plan is required to file with the Office of Education
by April 15 a report of its anticipated staff and student assignments for next fall.
School districts using free choice plans should file the report of their anticipated
student assignments within 15 days of the end of the choice period. As soon as
we receive the report we will make a preliminary determination of the probable
compliance status of the district.

Generally speaking those districts operating under free choice plans which
meet the criteria set out below will receive a letter indicating that on the basis
of the progress reported they appear to be in compliance with the Act and will
require no further review this year. If we later receive information indicating
less progress than anticipated or other compliance problems, then a review which
looks at all aspects of the desegregation plan may be necessary.

CRITERIA FOR EXEMPTION FROM REVIEW ON THE BASIS OF SPRING REPORTS

Student desegregation

For progress in student desegregation beyond what has been achieved in 1966—
67, the criteria for preliminary review are those already set out in Section 181.54
of the guidelines.

It should be noted that the guideline percentages apply only in cases where
there is a “sizeable percentage of Negro students.” In many districts with a
small percentage (e.g.. less than 15¢:-20¢,) of Negro students more substantial
progress in eliminating the dual system than that indicated in Section 181.54
would be expected.

Staff desegregation

Last year school districts requesting a rough guide to expected progress were
told that the equivalent of one classroom teacher assigned on a dexegregated
basis in each school normally would be adequate evidence of a sufficient start on
staff desegrecation, so that no review would be required. For the coming school
vear double that degree of progress and staff desegregation in both formerly
white and Negro schools would be expected to assure that a plan is operating
offectively. Tt should be recognized, again. that this can only be a very rough
measure. For instance, in districts with a few large schools more progress
would be expected, and in districts with a great many small schools less might
be expected.

Other factors

Other factors that will be considered in making preliminary reviews include:
existence of complaints affecting free operation of the plan, existence of small,
inadequate segregated schools and other evidence of unequal programs, evidence
of building programs which would perpetuate the dual system, and discrimina-
tory transfers in or out of the districts. Factors which might indicate adequate
progress despite failure to meet the student and staff criteria above might in-
clude such consideration as the special difficulties presented in school districts
where there is a very high percentage of Negro enrollment in the schools (such
as 70¢ or 80¢; or more).
Districts requiring review

Dhistriets which do not meet the above criteria on the basis of their April 15
reports will be considered to require further review because of probable com-
pliance problems. These will be divided into two groups: (a) those districts
whose performance falls substantially below the criteria listed above and
(b) those districts coming closer to the above criteria but still requiring review.
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Each district in these two groups will be notified of its status, and those in
category (a) above will be visited for a review on a priority basis. Districts
in category (b) will not be visited immediately and should review their own
plans carefully and take every possible step to improve their progress before
school opens in the fall. Review of these districts is likely to fall during the
school year, and adjustments to achieve compliance are always more of a prob-
lem while school is in session.

Summer programs

In addition to the operation of their regular desegregation plans, school dis-
tricts should be alert to the requirement that their special summer programs
cannot be operated on a segregated basis. State officials have responsibility
for reviewing carefully the proposals for these programs to make certain that
ineligible projects are not approved. A bulletin about the requirements for
sumimer programs is attached.

Harorp Howe II,
U.8. Commissioner of Education.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE,
OFFICE OF EDUCATION,
Washington, D.C., February 8, 1967.

MEMORANDUM FOR CHIEF STATE SCHOOL OFFICERS

Subject : Civil Rights Compliance in Summer Programs Operated Under Title I
of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965, as Amended.

I want to remind you that procedures instituted in 1966 governing civil rights
compliance in Title I summer programs remain in effect for projects under-
taken by local educational agencies in the summer of 1967. The revised Title VI
desegregation guidelines, issued on January 1, 1967, repeat the 1966 provision
(§181.14 (b) (4)):

All special edueational programs. such as preschool, summer school and
adult education, and any educational program newly instituted, must be
conducted without segregation or any other form of discrimination. Free
choice desegregation procedures normally may not be applied to such
programs.

More detailed explanations of the responsibilities of State agencies for en-
forcing this provision are contained in my memoranda of April 25, 1966, and
July 1, 1966, on this topic. I urge you to review these documents, as they clearly
spell out your responsibilities for assuring that summer programs are operated
in a totally desegregated fashion.

The Office of Education attaches great importance to the effective implementa-
tion of these procedures. I hope you will remind the local educational agencies
in your State of these requirements. In reviewing and approving applications
for summer projects, you are requested to review thoroughly with the applicant
the procedures that it will follow to assure that the program will be fully de-
segregated. If projects have already been approved, they should be reviewed
again to assure that this requirement is being met. We hope that a careful
review at this time will help avoid the necessity of discontinuing or restructur-
ing a project after it has begun.

Title I staff will visit selected State agencies this spring to review with State
Title I Coordinators the procedures your agency is following. In the meantime.
I hope you will call upon us if we can be of assistance in clarifying any relevant
matters.

Harorn Howr I1.
U.S. Commissioner of Education.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE,
OFFICE OF EDUCATION,
Washington, D.C.. February 27, 1967,

To : Chief State School Officers, State Title I Coordinators.
From : Harold Howe II, U.S. Commissioner of Education.
Subject : Use of Title I funds in local school districts undergoing desegregation
or in racially segregated attendance areas.
In its report isued on January 31 the National Advisory Council on the Edueca-
tion of Disadvantaged Children made the following comment and recom-
mendation :
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“Ag racial desegregation of school progresses, reports made to the Council
indicate that insufficient planning results in some impoverished Negro
children being cut off from the benefits of important programs that may
exist in their former segregated schools. . . . A major new area for vigi-
lance and administrative care is that of insuring that special educational
services follow the eligible child who is transferred under a school desegre-
gation program.”

The purpose of this memorandum is to provide (1) the following statement
of policy: no child who would otherwise participate in a Title I activity or
service is to be denied such participation because of his ewercise of the right to
enroll in another school and (2) guidance for the implementation of this policy.

In this connection your attention is called to my memoranda of April 25, 1966,
on summer programs and of July 1. 1966, on the responsibilities of State edu-
cational agencies for compliance with the Civil Rights Act. Your attention is
also called to my letter to you dated August 9, 1966, concerning the use of
Title I funds for children living in racially segregated attendance areas.

Questions have been raised by Title I Coordinators concerning the location of
Title I services when children are attending schools under a freedom-of-choice,
open enrollment, or other plan designed to bring about desegregation. We realize
that with the implementation of such plans local educational agencies may need
some special guidance in determining the children who will participate in the
Title I program. We ask that you advise all Title I applicants in your State
as follows:

1. The revised Title I regulations differ from the previous regulations in
two important respects regarding project areas:

(a) Itisno longer permissible to designate as project areas attendance
areas with less than average concentrations of children from low-income
families.

(b} The regulations specifically state that projects shall be located
where the children can best be served.

2. The purpose of the “attendance area” requirement in Title T is to
identifv the “target population” from which the children with special needs
are to be selected. The children in the target population include all children
(a) who are attending a particular public school which has a high concen-
tration of children from low-income families (see item 4), (b) who had been
attending that school, or (¢) who would be attending that school if they
were not attending a private school or another public school under a freedom-
of-choice, open enrollment, or other plan designed to bring about desegre-

ation.
& 3. Educationally deprived children from this group should be selected for
participation on the basis of the priority of their needs. Appropriate activi-
ties and services designed to meet those needs should be provided at locations
where the children can best be served which, in most cases, are the schools
they now attend.

4 The degree of concentration of children from low-income families for
the purpose of determining eligible attendance areas or “target populations”
may be estimated. if better data are not available. on the basis of the number
or percentage of children from low-income families actually attending each
of the schools being operated by the applicant local educational agency.

5. The only basis on which Title I services may be offered in schools en-
rolling children most of whom are not in the “target population” (see item 2)
is that those services are designed for and will be serving primarily educa-
tionally deprived children selected from that population. Other children
who have needs which can be met through such a project may participate in
it but the number of such children must be limited so as not to dilute the
effectiveness of the project for the children for whom it was designed.

¢, The types of services that would be appropriate under thqse cireums-
stances include special health. nutritional and social services: guidance and
eouseling : and remedial programs. In applring such services, consideration
<hould bhe given to the special needs of the children in their new school
environment. The types of services that on the surface would not be aceent-
able would include such activities as field trips for large numbers of children,
ceneral cultural enrichment activities, construction. and the installation of

equipment.




